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AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEX.

CoMMITTEE ON MILITARY AFFAIRS,
UNITED STATES SENATE,
Monday, March 11, 1907.

The committee met at 10.30 o’clock a. m.

Present: Senators Warren (chairman), Scott, Foraker, Lodge, Hem-
enway, Bulkeley, Warner, Pettus, Foster, and Overman.

Senator Foraker. I want to inquire whether the shells that were
taken away by the Secretary of War have been returned.

The Cuairyman. I do not think they have.

Senator Foraker. I wish that a letter might be sent to the Secre-
tary of War asking him to return those shells if he can do so con-
veniently.

Scnator War~ner. Do you want this in the record ?

Senator Foraker. Yes; I should like it to appear in the record. I
should also like to have a request sent to the Secretary of War that he
send us the report which I understand has been made of what I have
been told is a microscopic examination of these shells, made at the
arsenal at Springfield. I need that, because I may want to call some
witnesses with resl)ect to it, if it is of such a nature as I understand
- it to be. I want the benefit of that. If I could have that to-morrow
morning it would be quite convenient.

The Cnairman, We will ask them to send them up at once if con
venient, or as soon as they can,

Senator Foraker. Yes; with somebody who can explain them. I
should like to know at what time they can do it, if they can not do it
at once.
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The CrairMAN. Very well,

Senator Foraker. Walker McCurdy was examined some weeks
ago and dismissed. He has been subpaenaed at the request of Senator
Warner, as I understand it. e is present. He is wanted as a wit-
ness at Fort Sam Houston, and [ think, under the circumstances, we
had better let him be recalled first.

The CuairMaN. Then let Mr. McCurdy be reealled.

TESTIMONY OF WALKER M'CURDY (COLORED)—Recalled.

Warker McCuroy Scolored), a witness previously sworn, being
recalled, testified as follows:

By Senator WARNER:

Q. Sergeant, how many %uns-—how many Springfield rifles—were
issued to your company?—aA\. Seventy, sir. .

Q. How many were in the hands of the men, issued to the menf—
A. 1 don't know, sir, how many were in the hands of the men.

Q. You can not tell?—A. No, sir. )

Q. Can you tell approximately —A. I think there was about fifty-
odd, I don’t know exactly how many. I think there should have
been about 57.

Q. }Yell, how many were there?—A. I don’t know, sir; I could
not tell.

Q. You say there should have been 57 issued?—A. I think there
should have been somewhere about 57 in the hands of the men.

. Q. You kept your gun in your quarters?—aA. In the storeroom,
sir.

Q. What was the number of your gun?—A. I forget now what the
number of my gun was.

Q. Each soldier knew his gun from the number?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. No other mark upon the gun to designate it except the num-
ber?—A. No, sir.

Q. Then do you remember what the numbers of your guns were? —
A. No, sir; I could not remember all the numbers.

Q. That is, did they commence, for instance, at a low number and
run up consecutively ?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. But you do not know the lowest number nor the highest num-
ber?—A. No; I don't remember that.

YQ. For instance, if it commenced at 1 it would go on to 70?—A.
es, sir.

Q. Not that it did commence that way, of course?—A. No, sir; I
understand you.

Q. These guns that you had in the storeroom, how were they
kept?—A. They were kept in the arm chest.

AQYTlm.t was in the room adjoining the room in which you slept {—

. Yes, sir. :

Q. How many of those guns were out of the chest, excepting those
in the hands of the men?—A. Only mine.

Q. Did any other noncommissioned officer keeﬁ his gun out of
quarters?—A. No, sir; not as I know of; I don’t know of any.
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Q. Do you know whether they did or not?¥—A. No, sir; they was
not sup’)osed to keep them out.

Q. Well; but do you know —A. No, sir; I don’t.

Q. This chest in which the guns were kept, the top was screwed
down?—A. Yes, sir; I think there is ten screws in each chest.

Q. When had you opened that chest?—A. It had not been opened
since I left Niobrara,

Q. The same number of guns were in there that were in there when
you left Niobrara?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When a man was discharged his gun was taken up, of course?—
A. Yes, sir,

Q. And you would know whether he turned in the right gun by
the number?—A. Yes, sir; because the number was kept on the
book there—the company property book, All the numbers were on
that, ench man’s number opposite his nume.

Q. Of course, as you say, you can not remember the individual
number?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do not remember the number of your own gun?—A. No, sir;
I do not; I disremember it now. It isso long I can't tell that,

Q. You had some difficulty in gettini into the storeroom?—A. Yes,
sir; I could not find the right key in the dark.

é. How many keys did you have?—A. 7"'wr keys; the door hnd
two locks on it,

Q. And you had two keys?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So it would be one of the two that would have opened it?—A.
Oh, I had a bunch of keys, but there were two keys belonging to the
storeroom door.

Q. What other keys did you have?—A. Had keys to all the other
doors of the quarters.

Q. All on the same ring?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But they were an entirely different kind of key, were they
not?—A. Yes, sir. I had several padlock keys on there, but could
not tel]l in the dark by feeling of them—could not tell what key I
wanted.

Q. Was this key to the storercom door a padlock?—A. Yes, sir;
one of them was, and the other was like an ordinary lock that was put
on a door.

Q. And the ammunition that you had there when you were at
Fort Brown was what kind2—A., Springfield ammunition.

Q. What kind of cartridges?—A. The steel-jacketed cartridge.

Q. The steel-jacketed ball cartridge?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That property book, in which the numbers of the guns were
kept—where would that be now, Sergeant?—A. It is in the com-
pany, sir. i

Q. With the company?—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. You left it there, of course, when you left?—A, Yes, sirj [
left it there when I was discharged.

Senator \WWarNER. I think that is all I want to ask.

Senator Foraker. I would like to ask a few questions,

Q. Where do you live now #—A. El Reno, Okla.



980 AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS.

AQ&’Did you return there after you were dismissed the other day?—

. Yes, sir,

YQ. And when you were resubpoenaed, you wers found therei—A.
es, sir.

YQ. And you have just returned here on the resubpenai—A.
es, sir,

Q. Now, first as to the numbers of these rifles. How are these
Springfield rifles numbered? Ias each company a separate set of
numbers?—A. Yes, sir; each company.

Q. Or are they numbered from the beginning on, according to the
number of guns that are manufactured or distributed *—A. That is
the way they are distributed, sir, but we get a certain set of numbers,
Say we commence at 7000 or 8000, we go on up until we get to 70.

5. That is what I want to get at. Your first number may be as
high as seven or eight or ten thonsand #—A. Yes, sir.

. In other words, the guns are all numbered as they are manu-
factured ?—A. Yes, sir.
YQ. Commencing with 1 and running on into the thousands?—A.
es, sir.

Q. Do you know where you did commence—in what thousand #—
A. T think we commenced in the thirte-threes; I am not sure.

Q. In 33000?7—A. I think we did; I am not sure.

Q. Something like that?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But wherever you commenced you would have 70 consecutive
numbers?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And whern the guns were issued there was a record kept?—A.
Oh, yes; there was a record kept in the company property book.
Evergth;{ng that is issued to a soldier is kept on the company prop-
erty book. .

(S. You were the quartermaster’s sergeant?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was your business, to keep them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Su on the comEany’s Broperty book would apﬁeur the name
of each soldier and the number of the gun issued to him?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. So that with that book before us we could identify the man that
had any particular number?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Any particular number of gun that had been issued to that
company #—A. Yes, sir.

NQ. You don’t remember what the number of your gun was?—A.

o, sir.

Q. But_the company property book will show that?—A. Yes, sir:
the company property book shows every man’s number.

Q. Shows every man’s number?—A. The number of every man’s
gun in the company.

Senator Foraker. We will try to get the company property book.

By the Cuamryan:
Q. Each man was charged with a gun by number?—A. Yes, sir.
YQ. You identified his gun from time to time by that nunber?—A.
es, sir.
Q. No other marks on them to identify them except the manufac-
turer’s numberf—A. No, sir.
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By Senator ForAKER:

Q. There is a gun right behind you of the kind you carried, as I
understand. I wish you would look at it and point out the number
on that gun, where it is on the gun, and exhibit it to the committee.
Is that the kind of %I_E you hadf—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Fos1ER. at is the number of that gunt

By Senator ForaXER:

Q. I was just about to ask you what is the number of that gunf—A.
No. 193911, :

Q. And that number is on what part of the gun?—A. The breech.

Q. Just in front of the chamber?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it is there on every one of those guns?—A. Yes, sir; every
one of them.

Q. I will read all that is here: “ U, S., Springfield Armory, model
1903, 193911.” That is a pretty big number. It is only your best
recollection that your numbers commenced in the 33000?—A. I think
they did, sir; I am not positive.

Y(g. Now, you say there were 70 guns issued to your company —A.
es, sir.

Q. They were issued to you, as this record shows, on the last of
March, 1906, at Fort Niobrara?—A. Somewhere about that.

AQ.Y At that time the guns were distributed to the different men?—

. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, you told the Senator, in answer to his 3uestion, that you
could not tell now how many guns were in the hands of the men and
how many were in the box—in the arm chest.-—A. No, sir; I could
not tell, because I did not count them.

Q. That was not a part of your business?—A. No, sir; I know all
the rifles that was i:ot in the hands of the men, they was in the
storeroom.

Q. You had charge of the rifles that were in the storeroom?—
A. Yes, sin.

Q. Before you left Fort Niobrara you had some extra guns, I
suppose from what you say, some guns that were not in the hands
of the men? You had in your company some of these 70 guns that
were not in the hands of the men?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. They were in your charge, were they i—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, tell us in what way they were boxed up and taken to Fort
Brown.—A. They were all oiled with this cosmoline oil and packed
in the arm chest, just the same as we received them from the arsenal,

Q. Can you give us an idea about how many there were in that
arnl\ chest?—A. I know I kad one arm chest full. There is ten to
a chest. ’

Q. Ten in a chest?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had one arm chest full?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then you had some others in another arm chest?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Can you tell us how many there were?—A. I don’t know, sir,
about how many were in the other.

Q. Can you give us some idea—12, 13, or 147—A. Why, I thought
I had about 15 or 17; I am not sure,

Q. You can not give us the number, as I understand —A. No, sir.

Q. They were boxed up and oiled, were they, before they were
boxed upi—A. Yes, sir; they were all oiled,
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Q. In whet way, if at all, were they fastened in the arm chest $—
A. They were fastened—the lid was fastened by 10 screws.

Q. If you only had three or four guns in a box, or five or six in a
box that was made to hold ten, they would rattle around, would they
not¥—A. No,sir. There is cleats in there. They are fastened down.

Q. Explain that.—A., Cleats on the inside of the box; crosspieces
go across to hold the rifle steady. If there is not but one in there, you
can ship it just as safe as if it was full.

Q. Were there cleats in this box or not?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Did you box them up at Niobrara$—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did anybody assist you in boxing them up, or supervise it #—A.
No, sir; I boxed them up all alone myself. .

é._ When you got to Fort Brown what was done with those boxes
that held those surplus guns?—A. They were put in the storeroom,
sir,

Q. And that was in your charge?—A. Yes, sir.

lQ. Were they under lock and key there or not?—A. Yes, sir;
always,

Q.yWhere were those guns the night of the firing, if you know{—
A. In the storeroom, sir.

Q. How do you know they were there? Did you meke any exam-
ination%—A. Yes, sir; the lieutenant examined them. I taken the
lantern and went in there—I don't know exactly what time it was,
but I ;}ulged it was probably about 3 or 4 o’clock.

Q. Three or 4 o’clock in the morning¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You went in there with whom to examine them?—A. Lieuten-
ant Lawrason.

Q. He was gour company commander?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you happen to go in there with him{--A. He asked
me to go into the storeroom,

Q. e came and told you he wanied to go in theref—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you do when you got in there?—A. I got in there and
I had a lot of bunks on top of the arm chest. I taken them off, taken
my screw-driver, and opened the boxes.

Q. Did he tell you what he wanted to do?—A. He did not tell me
until after he got in the storeroom, and then he told me he wanted to
examine the arm chest,

Q. Did you open the arm chest or not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you and he examine the arm chest?#—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What then? Did you find the guns in there or not?—A. Yes,
sir; found the %2113 just like I packed them at Fort Niobrara.

é. Had they been disturbed at all, as far as you could observe #—A.
No, sir; had not been disturbed at all.

Q. You spoke of cleats to hold the guns down. Were they there
still to hold the guns in position§—A. Yes, sir; just like I packed
them at Niobrara.

Q. Did you and the licutenant count the guns?—A. I think he
counted them. I did not count them. I just got them in shape so
he could count them. .

Q. You put them out there so he could count them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the result of that count?—A. I think he was satis-
fied, because he did not say anything, sir.
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Q. At that time you and he knew how many guns ought to be
there, didn’t you?—A. Yes, sir; he knew how many was out in the
gun racks; I did not.

Q. He had been to the gun racks, had het—A. Yes, sir; he knew
how many was out in the company.

Q. You also had some revolvers?—A. Yes, sir, .

Q. Where were they?—A. Packed in one of those arm chests,

Q. Where were they so packed 2—A. In the storeroom.

Q. No; I mean where did you pack them in the arm chest?—A.,
Packed them in the arm chest—packerl a lot of paper and everything
around tiem.

Q. Did you put them in the arm chest at Niobrara before you left
there?—A. Before I left Niobrara. '

Q. At Fort Niobrara?—A. Yes. sir, =~

Q. Had that box been opened before this firing after you came to
Brownsville?—A. No, sir; it had not been touched.

Q. Now, when you opened the revolver box in what condition did

ou find the revolvers? Were they there or not?—A. They were all
just like I packed them at Fort Niobrara.

Q. And when you went into the storeroom the lieutenant told you
to open these boxes, and you found the arm chest under a lot of
bunks{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did they happen to be under a lot of bunks?—A., My
storeroom was so small I did not have room to put everything sep-
arate; and as I did not have any use for the guns right away, I put
my empty bunks on top of them. )

Q. Where was this box that contained the revolvers?—A. That
was under the bunks.

Q. Under there also, was it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Apparently had they been disturbed in any way?—A. No, sir;
they had not. ‘

Q. Had they been in your possession ever since you arrived at

. Brownsville?—A. Ever since I arrived there and got my storeroom
straightened up.

Q. It was not your business to count the guns in the gun racks, as
I understand it?—A. No, sir.

Senator Foraxer. I believe that is all.

By Senator Warxen:
. Q. It was your business to know how many guns were 1ssued to
the men, because you issued them, didn't you?—A. Yes, sir; I at-
tendled to that.

Q. That was a part of your business?—A. Well, I always kept it
on the books, if I wanted to see how many it was.

Q. That was your business, to issue the guns to the men. Nobody
else had a right to issue them (o the men?—A. No, sir; nobody only
the company commander.

Q. How many revolvers did you have?—A. I had nine, sir.

Q. Which of the arm chests were they in?—A. I didn’t know what
the number of the arm chest was. It was in one of the avmn chests.

Q. How many arm chests did you have?—A. I had seven.

Q. In the storeroom?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You say it was between 3 and 4 o'clock of the morning after
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the shooting—that is, the night of the 13th-14th?—A. Yes, sir;
think it was about, yes, sir; because I know it was after they d
missed the men, all except the company that was on guard.

Q. What reason did Lieutenant Lawrason give for wanting to go
and count these guns in there?—A. I did not ask him.

Q. It was a very unusual ﬂ;oceeding, was it noti—A. Why, yes;
something I never had to do before.

Q. Never had it happen to you before?—A. No, sir.

Q. He said nothing #—A. No, sir.

Q. No reason whatever?—A. No, sir.

Q. Said he wanted to count the gunsin the arm chest{—A. Yes,sir.

Q. You were interested in seein%‘that the guns were all there, we:
you tm:it?-—A. Yes, sir; I opened them up. I did not know what he
wanted.

Q. And you could not tell how many guns there weref—A. No
sir; I could not. I did not say that much attention to it, because
didn’t know what he wanted. He looked them over and he found
them all full of cosmoline oil and seemed to be satisfied. He said
nothing, and I did not ask him any questions about it.

By Senator FORAKER:

Q. Are noncommissioned officers in the habit of asking commis-
sioned officers their reasons for doing things?—A. I never did, sir;
and it is a very unusual thing for any enlisted man to do, If he
receives an order, all he has to do is to go and obey it,

By Senator WARNER:

.Q. My question is, Lieutenant Lawrason said nothing to you about
his reason?—A. No, sir; he did not say anything. He said he
wanted to ins(s)ect my gun chest,

Q. You had not been upstairs with him?—A. No, sir; I did not go
upstairs with him at all.

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. Did you suspect what his reason was for doing that?—A. I
thought after he inspected them he wanted to see if any of the rifles
had been taken out, I guess. I thought——

Q. Do you know anything about 15 or 20 men of the battalion
being over in Matamoros that day of the shooting?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know of anybody being over there?—A. I don’t know of
anybody.” I never was over there myself and I don't know of anyone
being over thiere,

By Senator Foster:

Q. There was an inspection of your company the next morning#—
A. Yes, sir,

Q. Did all the members of your company gnss inspection that morn-
ing?—A. Except the members of the guard. .

Q. Were any of the members of your company reinspected—were
their arms reinspected #—A. Yes, sir; there were six or seven; I dis-
remember how many.

Q. Why were there arms reinspected? Do you know?—A. No,
sir; I don’t, because I heard no one say. )

. They did not pass the first inspection, did they?#—A. No, sir:
T guess not. Licutenant Lawrason stepped them back.

I
is-
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Q. They were stepped back and then their aims were rein.
spected ¥—A. Reinspected by Captain Lyon and Major Penrose.

Q. Were you present at that reinspection?—A. Yes, sir.,

Q. How was that reinspection made?—A. Made with a cloth; took
a brass wiping rod and a clean cloth and run it through the gun bar-
rel thoroughly.

Q. Who made that reinspection?—A. Captain Lyon assisted by
Major Penrose. Major Penrose was there himself along with him.

. Do you know the names of those six or seven men who did not
pass the first inspectionf—A. No, sir; I don’t; I could not think of
them now,

Q. Can you remember the names of any of them?—A. I know one
man there by the name of Taylor. I remember him, a man by the
name of Taylor, and I can’t think of the rest.

By Senator OVERMAN:

Q. Was he the man that had the difficulty out in town?—A. No,
sir; none of our men—none of B Company—never had no trouble
thatll1 know of. I never heard any one speak of having any trouble
out there.

By Senator FosTEr:

Q. It was necessary, then, to use a rod and a rag in order to
discover whether or not their rifles were in a proper condition, was
it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, is the inspection made by looking through the barrel of
the rifle?—A. Yes, sir; looking through it to see if it is foul in any
way. -

. Then, when the first inspection was made, these officers be.
lieved that these six or seven men’s guns were foul, did they not?—
A, I suppose so. I did not hear them say.

Q. They were in a different condition, anyway, from the others?—
A. From what they should be for a general inspection.

Q. Can you look through the bore of a rifle and tell whether or
not it has been fired without the use of the rag and the ramrod {—
A. Oh, yes, sir; I have looked through guns that has been fired that
has not been cleaned.

Q. These Elms had evidently not been cleaned, in the estimation
at least of Major Penrose and Captain Lyan?—A. I don’t know
what they were. - )

Q. They were not fit to pass muster or inspection at the first
round?—A. I don’t know what the result of Captain Lyon's and
Maujor Penrose’s inspection was. I was close to them, but T did not
see any——

Q. The result of the first inspection, however—— A. That was by
Lieutenant Lawrason,

Q. That they had those six or seven men step out and have their -
guns reinspected ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you don’t know what the result of that reinspection was?—
A. No, sir; I don’t, although T wss right there; because I passed
the cloths to the major myself, and did not see any dirty cloths
that had passed through the guns,
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By Senator Lobar:
Q. Sergeant, I should like to ask you, were there any other guns
511 the storeroom except those in the arm chest{-—A. My rifte was in
ere, sir,
Q. "That was the only onef—A., Ves, sir,
Q. There were no other guns except those that were locked up or
shut up in the chest ?—A. That is the only ones, only mine, sir.

By Senator Fosten:
Q. Who was the officer in command of your company at that
time?—A. Licut. George B. Lawrason, sir.
Q. And Captain Lyon was in charge of what company?—A. D
Company, sir.

By Senator ForaKER:

Q. Is it or is it not an unusual thing to find a few guns on any
inspection in a company of 50 men that the officer desires to rein-
spect?—A. O, that is often, every Saturday that hap({)ens, sir,

_ Q. You have your inspection once a week, on Saturday #—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. The guns sometimes accumulate a little dust or something?—
A. Sometimes a man will let them rust. In the damp weather they
will rust, and nearly every Saturday there is two or tEreo men prob-
ably have to have a reinspection,

(5'. These officers did not explain to yon why they wanted to rein-
spect those particular guns?—A. No, sir; I had no right to ask them,

Q. You were asked a while ago whether this was not an unusual
experience for you to be called npon to open up the arm chest at 3
or 4 o'clock in the morning. and you answered that it was. It was
also an unusnal experience for you to have n shooting affray of that
kind in the nighttime, was it not?—A. Why, yes, sir; right here in
the United States; yes, sir.

Q. The whole thing was unusual?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator FosTer:
Q. If those guns were rusty the rust would appear upon the rags,
would it not2—A. Yes, sir.
Q. If they were unclean in any way or foul?—A. If they were
foul in any way the powder would turn the cloth black.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. I just want to ask one question, Sergeant. Your regular in-
spections were on Saturday of each week?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had had your inspection on the Saturday previous to this
Monday ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were present at inspection then?—A, Yes, sir.

Q. The guns all passed inspection then, did they?—A. Well, I
think there was one or two men was stepped back. It happened so
regularly that men stepped back for not having clean guns.

. Q. You think one or two had their guns reinspected 2—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Then this happened on Monday night?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That those guns were found there which were not in gool con-
dition, on the morning of the 14th?—A. On the morning of the
14th beiween 6 and 7 o’clock.
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By Senator Foraker:

Q. You had been on a practice march on Monday, had you not,
your company{—A, Yes, sir.

Q. Out with their guns?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How far had you gone?—A. We had made 12 miles,

Q. Out into the country?—A. Yes, sir.

. Six miles out and 6 miles back?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now about these guns, you said just a minute ago, as I under-
stood you, that you went and got the rags for Caption Lyoni—A.
Yes, sir; I did.

Q. With which he reinspected these guns?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who told you to get them?¥—A. Major Penrose.

Q. What kind of rags were they?—A. Some pieces of old con-
demned sheets.

Q. White in colorf—A. Yes, sir; perfectly clean.

Q. And you saw them inspecuing these guns with the use of these
ragsi—A. Yes, sir. :

6 What was the result of that inspection?—A. I don’t know, sir.
1 never heard either one of them say.

Q. Never heard any of them say. What did the men do, if you
know, after their guns were reinspected #—A. They inspected them
and told them to join their company for guard.

Q. The company had already gone out, had been posted behind the
wallf—A. They were posting the company at that time.

By Senator WARNER:
Q. This was in the morning at 6 o’clock?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. At 0 o'clock in the morning, and B Company had been sent out
to relieve C Company, had it not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. After B Company was inspected the company itself, with the
exception of these six or seven men who were stepped out for re-
Rlsp{;ctioq, the company itself was ordered to relieve C Company —

. Yes, sir,

Q. And these men as they were inspected were told to join C
Company?—A. Told to J'oin C Compm(liy.

Q. What did that indicate?—A. Indicated, I suppose, that they
did not find any fault with them.

Q. Did not find any fault with their guns?—A\. Yes, sir.

* Q. Were irou there at that time or were you out with your com-
pany #—A. I was right there.

Q. You remained there and saw the result?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was this rag passed through each guni—A. Each gun, sir.

Q. 113&) whom{—A. By Captain Lyon.

Q. When he passed it through what did he do? Did he look at it
or not?—A. Yes, sir; they taken and examined it, each cloth, as they
passed it through the rifle. ‘They took it and examined it—Captaiz.
Lyon and Major Penrose.

Q. Were you where you could see whether or not there was any
dlilrt. on the rag?—A. I was standing about a couple of paces from
them.

Q. Did you see any dirt on the ragst-—A. No, sir; I did not see
any, _

8. Doc. 402, 60-1, pt 6——2

o
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Q. You understood, then, that the guns had passed inspection,
didn’t you?—A. I thought so after they ordered each man, as his
rifle was inspected, to join his company for duty.

By Senator WaRNER:

Q. On this practice march there was no firing—no discharge of
the guns whatever?—A. No, sir.

Senator WARNER., That is all.

Senator Foraker., That is all.

TESTIMONY OF JOSEPH H. HOWARD (COLORED).

Josern H. Howarp (colored), after being first duly sworn, testi-
fied as follows:

By Senator ForaKER:

Q. Please state your full name.—A. Joseph Henry Howard.

Q. Were you in August last a member of the Twenty-fifth United
States Infantry?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What company did you belong to?—A. Company D.

Q. Who was the captain of that company{—A. Cnptain Lyon.

Q. Were you with that company at Brownsville, Tex., in August
last?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Foraker. I will put in at this point the record of this
soldier as furnished by the War Department, and found at page 271
of Senate Document No. 155.

The record is as follows:

JOSEPH H. HOWARD,

Enlisted November 8, 1003; was dischiarged without honor as a private of
Company D, Twenty-fifth Infunatry, November 25, 1000.

By Senator FORAKER:

Q. I observe by looking at this record that you were serving your
first enlistment?—A. Yes, sir. A

Q. This shows that you were enlisted November 8, 1903, and that
you were discharged November 25, 1906, without honor, as a private
of Company D. That is right, is it?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. In what State did you live before lyou enlisted ?—A. Georgia.

Q. Whereabouts in Georgia#—A. Columbus, Ga.

Q. Where were you enlisted 9—A. Phoenix, Ala.

Q. Now, where were you on the nith of August 13, when this
shooting affray occurred in Brownsvillei—A. I was on post in the
rear of the soldiers’ barracks.

Q. You were on guard that night#—A. Yes, sir.

Q. As a detail from ComranX D?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And you were on post{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us just what happened. Vait a moment until that map at
your left is explained to you so that we can understand your testi-
mony. That is a map of the fort and a part of Brownsville, Sena-
tor Scott will explain it to you. '

Senutor Scott pointed out to the witness the various localities as
indicated on the map.)

Q. What post were you onf—A. Post No. 2, sir.

Q. Where is post No. 22—A. In the rear of the soldiers’ barracks.
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By Senator Scorr:

Q. In the rear or in front#—A. In the rear. It extends around the
soldiers’ barracks.

Q. Clear around the barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q.

By Senator ForAKER:
That is, your beat extended all the way around #—A. Yes, sir.

Q. In wa]fun% vour beat did you keep the barracks to your left
or to your right¥—A. To the left.

Q. So that you walked up toward the guardhouse when you were
in front of the barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And down toward the gate and D barracks when you were in
rear of the barracks?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. How near were you to the walli— A, I was right up by the side
of the barracks when I was walking.

Q. Your beat ran right along by the barracks, did it?—A. Yes,sir.

Q. How far would you be from the wall when you were walking
your heat in the rear of the barracks?—A. Just about 50 feet.

Q. Now, you say you were on post at the time of this shooti
What time did you go on post that night#—A. Half past 10 o'clock.

Q. Do you remember what relief you belonged to?—A. I think it
was the first relief. .

Q. Who was the corporal of that relief, if you remember?—A.
Corporal Wheeler.

Q. You were in his relief?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were you when the firing commenced?—A. I was in
the rear of the barracks, in the interval between B and C Companies’
quarters. ) .

Q. What did you hear, and tell us as nearly as you can recollect
all\l thag occurred.—A. The first I heard was about two shots down
the road.

Q. Whereabouts; what road?—A. Down the road, right outside
the gate, along the wall.

By Senntor OverMaAN:

Q. Do you mean down toward the river or the other way?—A.,
No, sir; they were away from the river, down toward the vacant
staff barracks.

Q. That is, you stood behind the wall near the gate, as I under-
stood you. Now, do you mean near the gate or near the barracks?—
A. Near the vacant stafl barracks.

Q. You heard two shots there?—A. Yes, sir.
hQ. \‘Ylere they inside or outside the wall t—A. They were outside
the wall,

Q. Did you see anyhody at all about the barracks, up and about at
that time?—A. No, sir; not at that present time.

Q. Was there anybody moving about inside this wall behind the
barracks at that time?—A. The post scavenger.

Q. Who was that?¥—A. He is a Mexican. He is the post scav-
enger. .

Q. Is that Matias Tamayo?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He was post scavenger. Where was het—A. He was at B
Company’s sink, over next to the wall.

Q. Over next to the walli—A. Yes, sir,
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Q. How do you know he was there?—A. Because as the firing

began he got on his cart and drove off. _ )
Had you seen him before the firing commenced #—A. No, sir.

Q. When the firing commenced what attracted your attention to
him?—A. By his wagon rolling off. I heard the noise of his horse
and wagon, ]

Q. Did it make a noise?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You saw him go away and knew who he was and what it was?—
A. I knew it was thie scavenger’s cart.

Q. Did he come in there or not every night at about that time to do
that kind of work?—A. Yes, sir. -

Q. Now, you heard two shots. What occurred next?—A. Well, I
stopped and looked in that direction—the way I heard the two shots—
and then, about thirty seconds after that, I heard a fusillade of shots.

Q A fusillade of shots?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where wag the fusillade of shots, as nearly as you can locate
it¥—A. They were right over to the right of me, across the wall.

Q. That is right behind what barracks?—A. Well, they were to the
right of me. I was in the interval between B and C Companies’ bar-
racks, and the shooting seemed to be over in that little alley.

Q. There is an alley there, is there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this fusillade seemed to be over about the mouth of that
alley?—A. Up in the alley.

Q. Up in the alle‘vh—A. Yes, sir.

Senator FosteRr. at alley does he refer to?

Senator Foraxer. There is an alley between Washington street and
Elizabeth street, immediately to his right, where he was posted, in the
interval between C barracks and B barracks.

Q. When you heard the fusillade what did you do?—A. I yelled
the alarm. '

Q. Did you do that in accordance with instructions or not¥ Was
that your duty under such circumstances?—A. Yes, sir.

NQ.Q },Vhat alarm did you yell—what did you do?—A. “ Guard

0. 2.

Q. That is the regular call, is it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What does that mean? When a man on post calls “ Guard No.
2,” what does that mean?—A., Well, sir, the corporal of the relief at
the guardhouse is supposed to come to the sentinel’s rescue.

Q. So it was your duty to call out and the duty of the corporal at
the guardhouse to come to your rescue?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then what further did you do3—A. I think at that time the
shooting was still going on, and I came around on the front side of
the barracks.

Q. How did you get on the front side of the barracksi—A. Came
right through the interval between the barracks.

Q. How far were you up in the interval?—A. I was right out on
the pt(\lra_(}le ground, right in front of the barracks on the parade

ound side.
grQ. What did Kou do when you got there?—A. Discharged my
piece and called the guard three times,

Q. You discharged your piece and called the guard and what—
A. Three times, .
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Q. Do you mean that you discharged your gun three times and
called the guard three times?—A. I discharged my piece and called
the guard three times.

Q. How often did you discharge your piece?—A. Three times,

Q. In what direction did you discharge your piecet—A\. My pieco
was elevated over toward the river—to the ofticers’ barracks.

Q. The river is over here behind the barrackst—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You shot up in the air, howeverf—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was that gun loaded with—A. Ball ammunition.

. Q. D Company was supplied with ball aramunition, was it, at that
time?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, then, what happened after that? About where were you
with reference to the opening between B and C Companies’ barracks
when you discharged your piece? You spoke about coming around.
How far were you?—A., I was right along in here, sir [indicating].

Q. Just about opposite the front line?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Scorr. He located it between B and C.

Senator Foraker. He located it between B and C, about the middle
between .B and C, and at a point that would be touched by a line
drawn along the front end of the barracks.

Senator Scorr. He was on the front and not the rear. That is
what I want to get at.

By Senator FoRAKER:

Q. Then what did you do after that?—A. I waited there for the
corporal to come with the relief. About that time Major Penrose he
came across the parade ground, and he asked me what was the mat-
ter, and I told him there was some shooting outside in the road,
seemed to be over in the town, and he went on down the line and he
called for the men to fall out. By that time the companies was all
falling out on the parade ground in front of the barracks, and I
waited a few minutes for the relief, and the relief did not come, so I
continued to walk my post.

By the CHAIRMAN

YQ. This was Major Penrose who came down the line, was it?—A.
es, sir,
Senator WARNER. Across the parade ground.

By Senator FORAKER:

Q. Was he the first officer you saw?—A. Yes, sir; he was the first
person I saw after I gove the alarm.

Q. Then after a short time you resumed your post, as I understand
it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Back in the rear. Was the firing still going on?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. How long did that ﬁrinf; continue?—A., Oh, I guess it was
about five or six minutes from the first shots until I heard the last.

Q. Did it get closer to the reservation, or did it recede and go far-
ther away?—A. It secemed to be going farther away down in the
town. :

Q. Were you in a situation to see if anybody had been firing a gun
from the back porches of any of these barracks, B or C or D—could
you have seen them?—A. I could tell whether any shooting was
going on from the quarters by the reports of the guns,
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. Q. Was there any shooting going on from the quarters?—A. No,

Q. Were there any men up and about the quarters at all before the
firing commenced #—A. No, sir; not after 11 o’clock.

Q. What happened at 11 o’clock#—A. At 11 o'clock taps went, and
all the men were supgosed to be in bed.

YQ. There was a check roll call at that time, was there noti—A.
es, sir.

Q. Were the li%,hts put out at that time?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And were the quarters dark and silent until this firing com-
menced, or not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see any men jump over the back wall out of the
barracks grounds?—A. No, sir.

Q. Were you in a situation where if there had been fifteen or
twenty men running along the wall from the gate up to a point oppo-
site that alley you could have seen them? Could you have seen them
if there had been any such numbers of men running along theret—A.
Yes, sir; I could have seen them.

YQ. The scavenger would have seen them too, wouldn’t he?—A.
es, sir.

Q. They would have been compelled to pass right by him, wouldn’t
they?—A. Yes, sir.

d'. How long did you continue, then, to walk your post?—A. I
was on post until about 1 o’clock.

Q. at time did you go on?—A. At half past 10.

Q. Then gou were on longer than two hours?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you happen to remain on longer than two hours? I
* thought the sentries were relieved every two hours?—A. I don’t
know. The corporal had a patrol out, I think, was the cause of my
not coming off on time.

Q. At any rate it was your duty to stay until relieved?-—A. Yes,
8ir,

Q. And you were not relieved until about 1 o’clock?—A. Some-
where about that time. '

Q. What did you do when you were relieved ?—A. I went back to
the guardhouse.

Q. What did yon do when you went back to the guardhouse?—
A. T sat up and talked to the men about the guardhouse about half
an hour and then went to sleep.

Q. You went to sleep? Then what happened next? First, how-
ever, whom did you find, as nearly as you can tell us, at the guard-
house? Did you find there any of the noncommissioned officers?—
A. The sergeant of the guard was at the guardhouse,

Q. That was Sergeant Reid?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Who else?— A, There was a lot of privates. I guess all the
guard were there at the guardhouse except the men on post.

Q. Did you miss any of them at the guardhouse?—.A\. No, sir.

Q. You went to bed and went to sleep?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What happened next?—A. I was wakened up to go on post
again_next morning.

Q. What time did you go on post again{—A. At half past 4.

Q. At half past 4 in the morning?—A. Yes, «ir.

Q. What post did you go on then?—A. The same post—No. 2.
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Q. You continued, then, to walk around the barracks?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. State whether or not there were any other guards still on duty
at that time.—A. Yes, sir; there were guards along the wall,

?l Do you know who they were!i—A. C Company; along the
wall,

Q. C Company were along the wall{—A. Yes, sir. .

Q. And they kept your post there all the same?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Notwithstanding that *—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. You went on duty at half past 4, you think?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long were you on duty then?—A. Until half past 6.

Q. State what occurred, if anything, that you can recai} to tell us
about while you were on post, before you went on duty at half past
6.—A. Immediately after reveille the officer of the day coines around,
Captain Macklin. .

. That is Captain Macklin?—A. Yes, sir. I saluted him, and he
told me that he wanted to inspect my piece, and he inspected my dpiece
and the ammunition; and when he first looked at my piece I told him
that T had fired it that night on post, and he took it and looked at it,
I was three rounds short of emmunition, and I told him that I had
fired three rounds.

Q. You did not fire those rounds toward the town?—A. No, sir.
YQ. But toward the officers’ quarters, as I understand youf—A.

es, sir.

Q. What further happened? What did he do after that?—A. He
inspected my gun and gave it back to me and went on.

. You explained to him how it happened to show evidences of
havin%been red?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Then what occurred next, if yon know?—A. I was relieved off -
of post shortly afterwards, and shortly afterwards I went to break-
fast, and then went back to the guardhouse, and at guard mount all
of the guards had to go around to the administration bunilding and
report to the commanding officer, and he held an investigation.

Q. Who was that—Major Penrose?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. At the administration building. That is down here [indicating
on map]?—A. By the river.

Q. Near the river?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What kind of an investigation was that which he held?—A. He
asked the different men what occurred about this shooting.

Q. Did he have you all together, or summon you scparate?—A.,
Separate.

5. Separately ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was this examination conducted, in the house or out-
side of it?—A. It was in his room.

Q. In the administration building 2--A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was each man called in?—A. Each man was called in separate.

Q. What did he ask vou about?—A. He asked different questions
about the shooting—did any of us men know who did the shooting,
and such as that,

. S]elnntor Foraker. I do not care to go into that. I believe that
is all,

Senator Scort. You have not asked him anything about whether
he knows who did it. :

Senator Forakrr. Yes. T will ask him that,
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By Senator ForAKER:

Q. Do you know who did this shooting?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you have anything to do with it?—A. No, sir,

Q. Excepting what you have told usf—A. No, sir.

Q. Have you any knowledge that ﬁou have refused to give to any
of your officers in regard to it?—A. No, sir.

&. Have you any knowledge now that you are withholding from
uS?—A. NO, Sil‘.

Q. Have you any knowledge that leads you to suspect that any-

dy in your company or in either of the other companies was im-
plicated 1n this shooting?—A. No, sir; I have not.

Senator Foraker. That is all that I think of at the present time.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. To go back a moment. When you heard this first shot, was it
gxerk that you went around the barracks, in front of the barracks?—

. No, sir,

Q. When was it?—A. I stood thero after I heard the fusillade of
shots, when I went around on the front side.

Q. What do you mean by a fusillade of shots?—A. It sounded like
there was about 12 or 15 men, something like that, firing right after
one another.

Q. And that firing was about the mouth of the alley, you think, or
up in the alley #—A. It was up in the alley, I think.

Q. Between Washington and Elizabeth streets?—A. Yes. sir.

Q. Do you see that red figure “ 2 * on the map, there?—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. That is suyposed to be the Cowen house. It was up in that
direction, was it{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Also you see the red figure “ 9,” there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. The Martinez cottage; that is at the mouth of the alley. You
knew where it was, did you not —A. The figure “ 9"

Q. Where the figure “9* is?—A. Is that the mouth of the alley
[indicating on mag]?

Q. Yes.—A. I thought the mouth of the alley was——

Q. Pardon me; I may be mistaken when I say the figure # 9 ¥ marks
the mouth of the allev.—A. Yes, sir; this marks the mouth of the
alley (indicating).

Q. But the building I speak of is here [indicating] ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not give the alarm then?—A. I called the guard over
on that side.

Q. When you were over on that side?—A. When I was over in
rear of quarters I called the guard. I gave the alarm twice, over in
rear of the quarters and in front.

Q. What else, if anyihing, did you hear when you were thers, aside
from this fusillade and the shooting?—A. The noise from the scav-
enger’s cart when he drove ofi.

. Anything else?-—A. No, sir.

Q. Any voices?—A. No, sir.

Q. llo voice whatever?—A. No, sir.

Q. You did not hear any voice?—A. No, sir.

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. Did you hear anybody eay: * Come out here, you sons of
bitches?
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Senator WarnNEer. I was about to ask that.
Senator OverMAN. You ask him that question.

By Senator WaRNER:

Q. Did you hear anybody there say, “ Come out, you black sons of
bitches,” or did you hear anything to that effect?—A. They all
seemed to be quiet. I didn’t hear any noise.

Q. You heard no such expression?—A., No, sir,

Q. Nothing of the kind? Then the first one that you saw there
was Major Penrose?—A. After I came around over on the front side.

Q. Well, he was the first one youn saw, except you heard the scaven-
ger’s cart?—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. Major Penrose was the first one?—A., Yes, sir,

. Q. When you went around there was no soldier down?—A. No,
3ir.

Q. And Major Penrose’s quarters were across the parade ground $—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. You see the quarters marked there on the map, Mr. Howard ¢—
A. Yes, sir; Major Penrose’s quarters were the end quarters,

Q. I think they were 11 and 12, down nearest the riveri—A. No,
sirj up at the other end.

Q. Up nearest the other end. And what is the distance from
Major Penrose’s quarters going across to the barracksi—A. About
gg yargs, I guess. I don’t know exactly. I would take it to be about

yards.

Q. What, if anything, did you report to Major Penrose?—A. He
asked me what was the matter; he says, “ What is the matter, sentry,”
and I told him there was some shooting out in the road, in the town,
across the wall.

Q. What elsa?—A. That is all. He went on by, away from me,
and up the line, calling the men out—calling the companies out. He
i:alled out for the trumpeter to sound the call to arms at the guard-
house,

Q. And how long after that was it, if at all, that the trumpeter
gave the call to arms?—A. The trumpeter at the guardhouse was
giving the call to arms when he came across, and the trumpeters at
the quarters taken it up, and they blew call to aruns also.

Q. Did you remain there then in front of the quarters while call
to arms was going?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And you remained there until the companies formed %—A. No,

sir.
Q. Where did you go?—A. I went on around, walking my post.
Q. In rear of the quarters?—A. Yes, sir, yP
Q. You continued to walk your post{—A. Yes, sir,
Q. Did you see the scavenger?—A. No, sir,
Q. You could not see the scavenger?—-A. No, sir,
Q. You could not see him? Was he on the same side of the wall
you were—on the insidef—A. Yes, sir: he was over inside the wall.
Q. It was so dark you could not see him?—A. I could see his cart,
and I knew there was a man on the cart; I conld tell that much, I
gidn’t know the scavenger personally, though. I taken it to be
im,
Q. You did not speak to him at allf—A. No, sir.
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Q. When did you clean your gun?—A. The morning I went on
guard; the next morning after the shooting. )

Q. What time?—A. About 9 o’clock in the morning, I guess; the
morning D Comﬁzny went on guard after the shooting,

Q. It had not been cleaned or inspected in the meantime?—A. No,
sir; it had not been cleaned until the morning I went on guard with
the company. -

Q. Do you know of any other guns there—

Senator Foraker. Excuse me, but you asked him if it had been
inspected.

By Senator WaRNER?

Q. Yes. Tt had not been inspected from the time Captain Macklin
inspected you on post until you went on guard the next morning
again?—A., No, sir, When I went off guard the gun was put in the
rack, and it was left in the rack until the next morning when D Com-
pany went on guard, and it was returned to me.

Q. It had not been inspected in that time?t—A. No, sir,

Senator Foraker. It had not been earlier inspecte&?

Senator Warner. Earlier inspected, of course.

Senator Foraker. You mean that it had not been inspected from
that time on?

The Witness. No, sir; it had not been inspected from that time on.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. What time did you come off guard; can you state?—A. I
came off guard about half past 10 o’clock the morning of the 14th.

Senator Foraker. The morning of the 14th,

Q. You first went on guard the night of the 13th at half past
108—A. I went on pcst that night at half past 10.

Q. And then you came off duty at that post about half past 12,
after the shooting?—A. No, sir.

Q. What time was it?—A. It was after 1.

Q. After 1 o’clock?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then you went on guard again—I think you said it was
about 4 o'clock?—A. Yes, sir; I went on post. I was already on
guard. I went on post.

Q. You went on post?—A. Yes, sir; at half past 4 o’clock.+

Q. And you were on post when Captain Macklin came around and
saw your gun?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. All the explanation required of you was to say that you had
fired théa?gun on post in giving the alarm?—A. All the explanation
require

. Yes; was that all the explanation made of the condition of
your gun {—A. T told him that the ﬁun had been fired that night on
post, and he inspected it and found it dirty, and he inspected the
ammunition and I was three rounds short.

Q. That was ball ammunition¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was what you call the ball cartridge?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any light at the strect in front of the barracks?—A.
There was a light at the gate.

Q. At the gate?—A. Yes, sir; there is a lamp burns there at the
gate always,

Q. Did that give any light up to where you were?—A. No, sir.
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Q. There was no lantern there at the corner of the alley. Did you
see the forms of any men theref—A. No, sir. I don’t know whether
there is any light there or not; I don’t remember,
Q. Did you see the forms of any menf—A. No, sir; I could not
see any men.
Q. And it seemed o be how many, did you say#—A. I don’t know;
from the sound of the shots it seemed to be about fifteen or twenty.
Q. Could you tell where the first shot was fired from{—A. No, sir;
only it was over in the road, down a little piece from the elley.
‘When you say down a little piece from the alley, do you mean
toward the gate or away from the gate?—A. No, sir; away from the

te.
gaQ. Did ﬂou see that party 9—A. No, sir.

Q. In what direction was it you fired your piece?—A. Toward the
officers’ quarters. . )

Q. You did not fire it in the direction of the hospital? You sea
the hospital there, do vou not?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Did E'ou fire it in that directionf—A. No, sir.

Q. Did the corporal of your relief come to you?—A. No, sir.

Q. What else did you hear Major Penrose say there than what you
have spoken of, when he spoke to you and asked you what the matter
was?—A. He was giving different commands.

Q. What commimands did you hear him give?—A. “ Fall out, you
men, and get your arms ” and “ Fall in ”and “ Blow the call to arms.”
He was going from one side of the barracks to the other over on the
front side. .

Q. When Major Penrose came over how many shots had been
fired? Was that after this fusillade you have spoken of{—A. The
fusillade was still going on when Major Penrose came across.

Q. And how long had it been going on? About how many min-
utes?—A. About two minutes.

Q. When you were walking ,}'our post and in rear of the ba:racks,
your beat was about 50 feet from the wall?—A, It was right up
aﬁide olf1 the barracks. I don’t know the exact distance away from
the wall.

Q. Do you know whether the parties got over that wall or not{—
A. I didn’t see anyone get over the wall.

Q. They could have gotten over without your secing them?—A.
No, sir; I don’t think so.

Q. Well, you could not see the scavenger?—A. I could see him
working over there at the closet.

Q. You could sce the scavenger working?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. So that you knew it was the scavenger?—A. I knew it was a
men. I don’t know whether it was the seavenger ornot. I havenever
scen him to know him. I knew it was a man working,

Q. And how near is that to the gate?—A. The scavenger?

Q. This is the gate coming from Elizabetl&strcet into the fort—
{lhe main gates?—A. I can show you on the map exactly about where

¢ Was.

Q. Do so, please.—A. It was right along in here somewheres, B
Company is about along in here,
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By Senator WARNER:

Q. Just as you were facing the mouth of the alley, it was a little
to the left of the mouth of the alley and up from the end of Barracks
B to the end of Barracks C1—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were you at the time?—A. I was there between B and C
Companies’ barracks, in rear of the quarters,

Q. So that there was no light near where the scavenger was; no
lampf—A. I don’t think there was, except the lamp there on the gate.

Q. The lamp at the gate was near where you were?—A. No, sir; it
was r‘t): the other side of the scavenger, between B and C Companies’

uarters,
1 Senator Foraker. What was the answer? .

The WiTness. The lamp at the gate was over on the other side of
the scavenger.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. When this shooting started, as you said, the first shot scemed
to be in the road?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then continued, as long as it lasted, to recede from the bar-
racks?—A. Yes, sir; it seemed like it was farther on down in the
town. .

Q. Did it occur to you what that shooting was at the time?—A. No,
sir; I didn’t know. I thought some one was firing at me.

é. Firing at you?—A. Yes, sir; because the fusillade seemed to be
right over to the right of me, up in the alley; I could not see anyone.

Q. But would it not be singular, if they were firing at you, that
the fusillade or shooting would be receding down the alleyi—A.
Wouldn’t it be singular?

Q. Would it not be singular, if they were firing at you, that the
sarties doing the firing would be retreating and going away from you

own the alley into the town?—A. I thought at first they were firing
at me, but I couldn’t hear the bullets hitting around me, and I knew
then that the firing wasn’t over the way where I was at.
YQ. And you knew then that the firing was not at the forti—A.
Yes, sir.

Q. You heard the whistling of no bulletst—A. No, sir,

Q. So that iy")ou knew then that the firing was away from the fort.
Did it occur to you then what the firing was? You did not think
then that they were firing at you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you think then?—A. 1 didn’t know; only I knew
some one was firing in the town.

Q. Had you known of any difficulty between any of the soldiers?—
A. 1 had heard of some soldiers having some trouble in the town.

Q. You knew the difficulty there with reference to a lady on the
Sunday evening? Did you not hear of it?—A. I didn’t hear about
that unti! after the shooting,

Q. After the shooting?—A. Yes, sir.

. Q. You knew that ¢he men were all ordered into camp on the
night of the 13th at 8 o’clock?—A. Yes, sir. »
. That was unusual{—A. Yes, sir.
Q. You knew why that was, did you not?¥—A. No, sir; I didn’t
know what was the reason why the men were ordered in. .
.Q. You did not know it was to prevent trouble between the sol-
diers and citizens there?—A. No, sir,
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_Sﬁ:lgator Perrus. About how many shots did you hear fired that
ni ,

%\. T guess there was over 50 shots; over 50. I don’t know how
many over. It was that at least, I think.

By Senator FosTer:

Q. I would like to have you locate yourself, as near as you can, at
the time that gou heard the first two shots down in this alley. Just
locate yourself on this map.—A. Right along in there, sir.

Q. In front of the barrackst—A. No, sir; in rear of the barracks.

geléator Foraker. Opposite the center of the space between B
and C.

By Senator FosTer:

Q. Between B and C. How many yards did your beat cover{—
A, All the way around the barracks, clear around in front.

Q. About how many yards would you say; djust, about, as near as
you can approximate?—A. All the way around?

Q. All the way around, including your whole beat.—A. I couldn’t
say, sir, I guess it was something over 500 yards all the way around.

Q. You were the only sentry or guard on that beat at the time of
this shooting, were you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. About how far from where you were standing would you judge
that the parties were who fired the first two shots that you heard
thSeneator Foraker. Do you object to his indicating on the map

ere

Scnator Foster. Not at all, sir, )

The CrairMAN, Just take that rod beside you and stand alongside
the map and point out on the map.

By Senator FosTEr:

~ Q. About how far were the parties who fired the first shots from
you?—A., The first shots seemed to be about up in this direction
[indicating]. . L.

Q. I thought you said the first shots were down in this alley?—A.,
No, sir; the first shots were along in this road.

Q. About how far from you?—A. About where I am pointing.

Senator Warner. That is up about Washington street.

Senator Foraker. You can approximate the distance, can you not?

The CuairMaN. The map is drawn to a scale of 30 feet to the inch,
and the witness can figure on that basis.

By Senator FosTER:

Q. Then you heard the next shots coming from what direction $—
A. Up in this alley.

Q. About what distance from you, from where you were stand-
ing?—A. Here was where I was standing [indicating].

. Yes; about how far would you say that was? You r.eed not be
:faccurate, but just approximate the distance.—A. Something over 75
eet.

Q. Something over 75 feeti—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. Now, after you heard this fusillade what did you do?—A. I
went on walking guard on post No. 2. About that time the scavenger
drove off on his cart away from B Company’s rear, and X looked in
that direction to see if I could see anyone, and I couldn’t see anyone,



9560 AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS,

and then I went through around to the front side of the barracks and
gave the alarm,

Q. What do you mean by giving the alarm?—A. Calling the
guard and discharging my piece.

Q. Is it usual to discharge your piece?—A. In case of fire or dis-

order ;ers, sir,

Q. You discharged your piece from about this point, you say [indi-
cating] #—A. I was about on a line with the barracf(s—just in the
intorval between them.

Q. Then what did you do?—A. I waited there to receive the relief
from the guardhouse a few minutes.

Q. How many times did you shoot your rifle?—A. Three times.

Q. Right in the same spot?—A. Yes, sir. I stayed right there in
the same place.

Q. And shot three shots succeseivelﬁ, one right after the other, or
what interval was there between the shots you fired?—A. I fired one
shot and called the guard, * Post No. £, and fired another and called
the guard, and the last time I fired my f)iece and called the guard the
musician at the guardhouse sounded call to arms.

By Senator Lobee:
Q. You say that the musician sounded the call to arms at the guard-
house. Was that before you saw Major Penrose?
Senator Foster. That was what I understood him to say.
The WirTNEess. Yes, sir,

By Senator LobeEe:
Q. You saw Major Penrose after the call to arms was sounded at
the guardhouse?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator FosTeR:
Q. What was the occasion of sounding the call to arms at the
guardhouse? You had seen none of the officers, had you?—A. No, sir.
Q. You had not seen the corporal of the guard ——A. No, sir.
Q. Nor any of the men on guardf--A. No, sir; I hadn't seen no
one at that time.

NQ..And why did they sound the call to arms, do you know —A.
o, sir,
Q. Then, after Kou had fired those three shots, what did you do¥—

A, After I fired the three shots?

Q. Yes.—A. Major Penrose came aicross and asked me where was
the shooting at, and I told him,

Q. About how long an interval was it between the time you heard
the first two shots and the time you fired your three shots?—A. About
four minutes, I guess.

Q. About four minutes1—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And during those four minutes you saw no one but the scav-
engeri—A. That is all.

You saw no soldiers?—A. No, sir,

Q. You saw no officers?—A. No, sir.

Q. You saw no one?—A. No, sir,

- Q. And Mav'}or Penrose was the first one you saw of the soldiers or

officers?—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. Where were you standing then when Major Penrose was
there?—A. I was standing right between the barra
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Q. You were standing right there in the same place?—A. Yes, sir;
I was waiting there for the relief when Major Penrose came across.

Q. Major Penrose then walked down the quarters calling the men
to arms?—A. Yes, sir; to fall outside.

Q. To fall outside. The alarm had not been sounded then by the
battalion trumpeter, or the company trumpeters?—A. Yes, sir; it
was sounded after Niajor Penrose came along.

Q. I say it was sounded only after he came across, and not be-
foret—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Scorr. Or while he came across?

The WiTness, It was going at the guardhouse when he came across.

Senator Scorr. As he came across the parade ground?

The Wirness. And after he came across the trumpeters taken it
up at the quarters, .

Senator Scorr. Two different placest?

Senator Foster. Two different alarms, according to his statement
that night.

By Senator FosTer:

Q. When Major Penrose came, what did ﬁou then do, after you
met Major Penrose, what did you do?—A. I waited there for the
relief, and after the relief didn’t come, I went down this way, nearer
toward the guardhouse, down to about here [indicating on map], to
see if I could see the relief anywhere this way, and I didn’t see him,
and I came around and continued to walk my post.

Q. And_you continued to walk Izour post until about half past
109—A. No, sir; vntil after 1 o’clock.

Q. I beg your pardon, until after 1 o'clock?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you were not relieved in that interval by anyone. And
did you have any talk or conversation with anyone from the time you
heard the first shot?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. With whom did you talk?—A. I talked with Major Penrose,
and the sergeant-major was with him. He came to me and asked
about the shooting, and I told him about the scavenger who was the
only person I saw at that time, and a lot of the soldiers asked me
about the shooting.

Q. The soldiers. Then you had quite numerous talks with the
officers and soldiers between half past 10 and the time you were
re}jeveg ?—A. Yes, sir; after the shooting and before the time I was
relieved. :

Q. About what time did the shooting take place?—A. About 12
o’clock, I guess it was, or a little after.

Q. Now, when did you see Captain Macklin?—A. I had seen him
i:l?mediately after check that night, after 11 o’clock, before the
shooting.

Q. B%fore the shooting?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. To whom did you report that you had shot your rifle that
nighti—A. I did not reportit. .

. You did not report it that night?—A. Not until the next morn-

ing.

%. To whom was that report made?—A. To the officer of the day,
Captain Macklin, when he came around to inspect my piece.

8. What time was that?—A. Between 6 and half past 6 o’clock.

immediately after reveille,
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Q. Did you attend inspection that morning of the battalion or

your company §—A. No, sir; I was on post during that time.
YQ. At the time the inspection was made you were on post?—A.
es, sir,
di(?' Did he inspect your gun at that time?—A. Captain Macklin
; yes, sir.

Q. id he inspect it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did he inspect iti—A. He taken my piece. I came to a
port arms and opened the chamber and pulled the bolt back, and he
taken my piece and looked through the barrel of it and found it was
dirty and handed it back to me.

Q. Had you told him it was dirty or foul before he inspected it?—
A. Yes, sir; I told him it was dirty, but he looked at it, anyway.

Q. Did you hear any other firing that night anywhere near the
quarters?—A. No,sir; all the firing seemed to be over across the wall.

By Senator OvERMAN:
Q. Was there any firing up in this directicn, toward the hospital,
froin the guardhouse toward the hospital? From the hospital over
toward the cavalry barracks, was there any firing?—A. I don’t know,

sir.

%. Did you hear any?—A. The first shots I heard were down that
road.

. - Q. Did you hear any shots down that road from the cavalry bar-
racks, toward the stable, in that direction?—A. No, sir; I didn't
hear any from the hospital to the cavalry barracks toward the stable.

Q.1 iou had been over there you could have heard it?—A. Yes,
sir; if I had of been over there I could have heard it.

é. I say, if there had been any shots you would have heard them—
if there had been any shooting you would have heard it?—A. I don’t
know whether I would or not. I could have heard it, but I don’t
know how far back it was that way [indicating]. .

Q. I asked you if there had been any shots in that direction; you
know where that road is that runs along through the barracks there,
and where the road that runs beyond that is, that country road —A.
The first shots I heard were down by the road.

Q. You did not hear any more shots besides those?—A. No, sir.

By Senator FosTeR:

Q. You were between Company B barracks and Company C bar-
racks. How could you see from there down here, or up, or whether
parties climbed that wall?—A. When I was walking along there,
{.es, sir; I could see all along the wall. I could see up in that direc-

ion.

Q. Could you see from the spot where you indicated you were
standing upon the extreme end of this line [indicating] %—A. No,
sir; when I was there I couldn’t see them.

é. When you were walking around in the rear of the barracks,
could you see whether anybody got over the wall there?

The CrairMAN. I think you have said that wrong, Senator—if
you will excuse me, the front of the barracks. The side where his
post was was in the rear of the barracks.

Senator Foster. Perhaps I am confused on that.
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By Senator Foster:

Q. When you were walking there in front of the barracks on your
beat, could yvon see anybody who might have gotten over the wall
there?—A. When I was walking in front of the barracks the only
time I could see the wall was when I would get to an interval between
the barracks. No, sir; I couldn’t sece when I was over in front of
the barracks.

Q. When you were at this end, say, of Barracks B, or here, or here,
or here [indicating], in vear or in front of them, could you tell that
night whether anybod giot over that wall—climbed over that wall?—
A. No. «irs it was a dark night. T couldn’t see up that far.

Q. That is what I thought. You did not know whether anybody
got over that wall or notj it is just your opinion that they did not?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see anyone come in the barracks that night—any of the
goldiers from your battalion or company?—A. No, sir.

Q. Was it not a fact that some of the soldiers were sleeping out-
side of the barracks that night?—A\. All of the soldiers were ordered
in that night, out of the town. There were some soldiers sleeping in
some quarters down away from the barracks, men that were married.
A QI.\ Did you sce those married men when they came in that night?—

. No, sir.

Q. Why did you not see them? They had to pass your beat com-
ing in, did they not?—A. When I was around on the beat they were
coming out from the quarters, and there were men all around on the
front side of the barracks.

Q. Some men were sleeping outside of the barracks; some of the
soldiers with their families?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see them when they returned that night?—A. No, sir;
T didn’t see them. _

Q. What prevented you from seeing them?—A. About the time
the men returned from those quarters and they came to the barracks
I guess all the men of the companies were out in front, falling out.
The men were coming out of the quarters in front, out in front where
the major was. .

Q. Other men might have come in the barracks that night and
you would not have seen them, might they not, just as well as those
who were sleeping with their families? They could have come in
just as the other soldiers came in, without you seeing them?—A. Yes,
«irj they could have come in. . )

Q. Did any others of the guard that morning mrort to Captain
Macklin that their guns were foul besides yourselt?—A. I don’t
know, sir, I wasn’t at the guardhouse at the time that Captain
Macklin inspected the guard. .

Q. Where were you?!—A. I was on post. He inspecled the guards
at reveille, so I was told. I was on é)ost at that time.

Q. You were not on post when Captain Macklin inspected your
gun, were you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. On duty?—A. Yes, sir; on No. 2 post. I wasn’t at the guard-
house when the inspection was going on.

Q. Then he made the inspection of your gun, not at the guard-
house, but where you were——-A. On post. -

Q. On post?—A. Yes, sir.

8. Doc. 402,.60-1, pt 6—3
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By Sepator OverMaNn:

Q. When you heard these two shots fired out in front of the empty
barracks were you going toward the gate or from the gate?—A.
Going towards the gate.

Q. They were in your rear, then, these shots?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You do not know whether they were shot toward the barracks
or toward the town?—A. No, sir; I only heard the rc{)orts of the gun,

Q. Did you become excited then?—\. No, sir; I didn’t become
excited then,

Q. You did not becomo excited until you heard the fusillade?—A.
Until I heard the fusillade.

Q. If there had been any soldiers or citizens in the road in front
of the wall as you were walking along when you were in the rear of
the barracks could you have seen those people there?-—A. I could see
in the road.

Q. Could you see over the wall?—A, Yes, sir,

Q. How high was the wall there?—.\, .-\iong where T was at, 1
guess, only about 3 feet, or something like that.

Q. If they had been stooping down you could not have scen
them?—A. If I had been stooping?

Q. 1f they had been stooping?—A. No, sir.

Q. Tf there had been soldiers shooting there——A. There was no
soldicrs there; it was up in the alley.

Q. Prior to the shooting, if there had been any close to the wall
there could yon have seen them?—A. No, sir; if they had hidden
behind the wall T could not have seen them.

Q. They could have hidden from you behind the wall?—A., I
couldn’t have scen them if they had hidden behind the wall.

Senator OvermaN. Of conrse not.

By Senator FosTEr:

Q. After this firing, when Major Penrose had made inquiries of
vou and there had been the call to arms. did he give any instructions
to you as to men coming into the fort, whether you should challenge
them or make any in(lumes as to their coming in?  Did he give you
any instructions at all?—A. No, sir; he asked me abont the shooting
and I told him what I knew about it, where I thought it was, and he
\f\'(illlt on away from me up the companies, ordering the companies to

all out,

Q. Did you look especially or have any care especially that night
after the shooting, after you had shot your rifle three times, as to
parties, soldiers, returning to their barracks?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You looked; you were especially careful to sce if any came over
the wall?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you saw none come over the wall!—A. No, sir.

Q. Why were you especially careful about looking to the wall to
see whether any soldiers came into the barracks?—A. The shooting
was over that way, and T looked to see could I see anyone. I was
on guard around there at the quarters. .

(5’. You never suspected the soldiers of shooting down that way —

. A. No, sir; I never looked for the soldicrs.

Q. But you kept an especial watch to see whether any of them

came over the wall, did you not?—A. Yes, sir,
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. Q. Why did you do that?—A. I was on guard there, and T thought
it was my-duty to see whether anyone at all came over the wall
there—anyone, soldiers or any other persons.

You said you yelled out thé alarm?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And after yelling out the alarm you fired your rifle, but be-
tween the shots which you fired you still continued to call for the
officer of the guard ?—A. To call for the guard.

Q. To call for the guard. Now, where was the next post to this
post that you were on that night’?-—-;\. There was one around the
officery’ (Aunrters and one at the guardhouse,

Q. Did they fire any alarm?--A. I didn’t hear any over that way.

Q. Did you hea any shots from that direction?—A. No, sir.

Q. About 90 yards, did you say, from the oflicers’ quarters to the
barracks?—A. I guess it is about 90 yards; yes, sir.

Q. And the sentry on duty that night gave no alarm, as you did,
by firing his rifle?—A. No, sir; the sentry at the guardhouse, he
gave the alarm.

Q. Did he fire his rifle?—A. No, sir,

Q. You say that is usunl, to fire your rifle, is it, in case of excite-
ment of that kind?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Had you ever known that to be done hefore?—A. Yes, sir; in
case of fire or disorder.

Q. The sentry would always discharge his piece?—A. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN, S|Iwak a little louder. ]

A. (Continuing.) In case of fire or disorder the sentry would dis-
charge his piece and give the alarm.

. By Senator IFosTER:

Q. That is the order?—A. Yes, sir; in ease of fire or disorder the
sentry will discharge his picce and give the number of his post. In
caso of danger he will discharge his piece and call the guard.

Q. What are the orders nbout the discharging of his piece? How
many times is he to discharge his piece?—A. No certain number of
times; just discharge his piece. It doesn’t say how many times.

. Q. You discharged your picce three times that night?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Why did you quit discharging it?—A. I quit discharging my
})icco when I heard them sound the call to arms at the guardhouse.

knew then that the sergeant of the guard or the sentinel at the post
had heard the order,

Q. You had the short-range cartridge that night, did youi—A. I
had ball ammunition, No, sir; they wasn’t short range. .

Q. Did you have the steel-jancketed bullet?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Foster. That is all.

By Senator FoRAKER:

Q. I want to ask a question or two that I should have asked before.

}:ou were one of the 12 men who were arrested, were you noti—A.
"es, sir.

Q. You were arrested at Fort Brown before the battalion left
there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember on what day you were arrested?—A. I think
it was the 23d of August.




966 AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS,

Q. And what day did the battalion leave Fort Brown, if you
remember?—A. I think it was the 25th. I am not certain,

Q. Were you kept in confinement from the time of your arrest until
you left there?—A. Yes, sir; until I left there.

Q. But you left with the battalion?—A. Yes, sir. .

Q. And the other eleven soldiers, and one who was not a soldier,
but a discharged soldier, left with you, did he?—A. No, sir.

Q. No, he did not leave with you, but the other soldiers left with
yout—A, Yes, sir,

Q. That was a discharged soldier who was arrested at the same time
you were. He was left behind, was he?—A. He was left in confine-
ment at the guardhouse at Fort Brown.

Q. That was Allison?—A. Yes, sir, '

Q. };’ho had been a private in one of the companies?—A. In Com-

any B.

P Q}.’ In Company Bi{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what has become of him?—A. No, sir.

Q. He was left behind, The rest of you went to Fort Sam Hous-
ton?—A, Yes, sir. .

Q. Do you know how you came to be arrested i—A. No, sir.

Q. Did they tell you when they arrested you what you were charged
with?—.A. No, sir,

Q. Do you know at whose instance you were arrested?—A. No, sir.
All T knew about it was, the morning that the battalion first received
orders to leave Fort Brown the commanding officer came over, One
of the men sent for him and wanted to speak to him; we heard they
were going to leave that morning; and he said: “ If you men had
told what you knew about the shooting, you would not have been in
confinement.”

Q. Who said that?—A. Major Penrose. He says: “ If you men
know anything about this trouble, you want to state it; ” and he bid
us good-by and went on away. .

. What did you tell him¥—A. I told him I didn’t know anything,.
I told him beforechand all I kunew about the trouble, and so did the
other men,

Q. Did you or the others ask him to tell you how you could prove
that you did not know anything about it except by saying that you
did not know anything about it {—A. No, sir,

Q. Has anyone else ever told you how you could prove that you
were innocent, except by denying it?—A. No, sir.

Q. When you got to Fort Sam Houston were or were not charges

“filed against youl—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Under the sixty-second article of war?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Were you served with a copy?—A. No, sir.

- Q. You were simply notified that you had been charged ?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Do you know what the charge was? Has anybody ever vet
told Kou what you were charged with?—A, T heard Major Blocksom
say that we were charged with murder and conspiracy to murder.

Q. They did not serve you, however, with any papers{—A. No;
it wasn’t Ma{'or Blocksom ; it was General Garlington.

Q. General Garlington?—A. Yes, sir,

. Q. You remember when he came to Fort Sam Houston?—A. Yes,
gir,
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Q. He came there and had a talk with you?—A. Yes, sir.

YQ. He told you what—that you were charged with murder?—A.
es, sir,

Q. What did he tell you?—A. He wanted us to tell all we knew
about it, and he said if we didn’t tell all we knew about it we would
be dischar%ed without honor from the service of the United States
by order of the President,

Q. What did you tell him in answer to that?—A. I told him I had
told all I knew about the trouble; and he had an investigation, and
asked the same as the other officers had asked me about it, and he left
word with some officers there that if any of the men of the Twenty-
fifth Infantry wanted to sce him they could report to him, and to let
him know, because he was going away, and if they had anything to
tell him to report over to his quarters. So he went away, and the
next day after he went away General McCaskey had all the men to
report up to him, and he told us General Garlington left word thero
that if we could find out anything among ourselves to notify him,
so that he could wire General Garlington about it,

Q. What did you tell General McCaskey?—A. That T had told
ull I knew ahout the trouble, _

Q. He told you that if any of them told you what they wanted to
know yvou were to tell them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was it they wanted you to tell them?—A. They asked
us did we have any idea who was the men that did the shooting, or
had we heard any talk between any of the men, .

Q. What did you tell them?—A. Told him no, sir,

Q. You told him that you did not know anything about it?—A.
Told him that I had no evidence to give toward bringing the guilty
parties to justice. _

Q. Was what you told General Garlington and all the others the
truth or not the truth?—A. I told them the truth,

Q. You told them the truth?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You are telling the truth now, are you?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, I am gom% to read you what you are charged with down
there and put it in the record. This is found on page 221 of our
hearings before this committce. I want you to listen to this:

Charge and specification preferred against Private Joscph H. Howcard, Compuny
D, T'wenty-fifth Infantry.

Charge—Conduct to the prejudlce of good order and mlilitary dliscipline In
vlolation of the two hundred and sixty-second ntrticle of war.

Speclficativn—In that Private Joseph H. Howard, Company D, Twenty-fifth
Infantry, did, without authority, take from the barracks of hls or other com-
pany statloned at Fort Brown, Tex., one magazine rifle, caliber .30, model
1003, and did, singly or in company with other party or parties unknown, take
part in a disturbaunce in the streets of Brownsville, ‘I'ex., in which disturbance
one citizen of sald town was killed and another wounded, by loading with
ball cavtridges and firing sald ritle In sald streets of sald town, and causing
damage to property of inhabltants of town.

This on or about August 13, 1000,

H. Cray M. SUPPLEE.

First Lieutenant and Battalion Adjutant,
Twenty-glxth Infaniry, Officer Preferring Charge.

Witnesses: Sergt. James R. Reld, Company B; Sergt. George Jackson, Com-
pany B; Private John Hollomon, Company B; Sergt, Darby W. O. Brawner,
Conmpany C; Corpl. Charles H, Madison, Company C; Corpl. Willle H. Miller,
Sompany C; Private Charles W, Askew, Company C; Private James W. Newe
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ton, Company C; Private Oscar W. Reid, Company C; Corpl. David Powell,
Company D; Private James C, Gill, Company D, Twenty-fifth Infauntry.

In confinement since August 25, 1900,

Rate of pay: $14 per month.

Prevlous convictions: None.

Now, you have never had a chance to plead to that, have you,
to enter a plea of guilty or not guilty? Have you ever had a
chance?—A. No, sir. . .

Q. I will give you a chance now. Are you guilty or not guilty—
A. Not guilty. .

. Q. Not guilty? And you have said that to everybody on all occa-
sions, have you?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Overvan:
Q. If you were guilty you would not admit it, would you$—A.,
Yes, sir.
By Senator Foraxer:
Q. You have told us all you know about it, have you?—A. Yes, sir.
t‘hS‘_’e‘nator Burkerey. You have omitted to read the indorsement on
a
Senator Foraxker. Oh, yes; I will read that indorsement. It is as
follows:
: {First indorsenient.)

Fort SaMm IlovsrtoN, TeX., August 28, 1906.

Respecttully forwarded to the militavy secrotary, Department of Texas. recom-
mending trial by general court-martinl. Under pavagraph 962, Aviny Regula-
tions, these charges have Leen Investigated by the undersigned as far as practi-
cable with the means at hand, and t nm of the oplnlon that it is doubtful it
the allegations as set forth can be substantinted.

C. J. T CLARKE,

Major, Twenly-sixth Infantry, Conmanding.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. You never were hrought to trial upon those charges?—A. No,
sir; we were not brought to trial.

Q. Were you re dy to go to trial at any time?—A. Yes, sir. Major
Clarke came aron..d and he told us that those charges were going to
be preferved agninst us: he notified us.

. Tam not talking about the charges, but I am asking you whether
you were ever tried on those charges.—A. No, sir.

0. You were ready for trial all the time, were you?—A. Yos, sir,

Senator Foraker. I want to put in the record also the affidavit
made by this witness found at page 174 of Senate Document 153,
'il‘lhis secems to have been made the day after the firing., It is as

ollows:

Dll.

Fonrr BrowN, 'TEX., Angust 14. 1946,
Forr BrowN, State of Teras:

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned authority, DPeivate J. H,
Howhrd, Company D, Twenty-fitth Infuntey, who, being duly sworn aceording
to law, deposes and says:

“1 was a member of the post guard on the night of the 13th and 14th of
August, 1006. 1 was posted as a sentinel on post No. 2, which extends around
the barracks, keeping the bulldings on my left, at 10.30 p. m.. August 13, At
about 12,10 on the morning of the 14th, when between C and B Company bar-
racks, T heard a single shot, then five or six, und then a rezular cusillade. ‘Fhe
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shots seemed to come from the strect In the rear of the brick wall back of B
Company's barracks. I thought they were shooting ut me, and I looked in the
direction of the sounds to see If I could see anybody, but I could not, and I then
went to the front of the barrncks and gnve the nlarm by firing my plece
three times and calling for the guard. I did not see anybody at all but the
post scavenger, who was at the sinks In the rear of B Company’s barracks,
As soon as the shooting commeiced lie drove away with hls cart.
“ Josert H. Howarbp,
“ Private, Company D, Twenty-fifth Infantry.”

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 20th day of August, 1900.
SaMueL P, LivoN,
Cuptain, Twenty-fifth Infantry,
2rial Officer, Summary Court,

By Senator ForaKeR:

Q. State whether or not yon made that statement the day after the
shooting, on the 14th.—-A. That was the day that I came off guard.

Q. Who took that statement from you?—A. Captain Lyon was in
the commanding officer’s room also.

_ Q. They wrote this ont and you swore to it and sigued it {—A. Yes,

sir, .
. Q. Is there anything in that that you want to change?—A. No,
sir.

Q. That stands all right, does it, just as it is?-—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, at page 169 of Senate Document 155 is another affidavit
that you gave, which T want to read:

I'ort BrowN, State of Texruas, 8s8:

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned authority, one Joseph H.
Howard, private, of Company D, Twenty-lifth Infantry, who, belng duly sworn
according to law, deposes ang says:

“About 12 midnight, Monday, August 13, 1000, I wns a sentinel on guard on
post No. 2, which exteuds completely around the four barracks. 'The fivst thing
that occurred that was unusual was a shot fired In the road opposite where 1 was
at the time, on my post opposite the interval between 13 and ¢ Company quarters.
Several other shots followed in quick succession, and after a short interval what
sounded like a fusiltade of shots, My first Impresston was that 1 was belug
fired upon, I shouted the alavm after I had lovked in that divection and had
been unable to see nuything. Then I ran to the front of the barracks, passing
betwen B and C Company quarters, and there stayed until the companies had
formed, when I returned to that portion of my post. I dld not see anyone cross-
my post except men gelug to and from the closets before taps. After the
shooting men were stationed along the wall alongside of my post. At the time
of the shooting the scavenger was at work at the closets along the wall, I do
not know who did the shooting. The reporis sounded like rifie shots to me. [
should judge about fifty or more shots were fired. .

* Further deponeut salth not. “g I n
oseru I1, Iowanrp,

“ Private, Company D, Twenty-fifth Infantry.”
Subscribed and sworn to before me at Fort Brown, Tex., this 20th day of

August, 1906,
SAMUEL . LyoN,

Captuin, Twenty-fifth Infantry,
Trial Officer, Summary Court.

By Senator Foraxer:
Q. How did you happen to make two affidavits on the same day, do
you remember?—A. On the same day?
Q. Yes; they are both dated, both appear to have been sworn to,
on the 20th dny of August. ‘This lust affidavit has no date preceding
it, but it has a date at the end of it, where the jurat is set forth?—A.,
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I made more than two. I made one the morning that I came off of
ard, and I made one before the commanding officer at the adminis-
tration building, and X'also made one at the company quarters.

Q. In this last affidavit that I have read to_you, you do not say
anything about discharging your piece. How did that ha pen?—-A.
Well, they were investigating it, and whatever questions they would
ask me I would answer them, and that is what he put in the affidavit.

Q. You were called before officers, as I understand it, and asked
to make your statement, Did you at any time withhold from any-
Tdi‘ the statement that ;ou had discharged your piece three times?—

. No, sir,

Q. Then after you made your statement they wrote it down?—
A. Yes, sir; they asked me different questions, and they would write
them down as I answered them,

Q. Then you si¥ned it when it was prepared for you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell to whom you made this affidavit in which it does
not appear that you said anything about firing your piece? Do you
know how it comes that that was omitted? Did you omit it or did
the man that wrote it out omit it?—A. The man that wrote it ont
omitted it, I guess. I answered the questions he asked me, and as I
would answer them he would write them down,

Q. Before whom did you make another affidavit?—A. Before Cap-
tain Lyon,

Q. We already have two before him?—A. I was sworn before
Captain Lyon when I made that affidavit.

. He was trial offticer of the summary court?—A. Yes, sir; and
he was also my company commander wher I made the affidavit at
the company quarters. .

Q. You made one August 14th; that was before Major Penrose, at
the administration building?—A. Yes, sir; I was sworn there by
Captain Lyon.

8. And you were sworn by Captain Lyon?-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was stated there was afterwards written out and you
signed it?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And that affidavit, the first one I read you, is dated August
14, It is dated * Fort Brown, Tex., August 14.” 'That was the day
ufter the firing?-—A. Yes, sir,

Q. In that it appears that you told about firing your piece. Now,
when was it that you made ths other statement which is dated
August 208—A. I don’t know what date it was, but it was at the
company. I made one when Major Blocksom was present.

Q. Is this or not the statement you made when you were examined
by the commanding officer at the administration building; that is, the
first one I read you, dated August 14? Tt is dated August 14.—

‘A. You say, is that the statement I made?

Q. I say was it on that date you made the statement before the
cogm%?dm gﬁicerb?—A. Yﬁs’ s(iir. 1 :

. The affidavit bearing that date would probably, then, be the one
I should think¥—A. Yes,gsir. P ¥y et !

Q. You did not make another affidavit, did you, until Major
Blocksom camef—A. No, sir; I was over there several times, but
I didn’t make any affidavit.

Q. Did you make that statement to Major Blocksom or to some-
body elsef—A. I made a statement to Major Blocksom.
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Q. What is that?—A. T made a statement to Major Blocksom.

. Q. Did you tell Major Blocksom about firing your gun three
timesf—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you tell everybody else before whom you made a statement,
about firing your piece, as you have told us?—A. Yes, sir.

NQ. Now, did you make a statement before Colonel Lovering ?—A.

o, sir.

é. One other matter. You were asked whether or not you knew
why the men were ordered in at 8 o’clock on the night of the 13th, to
stay in the barracks and not to go out in town, and you said that you
did not know?—A, No, sir; I did not know.

Q. They did not explain to you why they issued that order?—A.

o, sir.

(:2. You did not know at that time that the mayor of the town had
asked the commanding officer to keep the men in that night, did
youi—A. No, sir.

Q. You di(i not know that the mayor of the town had notified the
commanding ofticer that if any of his men were out in town that
E;ght he would not be responsible for them?—A. No, sir; I didn’t

ow it.

Senator Foraker. I believe that is all.

By Senator WanNEerR:

Q. In speaking of this affidavit of August 20, in which there
does not appear anything about your having discharged:your rifle
three times, that statement was read over to you before you signed
it, was it not, by the officer *—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You do not want to be understood as meaning that the officer
omitied anything that you stated about discharging your gun, do
you?—A, I made a statement to the officer, and he would ask differ-
ent questions,

Q. Yes?—A. And whatever he wanted to put down I suppose he
put it down. )

Q. But he read over to you what he had written before you signed
it?—A. Yes, sir. .

. Q. And you thought it was correct, then, did you not?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. At that time. In this statement of August 20, on page 169 of
Senate Document 155, I find you say:

I shouted the alarm after I had looked In that directlon and had been unable
to see nnything. *

That is correct, is it#-—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. You shouted the alarm, as you have said. Now, so that we will
get it right in this connection I will ask you: Was it after the first
shot that you heard or the second shot that you heard that you
shouted the alarm?—A, I shouted the alarm while the fusillade was
going on.

Q. That succeeded immediately the first shots?—A. Yes, sir; it
was right after the first shots. . '

Q. And then you state in this affidavit:

Then I ran to the front of the barracks, passing between B and C Company
quarters, and there stayed until the companies had formed, when I returned
to that portion of nry post. ’
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That is correct, is it not?—A. I didn’t stay until the companies
were formed. The comlpanies were forming. What I mean by form-
ing, the men wera falling outside of the barracks—the companies
were forming at that time.

Q. Is not this, then, correct, that you reinained there until the com-
panies had formedt Is that a mistake, too?—A. I remained there
until the com(s)anies were forming. The companies were forming as
I went around.

Q. How long were you in front of the barracks waiting until the
companies were forming? No men were down when {ou rot around
there. The first man you saw was Mai')or Penrose?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. ITow long did you remain there before you went around to the
rear of the barracksf—A. I suppose it was about three minutes from
the time I went around there until I got around in the rear of the
barracks. .

Q. By that time all the firing had ceased #—A. No, sir; you could
hear scattering shots down in the town,

Q. At that time?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Do you know who, if anybody, came in over the walls during
the shooting?—A. No, sir.

Q. Conld parties come in without your seeing them?—A. No, sir;
not while I was in the rear of the barracks. I could have told
whether anybody came in—that is, if they came over the wall any-
where near.me.

Q. Suppose somebody eame over the.wall anywhere in the rcar of
Barracks C?#—A. If T had heen along theve, I could have told.

Q. Durving the shooting did you sce anyone?--A. No, sir.

Q. Either in rear of Barracks B or C{—A. No, sir.

Q. Or in read of Barracks D?—A. No, sir.

Q. If a man and two women had gotten over the wall in the rear
of Barracks D, you could have seen them, conld you not?—A. No,
sir; not from where I was at. It was a durk night, and I couldn’t
see any ways along.

Q. So that persons could have gotten over the wall without your
seeing them 2—A., Yes, sir.

By thoe Ciamryan:
. Q. You say you had the regulation cartridges that night 1—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Did yon not always have the same cartridges when on guard
duty? That is, your guard the night succceding and the preceding
night, also, as they always did, had the same kind of ammunition,
did they not?—A. My company always had ball ammunition.

By Senator Foraker:
Q. Do you know anything about what other companies had $—A.
I heard that C Company had guard ammunition,
Q. You heard that?—A. Yes, sir,
Q. That night?—A. T wasn’t in C Company.

By the Cramrman:
Q. Were there any more sentinels than usual on guard duty that
night?—A. Before the shooting?
d. Before or after, either one.—A. There were extra sentinels put
along the wall afler the shooting,.
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Q. Before the shooting were there any more than usualf—A. No,
sir. A patrol went out in the city.

Q. Matters up to midnight were the same as they were the night
preceding, were they; there were the same number of men on guard,
de l:'lrmcgl the same way, and they were changed in the same way {—

. Yes, sir,

Q. Just the same that night as any other night?—A. Yes, sir; they
made a patrol down in the town.

Q. That was in the night ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many went down town?—A. I don’t know. They were
patrolling. Several patrols went down and came bLack.

By Senator FFoster:

Q. Flow many ball cariridges. or how many cartridges, did you
have in your possession on the night of the 13th?—.A. I had 10 rounds
on guard with me, and the other 10 rounds was at the barracks in my
other belt.

Q. IHow many cartridges did you return?—A. I only had seven
cartridges when I camo off of guard.

Q. Did they not take up all the cartridges after that shooting?
Did not each soldier surrender all of his carlridges?—A. After the
shooting?

Q. Yes.—A. They had inspection and they inspected the ammuni-
tion. The ofticer of the day inspected my ammunition on post the
next morning and T had seven rounds,

Q. When you left IFort Brown, how many rounds of cartridges did

(iu (l;nve?—A. I disremember. I don’t know, sir, how many rounds
nd.

Q. Had you received any more cartridges
finement.

Q. (Continuing.) After the night of the 13th?—A. T went into
confinement when we left IFort Brown, and I don’t know how many
rounds of ammunition we had.

Q. You were arrested in Fort Brown?—A. Yes, sir.

(A;. 12.35 o'clock p. m. the committee took a recess until 2 o’clock
p. m.

A. I was in con-

AFTERNOON SESSION,

The committee reconvened, pursuant to the taking of recess, at 2

a’clock p. m, )
Present, Senators Warren (chairman), Scott, IForaker, Lodge,
Hemenway, Bulkeley, Warner, Pettus, IFoster, and Overman,

TESTIMONY OF ALEXANDER ASH (COLORED),

(The witness was sworn by Senator Scott.)

By Senator Foraxker:

Q. Tell us your name in full.—A. Alexander Ash.

Q. Were you a_member of the Twenty-fifth U. S. Infantry in
August lnst?‘—A. Yes, sir, :

Q. In what company 2—A. In Company D. )

Q. Were you at Brownsville with your companyf—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were you on the night of the 13th of August?—A. I was
on guard, sir,
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Q. You were on guard that night?—A. Yes, sir. .

Senator Foraker. I want at this point to put in evidence the official
record of this soldier as given by the War Department, as found at
page 275 of Senate Document 155.

The record referred to is as follows:

TrooP C, NINTH CAVALRY,

ALEXANDER ASH.

Enlisted August 24, 1903 ; was discharged as a private of Company D, Twenty-
fifth Infantry, August 23, 1000, on expiration of term of enlistment: character

very good.
Reenlisted August 24, 1008; was discharged without honor as a private of
Troop C, Ninth Cavalry, November 13, 1006,

By Senator ForRAKER:

Q. I see that you enlisted August 24, 1903, and were discharged
Aufust 23, 1906, on expiration of term of enlistment, and it says
% Character very good.” Then you reenlisted August 24, 1906, and
were discharged without honor as a private of Troop C, Ninth
Cavalry, November 13, 1906. That is somewhat singular.—A. Yes
sir; I reenlisted and went to the Ninth Cavalry after I was dischnrged’
from the Twenty-fifth Infantry.

. You were discharged without honor as a ];rivate of Troop C,
Ninth Cavalry. That is your record, is it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is correct?—A. Yes,sir.

Q. Then your term of enlistment expired shortly after the 13th of
August t—A. Yes, sir.

Q. The night of the shootinf?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And after it had expired you were éischarged, given an honor-
able discharge?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then after you were discharged with the record * Character
very good ” you reenlisted. Have you your certificate of discharge
from the Twenty-fifth Infantry at that time with you?—A. No, sir;
it is down at my room,

Q. I would like to have you bring that up so as to have it in the
record.—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And have yon your discharge without honor here, with you?—
A. No, sir; it is at my room, also.

Q. Bring them up here. I want them put in the record as a part
of your testimony. After you were dischurged, August 23, you en-
listed, August 24, for the Ninth Cavalry. Where did you enlist ?--A.
At Fort Brown, Tex.

Q. How did you come to’enlist in another branch of the service?—
A. That was my intention, always, when I would be discharged, to go
to the Ninth Cm'alra'. .

Q. To the Ninth Cavalry #—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Why did you want to go to the Ninth Cavalry ?—A. I thought
that I would like it better than I did the infantry.

Q. You thought you would like the horse better ?—A. Yes; sir.
NQ. ‘Was the Ninth Cavalry represented there at Fort Brown#—A.

o, sir.

Q. Where did you enlist at Fort Brown?—A, They always tele-
graph the officer at the War Departient to get orders to reenlist a
man.
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Q. Did !ou telegraph to the War Department or did somebody
or you?—A., No, sir; the adjutant.

Q. The adjutant of the battalion1—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Who was that?¥—A. Lieutenant Chanler.

Q. Lieutenant Chanler?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was he adjutant at this time?—A., Yes, sir.

Q. Was he there on August 13¢—A., No, sir; I think not.

Q. He rejoined you afterwards?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was he on the night of August 13%—A. On competi-
tion, I believe.

Q. At any rate, you telegraphed him that you would like to re-
enlist in the Ninth Cavalry?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he telegraphed to the War Department, as you were in-
formed ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he got back from the War Department a telegram authoriz-
ing you to be reenlisted in the Ninth Cavalry?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that you were honorably discharged from the Twenty-fifth
Infantry and reenlisted in the Ninth Cavalry?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then Inter you wore discharged from the Ninth Cavalry
withont honor?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were you when you were discharged?—A. At Fort
Riley, Kans.

Q. Had you joined your regiment?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were on duty with your company?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who notified you that you were discharged wichout honorf—A.
My captain, Captain McCormick.

Q. Where were you the night of August 13%—A. I was at Fort
Brown, in the State of Texas. I was on guard the night of the 13th.

Q. You were on guard #—A. Yes, sir.
. Q. Where were you when the firing commenced?—A. I was on No.

post. .

(The map was explained to the witness by Senator Scott.)

By Senator Scorr:

" Q. You were a member of what company?—A. Company D.

Q. This is the gate here [indicating]. Now, where was your post,
No. 42—A. It was over at the quartermaster’s department,

Q. Away over here [indicating] ?—A. Yes, sir; around the quar-
termaster’s and commissm-y’s storehouses.

Q. At the commissary’s and quartermaster’s storehiouses, over
here?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator FoRAKER:

Q. Where were you when the firing commenced t—A., I was down
about the quartermaster’s department. )

Q. I wish you would take that rod and indicate just about where
you were, as near as you can.—A. Is this the front side or the back
side [indicating}?

Q. That is toward the Rio Grande River.

Senator Scort. This is the line of the road through the reserva-
tion [indicating]. L

The Witness. This must be the road here, isn’t it [indicating] ¢

Senator Foraker. Yes. .

The Wirness. I was down around the quartermaster’s,



966 AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS,

By Senator Scorr:
Q. Where was your beat? Where did you walk?—A. My beat
was from the commissary’s around, taking in the baker’s shop, and
go all the way around again.

By Senator ForAKER:

Ql. ?o you know where the water tank is¥—A. Yes, sir; it was to
my left.

)&!. ’I]‘he water tank is over beyond?—A. Away over here [indi-
cating].

Q. Yes.—A, Well, I took it all in. That looks different to me on
that map.

Q. Do you know where the pumip house was?—A, Yes, sir.

Q. There is the tank and there was a shed where Major Penrose’s
horses were kept and there is the pump house [indicating on map] #—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And over here is the granary. Now, how far did your beat
extend? Did it take in the pump house and the tank?—A. One
minute, Senator. This quartermaster’s building—you will remember
these buildings here—the quartermaster’s department was on the
other side of those buildings [indicating on map]. The quarter-
master’s building was the last building down on my post.

By Senator OvErMAN:

Q. Was there not an ordnance house there, where they kept the
ordt!l;;nce ?—A. The ordnance house was beyond yet. It was beyond
m at. :

ySenator Foraker. What is that?

Senator Overman. I saw somewhere a statement thal there was an
ordnance house there, and this witness says there was, over beyond
here, beyond his beat.

By Senator I'oRAKER:
Q. Your beat did not extend as far as the ordnance house?—A.
No, sir; only to the quartermaster's department.
. Q. Right around those buildings?—A. Right around those build-

ings.
Q. Where were you, if you are able to tell us, when this firing
commenced #—A. I will exphin to you. I was about here, turnin
the corner, going toward the baker’s shop; that is in the direction o
this building, you see [imlicntingf on map].

Q.- Yes—A. Coming around here, and going right on around.

,?. l:\t what time did you go on duty—on post{—A. Half past 10
o’clock.

Q. Whose relief did you belong tof—A., Corporal Wheeler’s,

Q. And you started up there toward the baker’s shop. Now,
what occurred ; what did yon hear?—A. The first thing that I heard
was a couple of shots kind of off to my right. The way I was going,
after I turned made it to my right, to the road.

Q. How far away from you were those shots?—A. I couldn’t tell
how far away. It sounded like it was off a piece toward that road.
1 couldn’t tell whether it was in that road or outside of the road.

Q. Weie you ever out to that conntry road?—A. No, sir; I only
heard them say there was a road there,
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Q. You heard people say that there was a road there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You heard shots?-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many shots?—A. I'wo shots first.

Q. Then what next?—-A. Then I heard something that sounded to
me like horses’ feet, it soundcd to me like coming around that road,
and later on I heard a few shots near Allison’s saloon,

Q. Near Allison’s saloon?—-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can %'ou point out where that is on that map?—A. That is a
pretty hard thing for me to do.

YQ. There is the garrison road, Fiftcenth street [indicating].—A.
es, sir,

Q. There is the gnardhouse to the right of where your pointer is
on that map.—A. ‘This is the guardhouse [indicating]?

Q. Yes.—A. The saloon was somewheres about heve [indicating].

Q. Tt was up beyond the corner of the reservation?—A. Yes, sir
it was beyond the reservation.

Q. Were you ever at that saloon?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there or not a road coming into Fifteenth street, or Gar-
lism{' rond, as we call it, at the point where the saloon was leeated #—
A, Yey, sin

Q. That road extended out in what dirvection?—A. I don’t know
whether it was east, north. or sonth.

Q. I mean did it extend ont in the general direction of the post
that you were on?—A. That road from the—

Q. That road that you called the post road?—aA. Yes, sir; it led
down toward the Rio Grande, if T am not mistaken,

Q. Now, you heard two shots fired there, and then you heard some
more shots toward Allison’s saloon?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. About how many shots did you hear toward Allison’s saloon?—
A. T couldn’t say whether it was three or four. It may have been
more or it may have been less—I couldn’t say.

Q. In the meanwhile you heard something more?—A, Yes, siry T
heard a fusillade of shots,

Q. No; I mean in the meantime—you spoke about horses.—A, 1
heard those horses, and after T heard those horses I heard a few
more shots around toward Allison’s saloon.

Q. Where did you hear the next shots?—A. The next shots T heard
was down in the vicinily of the barracks, aronnd that road some-
where; I conldn’t tell where; but it was a fusillade of shots.

Q. What did you hear next?—A. The next I heard was the call
to arms going.

Q. What was done after that, if you know?—A. After that, soon
after that, Corporal Madison and two men came by my post, and I
halted them, and they told me that some one was firing on the post,
and they came down to the noncommissioned officers’ line to see if any
bullets had hit the houses or anything; and then after he had went
on, the corral boss came by running toward the hospital, and he said
that hie was in a hurry and wanted to get to the hospital and see 1f
they needed an ambnlance. Ie went on.

Q. Who was that 7—A. I don’t know what his name was.

Q. You know that he was the corral boss?—A. Yes, sir; I know
that he was the corral boss, Then there was an awful noise in the
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hlospital of men gelting up, and lighting lamps, and coming down
the steps. ‘

Q. Did you give any alarm?—A. No, sir; no alarm that I gave
that night.

Q. Did you fire your piece?—A. No, sir.

Q. How long di tyou remain on that post?—A., I remained on the
post until about half past 2,

Q. Two o'clock?—A. Half past 2.

Q. Then what happened?—A. I was relieved off of guard next
morning; nothing more until next morning, when Captain Macklin
came around then and inspected our guns and cartridges, and so forth.

Q. Where were you when your gun was inspected?—A. At the
guardhouse,

Q. Why were you not put back on the post?—A. That was a night
post only. Nobody walked it in the daytime.

Q. What?—A, No one walked that post in the daytime. It was
only in the night.

Q. It was withdrawn in the daytime?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that you were on the guardhouse?—A. Yes, sir; I was at
the guardhouse.

Q. You were there when Captain Macklin came?—J\. Yes, sir.

Q. What occurred when he came?—A\. He came and inspected
.our guns and cartridges to sce if we had our right ammunition on us.

Q. Who was the sergeant of the guard?—A. I don’t know who the
sergeant of the guard was.

«5? Was it Sergeant Reid?—A. He was the commander of the
guard—supposed to be.

Q. He was the commander of the guard?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do dvou not call the commander of the guard the sergeant of
the guard?—A. No, sir; the sergeant of the guard—well, the com-
mémder of the guard would be an officer or a senior noncommissioned
officer.

Q. Captain Macklin was officer of the dayf—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was the guard turned out when Captain Macklin came?—A.
Was it turned out? Yes, sir.

Q. State how many men were there, if you can.—A, I couldn’t
tell how many men were there. I couldn't say.

_Q. It was not your business to take account of the men?—A. No,
sir,

Q. Do you know whether they were all there or not; whether any
of them were missing or on pass?—A. I couldn’t tell. I didn’t hear
of anybody being missing. I don’t count them or anything,

Q. What was done as to inspecting the arms? Were they in-
spected or not?—A. Yes, sir; they were inspected. My gun was
inspected, and also the rest of the men’s who were there,

d). What was the result of that investigation or inspection?—A.
Well, it must have been satisfactory, because nothing was said and
no one stepped out or anything.

Q. All passed{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were or not your guns inspected the day before when you went
on guard #—A. Yes, sir.

. They were all found clean and acceptable then?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know who did this shooting?—A. No, sir; I do not.

Q. Did you have anything to do with it1—A. No, sir.
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Q. Did you have any knowledge that leads you to suspect anybody
in your company —A. No, sir; I did not.

5. Or in either of the other companies?—A. No, sir,

Q. Have you withheld any knowledge from anybody in regard to
this——A. No, sir.

Q. (Continuing.) Who has asked you about it?—A. No, sir,

._Have you been free at all times to tell all you know about 1t¥—

AQYH . been free at all ti 11 all you k bout it?

. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you telling us all you know about it now?#—A. Yes, sir,

Senator Foraxer. There are a geod many questions that I might
ask this witness, but they will be on the lines along which we have
been questioning others, and T will pass them by at this time—about
cleaning guns, and about the cartridges, ete. I want. the record to
show that I pass that by at this time.

By Senator BUuLKEeLEY:
NQ. ‘When you are on duty do you have your pieces loaded {—A.
o, sir,
C:). Either day or night?—A. Neither day nor night.
By Senator OverMan:
Q. What was kept at that ordnance storchouse back there?—A. I
don’t know, sir.

By Senator ForaKER:

Q. You were not one of the twelve who were arrested, were you—
A. No, sir.

By Senator WarNEer:

Q. Look at that map. You see the road running through the res-
ervation, with the bakery marked “ 66" on one side and the cavalry
stable “ 48.” I think it is, on the other side. You notice that, do you
not?—A. Marked “ 662" O, yes, sir; I see it. I see the bakery
shop now.

Q. The quartermaster’s and commissary’s were about as desig-
nated there with reference to the bakery and the cavalry stable, were
they not?—A. I didn’t understand you.

(3. They were about as designated on that map—the location of
the quartermaster’s and commissary’s storehouses¥—A. No, sir; the
quartermaster’s storchouse is not represented at all the way it is in
Fort Brown. .

Q. Where would it be?—A. It would be away down below this
pump house here. The pump house would be between the commissary,
and also the quartermaster’s stable would be between the commissary
and the quartermaster’s department.

Q. And you were at _that point, beyond what wounld be the pump
house?—A. Yes, siri I would be beyond all those buildings, right
at the quartermaster’s.

Q. You heard a shot that seemed to be either in the road or at tire
side of the road?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Which road do you refer to?—A. The road beyond the bakery

shop.

(;f. That is the road between the baker's shop and the cavalry
stable, there?—A. Yes, sir. A .

Q. That is the road you refer to?—A. Yes, sir,

8, Doc. 402, G0-1, kit 5——4
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Q. Now, taking the cavalry stable, No. 55, there seems to be ono
building numbered “ 48 » and another marked * 55.” Where would
those shots be; where would you locate them, with reference to the
cavalry stable numbered “ 55 ” on the map?—A. The cavalry stable
No. 55¢ I don’t know anything——

Q. That is the one to the right.—A. Yes, sir; I see that on the map.

Senator OverMAN. Near the granary.

The Wirness. Yes, sir, No, “48” is the one near to where the
shooting seemed to me to be, nearer than to * 55.”

By Senator WARNER:

Q. It seemed to be nearer “ 48% "—A, Yes, sir.
hQ. And you heard the one shot fired from that direction?—A. Two
shots,

Q. Two shotst—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what next did you hear?—A. What next did I hear?
The sound of horses’ feet, it seemed to me, going around that road.

Q. Horses’ feet, and on what road?—A. That road in the rear of
the baker’s shop; only it is on the outside there. Of course there is
nothing there to show the way that road is.
| Séenator Foraker. I did not hear that answer, Speak a little
ouder.

The Wirness. It seemed to be on that road to the right of me, the
way I was going. :

By Senator WARNER:

Q. That is on the country road¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. A good many horses?—A. No, sir; I couldn’t say whether there
was a good many or few. There seemed to be horses’ feet.

Q. Horses running?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. In what direction?—A. Tt seemed to be in that road, going
toward Allison’s.

Q. Going toward Allison’s saloon ¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you hear any shouting?—A. No, sir.

Q. You heard no s outin% on that road?—A. I heard two shots
before the horses, and then later on I heard two shots nearer Alli-
son’s saloon; in that vicinity, at any rate.

Q. What other shots did you hear?—A. I heard a fusillade of shots
around the vicinity of the barracks. I couldn’t tell how many.

Q. Between the time that vou heard those shots on the road, what-
ever direction it may have been, up in the road in the direction of
Allison’ saloon, and the fusillade, you heard no shots between those{—
A. No,sir; I didn’t hear any.

Q. You did not hear any shots from down by the barracks—three
shots from the sentry ¥—A. No, sir.

Q. You are quite clear about that{—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, when you speak of a fusillade, you mean that was a
volley§—A. I couldn’t say it was a volley; no, sir. It sounded just
the same as if some one would shoot, * Boom, boom, boom, boom *
[witness imitatingfl ;, something like that. :

Q. You are a so éler, and you know what I mean. Was it a vol-
ley or like soldiers or persons shooting at willf—A. Shooting at
will, it sounded like.

Q. Shooting at will#—A. It didn’t sound anything like a volley;
no, sir.
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Q. Then where did you go?—A. I still remained on my post until
I was relieved.

Q. You did not go to the hospitalt—A. No, sir.

Q. Or to the guardhouse?—A. No, sir.

Q. But you remained there?—A. I remained on my post.

Q. When was the call to arms with reference to this fusilladef-—
A. When was it sounded ?

Q. Yes.—A., It sounded immediately afterwards, it seemed; as
quick as it could be sounded, it seemed to me.

Q. You remained on duty that night four hours?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Your usual duty would have been from 10.30 to 12.309—A.
To 12.30; yes, sir.

Q. But you remained up there——A. Until 2.30.

Q. You went off duty at 2.30, which made you four hours?—A.
Made me four hours,

Q. Did you hear any bullets whistling?—A. No, sir; I didn’t hear
any bullets whistling,

é. About where were you when Corporal Madison met you?—A,
I was on the road then. I had made my round, going around.

Q. Pardon me a minute. When you say you were on the road,
what road do you mean?—A. I mean on the road going down to the
noncommissioned officers’ line,

Senator Foraker. Indicate with that rod. Iet him indicate, if
you do not object, Senator. I would like to get it into the record.

Senator Warner. Certainly.

The Wirness. Here is the commissary, and I had been going
around here, and my course was right down the road until I got here
[indicating on map]. , .

Senator Foraker. There is the dry lagoon right under your
pointer. Do you see that? )

Senator Overman. This is the road that runs in the rear of the
ofticers’ quarters, is it not? Here is the road [indicating on map].

A. Right in rear of the officers’ quarters, over here, and here it
branches out [indicating]. All of this comes together ixere, and my
post extended on out and came out in the road.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. Who was with CorEoral Madison?—A. I couldn’t say, It was
two men, privates, I think.

Q. In what direction was that from the guardhouse?—A. That
was going away from the guardhouse.

Q. Going away from the guardhouse. Here is the guardhouse,
and they were going that way [indicating] ¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is, going away from the guardhouse as far as the parade
ground was concerned and the barracks?—A, How is that?

Q. The parade ground and the barracks?—A. They were going
away from the guardhouse.

Q. Yes.—A. Here is the guardhouse here, and I was on my gost.,
and he was going away from the guardhouse. If I met him here,
the guardhouse must have been behind him. .

Q. He was coming, then, from the guardhouse over in the general
direction of the pump house, which is marked on this map * No.
569"—A. Yes, sir, :

Q. And about how far from the pump honse was it that you met
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Corporal Madison?—A. I couldn’t say. It was between the com-
missary and the pump house. I couldn’t say how far.

Q. How far from the guardhouse?—A. I couldn’t say.

Q. Could you not give an estimate, 150 yards or 200 yards, or
whatf{—A. I couldn’t give any estimate, how far it was, from the
guardhouse to the pump house. It was a pretty good distance.

Q. Can you not remember tiae names of those two men with Cor-
poral Madison then?—A. No, sir; I could not.

Q. Did they have their guns then?—A. Yes, sir; I think they
had their guns with them,

Senator Hesenway. 1 did not hear you. What did you say?

The Wirness. What did you say, sir?

By Senator WarNER:
thQ'. Did they have their guns with them?—A. Yes, sir; they had
eir guns,

Q. How were they going, ordinary time or double time?—A. They
were s‘?inﬁ_ ordinary time. = )

Q. Walking along in your direction?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long was this, if at all, after the fusillade you heard ?—
A. I couldn’t say. It was about——

Q. How long was it after the call to arms, if at all?—A. Ob, it
was perhaps twenty minutes. It may have been longer than that,
I can’t tell. Tt has been so long now that I can’t remember,

Q. Had the firing ceased at that time?—A. Yes, sir,

YQ. And they were coming, they told you, for what purpose?—A.
es, sir, _

Q. What purpose did they say they were going over there for?—
A. They told me they had orders to go down there to see if any of
the bullets had hit those noncommisstoned officers’ quarters.

Q. Did they ask you if you had heard bullets?—A. No, sir; they
didn’t ask me. L

Q. Did you make any examination afterwards to find if any of
the bullets had hit any of the quarters there?—A. No, sir.

bQ. Any time?—A. No, sir; it wasn’t my duty to find out anything
about it.

Q. Did you make any investigation anywhere aboui the bar-

racks?—A. No, sir. L. .
Q. Did you make any inquiry about who did the shooting?—A.
Yes, sir; I did, L
Q. Of whom did you make the inquiry 2—A. I asked who did it.
Q. Whom did you ask?—A. I asked different soldiers; I couldn’t

say. .
Q. Who did it?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator OverMaN:

Q. Did you notice which way Corporal Madison went after they
left you?—A. I don’t know, sir; I didn’t pay any attention.

Q. Did you see him any more that night?—A. No, sir.

Q. They were going in an opposite direction from the barracks?—
A. Yes, sir; the barracks are back here, and they were going to the
noncommissioned officers’ line. Of course, those barracks there [indi-
cating on map]), they say they are officers’ quarters, but I have never
known any officers’ quarters to be there.

T e v ——
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By Senator WaRNER:

Q. In the morning your gun was inspected, youn say, at the guard-
house?—A. Yes, sir; at guard mount.
1\YQ. And you do not know how many reported at gnard mount—A.

o, sir,

é. Nor do you know the name of the sergeant of the guard #—A.
I know Sergeant Reid was on guard. He was the senior sergeant on
guard. I don’t know whether there were two sergeants or one; I
disremember,

Q. You made a distinction in your examination, as I remember, be-
tween the officer of the guard and the sergeant commanding the
guard?—A, Yes, sir; there can be a noncommissioned oflicer com-
manding the guard—that is, when there are two sergeants on guard.

Q. Were there two sergeants or one sergeant on guard there that
night7—A. T can’t remember whether there were two or one.

%. Do you remember how many there were at guard mount when
the inspection was made?—A. No, sir; I do not.

Q. Was the roll called2—A. The roll called on guard mount?

Q. Yes—A\. No, sir; not as I know of. I have never heard of a
roll being called on guard mount. :

Q. I am asking you if there was a roll call at this time?—A. No,
sir; not that I know of.

é. At that time there was nobody on post No. 4, because that was
a night post?—A. Not as I know of. It was half past 2 when I was
relieved, and of course somebody was on after I went off.

Q. Yes. Now, as to this fusillade you spoke of—where was it ?—A.,
It scemed to be around the vicinity of the barracks somewh: ve; I
don't know where.

Q. And that immediately followed those two shots you spoke of §—
A. It immediately followed those two shots I heard around toward

* Allison's saloon.

Q. Aﬁd how far is Allison’s saloon from, s«ay, Barracks C{—A. I
can't tell,

Q. You know it was several hundred yards, was it not?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. About how many hundred yards?—A. I couldn’t say. T never
knew the distance there.

Q. So that it would have been impossible for the parties who did
the shooting at Allison’s saloon to have been down around there doing
that other shooting?—A. Oh, no; no, sir; I couldn’t say that.

Q. So that there was time enough for them A. Yos, sir,

Q. To get there. About how many shots did you hear in the fu-
sillade?—A. I don’t know, sir.

Q. How many did you hear, just approximately?—A. I couldn’t
judge how many.

Q. Have you any idea how many—15 or 20 or 30¢—A. There may
have been more. . ‘

Q. What is vour judgment?{—A. I haven’t any judgment about it.
I couldn't say how many shots there was,

The Citairvax. Talk a little londer, please.

By Senator WARNER:
Q. Now, did you locate which barracks it was in rear of ?—A. No,
sir,
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Q. The shooting?—A. No, sir; I didn’t.
Q. Did you see any men at all at that timef—A. No, sir.

Q. Exce’étting Corporal Madison and the two men who were with

him{—A. Not outside of the corral boss, That is the only one I seen.

Q. You do not know whether you saw the hospital man or not—A.
No, sir; I didn’t sce anyone from the hospital.

. But the first shots you heard from the direction of the barracks
you are clear were that furillade where they seemed to be firing at
will, you sayf—A. Yes, sir; in the vicinity of the barracks.

Q. You say you can not tell how many shots there were. I want
to get some 1dea. Were there as many as 10, in your judgment, at
least?—A. Oh, it was more than that.

Q. More than that in that fusillade?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the nature of the inspection that was made of your
guns at guard mount?—A. What was the nature of the inspection ?

Q. Yes; how was it made?—A. It was made by the adjutant, Lieu-
tenant Grier. He passed along the line and we had inspection, the
same as we would on Saturday or monthly inspection.

Q. Was it Lientenant Grier who made that inspection?—A. Yes,
sir; at guard mount. )

é. You were then at the guardhouse, were you?—A. No, sir; on
the parade ground near the guardhouse.

Q. I am speaking of the morning of the 14th, after the shooting?—
A. On the morning after the shooting?

Q. Yes.—A. When we were insrected at guard mount, you said?

Q.ltz?\t the guardhouse, I should have said.—A. What was the
resu :

Q. No; how was the inspection made?—A. It was made by him
falling the men in and inspecting each man’s gun,

Q. What did they do to inspect them?—A. Ran a rod through,
and a piece of white cloth.

Q. Ran a rod through every gun?—A, Yes, sir; ran a rod through
every gun,

Q. Did he have one of those brass rodst—A. Yes, sir; he had a
brass rod. .

Q. The same as you have in your hand now?—A. Yes, sir.

_ Q. That was made by Captaiu Macklin?—A. The inspection; yes,

sir,
Q. Did he look through the guns first before using the rod—
A. Yes, sir. .
Q. What was the neccssity of using the rod and the cloth?—A. I
guess that he wanted to be certain what he was doing.
Q. And cvery gun he inspected that way. You are quite clear
about that —A. Yes, sir,
Q. Your gun among the others?—A. Yes, sir.
I dQ Do you know who was on post No, 2 that night?—A. Yes, sir;
0

Q. Who was it?—A. I think Howard was one; Joseph Howard,
Sam Battle, and another man; I disremember who he was.

Q. Where were they at the time of this inspection?—A, Howard
was on post, I believe. Yes, he was on post. .

Q. He was not at the guardhouse?—A. No, sir.

Q. Were any of the guns found dirty ¥—A. No, sir,

9 | o e A= - e . -+ +\ 3
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Q. All perfectly clean?—A. Yes, sir; all perfectly clean.

Q. Why did you not discharge your gun when you heard the shoot-
ing?—A. There wasn’t any use for me firing my gun when I heard
the shooting.

Q. Why not?—A. Because it wasn’t in the vicinity of my post.

Q. Was it not nearer your post than any other post{—A. l;\To, sir.

Q. What post was it nearer to than the others when you heard
those two shots?—A., Those two shots?

Q. Yes.—A. It was nearer to my post than any other, then. But
after I turned around I heard no more than those scattered shots
toward Allison’s, and I thought it was no use my shooting, and I
thought I used my best judgment by not firing.

Q. 11ad you no other reason?—A. No, sir: no other reason. )

Q. That was your best judgment at the time?—A. Yes, sir; that
was my best judgment at the time.

Q. You knew the next morning that it was charged that some of
the soldiers of the battalion had done the shooting up of the town,
did you not?—A. No, sir; I didn’t know it the next morning.

Q. The next day?—A\. The next day I heard it discussed amongst
the soldiers, wondering who done it; but yet they never had found
out who done it or who they said had done the shooting.

Q. After you heard this fusillade, you heard a good many more
thots, did you not?—A\. No, sir.

Q. You only heard the fusillade?—A. Only the onoe fusillade:
that is all T heard.

Q. About how many shots, altogether?—A. I couldn’t say how
many shots altogether. T couldn’t say.

Senator Foraker. What did he add there? I want all of that
answer.

('The answer was repeated by the stenographer.)

By Senator WaRNER:

Q. The firing ceased with this fusillade, did it not?—A\. Yes, sir;
so far as I know.

Q. You were on duty there all the time?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then, you want the committce to understand that all of the
shots you heard were those out in the neighborhood of the road that
you have spoken of, those two in the neighlorhood of Allison’s saloon
and that one fusillade down at the barracks?—-A. I want the com-
mittec to understand that?

Q. Yes; is that your evidence?—A. Yes, sir; that is my cvidence.

Q. Yes.—A. That is what I know.

Senator \WWARNER. That is all,

By Senator FORAKER!

Q. How long did the fusillade last that was down about the bar-
racksf—A. That fusillade lasted five or six minutes.

Q. Five or six minutes? —A. Yes, sir. )

Q. Can you give us any idea how many shots were included in that
fusillade that you refer to?—A. No, sir; I could not. .

Q. I want to refresh your recollection, if I can, as to your meeting
with Corporal Madison. He has testified before us. See if you can
remember this after I tell you. He says that he was accompanied by
privates Thomas I.. Moseley and Mark Garman. Do you know those
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men now f—A\. Yes, sir; I know them, but I don’t know whether
they were with him. I couldn’t say. I don’t remember.
. You do not remember those men?—A\. I don’t remember.

Q. That is all right, then. There is a little confusion in my own
mind as to which road you referred to when you said those two shots
sounded to you like they were on this road out there. Do you mean
the reservation road or the country road beyond it?—A., T tell you,
1 don’t know about this map. It is all fixed up here backwards.
T can’t tell you anything about it. This is nothing like what I
remember. .

Q. Tt does not seem to recall evervthing to you, does it?—A. No,
sir; it doesn’t.

Q. Put your rod up to what is indicated as a road on that map.
Now, that is supposed to he n road in the reservation. and there is
the cavalry stable on that road. It has been testified that there is
another rond beyond that.—A. That is the one 1 am talking about,
farther than this road right here |indicating].

By the CitairMan:
Q. That is a road not shown on that map?—A. Yes, sir,

By Senator Warxer:

Q. T may have misunderstood you, T thought I had asked yon
where vou heard that shooting on the road. if it is the road there that
is marked running between what is marked the cavalry stable and the
bakery.—A. You thonght yon asked me that?

Q. Yes.—A. I didn’t undervstand yon to ask me anything about this
road here [indieating].

Q. You did not?—A\. No, sir.

Senator Warxer. All right, that is all,

By Senator FoRaKER:

Q. How far is that road where yon heard the first shots from the
spol:l ;\'hm‘c you were standing when you first heard them#—A\, What
roac

Q. The road on which this first shooting took place?—A. I don't
know what position it would be from this. It must have been around
over the other side of the reservation there. I conltdn’t say.

Q. About how far?—A. Two hundred or 300 yards, maybe. I
couldn’t say.

Q. Was that a dirt road or a gravel road or a rock road?—A, 1
don’t know. I never saw it. I never went over there. I never was

on that road.
By Senator Lonce:
Q. You heard the horses on it. yout say#—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Foster:
Q. Were they a munber of horses that you heard ?—A. I couldn’t
say whether it was a number. It sounded like horses running.
Q. You heard the horses running distinetly, did you?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. And then after you heard the first two shots you heard two more
shots on the same road, as I understand?—A. Yes, sir; around near
Anderson’s saloon,
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By Senator Foraker:
Q. Are you saying “Ander=on's? or “Allison’s? *—A. Allison’s.
I called it *Anderson’s.”

By Senator Foster:

Q. About how far is Allison’s saloon from the place where youn
were standing that night?—A. Allison's saloon is around in here
somewhere. I don’t know where it is [indicating on map].

Q. Abont how fay wonld you say it was?—A., About 500 or G00
yards; maybe farther.

Q. About how far?—A. Five hundred or 600 vards,

The Cirvirvan. Witness. T must tell you ngain to try to speak a
little louder. I do not want you to v impossibilities, but we want
to hear you phinly.

By Senutor Fosten:

Q. You may locate on that map, as near as yon can, where you
heard the fusillade?—A. T can't tol& anything about this map.

Q. Tlow is that?—A\. T ean’t tell anything about this map. If
somehady would point it out, maybe 1 could tell. I can't tell,
w(']‘he ;nnp was here further expliined to the witness by Senator

arner. .

Q. Now, locate the spot, as near ns you can, from which youn heard
the fusillade 2—.\. Locate the spot?

Q. Yes; as near as yvou ean—A. There is no way I could locate
the spot from which I heard the fusillade, Al T ean tell you is that
it was in the vicinily of these bavrracks. I don’t know what bar-
racks they were.

Q. Do you know whether it was Barracks B or C or D?—A. I can’t
tell you. It was in the vicinity of those barracks somewhere. I
couldn’t tell from down in here what barracks it was at or what bar-
racks up there.

Q. TTow long an interval was there between the last two shots you
heard and the fusillade?—A. It wasn't very long; a few minutes.

Q. If a party had been standing hetween Barvacks B and Bar-
racks C and discharged his Winchester riffe, you would have heard
that?—.\. Let me hear you again, sir,

Q. I should say a Springfield rifle. If a party had been standing
between Barracks B and C and discharged a Springfield rifle, you
would have heard the report of the rifle from where you were stand-
ing?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Are you cerlain of that?—A. Certainly I would have heard the
report of the gun,

Q. And you are certain you heard no report of a gun that night
from the barracks or near the barracks?—A., I can’t say. .

Q. What did you say ?—A. Ieard it from the barracks?

Q. Did you hear three reports from any rifle that night between
Barracks C and Barracks B7—A. No. sirt I can't say fheard any
three shots from Barracks B or C, either.

Q. If they had been fired from there, could you hava heard
them ?—A. If there hadn’t been anything else going on, I could have
heard them.

Q. You heard the first two shots?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You heard the second two shotst—A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Could you hayve heard the three shots?—A. Suppose those three
shots had been fired at the same time those fusiilade shots were being
fired, could I have heard them distinet from the fusillade?

Q. Supfose they were not fired at the time of the fusillade?—A.
Yes, sir; I could have heard them. )

Q. Have you ever given any aflidavit before thisi—A. No more
than a few questions asked me. I was examined at Fort Brown.

Q. Who examined you?—A. Licutonant West and Captain Lyon.

Q. No one elsef—A. No, sir. -

Q. Did you answer these questions before ?—A. No, sir; he didn’t
ask these questions,

. You didn’t tell them anything but what you were asked—

Q. You didn’t tell th thing but what ked ¢
A. No, sir; no more than what they asked me,

Q. You were asked to tell all about it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you didn’t tell them?—A. They asked me different ques-
tions, and 1 guess they put down what they wanted to.

Q. Did thuy usk you to tell what you wanted to?—A. They asked
me to tell what I heard about it,

Q. Didr’t they ask Xou to tell what you knew about it?—A. If I
h&()i told what I heard about it, that would have been what I knew
about it,

Q. If you had told what you heard, that would have béen what you
knew?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you tell what you knew?—A. I didn’t go on to explain
anything about what I heard on guard or about the shooting.

. You didn’t mention the horses running?—A. Yes, sir; I men-
tioned that,
. Q. You mentioned the shots, but not the horses running?—A. Yes,
sir; that was told, too. .

é. Where was the first sounding of the call to arms given that

night?—A. Where was it given?
. Yes; from the barracks or the guardhouse?—A. That wovld be
pretty hard for me to say. I was on post.
b Q.IS{tOll were on posti—A. It was at the guardhouse where I first
eard it.

Q. You heard it first at the guardhouse?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you hear another one besides that at the guardhousef—
A. No,sir; I did not. It may have been blown from the barracis at
the same time the trumpeter at the guardhouse was blowing it.

Q. If they had been blown at different times you could have
heard it#—A. Oh, yes, sir; then I could have heard it

Q. But you heard it only from the guardhouse?—A, I heard it
only from the guardhouse; yes, sir.

ly from tl dh i

(5. How long was that after the fusillade?—A. Only a few min-
&fs.l I couldn’t say. It may have been a minute or it may have

n longer.,

Q. How many cartridges did you have that night?—A. I had 10
rounds of ammunition that night,

Q. Did you have any moref—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many more?—A. Ten.

Q. Where were those cartridges distributed?—A. Where were they
distributed ¢ :

Q. Where did you receive them—at Fort Brown or——A. At Fort
_ Niobrara, Nebr.

ot e et ot Attr——
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Q. Did you receive any additional ammunition that night?—A.
No, sir; I did not.

Q. ou remained on post until half past 2, and then went to bed
in the guardhouse?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And remained how long?—A. I remained until the next morn-
ing. At reveille we were called up for inspection.

. What hour was that?—A. 1 don’t know. I know it was after

sunup—half past 6 or 7 o’clock, or something like that.

By Senator lonce:

. Q. Did you have any trouble at Brownsville at any time?—A. No,

Slrl
Q. You never were interfered with there in any way?—A. No
sir. I never was interfered with in Brownsville; onlfv the night of
the 13th I was sent out as a patrol by myself, and I had no gun or
nothing. Captain Macklin sent me down to a place at the wharf
where they come across from Mexico to the American side, and as I
was standing there I had lots of Brownsville natives—I guess they
were—conte up, and one man wanted to collect the revenue, and they
wanted to run me away from there, and there was another man, he
wouldn’t let them, and several more came up and wanted to know
what was that negro doing there, and all that kind of talk. ‘That
was all the trouble I had there. I never had any trouble of any kind.

By Senator OvErMAN:

Q. That was at the ferry?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Did you see the ferryboat come over?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. How many colored men were there on it?—A. There wasn't
any.
Q. There were not any soldiers on it?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know that there were 15 or 20 men over in Matamoros
that day?—A. No, sir.

Q. Were there any over there?—A. No, sir.

Q. You were not- over there?—A. No, sir; I wasn’ over there.

By Senator LongE:

Q. Did you know Hoytt Robinson, of Company D?—A. Hoytt
Robinson?

Q. Yes—A. Yes, sir. .

Q. Did you tell him that you were repeatedly insulted and abused
while in the town?—A. T did not; no, sir.

Q. You didn’t say that?—A. No, sir.

Senator Lobcee. Hoytt Robinson testified that he did.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. What time was it that you were down at the wharfi—A. Be-

tween half past 7 and 8 o'clock.

Q. Between half past 7 and 8 o’clock?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not have your ‘gun with you?—A, No, sir,

Q. You were sent by the officer of the day?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What were you sent there for?—A. To tell all the soldiers on
uss at Matamoros when they came across that they should come
ack to the barracks. The orders from Major Penrose was for all

the soldiers to be in at 8 o’clock.

Q. Did you find any soldicrs?—A. No, sir,
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Q. None came across while yon were there?—A, No, sir,

Q. And it was while you were there at that time that they were
asking you what you were doing there?—A. Yes, sir, .

Q. Then what ‘was it that occurred?—A., They went on to ask—
one wanted to make me leave there and another told him no; that I
was attending to my business, and—

Q. Who was the collector?—A. I don’t know his name. I knowed
him when I seen him, but I don’t know his name.

Q. What did they do?—A. Another walked up, and he says to
another one, “Is that a damned negro soldier standing there?® and
he says, “ esi” and then he says, “ What does he want standing
around there? ”

Q. That is what they said #—A. Yes, sir; and then remarks passed
by people walking up and standing around there,

Q. If Hoytt Robinson testified that you teld him you were insulted
at that time, does that have reference to that talk of which you
speak?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Lonse. On page 225 1Toytt Robinson makes deposition be-
fore the Constitutional League:

Private Ash furtlier alleged to the deponent that upun his return he was
repeatedly Insulted and abused while in town.

By Scnator Foraker:

Q. Do yvon recall now, since that has been read to you, having any
talk with him of that kind?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. You remember telling him?2—A. Yes, sir; I remember telling
him about it.

Scnator Foraker. At this point I desire to have inserted in the
record the aftidavit of IToytt Robinson, found on pages 224 and 225
of Senate Docnment No. 155,

The aflidavit referred to is as follows:

AFFipAVIT Fo—Hoptt Robinson, Compunp D.  Relative to sounding call to arms
on night of August 13.

TERRITORY OF OKLAIIOMA, Comdily of Canadian, s8:

Personally appeared before e, the undersigned authority duly nuthorized to
administer oaths in and for the county and 'I'erritory aforesald, Iloytt Itobin-
son, musiclan, Company D, deposes nnd says that he has served in the United
States Army flve yeuars, and that he was gorrisoned at IFort Brown on the 13th
day of August; that on the night of sald date he was detalled as musiclan of
the guard and was assigned to tower of the guard; that about 12.20 o'clock he
was aroused by Sergeant Reld, commander of the guard, and told to sound the
alarm of * call to nrs;” that while he was sounding the * call to arms” the
firlng was still going on furlously, and it was hack In the town of Brownsvllle,
Tex., from the wall of the post and was some distance from post of guards, and
that nbout the hour or near thereto the hour of 7 o'clock Captain Macklin, offi-
cer of the day, cane to gunrdhouse and sent two men, Corporal Wheeler, Com-
pany D, and Corporal Franklin, Company B, out in town with Instructions to
bring in every man in town, and tell him he must not be out of post after 8
o'clock that night, August 13. 1006; and Captain Macklin seut Private Ash,
Conmpany D, to the whart at Brownsville, Tex., to Intercept any men going over
to Matmoros, and tell any returning to proceed to the fort at once, ns no man
was to be outside of sald post after 8 o'clock. Driviute Ash asked If he should
take his gun. to which Captain Macklin replied ** No."”

Private Ash further alleged to the deponent that upon his return he was
repeatedly Insulted and abused while In town., Afiant further depuses and
says that after e wus relleved at 2 o'clock a. m., August 14, 1000, he saw a
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number of citizens walking around the fort wall with guns and Winchesters:
as far as afiiant knows and belleves, there was no shooting done by the soldlers

in post.
HoyTr ROBINSON,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 24th day of November, 1004,
E. J. Barvon, Notary Public,
My commission ex. July 20, 190,

By Senator Overyax:

Q. You say you went down there to tell the soldiers that had been
over in Matamoros on pass to come back to camp?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then at that time there had been soldiers in Matamoros?—A.
Yes, sir; I don’t know about that.

Q. You went there to tell them?—A. Yes, sir; I went there to tell
them when they caine across,

Q. You were sent there on that duty2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you remained how long?—A\. Until 9 o'clock.

Q. And those soldiers in Matamoros had not returned thenft—A.
I had not seen them then,

Q. You stayed therc and watched the ferryboat?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And they had not returned at that time?—A. No, sir.

By Senator Longe:
. Q. Is that the only way of getting over from Matamoros?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Not knowing where the road was located, how could you tell
that those two shots seemed to be from that road ?-——A. Well, it was
in that vicinity; in the vicinity of that road.

Q. You mean by that, in that divection, I suppose?—A. Yes, sir;
because there was a swamp between there and the road.

Q. What?—A. A swamp of some kind.

Q. A swamp in there?—A. Yes, sir,

Senator WakrNer, That is all,

By Senator IForAKER:
Q. You have been up to Allicon’s saloon?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. And you know that at the point where it is located there is a
country road coming in?—A. There is a road coming in.
Q. goming in from that general direction?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Lobar:

Q. Do you know wlhere that country road leads to—where it goes?

Senator Foraker. It has been testified to that that goes to some
place up there, the name of which I do not remember now.

The Wirxess. T don't now.

Senator Warxer. I wonld like to have inserted in the record at
this point the aflidavit of this witness which appears on page 169 of
Senate Document No. 155.

The document referred to is as follows:

Font BrowN, State of Teras, ss:

Personally appeared befere me, the undersigned authority, one Alexander
Ash, n private of Company D, Twenty-tifth Infantry, who, belng duly sworn
according to law, deposes and says:

“About 12 o'clock midnight, August 13, 1908, I was on post No. 4, which ex-
tends around the gquartermaster and comnnlissary storeliouses, The flrst unusual
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thing that happened was two shots fired from somewhere beyond the hospltal
fromn where I was, I Immediately burrled to that end of my post, and then a
lot more shots were fired from the viclnity of the rear of barracks. I can
not say positively where these shots were fired, but it sounded as !f they came
from that vicinity. I bhave no idea who did the shooting, citizens or soldiers.
I heard nothing Lefore this night that would lead me to belleve that there was
going to be any trouble. I have heard nothiug since this night as to wlo did
the firing or for what reason.
“ Further deponent saith not.
“ ALEXANDER ABH,
“Private, Ccmpany D, Twenty-fifth Infantry.”
Subscribed and sworn to before me, at Fort Brown, Tex,, this 10th day of
August, 1000,
SasMuer P. Lyon,
Caplain, Twenty-fifth Infantry,
T'rial Officer, Summary Court,

(Witness excused.)
TESTIMONY OF JOSEPH ROGERS (COLORED).

(The witness was sworn by the chairman.)

By Senator FoRAKER:

Q. Tell us your name in full—A. Jose]I)h Rogers.
Q. Did you belong to the Twenty-fifth Infantry in August last?—

A, Yes,sir,

Q. What company #—A, Company C.

Q. Were you wit gour company at Fort Brown, at Brownsville,
in August last?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Foraker. I want at this place to Y“t in evidence the
official record of this soldier as given by the War Department as
found a¢ pages 263 and 264 of Senate Document No. 165,

The record referred to is as follows:

JOSEPH KROGERS,

Enlisted July 10, 1000; was discharged as a private of Company O, Twenty-
fitth Infantry, July 0, 1003, on explratio of ferm of enlistment; character

good.
Reenlisted July 14, 1803 ; was disciarged as a private of Company O, Twenty-
fitth Infantry, July 13, 1900, on expiration of termn of enlistment; character

good.
Reenlisted July 16, 1008; was discharged without honor as a private of Com-
pany O, Twenty-fifth Infantry, November 23, 1100,

By Senator FoRAKER:

Q. I sce by this thau you first enlisted in July, 1900.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you serve continuously from that time until you were
discharged in November lasti—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you se1ve all that time in the same company #—A. Yes, sir,

Q. How many years did you serve altogether?—A. Six years,

Q. I sce that you have on your first discharge “ Character good3 ”
on your second discharge * Character good,” and on your third dis-
charge * Without honor.”—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were you enlisted?—A. In New York, sir,

Q. In the city of New York?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that your home?—A. Yes, sir; for the time.

Q. Where were you bornf—A. In the West Indics,

Q. What island?—A. Barbados,
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Q. When did you come to this country ¥—A. In 1899,

Q. In 1899?7—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Then you enlisted the next yearf—A. Yes, sir,

Q. In the Army?—A. Yes, sir; and served there six years.

Q. Now, where were you the night of this firing, August 138—A.
I was on guard.

Q. Were you on post, or where were you, when the firing com-
menced —A. At the guardhouse.

Q. What relief did you belong to?—A. The third.

Q. The third relieft—A, Yes, sir,

Q. Your relief was at the guardhouse at that time?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Not on post?—A. No, sir,

Q. What were you doing when the firing commenced —A. I was
lying down.

Q. Were you nsleep or awake?—A. No, sir; I was awake,

Senator Scott here explained the map to the witness.)

J. How did you happen to be awake at that hour of the night!—
A. I was relieved at 11 o’clock.

Q. What post were you on when you were on duty {—A. No. 3, sir,

Q. Which is No. 37—A. It was in back of the ofticers’ line.

Q. Back of the officers’ quarters?—A, Yes, sir.

Senator Scort. That is here [indicating on map]?

The Wirxess. Yes, sir.

By Senator FORAKER:

Q. Did you go around the officers’ quarters or just back of them{—
A. No, sir; both ways, in front and back.

Q. Clear around them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Going around them, did you keep those quarters to your left
or to ;igur right?—A. To the left.

Q. To the left?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You say it was 11 ®’clock when you were reliecved{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you do when you were relieved ?—A. I went back to
the guardhouse.

Q. What happened then; what did you do? That is all I want to
know.—A\., I was lying down in bed reading,

Q. Doing what?—A. Reading.

. Did you have a light in the guardhouse?—A. Yes, sir,

. What were you readingf—A. A novel.

. Can you tell us the name of it ?—A. Not exactly.

. What?--A. X can’t remember the name of it.

. You do not remember the name of it, but you remember that
you were reading a novel—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What happened?—A. Just about a quarter to 12, I expect it
was: that is, when the sergeant told me to wake up—that is, to get
up—it was a quarter to 12 then.

Q. Yes.—A. And.I heard one or two shots. I did not know ex-
actly what direction they were coming from, but then he told me to
get up and to go and wake the oflicer of the day up.

Q. To go and wake the oflicer of the day?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ilad you heard some shots before he told you to get up?—A.
No, sir. Just as T heard the shots he stepped over to me and told me
to get up and go and wake the oflicer of the dny, as I was knowin
more about the officer of the day, simply because he was captain o

Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
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C Company, and I was the only man of C Company awake at the
time, and he thought probably I was the best man to go, and he told
me to go and wake him up.

Q. You say he shcok you? What did he shake you for if you
were awakef—A., I had my face turned to the wall, and he just
tapped my back like that [indicating] and told me to get up.

Q. What did you do—did you get up?—A. Yey, sir.

Q. And did you go on the duty he assigned you to?t—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What was that?—A. Waking the ofticer of the day.

Q. Who was the officer of the day?—A. Captain Macklin,

Q. Whero was he supposed to bet—A. At his quarters.

Q. Where were his quarters?-—A. I don’t exactly know the num-
léer, b(lllt it was the last end of the barracks, next to the river—the Rio

rande.

Q. Down near——A., Yes, sir; down the last end of the barracks.

Q. Do you mean the last set in the barracks or the last set that was
occupied f—A. The last set of officers’ quarters. There was only one
o'l:i the other end, and I don’t know—just a little house on the other
side, :

Q. Did you go there to his quartersi—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What di you do?—A. I knocked and woi(e him up, and he
said, “All right.)

Q. Then what did you do?—A., I reported back to the guardhouse.
- Q. State whether or not the firing was going on at this time, while
you wore going down there to awaken him.—aA. Yes, sir; the firing
was going on then,

Q. Where was the firing going on?—A. It sounded like it was out
in town some place.

Q. Where, with respect to the barracks?—A. Well, as far as I
could see, it was located about in between C and Bj that is, between
C] and BB coming up the rond, right in a little alley there, some
place.

Q. That is, do yon mean it was over in town?—A\. Yes, sir; in the
town,

Q. As far as you could tell?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Cza vou indicate on that map what direction you went to reach
Captain Macklin’s quarters?—J\. Yes, sir.

(!.2. Did he get up or not?—N\. I don’t know if he got up, but he
answered.

Q. IIe answered, “All right? "—.\. Yes, sir.

. Q. And then you went back and reported to the sergeant?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Did Captain Macklin come or not?—A. No, sir; he did not.

Q. Did you have any talk with Captain Macklin afterwards, and
if so, when, about waking him u(?—-A. The next morning.

Q. What did he say to you ?—A\. He asked me if I woke him up last
night, and I told him, * Yes.” He asked me what did he say. I
toﬁl him he said, “All right.” He told me, well, probably he thought
he was dreaming, and he said he thought somebody awakened him,
but he didn’t know whetlier he was dreaming or what,

Q. Captain Macklin told you that the next morning?—A. Yes, sir.
" Q. Whery were you when he told you thati—A. At the guard-

ouse,
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Q. How did he know, if you know, that you had been there to
waken him?—A., The sergeant of the guurd told him that I was the
man Le sent.

Q. Now, what did you discover when you went back, as to whether
all the guard were present or not, if you knowf?—A. Well, T don't
know if they were all present, but then they were supposed to be there,

Q. Did you miss anybody?—A. Yes, sir; I missed the men that
was on post at the time,

Q. Nobody except the men that were out on post?—A. No, sir;
not to my knowing.

Q. Sergeant Reid was there, was he?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see Corporal Wheeler?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what others did vou see,.if you can tellf—A\. Why, Ser-
geant Reid, and Corporal Wheeler, and nnother corporal. There was
one corporal away.

, Q. Did you know what corporal was away?—A. Corporal Bur-
dette.

’ Q. As to who the other corporal was, can you tell us?—-A. Frank-
in,

Q. Corporal Franklin. of Company B2—A. Yes, «ir,

Q. State whether he was there or not.—A. He was there at the
guardhouse.

Q. Do you know how many men were there?—A. No, I don’t
exactl'v know; I never counted them.

Q. Did you hear the call to arms sounded ?2—A. Yes, sir; just ns I
was going across I heard the trumpet.

Q. As youn were going down to Captain Macklin's?—\, Yes, sir,
NQ. 'Di(l‘ it sound after you got down to Captain Macklins?—A.

0, sir.

Q. When did it sound?—A\. Just abont when I got midway on the
parade ground, going across.

Q. Going down toward Captain Macklin’s?—A, Yes, sir; toward
Captain Macklin’s.

Q. Going to Captain Macklin’s?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is to say, it sounded when you were abont midway on the
parade grommd ?—.\. Yes, sir,

\ Q. You crossed the parade ground going down there, did you?—A.
oS, Sir,

Q. Then what did you do after returning to the guardhouse?—A.
Ol the guard were all formed ontside and waiting orders.

Q. I)iﬁ vou form in line with the vest of them?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Who was in command of the guard?—\. Sergeant Ieid.

Q. Tlow long did you remain under arms?—A., I don't know, sir—
under arms{

Q. Or up? I understood you to say that he ordered the guard to
fall in, or something of that sort.—-A. Ile didn’t exactly or(ﬁr them,
but it was their duty whether or no to fall in.

Q. Did they fall in?—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that when they first got nwake, or when yvou got back?—
A. T don’t know; when T got back they were all in fine.

Q. They were in line when you got back?—-A. Yes, sir.
Q. That is what T wanted to get at.  Now, how long did they stay
in line?—.\, Oh, T don’t exactly know,

8. Doc. 402, 60-1, pt 6——135
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Q. What did you do for the rest of the night?—A. After they
turned in I went into the guardhouse, after the line was broke, and
of course I went to sleep the rest of the night. ]

Q. Did you go on duty again that night?—A. That morning.

’?,. ;Vhal time did you go on duty?—A. The next morning at 7
o’clock.

Q. How did it happen you did not go on duty again that night{—
A. Oh, I had been on patrol some of the night, and then had to come
in and ﬁ? on post, too.

Q. When were you on patrol?—A. At 8 o’clock.

Q. In the night?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you excused from duty on post for that reasonf—A.
There was some one else, I guess, walking the post, and T had to make
the time when I came in. '

Q. What time did you come off duty from the officers’ quarters,
post No. 39—A. At 11 o'clock, sir.

AQﬁ Didn’t you go on duty again until 7 o’clock the next morningf—

. No, sir.

Q. You remained at the guardhouse all that timei--A. Yes, sir.

Q. Senator Scott wishes me to ask you why youn did not go on again
four hours later#—A. Well, the hours was not regular.

Q. The hours were not regulari—A. No, sir.

Why were they not regular?—A. On account of this patrol
business, that split the time up—that is, some of the guards—some of
them was walking even hours and some was not.

Q. Some went on even and some did not?—A\. Sonie was not.

Q. Was it different as to different guards that ni%ht, some going
on regularly and others not?—A. Why, yes, sir; I guess it was,
because I was not going on even hours.

Q. You did what you were told to do?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the others had to do the sanme—A, I guess so.

Q. You are certain, though, that you did not go on duty until 7
o'clock the next morning?—A. It must have heen 7; it was right
after breakfast, and we had breakfast at half past 6.

Q. What lmplpcned at the guardhouse the next morning—did you
get up for reveille?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether the oflicer of the day came there.—A. Well, I
don’t know whether the officer of the day came around then or not,
because I did not see him,

Q:llY'ou did not see him at the guardhouse at all?—A. Not at
reveille,

Q. Did you see him at any time?—A. Yes, sir; he was receiving
reports there at his quarters. He was standing on the sidewalk.

Q. State whether or not there was any inspection of the guns at
the guardhouse the next morning.—A. Yes, sir; he inspeeted the

ns.

Q. What time was that done?—A. I don’t know exactly what time
it was; I never watched the time. '

Q. Were you there when the guns were inspected?—A. Yes, sir;
I was there.

Q. Did you fall in with the other men?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Was your gun inspected?¥—A, Yes, sir,
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Q. By whom?—A. Captain Macklin,
YQ. Were the other guards’ guns inspected at the same time?—A.
es, sir,

Q. What was the result of that inspection?—A. To find out the
guns that were shot.

Q. That was the purpose of it, but what was the result? Did they
find any guns that had been fired#—A. I don’t know, sir. I never
did hear anything about it.

Q. Did he pass the guns or reject any of them, or what did he do
about it?—A, He just inspected them and handed them back; that
is all he did. '

Q. Did he inspect your gunt—A. Yes, sir.

Q. In what way did he inspect it ¢—.A\. 1le looked in the barrel, and
then he took the bolt and looked at the pin to see if the gun had been
fired at any time. .

Q. What was the case? \Vas it handed back to you or noti—A.
Yes, sir; it was handed back.

Q. Did he make any complaint about your gun?—A. No, sir.

Q. Well, did he do that same way with all of them, so far as you
knowf—A. Yes, sir; all that was there.

A QI;I Did you have anything to do with that shooting that night?—

. No, sir.

Q. Were you away from the guardhouse at all except when you
wero on post?—A. No, sir; we were not allowed away from the
guardhonse.

Q. You were not allowed away; but did you go away without
being allowed to go away f—A. No, sir.

Q. Were you out in town at all that night?¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When?—A. When the patrol was ordered out.

Q. You went out with the patrol#—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did you go?—A. Why, I went right out the main street
I don’t know the name of it.

Q. Out through the gate?—A. Yes, sir.

Down the main street?—A. Yes, sir.
. What hour was that?—A. Eight o'clock.

. How long were you gonef—A\. I guess about three-quarters of
our.

). Who was with you, if anybody ?—:A. There was three other men
and Corporal Franklin,

Q. You belonged to Corporal Franklin’s relief, did you?—A. Yes,

é.

=D

an

7o

sir,
Q. And he took his relief and went to patrol the town?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Where did you how far down that main street?—A. We
walked, turned across by a hotel; some hotel, I don’t know the name.

Q. Is that the Miller ITotel 2—A. Yes, sir; I think that is the name.

Q. Where did you go when you turned at the Miller Hotel?—A.
Then we walked a block out farther and then turned down another
block, and then came back in, as we were ordered to make the round
in there. I suppose the soldiers were to be found up in that vicinity,
and all that we seen we were to tell them to come in,

Q. Did you find any soldiers?—A. No, sir,
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Q. Did not find any down in town at that time?—A. No, sir;
there had been a patrol up the other street, and I guess by the time
we got around there the other patrol had met them all,

Q. Another patrol was out at the same time?—A. There were two
patrols; yes, sir,

- Q. Were you nut on patrol at any other time that night?—A. No,
sir,

Q. Were you downtown about 12 o’clock that night?—A. No, sir.

Q. Weren't you down with your gun helping shoot up the town,
about midnight?—A. No, sir.

Q. You were not there?—A. No, sir. .

Q. Do you know of anybody who was there?—A. No, sir.

Q. Have you any knowledge that leads you to suspect that any-
body in your company was there?—A\. No, sir.

Q. Or in ecither of the other companies?—A. I don’t know any-
thing about the other companies,

. Q. Were you one of the twelve men who were arrested?—A. No,
sir,

Q. You were not arrested?—A\. No, sir.

Q. Well, have you refused to tell anybody all you know about this
matter at any time?—A. Why, I have told all that I knew about it—-
that is the same thing I am talking here.

Q. That is, you have told everybody all you knew about it?—A.
An{'body that ever asked me anything about it.

Q. I want to put in evidence the statement you made to Colonel
Lovering, it appears. I will read it:

Q. Where were you on August 13, 1806, when shooting commenced?—A., I was
at the gusrdhiouse,

Q. Asleep or awake?—A. Asleep, sir.

You tell us now you were awake and reading a novel. How docs
it come, then, you said you were asleep?—A\. No, sir; I was not
asleep. That probably might have been a mistake, because I could
not have went to sleep that quick. At least they started about 11
o'clock to relieve me, and when they got around it must have been
about half past 11. ‘They take their time about coming around to
relieve the men on post, you know.

Q. Others have testified that they were relieved at half past 10.—
A, The others?

Q. Some others have.—A. Well, I guess they were; I don’t know
anything about it.

Q. You were relieved at 11 o'clock?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ts this a mistake if they have youn down here saying that you
were nsleep ?—A. 1 guess so. I never told anybody I was asleep.

Q. Let me finish reading the statement. IFirst, who took this state-
ment of yours?—A. I don’t know, sir. I gave about a hundred of
them. I don't know who took it. :

Q. Colonel Tovering, I suppose, took this statement. Do yvou
remember Colonel Lovering?—.\. No, sir—oh, yes, sir; at Fort
Reno; yes, sir.

Q. Yes; at Fort Reno.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How was that taken—by 3nestions and answers, was it not?—
A. Yes, sir; but he never asked me about whether I was asleep or
awanke. So, therefore, I could not tell him anything like that.

A — -
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Q. This record shows that he asked you whether you were asleep,
and you answered that, you were asleep. Then it continues:

Q. Who did you first see when you awoke?—A. The sergeant of the guard.
Q. Name him.—A, Sergeant Reld.
Q. Was the shooting still going on?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Anybody ever abuse you in Brownsville?>—A. No, sir.
IQ. Any man ever tell you that he had been abused In Brownsville?—A, Yes,
R

-

Q. Who?—A. A couple of the men that is in the guardhouse now—Oscar Reed
and James Newton,

Q. Ts that all true except the statement about your being asleepi—
A. Yes; all that is true.

Q. Except the statement ahout your being asleep?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Was this testimony written out and read over to you after you
gave it?—A. No, sir,

Senator Foraker. It is not signed.

Senator Lopoe. It is stated that it is his sworn testimony,

Senator Foraxer. I know that is stated,

By the Citairman:

Q. About this relieving of the guard—does the corporal of the
guard start with men enough to make relief of all the posts and go to
each post, post 1 and post 2, for instance. leaving the new man and
taking the old one off, and then come in with the old ones as they come
off, all together? Is that the way they relieve the guard{—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. In every relief it is relicved in that way?—A. Yes. sir,

Q. Starting out with men enough to go and make the entire relief,
and go around and bring the old ones all in?—A. That was when
they were relieved on even hours.

Q. When you were relieved at any time?—A. No, sir; not at any
time. becanse some of the men were walking just an hour and some
were walking two hours,

Q. Ifow did they relieve them in that case? Did they start out
with one man and go to some one post and bring in the man?—A\, If
there was two men to be relieved they would take two men and take
them up there and bring in the two old men.

Q. Did they Fo back to the guardhouse with the men who were
taken off and then make different trips from the gnardhouse out,
instead of making one round tiip?—AaA. No, sir; they can’t make
gnyl other trips, only just go to the post and velieve them and come

ack.

Q. Do you mean they start from the guardhouse and go to the post
and relieve them and come back to the guardhouse before they go to
another post?—AA\. Oh, no, sir; if there are two posts to be relieved,
why they take the two men, one on one and one on the other.

Q. \As a matter of fact, how many posts were there on the night in
question?2—A. There were four, I think; yes, sir; there were four.

Q. Those were relieved by the corporal taking four men and mak-
ing the rounds?—A. Yes, sir: at sometimes they were.

YQ. Leaving four new ones and bringing in the four old ones?—A.
es, sir.

Q,. You say sometimes they were. Was it not done all the time
that way1—A. No, sir; not all the time,
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Q. How was it done differently, then?—A. That is when the time
was broken up; if another man had to walk in that place, that had
been up patrolling, then we had to come in and go and relieve them,
just as they came in, you see—the men that walked overtime.

Q. Did this occur in the early part of the ni(._vﬁltﬁeor only after the
shooting¥—A. Why, it started just from 8 o’clock, because on account
of the patrol going out and staying out, why it caused the time to be
broken up with the men that went out. So therefore we had to make
their time up when we came in, and then they put the whole time in
on the morning.

Q. Were the patrolmen all taken from the guard¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. The 'patro and the posts were both furnished altogether from
the guard {—A. From tho guard. .

Q. From those on guard for the tweunty-four hours?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many were on guard for the twenty-four hours?—A.
Why, there is supposed to be-—four threes are twelve—twelve pri-
vates and four noncommissioned officers.

A Q?Tha_t was your guard all together for that twenty-four hours¥—

. Yes, sir,

Q. Tinsy went on duty at guard mount, about 9 or 10 o’clock in the
morninﬁ?-—A. I don’t know; I guess it was 9.

Q. That was your usual time, was it—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Of the 13th?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you came off the morning of the 14th at about the same
time?—A. No, sir; the confusion stopped the guard from going on
at the same time the next morning.

Q. How was it handled? The confusion arose ahout 12 o’clock;
how was the guard arranged from that time on?—A. Then the com-
panies were taking turn about on these cossack posts. BMajor Pen-
rose de{:loyed a cossack guard all around the post.

Q. That is, you took on another guarc aside from the mFular
guard?—A. Yes, sir; an outside guard, and they were deployed
around the garrison from the gate up to the magazine.

Q. How long docs it take to make a round when you are not dis-
turbed from the time they leave the guardhouse to relieve the four
Fosts ang?get back again—about how much time?—A. At the regu-

ar guar

Q. Yes; the regular guard.—A. I guess about half an hour.

Q. Suppose No. 1 is relieved at 10 o’clock, the man on No. 4 might
be relieved, say, at quarter past 10 or something like that?—A. Yes,
sir; just dopending on the distance they have got to go. It is not
always the same distance.

Q. When do they start from the guardhouse, on the hour or the
half hour?—A. No, sir; right at the hour, sometimes.

Q. Didn't they always, in ordinary work, start at regular times, so
that the on duty and off duty might be regularf—A. Well, the regu-
lar time, whether it is half past or on the hour, they have got to
start on a regular time, and then when the time is broken up that
way they have got to take the minutes accordingly, so that every
n:nlt;ln can get as near the time as possible; get it even as near as pos-
sible,

| e er—— e
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By Senator ForRAKER:

Q. The morning that you went on gmard, the 13th, had you not
been on a practice march? On this Monday morning, the i3th, do
you remember whether the battalion was out on a practice march?.—
A. I don’t know, sir; the battalion never went on a practice march;
no, sir, They never sent the battalion on a practice march together.
They have sent always one company by itself, or two, leaving one
company in the post.

Q. Went by separate companiesi—A. Sometimes, and sometimes
two together.

Q. You yourself were not out on any practice march that morn-
ing?—A. No, sir; not that I can remember of. Possibly I might
have been, but T can’t remember.

Q. Yon don’t remember about it?—A. I have been doing guard so
often that I just could not remember whether I was on it or not,

By Senntor WARNER:

Q. I understand the affidavit that has been read to you by Senator
Foraker is correct in every res?pect excepting where you state in that
aftidavit that you were asleeg —A. No, sir; I was never asked that
question about the sleeping business, and therefore I conld not an-
swer it, hecause I was not asleep.

Q. I think in your answer to Senator Foraker (in that I may be
mistaken) yon gave as a reason why vou were awake, because you
came in at 11 o’clock, off guard, and were reading a novel ?—A. Yes,
sir; I was reading a novel; there was no one there to read it to me.

()Q,. Was that the time you got in?—A. T was relieved at 11 o’clock,
but I might not have gotten in until five or ten or fifteen minutes
after, I guess, .

Q. It was about 11 o’clock?—A. Yes, sir: just about that time.

Q. And you also said that he came and asked yon—— A. He came
and knocked me, T said, because I had my face turned to the wall like
that, and he came and pushed me and said, *“ Go and wake the officer
of the day,” like that.

Q. And you got up—you had your clothes on, being on guard #—
A. Yes, sir, i

Q. Did you hear any shooting then?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was the shooting you heard then?—A. O, it was on the
right-hand side; I don’t know the direction; that is to say, coming
from toward No. 2, or some place around there,

Q. From post No. 28—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And post No. 2 was around the barracksf—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So it came from the direction of the barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How was that shooting?—A. Well, I don’t exactly know.

Q. That is, by volley or shooting at will, or how?—A. No, sir; it
was just irregular, one after the other, and just like a pistol and
something else—a Winchester or something else might be shooting.
First a loud sound and then a low one, and all like that.

. A good many shots together, right along fast?—A. They was
right after each other. .
Q. Rapid firing?—A. Yes, sir,
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Q. About how many shots?—A. Well, I could not exactly say.

Q. Can you Eive an idea of how many shots you heard before you
left the guardhouse?—A. Oh, I heard two shots before I left the
guardhouse,

Q. Is that all?—A. Yes, sir; that is all.

Q. Where were they?—A. They came from the same direction—
that is, I heard them back there.

Q. Came from the direction of the barracks?—\. Yes, sir.

Q. Well?—A. And then while T was coming back, going back to
the guardhouse, then I heard the shooting that scemcfns thongh it
was 1n between—just in between the interval of B and C down the
alley some place near by there.

Q. That alley that is between Washington and Elizabeth streets?—
A. Yes, sir; I think a little ways down there.

Q. It seemed to be down that alley 7—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was it you heard the call to arms sonnded—on your re-
turn from having called Captain Macklin?—A. No, sir; when I was

oing.
. Q.gAnd you had got about halfway down, you say —A\. Yes, sir,

Q. What was the distance from the guardhouse to Captain Mack-
lin's?  lle was at the lower oflicers’ quariers, down nearest the Rio
Grande there, that double building. What was the distance—about
how many hundred yards?—A. About 500 yavds, I should say: be-
tween four and five hundred.

Q. And you had gotten about half that distance, or two or three
hundred yards, when you heard the call to arms?—A. Yes, sir; about
half that distance, because just as I got by Major Penrose at the
guardhouse he said, * Sound the call to arms.”

Q. And you went down and ealled Captain Macklin?—A\. Yes, sir,

Q. And he asked you what was the matter?—A. No, sir: he never
asked me what was the matter.

Q. Ho replied to you?—A. Yas, sir; he said, “All right.”

Q. What did you say to him?—\. T tokl him the sergeant of the
guard told him to report to the guardhouse; that he must come to
the guardhouse right away.

Q. And he said, “A vight? »—A, e said, “All right.”

Q. You knew where Captain Macklin usually slept2—N\. Yes, sit,

Q. Did you find him l‘mt night in the room where he usnally
slept 7—A. No; I did not go to his room. I knocked on the door
below his room. Iis room was right up above where I knocked.
Ho could casily heaw,

Q. You knew where that room was?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So you knocked in that usual place?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he answered from the room where he usually slept 7—A.
Yes, sir.

Q. You are quite clear abont that 2—A\. Yes, sir; he answered.

Q. And the next morning Captain Macklin spoke abont that to
you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did he say to you the next morning?—A. He asked me
if I was over at his house last night. T told him yes. He said did
I wake him up, and I told him yes. He said, what did he say, and I
said he said “All right.,” Ile said probably he was dreaming. Ile

4 —
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did not know whether he was dreaming or asleep, only he thought he
heard somebody call him.

Q. Was there anyone else came there to wake up Captain Mack-
linT—A. No, sir; I was not present. I heard that some one. some
of the men, had went there previous to me. but I don’t know.

Q. And they could not find him?—A. T don’t know whether they
found him or not. :

Q. You heard afterwards that he was not sleeping at all in his
bed, didn’t you?—A, No, sir; I never heard anything about it.

Q. Didn’t know anything about that?—A. No, sir. That was his
house that T went to.

Q. I think there is no question about it that yon stated that the
captain said: “All right,” when you told him you had been ordered
to come over there and call him up to report?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You knew his voice?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You went back to the guardhonse?—A. Yes, «ir,

Q. Was the firing still going on?-—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And after you got back to the guardhouse?——A\, The guard
was formed.

Q. The guard was formed after you got back to the gunrdhouse {—
A. I found the guard formed.

Q. You found it formed there?—A. Yes, «ir.

Q. What was done then?—A. I joined the guard.,

. How many were in the guard t—A. I don’t know:. sir.
. You don't know who were absent?—.\. No, sir.
. Who was sergeant of the guard 72—\, Sergeant Reid,
. Any other sergeant 7—A, No, sir,
. Did you go to the barracks at all?—A. No. sir.

Q. The next morning your guns were inspected by Captain
Macklin?—A. Yes, sir,

YQ. Were you at the guardhouse when they were inspected —A.
os, sir,

Q. Now, what did he do to inslmot your gins?—A\, Why, first,
we had to open the chambers, and then he took them and looked
down the barrel. and looked at the bolt and the pin,

Q. That is the usual way of inspecting. is it—\. Yes. sir,

Q. And passed the gun back to you?—.A\, Yes, «ir.

Q. Was there anything clse done there?—A. No, siry not as I
know of.

Q. You are clear about that?—X\. Yes. sir.

Q. Isn’t it a fact that Captain Macklin had a brass rod there and
a rag?—A, At the gnardhouse?

Q. Yes.—A. No, sir; not to my knowing.

Q. You saw him, didn’t you?—N\. I saw him; but T didn’t <ce any
rod with him; no, sir; T didn’t see him with any.

Q. You did not see it? Tle took vour gun and inspected it as you
l\mvc stated, and that is the way the other guns were inspected 2—A.

"es. sir,

Q. You were on the patrol that night?—A. Yes, sir; at 8 o’clock.

Q. Did not find any soldiers at all/—.\, No, sir.

Q. Did you go down to the landing, to the wharf or that part?—
A. No, sir; there was one man went to the landing. Ilo was sent
there before 8 o’clock, before retreat,

Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
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Q. But you did not go there?¥—A. No, sir; there was no orders to
go to that part of the town. We went around in one direction and
gnother one went another way, and we all met back at the guard-

ouse,

Q. The sergeant of the guard told you to go and wake the officer
of the day?!—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it the habit of the officer of the day to go to sleep about
that time?—A. Why, he would usually go to his quarters after 11
o’clock, sir. 'Whether he ﬁoes to sleep or not I don’t know; but they
are in the house—supposed ta be.

Q. Supposed to be in the house? You knew that evening there
was some trouble, did { u not, when the patrols were sent out to
bring the soldiers in?—A\. T didn’t know.

h'Q' Iadn't you heard of itf—A. No, sir; I had never heard any-
thing.

Q. Never had heard of any trouble between the soldiers and citi-
zens of Brownsville?—A. No, sir.

Q. The sergeant of your compan{ gave you no notice of the reason
why the patrols were being sent out?—A. No, sir; I never heard any
order at the company, because I was not there at the company only at
meal hours. He never said anything to me, at least. That is all I
heard of it—that is, the officer of the day came over and told the
sergeant of the guard to send out two patrols at 8 o’clock and have
the men all come in, because their passes just extended to 8 o’clock
and no further. They wanted to know what was the matter, but I
fuess they were all like me. I never knew what was the matter until

heard this commotion that night; that is all.

Q. After this did you hear this shooting at Brownsville talked of
there very much among the soldiers?¥—A. \fter the shooting?

Q. Yes, sir—A. No, sir; we were not allowed out in the town.

Q. Did you talk of it among yourselvest—.\. Why, yes; just the
mme as everybody else. We wanted to know who did it and all like

at.

Q. You knew that it was charged that some of the soldiers had
done the shooting up of the town?—A. Yes, sir; it was charged.

Q. That some of the ammunition had been found, for Springfield
rifles, down in the townf—A. 1 don’t know as there was any anmmu-
nition found.

Q. It has been charged—it was so stated—.\. Yes, sir. I heard it
that some shells had heen found. but then there was some one else
said they were not cartridges that we had been shooting then at the
tima in that rifle, so they did not know whether——

Q. Who said that?—A. I don’t know, sir; some soldier or other,
I don’t know who. I just happened to hear him talking.

Q. When was that?—A. That was the next day, I heard them say
that they had found some empty shells,

Q. And one of the soldiers said that it was not the kind of shells
you were using then{—A. One of the teamster soldiers said that it
was not the same kind of a cartridge that they were shooting, that
they had found down there, that we usually shet in our guns.

&. What teamster soldier was that?—A. I don’t know, sir.

Q. What kind did he say that was found?—A. He said it was the
old Krag-Jorgensen shells that they had found, that had been all
rusted, and so he said they could not do anything about that; he said
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they conld not prove anything about it, because that was not the
same ammunition that they were using here now.

Q. Whom did he tell that they could not prove anything? How
did that come?—A. J don’t know, sir.

Q. Were you discussing whether they could prove it on the soldiers
or noti—A. No, sir; I had a prisoner at the time, and I was going
around working, so I heard them talking at the corral.

Q. Well, I know, but the teamster was talking to the soldiers, was
hef—A. No, sir; just among the teamsters themselves, There was
a Mexican, the corral master, he told a fellow; he said, “ I see where
they found some shells this morning in the town,” and another
fellow said, * Yes, but it ain’t the same kind; it isn’t the same kind
of ammunition that they use in these guns.,” He said, “ They be-
longed to the Krag-Jorgensen.”

Q. Did you tell that to the soldiers?—A. No, sir.

Q. You never told it to your comrades?—A. No, sir; I just merely
heard it. I didn't know what it was, whether they knew anything
about it or not.

Q. But you never mentioned it to them?—A. No, sir.

Q. This firing that you heard seemed to be down in the rear of the
barracks?—A.. Yes, sir. )

Q. Did you hear firing in any other direction?—A. No, sir; I did
not hear firing in any other place.

Q. Didn’t you hear some firing up beyond the hospital, up toward
the county road? You know where that county road is?—A. Yes,
sir; I know that road.

é. Did you hear any firing up that way t—A. No, sir.

Q. No firing at all7—A. No, sir.

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. When was it that Reid and Newton told you they had been
abused out in town? Was that before or after the shooting?—.\. I
guess it was before; I don’t know anything about that either. That
was before the shooting, I think.

Q. Both talking to you together or separately?—A. They never
had any talk with me. I just heard the talking,

Q. To whom were they talking?—A. I was sitting congregated in
a company.

Q. How many in the companﬁ 1—A. I don’t know, sir.

Q. Give an estimate. Was there a half a dozen or a dozen?—A.,
You mean that were talking at the same time?

Q. You said they were talking to a crowd—how many?—A. Oh,
well, I don’t know the crowd exactly.

Q. I don’t want you to give their names. I want to get an esti-

mate of the number.—A. Probably eight or nine; something like that.
Q. Evi'ﬁht or nine?—A. Yes, sir.

Where was thati—A. That was in the quarters on the porch.
In C quarters?—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. Did they seem to be pretty indignant over it?—A. Oh, I don’t

know. I happened to be coming in that night and heard them

talking.
Q. a’hat rnight was that?—A. I don't know exactly the night.

4 Q. {(Iow long before the shooting?—A. I could not tell that; I
on’'t know,

Q.
Q.



996 AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS.

Q. One day, two days, or three days?—A. Oh, probably it might
have been; it looked as though it was a week before the shooting, a
week or eight days, something of that kind, when this man Newton

t hit, because that night just as I came in I saw him standing on
the porch with his head bandaged, and asked him what was the mat-
ter, and everybody was askinfg im the same thing. He said, “ Why,
a fellow knocked me in the head in town,” and we asked him if he
went illnd reported it to Captain Mucklin, and he said, * Yes; ™ that
was all,

Q. Did he make any threats against the people of the town?—A.
lI]_don’t. know, sir. I didn’t even know the man’s name that struck

in,

Q. Well, I say, that was Newton who was talking?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Did he make any threats against the people of the town, or did
any of the soldiers?—:A\. No, sir; not to my knowing.

Q. 'There was a great crowd congregated around him, was there —
A. Yes, sir; they were all talking.

Q. When was it this other man. Reed, said anything?—A. I don’t
know anything about that. I never heard anything at all about that
until we got up to IYort Reno, and then I heard it said.

Q. You say in this aflidavit—

DId any man ever tell you he bad been abused in Brownsville?—A. Yes. sir,

A. I told him that after I got up there. He asked me if I knew of
anybody that ever got in any trouble down there, and I hold him yes.

Q. Your answer was—

A couple of the men that Is fn the guardhouse now,

Where was that 2—A. That was at Sam Haouston,

Q. Was it before the shooting that Newton was telling you ahout
his troubles or after the shooting ?—N\. Before the shooting,

Q. And when was it that Reed told you?—A. Ile never told me.
T just heard the men ns they were talking in the quarters a little be-
fore this colonel got there about how many fellows got hurt around
there, or something of the kind, so then they mentioned Reed getting
pushed off in the river, and I said, * Why, did he get hurt, too?”
and they said, “ Yes.,” So, then, they was the only two men that [
knew anything about, as I never had been inquisitive in other people's
business.  Then when I went to the colonel this morning he asked
me about if I had heard this thing, and T told him yes. That was
the only two men I knew anything about.

By Scnator Foster:

Q. You were reading a novel that night, were you?—A\. Yes sir,

Q. Lying with your face to the wall?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind of lights did they have in that room that night?—
A. Why, an ail lamp usually burns in the guardhouse.

Q A imnging lamp or on a table?—A. Yes, sir; a hanging lamp.
One was hanging and one was on the table—that is, if I can remem-
ber it. I am sure there was on the table, and I think there was one
hanging, but I can’t remember exactly if it was lit or not, but there
was one.

Q. Is it usual for the soldiers to vead after retiving?—A. Why,
yes; usually the guards that come in,

(e
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Q. That was a usual practice of yours, then, to read?—A. The
guard usually may read when they don't go-to ‘sleep right away;
read till they fall to sleep sometimes,

Q. You have no objection to stating what was the name of that
novel ?—A. Why, I don’t know, sir. I just happened to pick it up.
There was all kinds of books in the guardhouse at all times, I just
ha g)poned to pick it up and got to remlin{z; that is all.

3. You can’t remember the story at all?—A. No, sir,
| Q. Nor the name of the book?—A. No, sir; I can’t remember any-
thing.

Q. You were interested in the book, though?—.\. No, sir; I am not
interested in anything T am reading. 1 don’t pay much attention.

Q. You had not heard of -the shots fired that night, hiad you, until
the sergeant called your attention ?—A. Oh, yes; I'heard the shots.

Q. You heard the <hots while you were reading?—A. Yes, sir; I
heard, naturally. If you was lying down on a still night you would
hear anything of the same kind.

Q. When you heard these shots down there did they excite you any
or did you keep on reading?--A. No, sir; just as I heard the shots,
why, I sto pe(‘ and listened, and I had the book like that and my
face turned that way {i"llﬂl'ﬂ(illg], and just about the time I was
listening, why my mind and my eyes was off the book, and I was just
listening like that, and when the second shot was fired he came nnd
tonched me like that, and he said, ¥ Go wake the officer of the day
right away and tell him to come to the gnardhouse.”

Q. Your attention was taken from the book when you heard the
shot 2—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. But you said nothing to the ofticer of the day about it, or the
oflicer in charge of the gunrdhouse that night, did you; did not
mention it to him?—A. No, sir.

Q. You just laid down, holding your book up in your hand, and
then the oflicer came in and shook voul—A\. Yes, sir. lle was nat
very far from me. Ile was over there in a chair, I think, or some
place. ITe was right on the opposite side,

Q. When he shook you, did you tell him you had heard the fir-
ing?—A. No, sir; I did net say anything to lnm. I was just waiting
for the order. He seen where I was the first man awake, and he just
came and touched me and told me to go and get the oflicer of the day;
go wale him up and tell him to come to the guardhouse,

Q. Did you hear the call to arms that night #—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were you when you first heard the call to arms?--A. I
;]\'ns about midway of the parade ground, geing to Captain Macklin’s

ouse,

Q. Where did the call sound from?—A. From the guardhouse.

Q. Did vou hear any other call to arms from the barracks{—A.
No, siry I don’t think T did.

Q. Then you walked from the guardhouse across the parade ground
‘19 the oflicers’ barracks, where Captain Macklin was slaying?—A.

es, sir.

Q. Did you hear any shots fired during the time yon were walking
from the gnardhouse to Captain Machlin’s quarters?—A. Yes, sir;
they were shooting all the time.

Q. Was that outside or inside of the barracks?—A. T can't tell
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ou exactly whether it was inside or outside, because it was dark; but
1t seemed as though it was outside of the wall.

Q. Outside of the barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

(%. Did you hear any shots fror the inside of the barracks?—A.
Well, I don't know. You can’t very well tell anything like that on a
dark night, and then I was about 250 yards away from where the
firing was supposed to be.

Q. Where was the firing su[g:osed to bet—A. Supposed to be out-
side of the wall, as I understood.

Q. Could you not tell, walking across the parade ground, whether
there were any shots fired near barracks B, C, or D?—A., No, sir;
you can’t tell that, walking on the parade ground, because there is the

arrncks, First the trees are in front of you, and then the barracks,
and then if the shooting was outside of the wall there was no way for
me to see it.

Q. If it were inside the wall, if there had been any shots fired
down there from Company B’s barracks that night, would you have
heard them in going to or returning from Captain Macklin’s quar-
ters?—A. Why, yes; I could have heard them coming back.

Q. Couldn’t you have heard them going?—A. No, sir; I could not
tell. I was pretty speedy when I was going to the quarters at the
time, and then I was not paying any attention—only going to the
olﬁicer of the day, that is all—any more than hearing the shooting at
the time.

Q. Did you hear three shots within the barracks walls that
night?—A. No, sir; I don’t know—I can’t say I heard any in or
outside, because I was not near enough to hear whether they was on
the outside or inside,

Q. So you can’t tell, then, whether the shooting was from the inside
or ontside of the barracks? Is that what you want us to under-
standf—A. I say by the sound of it, it sounded as though it was on
the outside.

Q. When did you meet Major Penrose?—A. I did not exactly meet
him. Just as I was crossing—just as I got there, why, I went in be-
hind him, in the rear of him. Ile had just come out of his quarters.

Q. Just as you got wheret—A. Why, just about midway. about
20 yards from his quarters, I crossed him in the rear of him, as I was
going &oward Captain Macklin’s, and he was coming down the parade
ground.

Q. Were you going to or returning from-Captain Macklin’s quar-
ters?—A. I was going to Captain Macklin’s then.

Q. Youn were going to Captain Macklin’s quarters when yon met
Maicr Penrosef—A. Yes, sir,

(. Had the call to arms been sounded then?—A, No, sir; he was
hcilering to them to sound the call to arms, and just about his second
holler they started to sound it.

Q. Just about the time he called the second time the call to arms
was sounded i—A. Yes, sir.

YQ. And that call to arms was sounded from the guardhouse?—A.
es, sir,

Q. Did you hear that any of the men of your battalion or any men
of your company were charged with having been out in town that
night, engaged in this shooting?—A. No, sir.
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Q. Have you ever heard any talk among the men that any of your
company, or any of the members of the battalion, were out in town
that night?—A. Heard of them being out in town?

Q. That night, engaf;ed in this shooting?—A. No, sir; I have
never heard anything of that.

Q. You never heard any talk among the men that any member of
the battalion was in town that night engaged in that shooting#-—A.
No, sir; I have never heard anything about it.

Q. Didn’t you hear that certain members of Company C were sus-
pected of being in that shooting that night ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Which one of the members did you hear of as being suspected
as being engaged in that shooting?—-A. As far as I heard, they
said Corporal Miller was out in town that night.

Q. Engaged in that shooting?—A. I don’t know whether he was
engaged in it or not, but they say he was in town.

Q. Who clse of your company did you hear were out in town
that night engaged in the shooting?— A. I did not hear of anyone else
to my knowing, no, sir; I did not hear of anybody.

. Who dig you hear say that Corporal Miller was out in town
that night¥—A."Oh, I heard them talking the next morning—that is,
they wanted to know who was in town last night, and if everybody
was breught in, and some one said there was a sergeant or somebody
ovar in Matamoros, and then some one else said: * Why, no, it was
Cusvoral Miller was in town last night, and he came in over the
wall or some other place.” I don’t know how he got in, but they
said he was in town.

Q. They said he was in town and came into the barracks over
the wall?—A. He was on pass, and the patrol did not see him, or
he was out of their reach when they were around, and so therefore
I heard he was left in town and never knew anything until this
shooting_occurred, and then he was trying to_get in the barracks;
they said he got in there some way or other; I don’t know how he

ot in, .
. Q. Whom did you hear make that statement?—A. Oh, I heard
several fellows: I don’t know their names, but I heard several men
say he was out in town that night.

Q. Who else did you hear of the battalion was in town that
night 2—A. No one that I can remember of.

Q. Did you ever hear of any of the guns being dirty or foul the
next morningf—A. No, sir.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. Speak up so I can hear you.—A. Only the guard that gave the
report.

By Scnator WaRNER:

Q. What did the guard report?¥—A. He said he fired his piece
twice. That is the only man I knew that his gun was found dirty.

Q. Did you hear among P'our companions there of any other man
whose gun was dirty or fonl or had been shot{—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you hear during the inspection that any of the guns were
found foul¥—A. No, sir.

Q. You are certain that on that morning when thev had the in-
spection ut the guardhouse by Captain Macklin he used no rod nor
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any rags to clean out the guns, but just inspected them in the usual
way?—aA\. I don’t know. Ie did not clean mine. I did not see
him push anything in mine; but then, as u general rule, they always
inspected the guns, and they can look in the barrel and tell whether
they have been shot or not without pushing anything in them, They
can see, If there is a speck of dirt m theve, why, then, they naturally
know that it has been dirty in some way. .

Q. You presented your, guu to him and he inspected it by looking
through the barrel?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And found it clean?—A4. Yes, sir.

Q. And made no further inspection?—A, No, sir.

Q. And that is the way he did to the rest of the guard, as far as
you could see?—A. Yes, sir; as far as I conld see. I don't know
whether he did anythking more to them afterwards or not, but I know
what he done to mine and some others.

Senator Forakrr. I believe that is all. This witness is not to leave
town. Ie is to remain here until to-morrow.

Thereupon (at 4 o’clock and 10 minutes p. m.) the committee ad-
journed until Tuesday, March 12, 1907, at 11 o'clock a. m.

ComMitTree oN MiLiTaARY AFFains,
UN1TED STATES SENATE,
Tuesday, March 12, 1907,

The committee met at 11 o’clock a. m.

Present: Senators Warren (chairman), Scott, FForaker, Lodge,
Bulkeloy, Warner, Pettus, Foster, and Overman.

Senator Foraker. I now produce the discharges of the witness,
Alexander Ash, mentioned at page 964 of this record, in his testimony
gi\';-nl Ion yesterdny, and ask that they be incorporated in the record
in full,

The documents referred to are here printed in full in the record as

follows:
ARMY OF THE UNIFED STATFHFS.
1

To whom it may concern:

Kuoow ye thint Alexander Ash, a private of Company D of the Twenty-fifth
Regiment of Infantry, who was enlistedd on the 24th day of August, 1, to
serve three yoirs, {8 herehy honorably dischargad from the Aviny of tiie United
States by reison of expiration of terin of scrvice.

T'he sald Alexander Ash was boen i Marshall, in the State of Virginia, aud
when enlisted was 243} yvears of age, 5 feet 95 fuches high, dark-brown com-
plexion, brown No. 1 eyes, blnek hair, and by occuprition a farmer.

Glven under my hand at 'ort Brown, ‘I'ex,, this 23 day of August, in the year
of our Lord 1904,

. \W. I’ENnosg,
Major, Twenty-ifth Infantry, Commaniding.

Charneter—No objectlon to his reenlistiment Is known to exist.  Very good.
SaMUEL P. LLYox,

Captain, Twenly-fifth Infantry, Commanding Company D,

(On back?)

Mititury record.—Continuous service at date of discharge, three years.

I’'revious service: None.

Noncommissioned oflicer: Never,

Marksmanship: 1004, second class; 1905, first class; 1000, first class

Battles, engageents, skirmishes, expeditions: None.

PRSI

s,

<
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Wounds recelved In service: None,
Phystical condition when discharged: Good.
Married or siugle: Single.
Remarks: Service honest and falthful. Entitled to traveling allowance. No
allotwent; no deposits. Hus been issued part of new uniform.
SaMuEkL P LyoN,
Captain, Twenty-fifth Infantry, Commanding Company D.

ARMY OF THE UNITED BTATES,

To whom It may concern:

Know ye that Alexander Ash, a private of Troop O, of the Ninth Regiment
of Cavalry, who was enlisted the 24th dny of August, 1000, to serve thiree years,
18 hereby discharged without honor from the Army of the United States in con-
x;e&ll:n}cnce of paragraph 1, Speclal Orders, No. 268, \War Department, November 9,

Sald Alexander Ash was bora fn Marshall, in the State of Virginla, and when
enlisted was 24 years of age, by occupation a soldler, had brown No. 1 eyes,
black balr, dark complexlon, and was b feet 93 inclhies In helght,

Glven under my hand at Fort Riley, Kans,, this 18th day of November, 1008,

E. S. Goprrey,
Coloncl Ninth QGavalry, Commanding Regiment,

TESTIMONY OF CAPT. DANA WILLIS KILBURN, U. 8. ARMY,

(The witness was sworn by the chairman.)

By Senator Foraxker:

Q. Please give us your name in full, so that we may have it in the
record?—A. Dana Willis Kilburn.

Q. What command do you belong to?—A. I am captain and quar-
termaster of the Twenty-sixth Infantry; quartermaster at Fort Sam
Houston, Tex.

Q. How long have you been in the scrvice—in the Army, I mean?—
A. For eighteen years, including West Point service.

Q. Including West Point. In what class were you graduated from
West Point#—A. The «lass of 1894,

Q. Were you connected with the Twenty-sixth Infantry in the
year 19068—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you with the battalion of that regiment that was sta-
tioned at IFort Brown, Brownsville, Tox.?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Last year?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. When did that battalion go to Fort Brown?—A. About the 4th
of September, 1903. .

KQ. Wh(iltl\ [companies composed that battalion?—A. Companies I,

y Ly an .

Q. Was Company I there all the while?—A. No, sir.

Q. Where was it a part of the time?—A. At IFort Ringgold, Tex.

Q. How far is that away from Fort Brown?—A\. About 85 miles.

Q. Did it go with you to Fort Brown in the first place—A. It
went down in the first place; yes, sir.

Q. How long did it remain there?—A. About two or three months;
I have forgotten cxactly how long.

Q. And it was then sent to Fort Ringgold?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did it or not return to Fort Brown and joint the battalion be-
fore the battalion came away from theref—A. It returned to Fort

Brown the fitst part of May, 19006.
8. Doc. 402, 60-1, pt 6 —O0
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Q. So that from May until the time that the battalion left;the four
companies were all there, were they?—A. Yes, sir.

. Q. What time did your battalion leave Fort Brown?—A. I left
in June, myself, I think they left the 28th of June.

Q. Was it not the 5th of July? There is no importance attached
to that.—A. Yes, sir. I think it was, They got up to San Antonio
just after the 4th of July, as I remember now.

Q. From the records of the War Department it appears that it
was the 5th of July. I would rot interrupt you to corrcct that
so far as the difference of a few days is concerned. You left before
tho battalion left?—A. I left on the 1st of June for San Antonio

Q. Why did yon leave at that time?—A. To accept a position on
the colonel’s staff as regimental quartermaster.

Q. The staff of the colonel of the regiment?—A. Yes, sir.

BQ. Who was the colonel of the regiment?—A. Col. George Ieroy
rown,

Q. And you have held that position ever since?—A. Yes, sir.

YQ. You were at Fort Brown, however, during the year 19067—A.
es, sir,
. Q. Down to this time when you left on the 1st of June?—A. Yes,
sir,
Q. Were you in Fort Brown with your battalion when the order
was promulgated, or announcements made of it in the newspapers,
that your battalion was to leave, and that you would be succeeded
by this battalion that did succeed you, from the Twenty-fifth Infan-
try?—A. Yes, sir; I was there at the time the order was received.
and was commanding the post at the time.

Q. You were then in command of the three companies and the

ost?—A. Four companies. I Company was there.

Q. Were all four companies there then?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were in command {—A. Yeg, sir.

Q. You had been there, then, about two years, at that time?—A.
About two years and a half.

Q. About two years and a half. TIad you or not hecome pretty
\‘vell acquainted with the citizens of Brownsville in that period?—A.

/¢S, Sir.

Q. State whether or not you moved about among the citizens of
Brownsville, after this order was promulgated. enough to hear ex-
pressions from them as to their feeling concerning the coming of
the colored troops.—A. Yes, sir; £ went out quite a good deal, and
met the people, and think I know pretty well what the idea and the
feeling of the pcople were relative to this order.

Q. ?’lense tell us what the feeling was.—A. The better class of
people in town simply expressed their disapproval; they did not like
the idea of the colored troops coming down there. Some of the
others—I mean by the others the ordinary men you would see hang-
ing around drug stores and saloons, and :1]011g the streets—were more
open in their remarks, and e.\'%)resaed their disapproval.

Q. What was the nature of their remarks, if you can tell us?—A.,
That it would not be long before they had the colored troops run out
of town, and the white troops back again.

Q. Can you tell us of any instances in which you heard remarks of
that nature?—A. Yes, sir; there was one afternoon, I think it was
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about, some time after the 18th of May, Mr. Tillman’s store is just
opposite Crixell’s, on Elizabeth street.

}Q. His saloonf—A. No, sir; it was a store just opposite Crixell’s,
I was in there one afternoon about half past 5, and three or four other
men were in there, and Mr. Tillman made a remark; he said: “ We
will run the negro troops out of town in three weeks, and have the
white troops back;” and the other men in there at the time—I do not
ro_mon;{ber now who they were—coincided, and agreed with this
remark,

Q. We have had testimony already before this committee about a
saloon called the “ Tillman saloon.”  You speak of Tillman’s store.
Was that the same Tillman, or a different Tillman?—A. The same
gilhgnn. He afterwards changed it into a saloon, after I left; so I

eard.

Q. What kind of a store was it while you were there?—A. A fruit
store and grocery, and a kind of nonde:cri‘)t place.

Q. Where was it?—A. About the middle of the block, beyond the
Miller Hotel, on Elizabeth street, on the right hand as you would go
down from the post.

Q. There is a map on your left, with the streets, but only a few
houses located on it. It does not show where this point is that you
refer to. I will pass that. If we want to get it more particularly,
\l\;e can do it later. You heard that remark by Mr. Tillman?—A.

es, sir.

Q. What other remarks, if any, that you can recall, did you hearf—
A. TLere were others. 1 could not say exactly who mn(?e them, but
I heard from time to time that they were going to get up n posse
and meet the colored troops at.the train and not allow them to get off.
Another thing I heard was that they were going to get up a sub-
scription to send a delegation on to Washington to profest against it.

Q. State whether or not this general talk that you heard from time
to time, and at different places, was in a general way hostile to the
negro troops, or otherwise.—A. Undoubtegly it was,

Q. Now, you said the better class of the population made remarks
only of general protest, but the other classes were making remarks of
the character that you have described. Tell me how large a popula-
tion this city of Brownsville has, as near as you can estimate.—A.
Oh, probably about 6,000 wonld cover it. I don't know exactly.

Q. What is the nature of the population as to nationality?—
A. Tt is mostly Mexican,

Q. What is the nature of the Mexican part of that population?—
A. They are of a pretty low grade of intelligence, and T would not
think they were very good citizens, as a rule,

Q. State. if you know, whe the police are of that city.—A. When
we first went down there—I am speaking of Jannary, 1904—there
was a police force of ten, and there was only one man on that police
force who could read, speak, and understand English,

Q. Who were they#—A. The other nine were Mexicans.

Q. How long did that continue, if you know?—A. T could not say.
X think up to the time when Mayor Combe went in. But I would not
state that positively.

Q. When did Mayor Combe take office, if you can tell us?—A. I
think it was in 190). _

Q. Did he inaugurate reforms?—A. Yes, sir; decided reforms.
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Q. Tell us what some of the reforms were that he inangurated.—
A, Ile changed the police force and uniformed them; had them wear
a badge, so iou could tell a policeman.

Q. %Vhat ind of a uniform did they wear?—A. It was a blue uni-
form—a double-breasted coat with brass buttons, and a badge and a
blue hat (a soft hat, a felt hat) with a hat cord around it, and I think
there was some insignia on the front of the hat; I have forgotten what
it was, They wore a badge.

Q. State whether or not in the summer of 1906 that uniform was
changed to a khaki uniform, if you know.—A. I do not remember.

Q. You left the 1st of June?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know whether he changed the personnel of this police
force so as to discharge the Mexicans and put on Americans?—-A. I
know that some Americans were put on. I do not know if all the
Mexicans wero discharged.

Q. Now teli us, if you know, what the habits of the people were as
to the wearing of firearms in Brownsvillc and in that vicinity.—
A. Up to the time that Mayor Combe went in it was a very common
thing to see a man with one or two pistols strapped on him and even
men carrying rifles around the streets. It was not any uncommon
thing in just an ordinary walk down a block or two to see six or seven
revolvers strapped onto men.

Q. Wearing them generally 2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not that.custom prevailed generally through
that vicinity.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us whether or not while you were there there was any
shooting at any time, any other time, in Brownsville or in the vicinity
that came to your knowledge.—A. Yes, sir; on an average two or
three nights every week a number of shots would be fired out on that
road running past the post there, out toward Adams street, and we
never paid much atiention to it, it was so common, unless the shots
wero s0 plain that we thought they were on the post.

Q. Do you know of any shooting scrapes in which any of your
men were hurt, or any other troubles of any kind?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us of those.—A. There was one man by the nanie of John
N. Bryan, of Company M, who was shot in the leg or in the hip,
cither in the latter part of 1905 or the first part of 1906, He was
afterwards tried by the civil authoritics and acquitted. Another
man of my company was beaten up quite severely by the policemen,
and he was tried and acquitted.

NQl: What is his name, if you recolleet 2—A. A man by the name of
eft.

Q. Neff?—A. Yes, sir.  Ie is no longer in the service,

Q. Is Bryan still in the service?7—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where is he?—A. At Fort Sam ITouston,

Q. In what company?—-A. Company M,

Q. He is at I'ort Sam Tlouston. All right. You do not know
where Neff lives? He has been discharged?—A. Yes, sir. I think
I heard from some man in the company that he is over in Constanti-
nople. He went on some trading schooner.

. You have told usof two instances, Bryan and Neft. Can you tell
us of any others?—A. There were a great many instances reported
to me by the first sergeant—I was commanding Company I at that
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time—of rows between the police force and the soldiers. I am speak-
ing about our soldiers, the white soldicrs, now.

. Yes.—A., It really got to such a state there that Major Cooke,
who was commanding the post at that time—this wes in 1904-5—
sent me down to see the mayor relative to the way the American sol-
diers were being treated, but it did not secem to do any good. Mr,
Bartlett, I think, was mayor at that time.

Q. Who?—A. Mr. Bartlett.

Q. Yes—A. e sueceeded Judge Carson at that time.

Q. He was afterwards created intoa judge, I believe?—A\. Yes, sir,
Car=on had died in oflice and Bartlett had been elected mayor to fill
out his term. 1 went down to =ee Mayor Bartlett.  On one instance
I sent. in from the target range a corporal, & man who was sick, in
order to get some medicine. It was about $ miles to the target rangge,
and I had a revolver and I gave the man the revolver to ride in
after the medicine. It was dark and it was rather a lonely road,
The man did not turn up the next morning and I came in to see
about it, and I found out that the police foree had locked the man
up —the man and the mule and everything—in the jail there; locked
Ihim up.

Q. Yes—A. Another instance happened right near my own com-
pany. I had this barracks that is marked “ D here.

Q. 'That is barracks D, between the river and the gate?—A. Yes,
siv. This happened right at the gate there.  One of my men went
out of the gate. and a Mexican stepped up and said, “ Do you want
to fight?™  He said, * No,” and the Mexican made a pass at him
and mixsed him, and the man knocked him down, then, and the Mexi-
can =aid, * Come on to the jail with me.” 1Ile took him down and
tnrned him over to the jailer, who aceepted him, and we afterwards
found ount that this man had nothing to do with the police force
whatever.

Q. e held hims=elf out as an ollicer?-—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And because of that your soldier went with him?—A, Yes, sir.

By Senator OveryaN:

(). Was he a white or colored soldier?—A. These are all white

soldiers that T am speaking of.
By Senator Foraker:

Q. Can vou tell us of any other instance?--A\. Yes, sir. Two xol-
diers belonging, I think, to M and I, Companies—I will not say posi-
tively which--went down to a hotel, and a man left his wateh sonme-
where where these soldiers had been aned elaimed that he had lost it,
and he complained to the chief of police-—Lawrence J. Bates, T think,
his name was.  They traced these two coldiers and found they had
vone across the river, and when they eame back they were met at
the custom-honse, and the police oflicers that et them said: T want
to seareh yor; hold your hands up.”  ‘They held their hands up over
their heads, and they searched one of them and could not find the
wateh at all, and the other man took ont some pesos thut he had in
his pocket and connted them that way into his hand, one, two three,
four, five pesos, and elinched them in his hand, and held his hand
up over hix head in that way [indieating]. and they <earvched him,
and then they said, “ What have you in your hand¢” Ile said, * I

.
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showed you what I had in my hand.” He said, “ Open your hand.”
He said, “ I will not,” and then they struck him over the head with a
pistol and knocked him down.

Q. State whether or not that was a common way of treating people—
soldiers—in Brownsville, by the police hitting them over the head
with a pistol and knocking them down.—A. They scemed to be very
bandy with them.

Q. State whether or not you can recall any other instances.—A. I
can recall no other specific instance now.

Q. You spoke of an instance where a man named Cyzyack, I believe
the name was,, who belonged to Company M, was beaten over the
head with a revolver when they simply wanted to arrest him.—A.
Yes; he and a man by the name of Rappe, I believe, were out
together.

Q. Tell us as much as you know about that.—A. They did not
belong to my company, and all I know about that is what I heard
from Captain Roche, the captain of Company M.

Q. He was captain of that company?—A. Yes, sir. T just heard
the instance; that they had had some row there and that both of
them were pretty badly beaten u{;.

Q. It was very easy for a soldier to get into a row in Browns-
ville?—A. It was more easy than to stay out of a row.

Q. It was more easy to get in than to stay out. Can you tell us of
any other instancesf—A. I do not think of anything else now.

Q. You have told us of quite a number. Do vou think that you
have recalled all that happened while you were there?—A. Oh, no,
sir; I think that there were a great many others that I never even
heard about.

Q. Putting it all in a nutshell, was the feeling of the citizens of
Brownsville one of friendliness teward the soldiers or one of hostility
against soldiers?-—A. There was a certain class of people in Browns-
ville that thought a soldier was legitimate prey, and wherever they
could catch him out, they would go for him; but ¥ would hardly say
that the whole town of Brownsville was hostile to soldicrs.

Q. Yes. You have stated that there was a better class of popula-
tion, that was like the better class of population clsewhere?—A\. Yes,
sir; they did not like those things, and frowned dewn on them as
much as they could.

Q. But there was a class of people also, as I understand you,
entirely unfriendly to the soldiers?—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. Ready at any time to pick a quarrel with them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this police force, made up. when you went there, of nine
Mexicans who could not speak the English language—-—

The Cuairman. Did he testify to that?

Senator Foraker. Yes; he testified to that.

By Senator Foraker:
Q.. (Continuing.) And one American only, they were, as a rule,
judging by what they did, unfriendly to the soldier=?.—A. Yes, sir.
Q. \And. as I understand you, it was a common habit with them in
arresting your soldiers to hit them over the head with the butt of a
pistol I—A  They geunerally hit them first,
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By Senator Overman:
Q. Was that before Combe was clected mayor? How long had you
Leen there before he was elected mayori—A. About a year.
Q. He made reforms?—A. Yes, sir,

By Senator Foraker:

Q. He prohibited the carrying of firearms?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And exerted himself to break up that practice and these bad
habits generally?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He had been in the Army, had he not?—A. Yes, sir; he had
heen a major and doctor.

Q. And was a very intelligent and reputable man?—A. Yes, sir;
ke served in the Philtppines about a vear and a half,

Q. Did you hear of any murders being committed down there
while you were there?--A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us about them; and can you tell us of an instance in which
a murderer was ’)rosocuted suceessfully and convicted, or prosccuted
at all, first, T will ask you?—A. There were two cases. Putegnat, I
think one man’s name was, This man was killed at a little station
just above Brownsville,

Q. Tlarlingen, was that it?¥—A. Yes, sir. I nover heard of any-
body being brought to trial for the case. Another man by the name
of L.on Hill killed a Mexican down there. ‘That must have been in
April, 190G, and I have never heard of his being brought to trial.

Q. Was he arrested 1—A. No, sir.

By Senator OveryMan:

Q. Did you know anything about the facts and circumstances?—
A. Only by hearsay.

Q. Do you know whether there was a coroner’s inquest held{—
A. T know that there was an inquest held.

Q. Do you know what the verdict of the coroner’s inquest wast—
A. No,sir. It was claimed that this man leid for him,

By Senator Foraxkr:

Q. It was claimed that this Lon Hill was a long-haired individ.
wall—A. Yes, sir.
Q. With hair something like Absalom, as I understand?—A. Yes,
sin.

By Senstor OverMaN:
Q. Was he the man that ~hot and killed a man?
Senator Foraner, Yes: killed a man.  They do not call it murder
down there.
Senator OvermaN. I thought perhaps hoe was acquitted by the
coroner’s jury.
By Senator IFeraker:
Q. What had this man that he killed done. if you remember?—A.,

T do nut know the facts.

Q. Let me sce if I can not refresh yvour recollection.  Is it not true
that Hili heard that this man had said about him, 1ill, that he would
take his long hair and make a charm to keep tho rattlesnakes away
from him. alluding to <ome habit that they have among Indianst—
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A. There was some rumor to that effect. I did not pay much atten-
tion to it.

Senator Overyman. I do not think that we had better go into the
trial of these murder cases lere,

Senator Foraker. I want to show the hind of cominumiy i which
th <c soldiers were quartered. It bas heen said that it was not to be
supposed that they would go out and shoot up the town themselves.

Senator Wanxer I suggest that we proceed.

By Senator IForakEer:

Q. There was a class of people there who were reputable?—A.
Yes, sir.

Q. And then there was this other class with which occurrences of
this kind were not infrequent?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you say as often as two or three times a week you wonld
hear the shooting of firearms in that vicinity ?—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, what is immediately opposite Brownsville—what city 1—
A. Matamoros.

Q. Have you ever been over there?--A. Yes, sirj frequently.

Q. What kind of a city is it?7—.\. It is a city that at ene time used
to be of a goad deal of muportance when the Rie Grande was open;
but now it is just one of these Mexican cities that has practieally
dicd out with dry decay. There ars some very wealthy peaple living
there still, but I think it is because they never got enough energy to
move anywhere else.

Q. There ave some very good people there?—A, Yes, sir

Q. What is the population, principally Mexicanf—A. Oh, entirely.

Q. Entirely Mexiean?—\. Yes, sirg there ave a few Lnglish and
Americans living there, but the preponderance of the population is
Mexican.

YQ. Speaking in a general way, it is a Mexican population?—A,
o=, SiT

Q. State whether or not there is a Inrge bad element. in that city.—
Ao\ great many.  They used to come across the river quite fre-
quently, and a great many things were Inid to them. I do not know
whetber justly or unjustly : but I know that they used to come across
in gangs there.  We could see them at the ferey.  ‘There is a little
ferry runaing across there.

Q. That ferry is where you sce the word “Levee ™ on the map?
You go out Fhizabethivtreet two squares and then turn down{—A,
Yes, sirg rieht across there,

Q. The ferey is at the foot of Twelfth street?2-—A. Yes, ~tr: at the
foot of T'welfth street.

Q. Have yvon seen gangs of these Mexiean toughs going across
there?—.\. Oh. von would <ce them going back and forth all the
tine, especially in the nighttime, .

Q. Were they armed, as a rule?—AL T do not know.  Nearly all
Mexicans carry knives, anyway,

Q. You =aid you had heard many things charged to them!? -A,
Yes, sir.

Q. How did you hear that? -\, From the soldier<, The first
sergeant uscd to keep we posted pretty well on what the men of iy
own company were doing,

’
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Q. You have never been conneeted with the Twenty-fifth Infantry
in any way, have yvou?—A. No, sir.

Q. You have no interest in that vegiment of any kind?—A. Not
the slightest.

"Q.. You are here simply beeause yon were subpenaed?—A. That is
oIl sir,

Senator Ioraxekr. T want to put in evidence at this point an
aflidavit that the witness made, which was the cause of his being sub-
peenzted here. 1 suppose that is the first time yon have heard that
that was the cause of your being subprenaed. This is in Senate
Decument 155, and T will find the page in a few minutes. While
I am finding that T will ask you about something else. What kind
of an arm, what kind of a gun, I mean, was your battalion supplied
or equipped with at Fort Brown?

Ao They were equipped with two kinds, first, the Krag-Jirgensen
or a modifieation of it, up to and including April, I think, 1906, and
then they got the new Springfield.

Q. Aprit 10067—A. Yes, sir

Q. Tlow long had you had the Krag-Jorgensen?—A. We had had
it abont three years—four vears,

Q. Then you had the Springfield—the new Springficld. in 1903,
and from that time until the present time. I suppose?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You became, I suppose, quite familiar with the Krag-Jorgen-
sen?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Tn that length of time?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. And have yvou become familiar with the Springficld-—-the new
rifle?—A. Well, T have scen very litte of that rifle. beeause. as T say,
I was not with the company on the target range in May, and T left
tho company duty in June,

Senator Foraker. T have found that aflidavit now, Tt is on pa
166 of Senate Document 1535, and T will ask to have it inserted in the
record in full,

The aflidavit referved to is as follows:

STATE OF TEXAS, Post of Fort Sam Houston, ss2

Personally appearal hefore the nudersigned authority, one D. W. Killurn, a
captain of the Twenty-sixth Infantry, who, befng duly sworti according to law,
depoxes sl says:

" T was stationed at Fort Birown, 'Tex.. from January 25, 1904, to June 2, 10m;,
On or about the 20th of May, 1906, orders were received teranstorving the Thivd
Baltalion of the 'fwenty-<sixth Infantry to Fort Sam Howston, "Fex., and order-
ing o battalion of the ‘Fwenty-fifth Infanthiy {coloredy (o take station at Fort
Brown,  Great discontent was shown by the citizens npon receipt of the order.
'pon one occiaston in particular M ‘Tillman, a citizen of Brownsville, and own-
ing a large grocery store opposite Crinell Birothers, in a conversation with me
expressed his doubt ahout thie advisability of sending colored troops to Browns-
ville,  He further sabd, to the he<st of my vecaltection at this date, that it wonld
not he long before they had white treops back seming T beliove that several
other eltizens of Brownsville were present at the tire and aequiesced in the
above statements, )

* Further deponent saith not,

“D. W, Knnres,
“Caplain and Quartermaster, Twenty-sivth Lufuutrn?
Subgceribed amd sworn to bhetore me this 11th day of Neptember, A, D, 1006,
I.. M. P'vrert,
Scoand Licatenant, Tiwenty-<ivtlh Infuntyi,
Jwlduaeeddvocate, General Court-Martiul,
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(Senator Foraker here read part of the above affidavit to the wit-
ness.)
By Senator Foraker:

Q. I read that so that yon may refresh your recollection, if it is
necessary to.  You have testifiecd more fully now than yvou did there.
Who prepared that aftidavit, if you know2—A. I prepared it myself,
sir.

Q. You simply made the aflilavit2—A., Yes, sir.

Q. Ilow did you come to make it?—A. Major IMinley, the military
secretary in the Department of T'exas, asked me if I knew anything
about it, and said that he had been instructed by the Seeretary of
War, or by The Military Sceretary in Washington hers, to sec all the
oflicers that had been there, with a view of getting their aflidavits,
and under that direction 1 submitted that nﬁkﬁwit.

Q. Will you give me the names of the other officers of the Twenty-
sixth Infantry who were on duty with you at Fort Brown during
tho<e two and a half years that you wero there?- A, Maj. George F.
Cooke. Ife is now licutenant-colonel of the T'wenty-second Infantry.

Q. Where is he?—A. At the Presidio, San Francisco.

Q. Go on.—A. Maj. H. L. Roberts, Twenty-sixth Infantry, Fort
Sum Houston, ‘Tex.

Capt. Murray Baldwin, Twenty-sixth Infantry, FFort Sam Ilous-
ton, Tex.

Capt. I&. A. Roche, Fort Sam Houston, Tex.

First, Lieut, J. De Camp Hall.  He belongs to the Fourth Infantry,
I think. Ileis on Brig. Gen. Constant Williams’s staff.

Q. Stationed where?—A, In Washington State, I think. I think
he is up there some place.

IMirst Lieut. Muck Richardson, Twenty-sixth Infantry, Fort Sam
Houston, Tex.

Second Lieut. . G. Leckie, Twenty-sixth Infantry, Fort Sam
Houston, Tex.

Second Lieut. E. . Thompson, Twenty-sixth Infantry.

Q. ITe is now here?—A. Yes, sir; stationed at IFort Sam Iouston,
Tex. e is now here,

R Dr. Benjamin J. Edger, surgeon, U. S. Army. Tle is stationed at
eno.

Q. But he is now here?—A. Yes, sir; and there was somebody elso,
IYQS.' Licut. Allen Parker, now stationed at Jefferson Barracks, St.

Lonis,

Q. State whether or not these facts which vou have narrated were
known to all these oflicers.—-\. Yes: I think so.

Q. It was common knowledge throughont the officers of the bat-
talion?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will show that in a ditterent way. But that much for the
pre-ent. Now, going back to these guns; we are interested some-
what in guns. T wish yvou would give us your opinion of how the
new  model Springlicld rifle compares with the Krag-Jirgensen,
Which do you think is the better arm?—\. T have never used this
other ono. Of course I judge just from what I have heard peoplo

say.
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By the Cuairman:
Q. What do you mean by * this other one? ”—A. T mean this new
Springfield. I do not know anything about the Springficld at all.
I have not used it mnysclf.

By Scnator ForakER:
Q. You were with your regiment until the 1st ot June?—A. Yes,
S,

Q. You got your rifles about the 1t of April or the middle of
April?—A. Yes, sir; but we did not get the ammunition for them
until a good deal later; <o that they were just kept there and were
not issued until the ammunition came.

Q. The guns came first 2—A\. Yes, ir,

Q. And they were not issued until the ammunition came?—A. No,
sir,

Q. Then the old guns——A. Were taken up.

Q. The ammunition was taken up?—A\. Yes, sir.

- Q. And the new guns and the ammunition were issued at the same
time?—A. Yes, sir.  ~

Q. ITow many guns were issued to each company, if you remem-
ber?—\. Sixty-five.

Q. Sixty-five guns to each company?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell us what kind of ammunition was issued to the
men—I mean to the battalion—-for these guns?—A. Clip.

Q. But can you tell us where it was manufactured, whether it was
Unton Metallic cartridges?—-.\. No, sir; I can not.

Q. You do not remember which it was?—A. No, sir. The fact is
I did not examine it very closely. I was commanding the post at
that time, and my first lieutenant was commanding the company.

Q. Did you have any experience with these rifles when you first
goltdt;wm, as to the way they worked 2—A. The new rifle, the Spring-
ield ?

Q. Yes. I will ask you with reference to that, whether or not when
these rifles were first received, they fired the cartridge every time?—
A. No, sir.

Q. Or whether they snapped frequently?—A. No, sir; they snapped
very frequently, until the cosmic oil was gotten out of them. All
those guns packed and shipped out by the Irankford Arsenal, owing
to the fact that they remain in the cases frequently for a long time,
are cont-l with cosmic oil, which is a gummy sort of substanee, and
until the gun is thoroughly cleaned up the spring does not work as
it should; so that the soldiers generally have to clean a gun thor-
oughly and cut this grease and oil out with kerosene oil.

Q. ‘That took some little time, did 1t?-—A\, Tt takes a week or ten
days, generally. before they get them in condition,

Q. And until that was done. the cartridges would sometimes not
explode; sometimes they would have to be snapped twice and some-
times three times before they would fire?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that eartridges that were fired at that period might have two
indentations, or more, in them?2-—\. Yes, «ir,

Q. Made by the firing pin where it ~truck the head of the car-
tridge?—A. Yes, sir,
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Q. State whether or not, when you got these guns thoroughly
cleaned and oiled, there was any trouble with the guns.—A. None,
sir, reported to me.

Q. Vhat was your observation?—A. My observation was that
there was no trouble.

Q. The spring was strong enough?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the firing pin did its work?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. And there was no snapping of caps?—A. No, sir.

Q. And therefore no double imdentation?—A. No, sir.

Q. Tell us whether or not after you got these new guns there was
any firing of them around about the fort? I will speak about the
target practice directly, Will you tell us whether or not anywhere
in the vicinity of the fort there was any firing of them? There is
the fort (indicating on map).—A. Yes, sir. I do not know of any;
no, sir.  We used to lire—we had a target range running down from
quarters 11 and 12, running down beside the lagoon.

Q. That is right behind the oflicers’ quarters?-—-A. Yes, sir.

Q. T will ask you if you did not have gallery practice there and

tg

sonie fiving of ball cartridgesi—A. Yes, sir; with reduced charges.

By Senator Overyan:
Q. With the Springficld rifle?—A. With the Springfield; ye=. sir.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. T will ask if you did not have later firing there with the full
charges?—-A. Not to my knowledge,

Q. That was after you left, if it occurred at all?—A\. Yes, sir; if
it ocenrred.

Q. What was the firing there when you were at Ifort Brown?—-A,
Wo fired the whole three companies there up to G00 yards in 1905 and
in 19015 the whole three companies fired up to 600 yards.

By Senator WanNer:
Q. That was before you got the Springfield rifles”—A. Yes, sir.,
By Senator IForakrn:

Q. That was the Krag-Jorgensen rifle?—A. Yes, sir,

YQ. In 1904 and 1905 you had practice there up to 600 yards?—A.
ex. ~ir,

Q. What kind of ammunition did you use?—A. We used the regu-
lar service charge.

Q. And the Krag-Jorgensen cartridge 2—A\. Yos, sir,

Q. That is a No. .30 caliber?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And, so far as the size of the bullet is concerned, it is precisely
the same, is it not, as the bullet you use in the Springfield new model
vifle?-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. No. .30 caliber.  What weight, do you remember?—A. Two
hundred and twenty grains, 1 think.

Q. T'wo hundred and twenty grains for the ball cartridge {—.A\.
Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell me how many lands or grooves there are in the
Krag-Jorgensen rifle?—A. I think there are four.

Q. 'The same as there are in the Springfield?2—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, did you finally quit using ball ammunition with the Krag-
Jorgensen vifle at that point? I will take up the Springtield in a
minute.—A\. Yes, sir,

RN ERERRRIIE=E
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Q. Why did you suspend it?—-A. There was some complaint made
that the bullets were going across the river into Mexico.

Q. Wiring from the rear of oflicer’s quarters, across the end of that
dry lagoon as indicated on the map, would be in the direction of
Matamoraost—A. Yeg, sir; below Matamoros.

Q. Tt would be below Matamorost—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Matamoros is up there opposite the foot of Twelfth strect?—A.
Yes, sir; we fired down this way Jimlimting on map.)

Q. But would it be ulso toward the lower end—1 will call it—the
southern end, of that resevvation?—A\. Hardly; but there were one
or two little ranclies down there, and when we heard of that com-
plaint we stopped it.

Q. ITow far did those bullets have to go?—A. Before they went
into Mexico?

Q. Yes.—A. They had at least 1,900 yvards to go before they would
strike Mexico.

Q. One thousand nine hundred yards; that would be over a mile.—
A, Yes, sir: beeause T measured that place myself. That question
came up.

Q. You did mea=ure it 22—\, Yes, sir.

Q. Clear over into Mexico?—N\. When that question came up I
mensured it down on our place and then estimated the width of the
river there,

Q. You measured from the place where you were firing down to
the river and then estimated the distance across?—A\. Yes, sir; that
was 1,800 yards down to the river.

Q. And then you estimated the width of the river?—A, Yes, sir.

Q. That reminds me about that river. State whether or not there
are any bancos, as they call them, in that river.—.A\, Yes. sir.

Q. Do you know what a banco is?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Describe it.—A. It is a =mall island in the center of the river
owing to a change in the course of the river.

Q. Is it really an island or a sort of U-shaped picee of land—A,
Usually it is due to a change in the conrse of the river, but sometimes
it is an island, and sometimes it is a flat piece of ground that kind of
comes up like that [indicating].

Q. I will ask you whether or not you know that sometimes our
boundary line has been altered so that a man living on one of those
bancos would find himself sometimes in Texas and at other times in
Mexico?—A. Yes, sir. It is a great place for smuggling.

Q. Smugglin 1—A. Yes,sir.

Q. That 1s what I wanted to ask you about. Ts there or not at
Brownsville a great deal of smuggling?—A. Yes, sir.

. Q. And are or not these bancos utilized in that respect?—A\. Yes,
sir,

Q. State whether or not there is a force of mounted inspectors,
as they are called, in the customs service at Brownsville—A. They
have a large river guard. I do not know whether they ure mounted
or not. I suppose they probably are.

Q. You would see them about there?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Are they armed?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind of arms do they carry—A. Six-shooters.

Q. Do they have any guns?—A\. Sometimes, when they ride out
toward Hidalgo, up the river, they will carry one of the<e cut-off
carbines,
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Q. How far up the river is Hidalgo?—A. It is about 40 miles.

Q. That is on the wa[){' to Rio Grande City, is it not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, coming back to this Springfield rifle; you have told us

about your exgerlenoe with the Krag-Jiorgensen. Did vou ever use
the Springfield out there for dgnllery practice, or anything of that
naturef—A. I think they used it for gallery practice, but I would
not state positively. .

Q. You did not superintend it?—A. No, sir.

Q. You have not any personal knowledge of it?—A. No, sir.

Q. The shells that were exploded when you engaged in target
ractice out there, did they or not become scattered round about the
ort 7—A. They would be; we tried to pick them up as well as we

could, but even then they would be lost in the grass.

Q. Now, Captain,are you sufliciently familiar with the new Spring-

field rifle to tell us what its power of penetration is?—A. No, sir.

Q. T will call your attention to an authority on that subject. You

know about the Krag-Jirgensen, do you not¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is the penctration of the Krag-Jorgensen in. say, pine

hoard 2—A. About 40 inches in pine.

Q. That is to say, n Krag-Jaorgensen rifle would shoot a bullet,

with the service charge of powder, through 40 inches of pine, wounld
it?t—A. Yes, sir.

* By Senater Loncr:
Q. That is, fired point blank?—A. No, sir; I think that is at 100

feet,
Q. One hundred feet?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. You do not know what the penetration of the Springficld wonld
be?—A, NO, sir.

Q. You are not famifiar with that ?—A. No, sir.

Q. T will put that in, us Senator Warner suggests, in another con-
nection. Are you familiar with the houses of Brownsville?—A\. Yes.
sir,

Q. What kind of structures are they ?-—A. Usnally of a light grade
of wood. Some of the better houses are built of brick and adobe.

Q. Do you know the Cowen house?—A. Yos, sir.

Q. That is on the alley 2—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Tt is indicated on the map by the figure “22"—A. Yes. sir: I
know that house.

Q. What kind of a house is that?—A. It is a frame house made out
of [‘)inc —ordinary lapboard. I think.

Q. Can you tell us how thick the weatherboarding is on the out-
gide?-—A\. T should say it certainly would not he over half an inch.

Q. Were yvou ever in that house?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What kind of structure is it on the inside—that is. is it plastered
or simply ceiled with pine boards?—A. Tt is ceiled.

Q. With pine boards?—J\. Yes, sir,

Q. How thick are those boards with which it is ceiled T—A. T sup-
posc about the same thickness--half an inch.

Q. So that the thickness of that house would be the thickness of the
weatherboarding and the thickness of the ceiling?—A. Yex, sir.

g R



AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS, 1016

Q. And do you know anything else that would add to that thick-
ness?—A. No, sir.

Q. If a Springfield high-power rifle were fired at that house from
close range, what, in your judgment, would be the power of penetra-
tion as to the walls of that house? -A. It ought to go clear through
the house.

Q. Go clear through the house. How many houses like it would it
probably go through?—A. Why, if you had the othar houses right ns
nlg_r.ni;:st it, it ought to go through three or four of them, I shoul
think,

Q. Can you tell us of any other Louses in Brownsville—I am speak-
ing of frame houses—any other frame house that one of these high-
power Springfield bullets would not go through?

Senator WarNer. I would submit that the witness has said that he
does not know about the power of penctration of the Springficld rifle.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. I will ask you about the Krag-Jirgensen rifle. You say the
bullet from that rifle would penctrate 40 inches of pine board.
Would it or not shoot. through one of those frame houses such as yon
have described in Brownsville?—A. Certainly, it would go throngh
any house; clear through and through. except, of courve, brick houses
or masonry houses,

Q. T will come to them later. Do von kuow what the penetration
of the Krag-Jiorgensen was as to brick?—A\. No. sir; they generally
just put it down ns to oak and pine,

Q. Yes; and sandi—A. And sand.

Q. And metal, do they not?—A. Sometimes they put it in for
metal. ,

Q. Tet me sce if 1 can refresh your rvecollection about that. Do
you know what the effect of a bullet would be hred out of the Krag-
Jiorgen=en rvifle at short range, say at 50 or 100 yvard-, on a horse—-
whether or not a bullet fired out of a Krag with the full charge of
powder, such as is used in battle, would go clear through a horse? —
A. T should suppose it would; T do not know.

Q. You never tried that7—A, No, sir. I cshould suppose it wonld,

Q. If vou were told that a bullet fired into a horse killed the horse,
and went in on ore side and did not come ont the other, but lodged
somewhere in the horse, would you think that it was fired out of a
Krag ville?—A. I would think there was some very unusual circum-
stanee, if it was fired from a Krag rifle and those conditions followed.,

Q. Iave you ever seen u tree that a bullet ont of a Krag rifle ~truck,
that you can recolleet 72—\, There was one instance that 1 recolleet,
but I have forgotten whether that was a Krag. T think it was o
Krag, though. That was at Governors Island in 1809 o 1900 1800,
A nn <hot a prisoner escaping, at less than 100 vards, and it went
clear through the man's hiead and through a tree about 12 inches in
diameter.

Q. What did it go through fie-t 27—\, It went through the man.

Q. Tt went throngh a man?—N\. Tt went through his head.

Q. Tt went through his head, did it?—A\. Yes, ~ir.

Q. And then went through a tree how many inches in diameter {—

A. About 12 inches, Ce e e ..
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Q. What kind of a tree was it?—A. I don’t know, sir. Just an
ordinary tree there at Governors Island.

Q. You do not know what kind of wood?—A. No, sir.

Q. Then what became of the bullet after it went through the
tree?—A. They never found it after that.

Q. Never found it?—A. No, sir.

Q. Is it not true that these bullets will shoot 2 or 8 miles—that
they are expected to?—A. I would hardly say 2 or 8 miles. They
certainly have a range of a mile and three-quarters, anyway.

Q. That is pretty nearly 2 miles. They have a range, and they are
sygppo§ed to shoot with a degree of accuracy at that distance?—A.

es, sir.

Q. And then they are supposed to go still farther, are they not?—
A. Yes, sir; something like & mile and a quarter, giving the gun
its maximum elevation,

Q. They do go 2 miles, do they not#—A. Somewhere about that.

Senator Forakir, I want to put in this record, for the benefit of
the examination, what is said as to the power of penetration of the
Springfield new model rifle, in the description and rules for the man-
agement of the United States rifle, model of 1905, caliter .30, pub-
lished March 3, 1904, revised April 18, 1906. This, I understand,
is the latest pui)lication of this character on this subject. It gives
the penetration, and I want to put this in. It is published by the
War Department and gives the power of penetration of the Spring-
field rifle, as follows:

Penetration.

Penetration at—

Material ;
' 600 1,000
50 feet. 100 yards, yards. | yards.
Inches, Inches. Inches. | Inches,

Wblte-gine butts, made of 1-inch boards placed
1inch apart.cceececscescssssssscccnne ersenssnses
Molst 880 saeearceercroresnacsececnrercnsssnannese .
DIy AN ccauceeecencesiaencenesiasansoassanassans
Loam practically free fromsand.....cceeeenenenne.
Low steel plate, 0.484 fuch thiek........ecvvntees ;
Low steel plate, 0.872inch thick....ciceeeneennn..
Low steel plate, 0.30 inch thick.....ccceennanns..
High steel plate, 0.881 inch thick......covveernnns
High steel plate, 0,193 inch thick............cceu..
Thoroughly seasoned oak, acrossthe grain.......

Senator OvErMAN. Does it give the distances?

Senator Foraker. The distance is 50 feet, but apparently it is the
same at a hundred yards, because it is marked with ditto marks. The
distance is also given at 500 yards, but I will simply refer tc the
shorter distances, because the testimony all shows that no shot was
fired at a longer distance than a hundred yards that struck anything.
It gives the penetration of moist sand as 11.8 inches; dry sand, 6.7
inches; loam practically free from sand, 25.6 inches; low steel plate
0.484 inch thick, 0.35 inch; low steel plate, 0.30 inch thick, it would
go clear through it; high steel plate, 0.381 inch thick, it would go
clear through it; high steel Elate, 0.193, it would go clear through
it. hThoroughly seasoned oak, across the grain, penetration 25.94
inches,
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Now, if you were told that a bullet had been taken out of some
place in a house, and it was shown that it had lodged at that place
after it had passed through such an outside wall as you have de-
scribed—the Cowen house--through such an outside wall and one
inside wall of about the same general character and then had lodged
without showing a penetration of more than 4 inches at the outside,
including the walls it passed through, wonld you or not think that
had been fired out of a Krag-Jorgensen rifle, knowing what you do
know about its penetration?—A. No; I would not think so unless
there was something very defective about the bullet.

By Senator OverMaN:

Q. Suppose there had been some upright timbers in each wall
which it had penetrated?—A. Of course that would impede it to a
certain extent, but even then those joists, those stringpieces that are
pu4t in l:here, they are never over 2 by 4, and that would only give
1t 4 inches.

By Senator Forarer:

Q. Assumins that the testimony shows, as it does in this case that
I have in mind, that it did not go through any pieces, but went be-
tween the studdings, between the outside weatherboarding and the
inside ceiling, so that there was nothing to impede it except the
thickness of the weatherboarding and the thickness of the ceiling, and
then the interior wall, would you still think, knowing what you do
of the Eower and penetration of a Krag-Jirgensen, that it would go
through much more than I have indicated$—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And if you found that the bullet had not gone through mors
than 4 or 5 or 6, or even 10 inches of such material, you would think
it was not a Krag-Jorgensen?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that as the Springfield has a still higher penetration,
you would think it was not fired from a Springfield ?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Foster, In this connection, will you ask him about the
Winchester also upon the same lines.

By Senator FForaker:

Q. The Winchesier is a different kind of rifle in many vespects.
Are you fainiliar with the Winchester?—A. No, sir.

Q. You have never uscd it¥—A. No, sir.

Q. The Armi has never been armed with it#—A. No, sir; the only
Winchesters I have ever seen were those we found in Cuba and the
Philippines. .

Q. I{re you familiar with the kind of guns the Spaniards used in
t‘l)e Philippines? Did you serve in the Philippine Islands?—A.

es, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the Mauser rifle?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was used by the Spaniardsi—A. Yes, sir; the Muuser
and Mannlicher and the Remington. .

Q. Were there not a good many of those Mausers in the Philip-
pine Islands?—A. Yes, sir; a great many.

Q. Can you tell what the caliber of the Mauser that was in common
use there was?—A. About .27, I think.

Q. To be accurate, twenty-seven hundredths and six-tenths of a
hundred, or 0.276, was it notV—A. I believe so, a little over 0.27,

8, Doe. 402, €0-1, pt 5——7
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Q. It was 7 millieters?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us whether or not our No. .30 coulkl be fired and was
actually fired out of that Mauser with its caliber of 27672—A. Yes,
sir; they used not only to rcam them out, but then the lands would

et worn so-that one of our .30 caliber bullets could be fired cut of
1t very easily.

Q. That 1s, the lands of the Mauser would become worn with
firing?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That brings me to our own rifles. You have had little exper-
ience with the Springfield, but a good deal, as I understand, with the
Krag. State whether or not tlic lands of the Krag do become worn
or eroded, if that is the proper term to use, by firing these steel-jack-
eted bullets out of them.—A. Yes, sir,  When we came back from the
Philippines in 1903 the rifles used in my company had been in use
over 1n the Philippines for about three years—two years and a half,
anyway—and the first sergeant called my attention one day to the fact
that he could take a bullet and drop it down the muzzle of the rifle,
the Intuds being worn so—in other words, that they would not engage
the bullet at all, and on that basis I put in an application and got new
rifles for the men.

Q. You made a requisition for new rifles?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What had happened to those lands except that they were worn
by constant firing ?—A. That was all; just the firing.

Q. Nothing else?—A. No, sir,

Q. How many times had these guns probably been fired ?
probably several hundred; a couple of hundred times,

Q. Well, now, is there any difference that you know of between the
lands of a Krag-Jorgensen and the Innds of a new model Springfield,
so fur as the material is concerned ——A\. No, sir; T don’t know of any.

Q. That is, they are both steel 2—A. They are both steel; yes, sir.

Q. And if when our new No. 30 caliber steel-jacketed bullets
drag on the lands so as to make marks on the bullets, what is the effeet
on the londs?—A\. To wear them down.

Q. So that there wonld come a time when the guns would not make
any mark on the bullets, on the steel jucket 2—A. Undoubtedly.

Q. That is your experience?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, how many times would the Krag—I speak of that because
you are familiar with that—have to be fired to wear the lands so
much timt they would not mark the metal jacket 2—A. Well, as I
said, I don’t know how long these guns that T spoke of had been in
that condition, because we were on the transport quite a while, but
they had ~crtainly been fired from 150 to 200 times, possibly a little
less and possibly a little more.

Q. Then with the firing of two or three hundred steel-jacketed bul-
lets out of one of these guns, your experience is such that you would
judge that it would wear down the lands so that they would
not mark he bullets?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, if vou were furnished with a bullet that had distinct
marks of the lands, a rather deep impression—now, I want those
bullets from the War Department.  Have we got them here?

Senator Warner. They are aot here.

A. Oh,
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By Senator ForAKER:

Q. Then I will have to describe this for you. If you were shown
a bullet that had marks of that character on it, would you or would
vou not think it had been fired out of a gun that had been fired three
or four hundred times?—A. No, sir; it would either be a brand new
gun or clse a gun of a smaller caliber, that is all.

Q. That is, if one of onr .30 bullets, steel jacketed, should be fired
ont of a Mauser of only 7 millimeters diameter, or 0.276, the result
would be to mark the steel jucket with the mark of the lands in that
way?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, is it or is it not true that the deeper the marks of the lands
on the bullet the less the veloeity of the bullet and, consequently,
the less the penetration of the bullet2—A. Yes, sir; of course that
retards it.

Q. So that a gun of smaller ealiber, if a bullet had been fired out
of it, the lands cufting into this steel jacket wounld retard it so that
it might not go through 55 inches of pine when it would reach its
destination?—A. Yes, sir.,

Q. And if you should find a bullet that was seemingly of this gen-
eral character, fired out of a gun, with these distinct marks, the bul-
let having made a penetration of only 3 or 4 or 5 inches at the out-
side. through pine lumber, would you or not conclude that something
of that kind had impeded its progress if you were told that it had
been fired out of a ligh-power gun?—A. That would be the natural
supposition. \

By Senator Foster:

Q. Right here I want to ask a question. Do I understand yon
to say, Captain, that the steel-jacketed bullets used in the Springfield
rifle can be used in the Krag-Jirgensen?—A\. In the Springlield;
ves, sirj it is the same caliber.  Now, there might be a difference in
the length of the chamber.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. T am coming to that. T was asking about the use of the Krag
cartridge in the Mauser. When you pick up a bullet that has been
fired, there is no difference hetween the bullet that is found in the
Krag cartridge and the bullet that is found in the Springfield car-
tridge, is there?—A. There is no difference in the bullets. There is
in the shell.

Q. I mean in the bullet.—A. No, sir.

Q. So that merely finding a bullet sticking in the wall, that looks
like a Springficld bullet, and is like it in all general appearances,
including weight, that fact would not necessarily indicate, standing
by itself, that it had been fired out of a Springfield rifle?—A. No,
ST,
Q. Now, the cartridge used in the Springfield rifle is longer, is
it not, than the cartridge used in the Krag?—A. I don’t know
whether it is or not. I believe it is a little bit longer.

Q. You do not know so much about the Springfield. IFor that
reason 1 did not intend to examine you about that, but I only in-
tended to call attention to that.—A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, I want, for the benefit of the committee, to show the
difference between twenty-seven one hundredths and six-tenths of a
hundred, or 0.276 and 0.30.

Senator Overman. Is it your contention that the bullets might
have been fired out of a Mauser?

Senator Foraxer. I will show what they were fired out of before
we get done with it. I want to lay some premises. Are you
familiar with the micrometer?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is what you measure the caliber of a gun with, is it
not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you set this micrometer so it will show two and six-

tenths hundredths of an inch?

(‘The micrometer was set to show the measurements indicated and
exhibited to the members of the committee.)

Senator Foraker. Gentlemen of the committee can see, by looking
at that, the difference between the diameter of a .30 caliber bullet
and the bullet that is fired out of a Mauser. You can see how very
smoll s the difference.

Senator OverMaN. Do you know what the penetration of the
Mauser is; Senator ¢

Senator Foraxker. No; I do not.

By Senator OVERMAN
Q. Captain, do you know?—A. Noj; it is very nearly the same as
the old Krag. Nearly all of those nations keep up about the same
penetration,

By Senator- Perrus:

Q. Captain, do you know what bullets conld be fired out of this
new Springfield rifle other than the ammunition prepared fer it?—
A. T don’t know, sir, T am not thoroughly conversant with the new
Springfield, because I have left the company duty and gone on staff
gultg instead. I am not thoroughly conversant with the new Spring-

eld.

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. T understand you to say that if a bullet was fired from the
Mauser, it would have the same eflect,ns to its penetration as if it
was fired from the Springficld rifle through these houses, as you have
described 2—A. In other words, it would not make any difference
whether it was fired from a Mauser or a Krag?

Q. Yes.—A. I should not think so. It would be practically the
same thing.

Scnator Foraxer. I believe that is all I think of at present to ask
the Captain.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. Captain, as I understand, you do not pretend to have any
expert knowledge with reference to the Springfield?—A. No, sir.

Q. And you have gone to a very considerable length into the ex-
amination as to the effect of a bullet discharged out of the Krag
rifle?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You used that in the Spanish-American war and for some years
afterward 2——\. Yes, sir; in the Philippines.

Q. And you are also familiar with the Mauseri—A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And a bullet discharged out of a Mauser, as T understand,
would have practically the same effect as to penetration as though
discharged out of a Krag?—A. That is my impression which I am
giving you.

Q. So whatever you have said about the penetration of a bullet of
a Krag would apply, as you understand it, to the penetration of a
bullet fired out of a Mauser?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. At the same range?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, you have spoken——A. I should like to say one thing,
Senator, in reference to that. Do you mean a Mauser bullet fired out’
of a Mauser rifle, whether it would have the same penetration as a
Krag bullet fired out of a Krag?

Q. Yes; that is what I am speaking of.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, you have spoken of some ifliculties there at Brownsville
when you were stationed there.—A. Yes, sir.

Do you speak of that from knowledge or by hear<ay?#—A. Both.

sir.

Q. Which one of actual knowledge?—A. Do you mean of actually
seeing the men?

Q. Yes.—A. Well, T know of Cyzyack and Rappe. T know that
actually, because I saw Cyzyack when he was brought in; had quite
a gash cut over his head.

Q. You saw him with a gash cut over his head. Did you sce the
aceurrence itself2—A. No, sir.

Q. You do not know what led up to that?—A, No. sir,

Q. What his condi ot was?—A. No, sir.

Q. What provocation he had given?—A. No, sir,

Q. Whether he had resisted arrest or not 2—.A. No. sir.

Q. You know nothing about that?—A. No, sir.

Q. Now, you have given several other instances here. Was cither
of thoxe within your own personal knowledge?—A. You mean if I
actnally saw the occurrence myself?

Q. Yes, sir—A\. No, sir.

Q. Not one?—A. They were simply the result of an investigation
that I made in the case—that is, in reference to the men of my own
company. )

Q. You spoke of a soldier who was arrested at the gate of the
fort?—-A. Yes, sir,

By Senator Ovirvan:

Q. One minute there, You said you made an investigation. Was
that an ex parte investigation?—A\. Yes, sir. It was one that I was
required to make, referring to my own soldiers.

. You only examined your own soldiers?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You did not go out in the town and examine witnesses?—A,
Oh, I went out and made an investigation downtown as fur as T
could, by talking to the policemen. ’

Q. Did you have the witnesses on the other side?—A. Not sworn
testimony at all.

Q. Hearsay #—A. Entirely.

By Senator FORAKER:
Q. But it was an official investigation?—A, An official investiga-
tion, ordered by the post commander.
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By Senator WarNEeR:

Q. You have spoken of a man named Bryan who was shot in the
hip.—A. Yes, sir.

lQ. Where was Bryan when he was shot?—A. Downtown some-
where.

Q. Where were you?—A. I was up at the post.

Q. Do you know what part of the town Bryan was in?—A. Yes,
sir; down near the market, I think.

Q. What house was he in?—A, The White Elephant,

Q. What was that?—A\. A saloon.

NQ. Do you know of your own knowledge what he was doing?—A.

o, sir.

(ﬁ. Do you know whether he was drinking?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know what cause he had given for arrest?—A. No, sir.

Q. You say he was shot?—A. Yes, sir. -

Q. By whom?—A. By one of the policemen down there. I know
that he was afterwards tried by the civil courts and acquitted.

Q. He was acquitted ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you don’t know of your own knowledge what provocation
ne gave?—A. Not at all.

Senator Foster. Who was {ried—the officer?

Senator Warxer. Yes; the oflicer,

Q. You also spoke of the man Neff.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What of that?—A\. Of comrse T was not present at that case,
eithery, but simply investigated the case and found that it was as
it was stated.

Q. Where was Neft2—.\. Neff was a soldier of my company.

Q. Where was he?—A. He was down at the custom-house; he had
just come from across the river.

Q. At the custom-house?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He had come from Matamoros?—-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was he intoxicated?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you see him?—A. I saw him shortly afterwards. He was
not a drinking man at all. ‘

Q. And he was assaulted by whom?—A. By one of the policemen;
I don’t know which one it was.

Q. You know nothing of the facts attending that either?—A. I
know simply what was reported to me by the police and what T
found out to be the facts in the case.

Q. Did the police report to you the same as the officer?—A. Yon
mean the police officar?

Q. Yes.—A. Why, yes.

Q. They reported that they shot him for nothing?—A. T don't
mean that part. He was not shot. He was struck over the head.

Q. But they struck him over the head for nothing?—A. No, sir;
they said they had nothing to say; that he refused to open his hand,
and that is why they struck him.

Q. The man held his hand up over his head%—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But as to all these cases of which you have spoken here and
given the details about them, the fact is, Captain, is it not, that
you have no personal knowledge of eith~r one of the instances?—A.

one of them; no, sir; except as I stated here, those which I
investigated.

3
-
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Q. You were requested by your superior oflicer te make a state-
ment of what you knew about Brownsville and what you saw
there?—A. T was directed.

Q. And you sat down and wrote that out yourself?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And signed it and swore to it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You intended to give all the information you had bearing upon
Brownsville at that time, did you not?-—-A. No, sir; he asked me
simply if I knew anything relative to the spirit in which the people
in Brownsville received the order for the Twenty-fifth Tnfantry to
fome to be stationed there, and I told him just exactly what I
tnew.

Q. You intended, then, to give all the information vou had as to
the spirit with which the people of Brownsville received the T'wenty-
fifth Infantry 2—A. At that time; yes, sir.

Q. And vou stated it and wrote it out yourself2—A\. Yeu, «ir.

Q. For the information of the Department?—A. Yes, «ir.

Q. To-day you say that Tillman said that they would have the
colored troops driven out of there in three weeks?—A. Yex, sir,

Q. Why didn’t you put that in your affidavit?—A\. I have prac-
tically stated the same thing in the affidavit. I said a short time.

1.et me see:

Tillman, a citizen of Broyv nsville, and owning a large grocery stare opposite
Critell Brothers. In a conversation with me expressed his doubts about the
advisability of sending colored troops to Brownsville,

That is all you said.—A. No, sir; there is some more there.
Q. This is what you said:

e further satd, to the Lest of my recollection at this date, that it would
not be long before they had shite troops back again,

A. Yes, sir,

Q. Is that what he said?%—A. At thix time. Senator. that is the
best of my recollection, just as T have «tated it this morning.

Y Q. Well, but this was given the 11th day of September, 1106.—A.
es, sir.

Q. When you sat down and wrote this ont?2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you then give what vour recollection was of just what Till-
man said?—A. Just exactly my recollection—there were several
people in this store at that time, and my recollection at that time was
just as T have stated. )

Q. Yes; but what T am asking is, not who was present, but what
Tillman <aid.—A. That was my recollection; ves, sir.

Q. And you have also stated that the better class of citizens of
Brownsville expressed their doubt as to the propriety of sending
the colored troops there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was it that Doctor Combe became mayor of Browns-
ville?—A. Some time in 1905, I think; T don't know exactly. He
was elected and he was reelected; elected, T think, some time in 1905.
I am not sure.

Q. And. as T understand, he worked great reforms there?—A.
Well, he did the best he could, and did make an improvement in the
town,

Q. Well, now, “did the best he could.” What improvement did
he make there?—A. TTe cleaned up the streets, uniformed tlie police,
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so you could tell who a policeman was. He had a regular patrol
in the streets.

Q. How could you tell a policeman?——A. By his uniform.

Q. And that uniforin was blue?—A\. Blue.

. IQ] And what kind of a hat did he wear?—A. Wore a soft hat, a
elt hat.

Q. And a badge?—A. Yes, sir.,

Q. When you speak of the blue, how would it compare in color
with the army blue?—A. About the same.

Q. And he changed the police, you say, in some instances?—A. I
know two or threce men. There was a man by the name—I have
forgotten his name now; he is a cripple, crippled in one foot, and
he used to be known as a bad man down there in Texas, and they
took him on the police force, and he was the man that hounded
down a lot of the so-called desperacoes around that country—ran
them down and brought them in. Ile was one of those reformed
bad men, and he was very good to the soldiers. I know in several
jlnsiu;lces he brought the soldicrs up to the post when they were

runk.

Q. And a very useful man?—A. A very useful man.

Q. Speaking of that, Captain, unfortunately soldiers would get
drunk, would they not, sometimes?—A. Oh, they are very apt to
do so, especially on pay day. :

Q. And es.peciully since the canteen has been abolished ?—A. Yes.
sir; especially so.

Q. Go ont into town, get their money, and get drunk?—A. Get
full of whisky.

Q. You say it was an easy matter for a soldier to get into trouble
at Brownsville. Do you know miy place out in the West where it
is not a pretty easy matter for a man to get into trouble if he is
around sceking it?—A. No, sir; that is very true. You can find
it anvwhere if you are looking for it..

By Senator BuLkrerey:
Q. That is not confined to the West entirely, is it?—A. No, sir.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. At what other points have you been stationed?—A. Since I
have been in the service? .

Q. Yes.—A. I was stationed at Goverrors Island, stationed at the
Presidio, San Francisco, Benicia Barracks, San Diego Darracks,
Cal.; also in Cuba, in the Philippine Islands, Fort Sam Houston,
Fort Brown, Fort Ringgold. I think that is about all.

Q. Fort Ringgold is near what town?—A. Rio Grande City.

Q. Tt is not uncommon to see people carrying pistols down there,
is it?—A. No, sir; all through Texas ycu see a good many pistols.

Q. A good many people carrying pistols?—ﬁ. Not of course up
around San Antonlo, but down in the Mexican towns, all those border
towns are « good deal Mexican in population, and a man feels safer
when he has a pistol down that way.

Q. And by saying that you do not mean that the man who carried
a pistol was a desperado?—A. Not necessarily.

Q. Because the good men want to be protected from the despera-
does. Well, now, Matamoros was rather a bad place?—A. It is not
an especially good place.
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Q. Did your troops go across to Matamoros?—A. Yes, sir; they
used to go across nearly mRr time, quite frequently.

Q. It was not such a bad place that you ({)rohibited the troops from
going over there?—A. It would not have done much good if you had
prohibited them.

Q. I ask you if you did?—A. No, sir. There were two men in my
company that I prohibited from going across there—took pains to see
that theﬁ did not.

Q. Why?—A., Because one time they had gotten in some row
across there with the chief of police, and one man was sentenced to
ten years down at Saltillo, breaking rock down there.

Q. One of your men?—A. Yes, sir. And the American consul
down there, Mr. Merrill T. Griffith, took the ease up with President
Diaz, and finally the man got off with a 10-peso fine.

Q. That was a peso for cach year?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mayor Combe had been a major, had he not, a surgeon in the
Army?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You say that the police that were there beforc Major Combe
could not read or write the Inglish language?—A. I say when I
went there in January, 1904, there were about nine out of the ten
that could not read.

Q. How did you happen to know that?—A. Because these things
were reported to me by my first sergeant and quartermaster’s ser-
geant, and the way the police had been handling the men of my
company it was my business to see that they had a fair deal, and
that if they were the ones that were doing wrong they should be pun-
ished for 1t.

Q. But wait, Captain; get back to the question. Did you judge
that there were nine out of ten of the policemen who could not read
or write the Iinglish language because one of your sergeants had
reported that fact?—A. No, sir; I saw them my«elf.

Q. Could you tell by secing a man whether he could read or
write?—A. No, sir; but I can talk the Spanish language, and I knew
that they could not speak English. I tried them in English, and
they could not understand what you wanted at all, and I think I
probably speak English well enough to be understood, and I always
had to talk to them in Spanish.

Q. Do I understand you now to state that nine out of the ten
policemen in Brownsville before Mayor Combe took hold there could
not speak the English language?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And they were on the police force?—A. By speaking it, Sen-
ator, I mean to be able to hold an ordinary reasonable conversation.
No doubt they might be able to say “ yes” or “no” or “I no under-
stand,” but I mean to be able to speak ordinarily.

Q. If a person would go up to him and say, “ Some one has broken
into my house,” he couid not understand him?—A. I don’t think he
weuld understand him; no, sir.

Q. They had that kind of policemen{—A. Yes, sir; they had those
policemen in January, 1904.

Q. And that continned how long?—A. I dor’t know, sir.

Q. Don’t you think you are a little high in your percentage, Cap-
tnin#—A. No, sir; I do not think so. You see, there were not many
policemen in that town,
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Q. Well, T know, but nine out of ten——A. Well, T don’t think
there were ten or a dozen respectable wlite men who would have
taken the position as policeman.

Q. Now, that is an opinion you have given, Captain ?—A.Yes, sir.

Q. Upon what do you base that opinion?—A. On the general tone.
the whole proposition when I went down there. There was not any
railroad at all there at that time.

Q. But let us get back——A. I am just stating why I made tha
remark. ‘The people that came in there, a great many drummers can: -
in there and got out as soon as they could, and the most of the peopl:
that settled down there, some of them moied there and had property.
and there were twelve or fourteen very nice families down tgere that
lived there, respectable people in every way, who would pass in aiv
community in any ci?’; but the majority of the people down there
were of a very low order of intelligence.

Q. Now, Captuin, thers were 6,000 inhabitants there?—A. About
that, I should judge.

Q. And of the 5,000 inhabitants your estimate of Brownsville
would be that there were only twelve or fourteen families that conld
pass muster in an ordinary well-governed city ?—A. Well, I said that
there would be amongst the first-class people,in a good reasonable—-

Q. Possibly, being from the West, I do not understand just what
you esteem first-class people?—A. Well, I am from the West, too, sir.

Q. What do you mean by first-class people?—A. I mean people
that have some refimement at home and who knew what to do on dif-
ferent occasions; people that had some refinement about their homes.
that is all.

Q. By people who had some refinement, do you mean people that
had a piano in the house?—A. Not necessarily; no, sir.

Q. People that had a common-school education—that would be
some refinement ?—A. I mean people that were gentlemen and ladies.

Q. And people who were church members?—A. Well, that some-
times applies and sometimes it does not.

Q. But I am trying to get at what you mean.—A. T think that
I have stated that matter. I mean people that had some of the
natural, innate refinement of ladies and gentlemen.

Q. Only twelve or fourteen such families there?—A. Yes, sir:
that is all in Brownsville.

Q. Now I will have to get you, if you can—because that is an
astonishing statement—to tell us what you mean by innate refine-
ment?—A. Senator, that is something that is very hard to define.
but is very easily seen and recognized by n person that knows it.

Q. Recognized by coming in contact with them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you came in contact with the families at Brownsville?—.\.
I think I knew nearly everybody. I was married down in Browns-
villee. My wife was a Los Angeles girl, and I was married down
there, and she had a good many f{riends, and I went around in
Brownsville quite a little, and I think I saw about all the people in
Brownsville and I know them well.

Q. Assuming there were about 6,000 people, there would be pos-
sibly in the neighborhood of a thonsand families.—A\. Well, I don't
know, Some of those Mexican families run pretty high, sir,
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Q. I do not expect you to know certainly.—A. No, sir.

Q. Now, you say Mayor Combe was a most excellent gentleman.—

A. In every way. <

Q. And a good official}—A. Yes, sir; and he was aI\ansG:}illing\;\ :
to help us in every way that he could. A N

Q. He was a friend of the soldiers, you understood?fegh. Y(es,':%u'.

Q. Your knowledge of Major Combe was that 4@ did rgt share
in_this feeling of the lower classes?-~A. I don’t $hink so at alla. I
think he tried to do everything that he possibly could., e

Q. He had been a soldier himself?—A. Yes, siug{:and he_Nad the

kindliest feeling toward all the officers and merqt\ 1 post,
Q. Was he the surgeon in your regiment?—A. Not in my regi-
ment, but—-—

Q. He was post surgeonf—A. His brother, Joe Combe, was a con-
tract surgeon for a while. Major Combe was surgeon over in the
Philippines, and a good many of us knew him over there,

Q. You knew Major Kelly down there, didn’t you?—.\. Yes, sir,

Q. What position did he hold there?—A\. Ile was one of the rep-
resentative men there in town,

Q. A reliable man?—A. Yerfectly, sir.

Q. You had a talk with him?—A. No, sir; I don’t remember ever
talking with him at all on the subject.

Q. He was a civil war veteran, was he not?—A. Yesy, sir.

Q. Did you see any manifestations on his part of ill will agninst
the soldiers, either bluck or white?—A. No. sir; I never talked this
matter over with him at all. Owing to a little personal matter that
came up some six or eight months hefore that I did not see very much
of Captain Kelly.

Q. I don’t care about going into that.—A. I am just telling why.

Q. But his general standing there——A. Was good ; excellunt.

Q. Now, when you had this practice back of the officers’ quarters
there, down the lagoen, that was with the Krag rifle?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. And when was that?—A. That, I think, was in 1904, when we
first went there, and 1905. We had two years there, and it was
stopped at the end of 1905.

(5. You stopped it because there was complaint that the bullets went
across over into Mexico?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And endangered some citizens there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then all of 1906, whatever practice there was there was with
the reduced ammunition?—A. I don’t remember of there being any
practice there at all.

Q. No practice whatever?—A. T don't think so. There may have
been some target practice. but I don’t think ~o.

Q. You had abandoned it because a stray bullet might go across
into Mexico?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was abandoned by reason of the-complaint of some people
over in Mexico, was it not?—A, Yes, sir; it came through the Ameri-
can consul there.

Q. And that was stopped? Now the rifle range, for practice at
Fort Brown, was away how many miles?—A. Away from the post?

Q. Yes—A. Twenty-two miles; that was the new range which
they had just bought down at Point Ysobel, but formerly it was 9
miles out at a place called Casa Blanca,
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Q. Never mind that. I am asking about last year.—A. In 1908
they fired at Point Ysobel, and in 1904 and 190 they fired for the
long ranges out at this place 9 miles out from the post.

By Senator FoRAKER: '

Q. Nineteen hundred and six was the first year at Point Ysobel,
was it?—A. Yes, sir. .

By Senntor WARNER:

Q. Point Ysobel was out how far?-—A. Twenty-two miles.

Q. Now, you were asked something about this firing there near the
lagoon—about the shells—and you say some of them might have
gotten lost in the grass?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That would be exploded sheils, would it not?—A, Yes, sir; and
it might be some of the others; but the chances are it would be just
the shells.

_Q. You were in command of that post part of the time?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. The Twenty-sixth Infantry¥—A. T'wo months.

Q. That was a pretty cleanly, orderly regiment, was it not$—A.
We think it is.

Q. Well, you have been in the Army some time?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You were capable of judging?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you leave around th: quarters there cartridge shells or
anything of the kind, scattered around the quarters?—A. No, sir; I
am sure they“did not. I left before that, but I am sure the place was
thoroughly roliced and cleaned up, so that the troops coming in
would find clean Flaces to go into.

Q. That was the character of the regiment and the officers?—A.
That was the character of the regiment and the officers; yes, sir.

Q. Now, you have heard at some time of shots on the road ontside
of the reservation. Will you tell us, Captain, if you can, by looking
at the map--you see the cavalry stable there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the bakery?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. There is a road that runs through the reservation there, does it
not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Running between those two?—A. Yes, sir; that runs into the
reservation, -

Q. Now, this road outside the reservation, about how far is thatt—
A. Well, the road I was speakinﬁ of runs right up here [indicating];
it is just at the left of that red line.

Q. You are speaking of what we call the garrison road #—A. Yes,
sir.

Senator Lopce. What you mean, Senator, is what is called the
county road.

Senator WarnEr. Yes; I want the road called the county road.

Senator Lobge. That is not shown on the map.

A. Noj; it was this road up around this place [indicating].

By Senator WARNER:
Q. That is what we call the garrison road.—A. It turned and ran
around there,
Q. How far was that out beyond—A. Five or six hundred yards.
By Senator Lobge:
Q. From here to here (indicating).—A. Yes, sir.
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By Senator WARNER:
Q. From the road running through the garrison#—A. I think that
is it. T never noticed it particularly, but that is my impression, It
may be more or it may be less.

By Senator Longe:
Q. It is a public road?—A., It is a public road.
Q. Where does it run?—A. Tt goes down that way to the river
road. It goes down off to the Jugeau’s ranch and other ranches.
Q. Isit a dirt road?—A. A dirt road.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. When_you speak of up the river or down the river, Senator
Foraker and I want to know in what direction you mean by that?—A.
Up the river is against the current and down the river is with the cur-
rent. ’

Q. I know; but which way is the current?—A. The current runs
down that way [indicating]. .

Q. That is, for instance, if we commence with the river here in the
town that is marked there, it goes out toward the Rio Grande?—A.
Yes, sir; this is up, and this is down [indicating].

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. What is the depth of that river there?—A. It varies. In some

places in the center of the river it will run sometimes as deep as 15

or 20 feet, or as deep as 30 feet.

Q. How is the river crossed from Matamoras?—A. They have a
big barge with a wire cable across it for horses, and, about six row-
boats, and charge 6 cents Mexican to go across,

By Senator Longe:
Q. No bridge or ford2—A. No, sir.

By Senator ForaKker:
, Q Is t}ll)eretsno regular ferryboat?—A. No, sir; just this barge and
these rowboats.

By Senator OvErRMAN: )
Q. The passengers go across on the barge and on the small boats?--
A. They go across on the small boats entirely, and the barge is for
heavy things.

By Senator ForAKER:
Q. For fear I forget it later, what State were you from?—A. Well,
I was born in Maryland. .
Q. From what State were you appointed to West Point{—A.
I'rom Chica%o.
Q. From Illinois?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. You spoke of commanding Company K at one time?—A. Yes,
sir,
Q. At Fort Browni—A., Yes, sir.
Q. Was that your company ¥—A. That was my own company; yes,
sir,
Q. Did you command that until you left there June 1#—A. Yes,
sir,
Q. Do you know whether or not there were any charges made
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against men connected with Company K of selling clothing or am-
munition or guns at Fort Brown?—A. There was an ex-soldier, a
man by the name of Clay, from that company who was up, and I was
a witness in that case down in Galveston against Clay.

lQl.l What was the charge against him?—A. Receiving and buying
clothes.

Q. From whom?—A. From different soldiers.

Q. What was it he was charged with buying or with receiving?—
A. Buying these Government clothes and having in his possession
Government clothes.

Q. What articles of clothing?—A. Overcoats, trousers, blouses,
shoes, blankets, caps, and things like that.

Q. Coats?—A. lYes, sir. :
bl Q. What kind of uniform was thist—A. Olive drab mostly, some

ue.

Q. Khaki, you mean?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He was charged with that?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was established in that case?—A. Well, the case is to be
tried again in Austin in May. He was simply indicted to appear
before the May session.

Q. You testified at Galveston?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that a civil trinl?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the nature of ﬁour testimony there? What did you
know about the truth of the charges against him?—A. Simply that
it was reported to me while T was at Ringgold. T vwent up to Ring-
gold for target practice one year there, and that was for the record
shooting. It was reported to me while I was up there that this man
Clay was going into the business of selling and buying clothes there
and also influencing men to desert. So I wrote a letter to the post
adjutant, Lieutenant Richardson, laying the whole matter before
him and requesting that he get a search warrant and go down and
search Clay’s house. So it was that I was called to Galveston as to
what I knew.

q ((12 Did he go down and search Clay’s house?—A. No, sir; they

id not.

Q. Do you know what he really did have over there?—A. Well,
he was found with these things with him at Austin. He had taken
them up with another man in a box and was going to dispose of them
there. He was caught there by the police with the goods actually
with him.,

Q. And with these various articles you have mentioned?—A. Yes,
Slr.

Q. Overcoats, blouses, and trousers?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And general clothing?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, do you know of his having any guns or ammunition or
anything of that sort 2—A. I don’t know about that; no, sir.

Q. When was this brought up?—A. He was caught, T think, last
September or October; I have forgotten.

Q. Of 1906?—A. 1906; yes, sir.

Q. And you went to Galveston and testified against him in May?—
A. In January, 1907.

Q. Did that trial come to nothing?—A. Well, they simply bound
him over to appear.

e
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Q. That was a preliminary hearing?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. They bound him over to appear where?—A. I think he is to
be tried in Austin in May. I don’t know whether they changed it
ov not. Somebody told me just before I left Sam ITouston that they
were going to try the case down at Brownsville, but I don’t know.

By Senator WaRrNER:

Q. Who was this man Clay?—A. An ex-soldier of Company K,
Twenty-sixth Infantry.

Q. You heard nothing of his having any ammunition or guns—it
was simply clothing?—A., That is all, sir.

Q. Was that second-hand, discarded clothing or new clothing?—
A. New clothing, mostly.

Q. New clothing that had been taken away from the quarter-
master #—A. No, sir; that had just been drawn, probably, and sold.

Q. By some members of your company?--A. No, sir; not espe-
cinlly my company, but all of the companies.

Q. Men of the command?—A, Of the command; yes, sir.

By Senator ForaKkER:
Q. That is, they would draw it and have it charged to them and
then sell it?—A. They would sell it.

By Senator WaRNER:
Q. Tt was the regular issue of clothing to the soldiers?—A. Yes,
sir; they would draw a blanket costing them $3.49 and sell it for a

dollar. :
Q. That was probably to get some whisky or something of that
kind, was it not?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Was not that the purpose of it?¥—A. Presumably; yes, sir; I
think it was.
By Senator BuLKeLzY:
Q. They wanted spending money #—A. Wanted spending money;
yes, sir.
By Senator ForAKER:
Q. Whatever the purpose was, the result was that the clothing
got out?—A. That is the way; yes, sir.

By Senator OvERMAN:
Q. Ammunition sometimes got out too, didn’t it?—A. Well, when
we first went there T think it did.

By Senator ForakeR:

Q. How would that get out?—A. The men carry ten cartridges in
their belts. We try to keep track of those ten all the time, and if a
man would lose a cartridge we would charge it up to him, and if he
became one of those chronic losers we would try him; but he would
be charged with the cartridge. A cartridge is worth about two and
a half or three cents, and they would issue him a new one. Well,
thev would probably give them away, if they were only worth two
and a half or three cents, or drop them out of their belts. Of course
that does not happen so much now with the clip, because the clip
will hold the cartridges, and a man dropping a whole clip, his at-
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tention will be called to it. Then they have the guard cartridges now,
tno. It is a little different cartridge.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. If lre should lose a clip, you would charge him with that?—A.
Charge him for the whole five.

Q. And if it became chronic with him you would try himf—A.
Try him, too.

(3. But not until it became chronic—A. Well, until the thing had
been reﬁorted to you two or three times, until you would find that he
was either careless or purposely got rid of the cartridges.

By Senator Longe: ]

Q. Are the men apt to have odd cartridges in their possession t—A.
A great many of them do. They pick them up different places.
Sometimes they keep some cartridges—these men who, as we cal” it.
buck for orderly. They keep them shined, one set, and they will
have another set to use on rainy days, using the polished set for
guard mount.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. Explain that—what is meant by “bucking for orderly? *—A.
The cleanest man on guard when they mount guard in the morning
is picked out by the adjutant for the commanding officer’s orderly.
He does not have to go on guard duty, and is only on duty prac-
tically from about 10 in the morning until about 12, and from 2
till about half past 4, and then he is allowed to go to. his quarters.
It is something that they all desire, and the men will clean up, and
as the competition becomes closer and closer they get down to even
quite small details, and the brass screw that is in the head of the
bayonet, that will be polished, and they will get down to the point,
some of these men, where they will even polish their cartridges. Tt
takes T\lite a lot of work to keep those shined up, and they will some-
times have 10 extra cartridges which they will use for ordinary
times, for drills, and keep these 10 nice ones that have already been
polished up, keep them wrapped in canton flannel.

Q. That 1s, thcy use 10 cartridges for a rainy day and 10 for a
sunshiny day?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And have the extra cartridges around %—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Lonce:

Q. The retirn of cm'tridﬁes is never absolutely accurate, is it?—
A. No, sir. We count all the loose ones, but you can not always he
exact about that. You may have as many as 20,000 rounds on hand.

Q. They are usually returned in tens and hundreds are they ot ?- -
A. No, sir; the chief of ordnance checks you up to the last one.
but a man can always make some cartridges, because he is allowed
so many to each man,

By Senator YWaRNER:
Q. What I was getting at, when he has his ten cartridges for the
sunshinl)\r day, that is his regular allowance of ten?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Then he would have ten extra cartridges that he would p'ck
up and accumulate, that would not be polished, for rainy days?—
A. Yes,sir, Isay there are men who do that. I don’t think the whole
company does it, but some men,

1
1
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Q. But they do have an opportunity, so that they have extra car-
tridges?—A. Yes, sir.  When the cartridges are issued they open up
a box and each man takes 20 and shoots them-~that is, when they are
on target practice—and it is very easy for a man to pick up 5 or 10
if ho wants to. It is just as easy as it is for anybody else to get them.

Thereupon (at 1 o’clock and 5 minutes p. m.) the committee took
a recess until 2 o’clock p. m.

AFTERNOON SESSION.

The recess having expired, the committee (at 2 o’clock p. m.) re-
sumed its session.

Present: Senators Warren (chairman), Scott, Foraker, Lodge,
Hemenway, Bulkeley, Warner, Pettus, FFoster, and Overman.

TESTIMONY OF CAPT. D. W. KILBURN, U. 8. ARMY—Continued.

By Senatcr WARNER:

Q. Captain, when you speak of the lands of a gun, what do yon
mean by that #—A. It is the raised places in the gun that cause the
bullet to revolve and guide it more truly to its mark. There are
alternate grooves and raised portions.

Q. Those grooves go around the barrel of the gun?—A. Yes, sir.
’l.‘}f;ey take one and one-half revolutions, I think, in the length of the
vifle.

Q. And they cause what?—A. A rotary effect to the ball.

Q. Making the bullet more dangerous to start with, and add to the
distance it will carry¥—A. Yes. «ir.

Q. You spoke of some of the guns—T think you said in Cuba, possi-
biy—in which the lands were so worn that you could drop a bullet
tl_)é'ough the barrel#—A. That was in Brownsville; some of my own
rifles.

Q. Those guns were, of course, unserviceabla?—.\. Yes, sir; the
bullets would tumble and they would not carry nearly as far nor
with the same accuracy.

Q. Where guns are issued to a company, say, about the 1st of
April and they do not get their ammunition until along the middle
of April, the 11th or 12th, with the ordinary practice in camp such
as would be at Ifort Niobrara or FFort Brown, would the lands of the
gun] l\;'ear smooth in such a case?—A. When they were not used
at a ' .

Q. Where they had the ordinary use?—A. Oh, yes, sir; each shot,
of course, wears the lands down. ]

Q. But would not the gun be comparatively new up until, say, the
Ist of August?—A. It would depend entirely, Senator, on the num-
bler of shots, The wear of the lands depends on the munber of
shots.

Q. I am talking of ordinary use?—A. If Kgu go through target
practice, a man fires during target practice, I think, about 600 shots—
that is, for record shooting—and if he is a poor shot he may fire
twice the number in preliminary work.

Q. In what time?—A. During the three months of target practice.
Each company is allowed a month.

8. Doc. 402, 60-1, pt 6——8
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Q. And would that wear the gun out?—A. Oh, yes; that would .
wear the gun,

Q. Then, these new Springfield rifles, at three months, with the
ordinary practice in camp, would become useless?—A. Well, I would
hardly say that. As I stated before I do not know so very much
about the Springfield, but the greater the number of shots that were
fired out of the rifle, the greater would be the work of that rifle.

Q. The Krag rifle you had, how long had that heen in the service?- -
A. We had had them since the regiment was organized, February 2,
1901, landing in the Philippines the 23d of March, 1901. We were
tlmmqh with the Bellormino campaign, and down in Samar, and re-
turned to the United States ahout Septembey, 1903, and those rifles
were worn then. I do not say all of them were.

Q. But they had been in service about three yvears?—A. Three
vears. We did not do any tar?et. practice at all. Evervthing had
been jll)lSt the shooting in actua cumpai?ns..

Q. Do you know anything about the cleaning of a gun?—A. Yes,
sir,

sir,

Q. About how long does it take to clean a gun?—A\. Well, with
the smokeless powder, to thoroughly clean a-gun, it ought to take—
that is, if a man has all the appliances and knows how to clean his
gun—TI should think, ten minutes.

By Senator Lobge:

Q. T suppose it makes some difference whether the gun is allowed
to lie twenty-four hours, or is cleaned within a few hours?—A\. Yes,
sir if it.is cleancd right after shooting it can be done in practically
a good deal less time, but at other times this nitro powder seems to
eat in and leave spots on the inside of the barrel.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. That is, if a gun is allowed to remain twenty-four hours or
so?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But if cleaned within two or three hours afterwards it is a
very easy matter?—A. Yes, sir.

3'. How many minutes would you say, if it was cleaned imme-
diately afterwards?—A. I should say about eight or ten minutes.
They have a preparation which can be bought at the post exchanges.
I know we had one at Ringgold. I forget exactly the name of it.
You dampen a rag and run it through; it is some special solvent
for the nitro powder. I don’t know exactly what it was. Tt was a
special preparation put up by the Winchester people, and it seemed
to clean the gun more ra ld}iv and better than the others.

Q. And the more the lands of the gun are worn the easier it is to
clean, is it not?—A. Well, I don’t know. It would practically have
the same surface to clean.

Q. It would be the same surface, but the grooves you would have
to get in and the other would be the smooth surface?-—-A. Yes, sir;
you would not have so deep into the grooves to get in. I should
think it would be a hardly perceptible difference, thoujzh.

By Senator Lonee:
Q. If the gun is cleaned immediately, or within two or three
hours after shooting, it is less diflicult to clean with this smokeless
owder than with the old powder, and it is more difficult to clean
if it is allowed to stay twenty-four hours?—A. Yes, sir.
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By Senator Perrus:

Q. Captain, did T understand you to say that the new gun would
not carry the ball as far as a gun that was worn?—A. I said that of
course when the lands are perfectly new all pressure on the ball
wonld serve to retard it to a certain extent up to a certain point.

Q. But does it not shut up the gas in there so as to allow none of it
to escape?—A. Yes, sir; it does that.  Of course, all these things are
almost imperceptible differences, but when you come right down to
the actual theoretical considerations, whether the amount of gas that
is kept in, increasing the pressure. will overbalance the retardation
of the bullet——

Q. T want your opinion as to which effect it would have—A. I
tlon't know whether you mean the gun being dirty or whether——

Q. A new gun cleaned or an old gun cleaned, which would carry
the hall the farthest?—A. I think the new gun would.

By Senator Longe:

Q. One question that I wanted to ask as to that matter of penetri-
tion. We were speaking about_the bullet going throngh houses. T
read a statement which is in evidence before the court-martial, page
162 of the printed War Department record:

“There was a single shot fired afterwards that struck the front of our house
and Just took off the top of ihe cornice of the wardrobe in our front room—in
the room in which my wife and I sleep—and then ran along the eelling abunt
2 feet, tearing the wall paper, then took an upward course, went through the
colling, through the floor In the room upstajrs, and then went through bhoth
walls, and that bullet Is the one that hit the Catholic Chureh and struck the
window where Father Smith's room is.”—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You don’t know whether that Is the same bullet or not?—A. That is a
mistake, I should have sald probably the same hullet. Father Smith was
with me, and we took thie alignment of the holes, and they struck in about the
sime directton—{Extract from F. E. Starck’s testinony.]

Now, that might have been from a high-power rifle, might it
not #—A. Senator— . )

Q. I mean it is possible?—A. Yes; it is possible. It might be. It
is hard to say what a bullet will do. )

Q. I only meant that a high-power rifle bullet might do that?—A.
Might do that; yes, sir.

By the CHAIRMAN®

Q. A high-power bullet is just as easily deflected, on striking some
substance, as o low-power bullet. and perhaps more so. is it not?-—A\,
Yes, sivy I think probably a high-power bullet would be more easily
deflected.

By Senator Lobgr:
Q. If it was fired into a little frame houvse?—A. Yes, sir, It
might go all the way around the room.
. It might take a zigzug conrse and go through a large numbei
of obstacles before it dropped #—.A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Fosrer:
Q. When did you first go to Brownsvillet—A. On January 25,
1904.
Q. And you remained there until when?—A. Until the 2d of June,
1906, barring eight months when I was away north.
Q. You became pretty well ucquainted with the people of the
town?—A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And the character of the people of the town?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. During your stay there?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What 1s the population of the town?—A. I should say about
6,000, I think.

Q. What [proportion of the population is American and what
portion is Mexican?—A. Well, Senator they grade off there, and a
good many of the Mexicans are mixed up with the Americans, T
should say three-fourths of those people, possibly more than that,
were of Mexican extraction with Mexican blood in their veins.

Q. What proportion would {ou say is pure?—A. Pure Mexican?

Q. Pure Mexican.—A. Well, certainly over half.

Q. Now, what was the character of the white population, American
or foreign?—A. There is a portion of the people there the inhabit-
ants, that are purely American in their ideas and thougilts and man-
ners and everything else, but that is a very small proportion of the
town, and the rest are, as 1 say, either mixed up in business and
social’ly with the Mexicans, a good many of them having their friends
among the Mexicans,

Q. Are a good many of the Mexicans, or those descended from the
Mexicans, men and women of good character?—A. I do not say any-
" thing at all about their character; T think undoenbtedly they ave.

Q. Engaged in business, are they not?—A. Mr. Yturrin may be
mentioned as one of them.

Q. Are not n great many of the son- and daughters of the Mexi-
cans down there educated #—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well educated, and a great many of the girls accomplished ?—
A. T have never seen any of them cxcept over in Matamoros. They
rarely go out anywhere at all, but keep to themselves.

Q. Thesoe people are engaged in mercantile business, the Mexicans,
some }(:f them?—.\. Yes, sir; own ranches and one thing and another
like that. .

Q. And the Americans, what kind of business are they engaged
in?—A. Well, they are mostly connected with some bank or the cus-
tom-house, or ~omething or other like that.

Q. How many banks aré there in Brownsville?—A. Three, really,
with Yturria’s bank. That is & Erivate bank. There is the First
National and the Merchants’ Bank,

Q. Are there any dry-goods stores?—A. Yes, sir; there are two or
three good-sized stores there.

Q. Are they run by Americans or Mexicans?—A. One is run by an
American—two are run by Americans and one is run by a Mexican.
He is well out of the town, though, and caters mostly to the Mexican
trade, although they have very nice things there.

Q. Are there any cordial relations between the Americans and the
Mexicans?—A. A certain class of Americans do not mix with themn
very much; possibly more with the people across the river at Mata-
moros. We used to go over quite frequently.

Q. Are the officials of the town elected by the citizens of the
town?—A. Yes, sir; I think so; in fact, I am sure of it. There are
certain positions that are elective and others are appointive,

Q. Appointed by whom?—.\. Appointed by the mayor.

Q. Does the ordinary Mexican, the pure Mexican, vote over
there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He is a citizen, is hel—A, Yes, sir; he votes.
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Q. Then out of that entire population you estimate that there were
about twelve respectable families?—A. Well, T would hardly use the
term “ respectable,” I think there are a good many others that are
perfectly respectable, but what I mean is twelve families that you
would like to bring into your home and to associate with.

Q. Do the young men there go to colleges and schools?—A. They
have only one public school there and a convent.

Q. What I mean, are they sent away—any of them sent off to
school?—A. Yes, sir; some of them, occasionally; about three boys
that I know of in town that have gone away to school.

Q. You were there for nearly three years?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were treated well while you were there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever have any trouble or difficulty with any of the
pmf)le personally 2—A. No, sir; I don’t know of any, except, as I
<aid, purely a personnl matter hetween one of the citizens theve and
myself seven or eight months ago.

Q. Were you subject to any insults or any unkind treatment owing
to the fact tKat you were an oflicer of the Army#—A. Well, on one oc-
casion I was.

Q. By whom?—A, By one of the customs officials; a Mr. Hudnall,
[ think it is. Ile is dead now.

Q. He is now dead?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. These customs officials were honest officinls, were they not, us
lar as you knew 2—A, As far as I knew; yes, sir,

Q. That is the only personal misunderstanding you had while you
were there?—A. Yes, sir, -

Q. Was that owing to the fact that you were an officer in the United
States Army or owing to some personal misunderstanding?—A. No,
<irj that was Lecause I was an officer stationed at IFort Brown.

Q. And this was an officic] of the United States Government also
with whom you had this?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is the ouly difficulty you can recall in your three years’
~tay there?—A. Yes, sir; and he was not a resident of the town at all.
e was just sent down there.

Q. Do you know where fromf—A. T don’t know where from. Ile
was sent down to investigate one of the custom-house men there,

Q. Was he from Washington?—A\. No, sir; I think he came from
~omewhere in Texas.

Q. Was he permanently or temporarily there?—A. He was there
unly temporarily.

By the Cirairvan:

Q. e, like you, was in the United States service, was he not?—A.
Yes, sir.

By Senator Foster:

Q. So he could not very well have had any prejudice against you
on account of your uniform, as he was a kind of brother oflicer in the
United States service?—A. Well, Senator, I would not mind just
briefly ontlining the case.

Q. I do not care about it unless some other member of the commit-
tee cares about it. Now. do you know how many oflicers of the bat-
talion were stationed there with you during the three years?—A\,
Well, there must have been fouriven or sixtecen oflicers from time to
time,

’
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Q. Do you know any ofticer who was mistreated or insulted %y any
of the citizens of that town, owing to the fact that he was a United
States officer?—A. No, sir.

Q. They were all treated as gentlemen?—A. Most courteous treat-
ment.

Q. Now, do you know of your own knowledge, Captain—not from
hearsay, or not from what was communicated to you by anyone, or
the result of any examination that you made—do you know of a
single soldier who was mistreated on the ground that he was a United
States soldier in your battalion¥—A. Well, I only know—that might
probably come under hearsay, but it was admitted by the man.

Q. I am speaking not of hearsay, but of your own knowledge.—A.
This came to me officially, and I took it to the mayor, and it was
admitted, and he said that he would correct it. There were two of
the soldicrs of my company, Sergeant Case, and I have forgotten the
name of the othei man, that were kept out of a skating rink because
they had the uniform on. They were both perfectly sober, and they
veported to me at once. T went to Major Combe, who was the mayor,
and he called up the skating-rink man and asked him whether that
was true, and he «aid yes; and the mayor said, “ If that happens
again, T will take your license away from you.”

Q. Is that the only case yon recall?—A. That is the only case I
know of my own personal knowledge.

By Senator Overman:

Q. Were these men officers or common soldiers?—A. Soldiers.
One of them was a sergeant.

Q. This was a skating rink where ladies and children congre-
gated?—A. Well, everybody went there, Mexicans and every'edy
else.  Of course the poorer class of Mexicans were kept out, like they
would be in any place.

By Senator Foster:

Q. Captain, you speak of considerable prejudice against white
soldiers as woll as negro soldiers.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did this prejudice extend to the Mexicans? Were they preju-
diced against t{:e white soldiers and the negro soldiers?—A. Do yon
mean the Mexicans in Brownsville?

Q. Mexicans in Brownsville.—A. Well, T should think yes, in a
way; three-fourths of the population were Mexicans, and they must
have been in it if the general tone of the town was hostile to the
soldiers; it must have been held by the Mexieans also.

Q. I am asking you about your knowledge. Was this prejudice -
against the soldier, white or colored, confined to the white American
population?—A. No, sir.

. Or did it extend to the Mexican::?—A. It extended to the Mexi-
cans also, and people of Mexican extraction.

Q. Well, now, what kind of prejudice did the Mexicans have
against the white soldier ?—A. Well, they looked upon the American
soldier as a common prey for them at any time and all times. Theyv
would have him arrested and brought up, and he would be fined $2
and costs, and the costs would generally amount to about $10.

Q. That was the Mexicans?—A. Yes, sir; that would be the Mexi-
can policemen, and on sworn complaint of different Mexicans.
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Q. Well, now, how do you account for that prejudice of the Mexi-
cans against the white soldiers?—A. I don’t know, sir.

Q. What was the cause of the prejudice of the white citizens
against the white soldiers?—A. I could not say.

Q. Did you find that prejudice in Fort Brown greater than you
found it in other places in which you had been stationed?— A.
Well, yes; because it is & small place, and you would hear and see
more things. I suppose probably in San Antonio they would have
just as much prejudice, but it is a large place and you do not hear
and see it,

Q. Is it not a fact that there is always more or less friction and
prejudice between the soldiers stationed in a town and the citizens
of the town?—A. Yes, sir; undoubtedly.

Q. That is a fact, is it not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Whether they are white soldiers or colored soldiers?—A. White
soldiers or colered. A soldier when he is drinking, you know, is
apt to say and do some things that antagonize somebody, and they
do not forget those things.

Q. Now, Captain, probably you are not aware of it, but you have
brought a pretty severe indictinent against the people of Brownsville,
and I wish to ask you if these cases which you have gtated, in which
you allege that the soldier was mistreated, are cases in which you,
of your own knowledge, know anything abqut the facts and circum-
stances attending the immediate difficulty 2—A. No, sir.

Q. You have stated that there were two homicides in that town,
of which the local authorities took no notice.—A. I snid to the best
of my knowledge, sir. . ,

Q. To the best of your knowledge. Do you know anything about
the facts or circumstances attending those homicides of your own
knowledge?—A. I only know the one; that was the case of Mr. Lon
Hill; that there had been this man, I think his name was Williams,
that he went--I don’t know exactly what it was, but he had made
some threat against him or said he would shoot him, or something
like ihat.

Q. Do you know that of your own knowledge?—A\, I know that
simply by being told.

Q. And you know, then, absolutely nothing about the facts attend-
ing the immediate killing?—A. No, sir; absolutely nothing.

By Senator OvERMAN:
Q. Captain, were you generally acquainted with the prominent peo-
ple of the town?—A. I think I knew them all.
Q. Did you know George B. Rendall?—A., I knew him, but not
very well; no, sir.
Senator Warxer. George W. Rendall?—A. George W. Rendall,
By Senator OverMaN:
Q. Do you know what his general character was¥—.\, No, sir,
Q. Did you know Mr. Sanborn?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you know his general character?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. What is it?2—A, Tt is not very good in Brownsville, sir.
Q. Did you know Mr. ITale Odin?—A. I don’t think I knew him,
Q. You say Doctor Combe’s character is good #—A. Yes, sir; both
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of them—there are two Doctor Combes—Doctor Joe and Doctor
Ifred; and then there is old Doctor Combe—three of them.

Q. Do you know anything against Mr. Rendall?——A. No, sir; I
don’t know anything one way or the other about him,

. Q. He stands pretty high in that community?—A. I don’t know,
Lir,

Q. Do you know Mr. Joseph Martinez, the druggist?—A. A good
many of those pe(()Fle I knew by sight to speak to.

Q. Hoe was the druggist?—A. Was he at the Botega Pe Leon?

Q. He was a druggist.—A. There are three or four drug stores.
There are two or three of those men that I knew to speak to, but I
don’t remember their names.

Q. You do not remember him as a druggist?—.\. No, sir; there
are three or four druggists.

Q. A drug store kept bt' Martinez?—A. No, sir; not kept by him.
Doctor Combe had one, Willinms had one, and one was kept by Mr.
Putegnet. Martinez must have been a clerk in one of the drug stores.

Senator Foraxer. He was a clerk in a drug store in Brownsville?

A. They were owned by the other three men.

By Senator FosTER:

Q. Captain, { believe you stated that you heard frequent discus-
sions on the part of citizens there about the coming of the colored
troops?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I understood you to say that there was a good deal of opposi-
tion to the coming of those troops there?—A. s, sir.

Q. Did you ever discuss that matter {mrticularly with any of the
citizens there?—A. Yes,sir; I think I did on one occasion with Mr.
I'rank B. Hill. T used to visit down at his house; my wife and my-
self used to go down quite frequently.

Q. He was one of the respectable gentlemen of the town?—A. Yes,
sir; and we talked the matter over there on one or two occasions.
My impression is that he is the only one I have talked to.

Q. He is the only one you can recall#—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, upon the occasion of this conversation with Tillman, who
at the time of this trouble was running a saloon, I beliecve——A. No,
sir; running a grocery store.

Senntor Warxer. One of the largest grocery stores in the city.

By Senator FosTER:

Q. What class of a man was he?--A. An average man that would
keep a small grocery store.

. What did he state to you about the coming of the negro
troops?—A. There were two or three of us standing in the store
there, and he was reading the evening paper, which comes at about
half past 8, and he made the statement to the effect that—of course all
this is just to the best of my recollection—to the effect that it would
would not be long before the colored troops would be run out of
town, and they warld have the white troops back.

Q. I think the siatement you made in your examination in chief
was that he would run the negro troops out of town in a short time —
A. I don’t think T said “he,” but they.”

Q. That they would run them out?—A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Is that the only statement he made?—A. Well, he expreased
disapproval of the colored troops being there—that is, to the best
of my recollection.

Q. Did he state how he would run them out?—A. No, sir,

Q. Did he state who wounld run them out?—A. No, sir.

Q. In your affidavit which you made some time shortly after
this——A. September 11.

Q. Which has been read to you, you failed to put that special
language in your affidavit, I believef—A. Yes, sir; I don’t think I
used exactly the same language. It was that same idea, that they
would get rid of the darky troops.

By Senator OveErMaN:

Q. Did you understand that he intended to get rid of them by
violence?—A. I did not discuss the matter with him.

Q. How did it impress you?#—A. Well, sir, that they were simply
going to get those troops out of town by any way that they could.

Q. Were you impresced at the time with the idea that they would
do it by violence?—A. Well, Senator, I did not really give much
thought to the matter, because I know that oftentimes there is a good
deal of talk where there is not much action,

By Senator Foster:

Q. The conversation did not make sufficient impression on ysu to
lead you to believe that he would resort to force or violence to get
them out of town?—A., I did not think very much about it one way
or the other. T knew they did not like it, but they could not help
themselves. I thought they would simply settle down and every-
thivg go quietly, and I think I said to Mr. Tillman, ¥ I think you
will find the colored troops are just as good troops as you will find
anywhere, if you will treat them right.” That is my impression.
I may have said that to Mr. Hill or I may have said it to Mr. Till-
man; I don’t remember now.

Q. Then you said upon another occasion, if I understood you cor-
rectly, that they spoke of organizing a posse?—A. I said that was a
current report there in town.

Q. Did you hear anyone make that statement?—A, Several peo-
ple made the statement; I don’t remember who or where it was made,
It was current. You would hear it along the streets there.

Q. You can not recall the individual?—A. No, sir.

Q. Nor can you recall the place?—A. No, sir.

Q. At which the statement was made?—A. No, sir; nor the time.
You would hear it nearly any afternoon you went downtown, and
I used to go down about 5 o’clock.

Q. What impression did that statement make upon you, that they
were going to organize a posse and prevent the United States troops
going down there? . v

Senator PrrTus. Not the United States troops, but colored troops.

A. Colored troops.

By Senator Foster:

Q. Well, colored troops are United States troops. Did that make
any impression upon you?—A. T did not pay much attention to it.
You can hear pretty nearly anything in the market,
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Q. Did you look upon that as an idle talk of the street cornersi—A.
I did not pay much attention to it, because that class of people worked
themselves up into a furore.

Q. That was principally among the Mexicans, was it not?—A.
Mexicans and white people along the streets there, of the lower grade.

(l,). bg?ow, did you know Mr. Domingy?—A. The lieutenant of
police

Q. Yes.—A. I have seen him several times. I did not know him
personally.

Q. Was he one of the nine whom you sid could not speak the Eng-
lish language 3—A. Noi sirs he speaks the Englich language.

Q. He was on the forcc when you were there?-—A. He was the
lieutenant of police, 2nd they had——

Q. Is he the one whom you have reference to when you say there
was one out of the ten who could speak English—A. No, sir; he was
the lieutenant of police; and when I said the police force I under-
stood the police force consisted of the lieutenant of police, the chief
of police, and tenn men. There was one man besides that——

) & Then the lientenant of police could speak English?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Did the chief of police speak English—A. Oh, yes; he was a
white man.

Q. And there was one more?—A. There was one other man; yes,
sir.

Q. You are absolutely certain, Captain, that only one of those
could understand the English language—that only one of the ten
could understand it?—A. I am as certain as I can be at this time,
Senator. That is some three years ago.

Q. Have you read over the court-martial proceedings?—A. No,
sir. I attended one or two sessions. .

Q. In San Antonio?—A. One or two; yes, sir.

Q. You were not a witness before that court-martial?—A. I was
a witness before it; yes, sir; simply on cartridges.

Q. Is your evidence in this printed volume?—A. I don't know. I
don’t know how far down that brings it.

By Senator FosTER:

Q. Do you remember on what day you testified ¥—A. It was just
relative to cartridges—my identifying some Mannlicher and Mauwr
and I{rag and Springfield cartridges—that was all.

Q. Did you see any of the witnesses from Brownsville, citizens of
the town, who were witnesses before that court-martial?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. As a rule, were they men and women of good character and
standing?—A. Well, I did not see them all. The ones that I saw
were simply the men that I had known down there, who came over,
who would be around and stop in the office. My office is right within
a few doors of the court-martial room. They often stopped in there
and spoke to me, Mayor Combe and Mr. Kroeger.

Q. Is it not a fact that wherever your battalion or regiment may
be stationed soldiers, especially on Xay day, are in more or less
trouble and difficulties in the towa?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. And that many arrests are made; that that happens at almost
any place?{—A. It is apt to happen nearly anywhere,
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Q. Is it not a fact that they are arrested and put in jail and
tried ?—A. Occasionally. Sometimes two or three pay days will
o by and there are no arrests and no troubls; and then there may
come a pay day and five or six are arrested.

Q. Put in jail and tried before the committing officer and either
convicted or acquitted?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Well, the experience you had down there, or that your soldiers
had down there, was not different from the experienco they had in
other cities and towns, was it?—A. Yes, sir; it was.

Q. In what way?—A. That the police went out of their way to

et after the men. Now, I took the matter up very carefully. W‘;)en

went down there, there had been g second lieutenant in command
of my company, and he had not paid much attention to the company,
and the men were all leaving the company, because 1men will not stay
in a company if the company commander does not take care of them.
They do not mind it—in fact, I think they rather appreciate it—
if the company commander gets after them himself, but they want
their rights, and I took that matter up with the commanding officer,
Maj. George F. Cook, and alse saw the other company commanders,
Captain Baldwin and Captain Roach. Captain Roach was away at
that time, I think. I have forgotten whether he was on leave or not,
and we wanted to see if we could not do something to make the con-
ditions between Brownsville and the troops at Fort Brown a little
more bearable. I knew that oftentimes the fault might have been
on both sides, but they were too quick and ready to jump on a soldier.
A man might be in civilian clothes, and be down in town, and be just
as drunk, and he would not be arrested, but a man in soldier’s clothes
would be arrested, and it got so there after a while——

Q. What is your opirion about a soldier wearing the uniform
being drunk, or a citizen wearing ordinary citizen’s clothes being
drunk, so far as the duties of the peace officers are concerned ?—A.
So far as the ethical question is concerned, each being drunk, they
should both have the same punishinent, and the soldier should be
punishied by the military authorities for disgracing his uniform in
a public place. He gets it twice; but they are both drunk, and they
should both ceme under the same municipal laws of the town. Then
we attend to them afterwards, when we get them on the post.

Q. Now, Captain, I did not %et exactly—in fact, I was a little
confused—owing to myself entirely, and not owing to your statement
of it—about the wearing away of the lands upon a rifle.—A. Yes,sir.

Q. And the cartridge that could be used in a rifle in which the
lands had been worn away.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I should like to get it clear upon that subject. Now, yon say
the Krag-Jorgensen rifle, after being shot three or four hundred
times, the lands will be worn down?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can ypu use in that rifle a cartridge that is used in the Spring-
field rifle?—A. I never tried that, I don’t know. I think the car-
tridge of the Springfield is a little bit loréger than the cartridge of the
Krag, so that it could not be chambered. That is my impression.
I don’t know; I have never compared the two.

Q. Can the cartridge of the Mauser be used in the Krag?—A. Yes,
sir; the Mauser cartridge is a smaller caliber, but it conld be fired.
Of course it would not have the same velocity, because there would
be so much escaping gas around the sides, '
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Q. In your judgment, however, the cartridge of the Springfield
fiﬂe could not be used in the Krag?—A. I think it is a little bit
onger.

Could it be used in the Mauser?—A. After the Mauser has
been worn down, like a good many of them are—that is, from serv-
jce—Idthink that either the Springfield or the Krag cartridge could
DO used. *

Q. But have you ever known it to be used of your own knowl-
edge?—A. In the Philippines—that is, the Krag cartridge.

6. No; but the Springfield rifle?—A. We did not have the Spring-
field rifle in the Philippines. :
Q. Of your own knowledge do you know of the Sprirafield car-
kr.idﬁe ever having been used either in the Mauser or the Kragt—
o, sir.

Q. Ts there a difference between the cartridge of the Krag and the
Mauser and the Springfield; and if so, what is the difference?—A.
The Springfield cartridge is a little bit longer than the Kra% car-
tridge, and the Krag and the Springfield both are a little larger
caliber than the Mauser. There is a difference in the shell, as the
Krag shell has a shoulder on it which engages on the lips of the
chamber when it is shoved home. In the Springfield cartridge that
shoulder is lacking, and there is a groove, so that practically the
whole outside of the case is practically the same size, and this groove
is made so that the sides of the clip, which is a small piece of tin, will
fit into it—will engage in the grooves on either side. The difference,
practically, in a few words, between the Krag and the Springfield is
that on the Krag there is a shoulder, and on the Springfield there
is a groove at the base of the cartridge.

By Senator FosTEr: .

Q. You have stated in your examination in chief something about
snapping a cartridge two or three times before it exploded #—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Did you have reference then to the Springﬁeld cartridge being
used in the Krag rifle, or the Springfield cartridge being used in the
Springfield rifle?—A. To the Springfield cartridge being used in the
IS{pringﬁffld rifle, and also to the Krag cartridge being used in the

rag rifle.

Q. What is the difference in the pe'netratin%] energy of a Krag
cartridge and a Springfield cartridge?—A. The Springfield is a
much higher power rifle, and the difference I should suppose would
probably be 8 or 10 inches in pine in favor of the Springfield,
and possibly 6 or 7 in oak in favor of the Springfield rifle. I have
not looked those things up, but that is my impression.

Q. The penetrating power, of the Krag rifle you say is about
40 inches of pine?—A. Yes, sir; with the Krag,.

Q. Now, suppose you take 100 cartridges, would each one of those
cartridges penetrate exactly the 40 inches, or would there be a differ-
ence?—A. They are supposed to be exactly the same, because the
are tested and put under the same atmospheric pressure at the arsenal.

Q. Well, is not the penetration of one of these buHets owing very
largely to the course that the bullet takes? Suppose it is deflected ?—
- A, Obh, yes; of course that would have an effect upon it. Any de-

e e ——————
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flection of the ball during its flight snd then ultimately reaching a
target would affect its penetration.

Q. Suppose one of those rifles should be shot and the ball after
going through, say, an inch, were deflected at an angle of 45°, and
then should penetrate, say, another inch of pine timber and be de-
flected again, say, 15° or 20°, how much would that lesson the
penetrating power of the ball?—A, That is impossible for me to
say. I do not know, sir.

: Q. Would it l..sen it at all?—A. T should suppose so, but I don’t
know.

Q. Well, these balls perform somne very remarkable feats some-
times, do tiley not?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator OVERMAN:

Q. Captain, if there were as many as fifteen or twenty soldiers
from this battalion over in Matamoros any day, would that be an
unusual thing?—A. No, sir; on bull-fight days the whole outfit were
over there pretty nearly, except 10 men who were required to stay in
quarters,

Q. And what time would those soldiers have to return?—A. Re-
turn for retreat, un:ass they had a special pass. That would be about
5.30 in the afternoon.

Q. Then if there were as manfv as fifteen or twenty men there after
7 o’clock without pass, that would be unusual, would it?—A. Over in
Matamoros?

Q. Yes—A. Without a pass; yes.

Q. Wonld it be unusual for as many as fifteen or twenty to be over
there with a pass?—A. Not at all.

Q. Must they all have a pass to go?—A. Not a pass to go ncross the
river, but a pass to be absent from a formation. They could go across
the river any time, as long as they did not miss a formation. At
least, that pertained there—

By Senator BuLkrLeY: .
Q. That is your own battalion you refer to?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. There is a litile house called the ordnance house shown on the
map there. What is stored in there?—A. A lot of obsolete munitions
of gar that were shipped there some time during 1864 or 1865—old
stuff. :

Q. There was nothing there except out-of-date stuff?—A. Well,
there was some. They also kept down there some modern ammuni-
tion on hand. I was not the ordnarce officer, but they kept some
modern ammunition on hand there—target material and things like
that; but most of the storehouse was taken up with old obsolete stuff.

Q. They did keep there some modern ammunition?—A. Oh, yes;
they.ﬁlid keep some modern ammunition and also powder for the
reveille,

Q. Were there any rifles kept up there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Rifles too?—A. Yes, sir; there was in my time, because I got
some from the ordnance officer.

By Senator Foster:
Q. Captain, what kind of cartridge belt is used for inspectiont
1s it the McKeever belt or the web suspender belt#—A. That is left
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a good deal to the post and regimental commanders, Senator. When
they turn out in blue uniform they generally wear the McKeever
belt with the McKeever box, but when they are in the olive drah and
service uniform they %enerally wear the sweb belt with thimbles,

Q. That is left, as
Yes, sir; but now they do not use the web belt with the thimbles,
but use the one with the pockets to hold the clips. That is left.
entirely with the commanding officer, though.

Q. But in a battalion, would one company be permitted to be in-
spected with the McKeever belt and another company with the web
belt, or would the whole battalion be required to use one kind of
belt¥—A. That would depend on whether it was a battalion forma-
tion or & company inspection. If it was » company inspection, it
was usually left to the company commanders to order the uniform
they desired to inspect their company in, and they generally have
company inspection about two Saturdays out of each month, and the
other two Saturdays would be battalion, and they would all be ex-
actly the same.

- Q. Suppose you were going to have an inspection at an unusual
time, not a regular inspection day, what would the companies be
required to use upon an occasion of that kind, in a battalion inspee-
tion?—A, That would depend entirely on the major in command of
the battalion. He would order it as he saw fit.

Q. Suéapose you were going to have an inspection, and the men were
not notified that they were going to have an inspection. Would each
compatiy commander be permitted to use the belt that its commanding
officer saw fit?—A. That cquld hardly be, Senator, because if there
was going to be an inspection the commanding officer would know
about it at least two hours before hand, and word would be sent
around what the uniform would be.

Q. Suppose that on the morring of the 14th, after this trouble in
Brownsville, the commanding officer had an inspection and had failed
to notify the men even that he was %oinlg to have an inspection what
kind of belt would they weari—A. Well, I don’t know, Senator; that
is ﬁoing into another regiment, and I don’t know what the rules were
and what pertnined in that regiment. I would not like to say, be-
cause I don’t know.

By Senator FoRrakEeRr:

Q. Captain, you speak about passes, and men going over to Mata-
moras. I understood you to say that while you were there it was
unnecessary for a man to have a pass to go over to Matamoras during
the daytime?—A. No, sir; provided he did not miss a formation.

Q. That is, he .woujd have to be back for retreat and all the roll
calls?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And all the drills, and everything elsc?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He could go across the river without having any specinl pass,
but if he wanted to stay out overnight, or be absent when there was
any formation, he would have to have a pass?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that it would be nothing unusual for 5 or 6 or 10 or 15 or
even 20 men out of a battalion of 170 to be across at Matamoras dur-
ing the daytime{—A. It would not be unusual to have that many out,
of one company, Senator. ,

understand, to the commanding officer?—A. -

-
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Q. That was your experience there, was iti—A. Yes, sir. Men
came and went as long as they could behave themselves across the
river.

Q. You spoke about cleaning guns, and estimated that about ten
minutes would be necessary for cleaning one of these guns. Let me
put the question to you in a different way. Suppose you wanted one
of these guns to pass inspection, and it had been fired; how long
would it require to clean it, when you had not only to clean the bors,
but clean the chamber and all that sort of thing¥—A. Screw heads,
and all—the whole gun?

Q. Yes; to put it in condition to pass a rigid insEection——your
own inspection?—A. My own inspection, it would take a man the
best part of three-quarters of an hour; I mean to thoroughly clean
the gun ai 1 the screw heads, and around the barrel—well, with the
new rifle it is cased in wood, but around the trigger guard, and the
butt plate, and everything else, to thoroughly clean the gun.

Q. And it is a very tedious job to clean one of these guns, isn’t
it?—A. It is a job a man has to be careful and go over everything,
and geaerally he takes toothpicks 1o get into every little place.

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. How long would it take to clean a gun to pass an inspection
very early in the morning in order to keep from being detected as
having been fired, so that the officer could not detect that it had been
fired? How long would it take to clean it to put in that condi-
tion?—A. I should say, just as I said before, about ten minutes.

By Sanator FoRAKER: .

Q. If you were to open up the chamber of the gun, what would
you have to do to clean it?—A. You would have to take the bolt out,
take the bolt to pieces, because there might be powder stains col-
lected in the different crevices and the portions of the jacket, and so
on, t:lnd then run a rag through the gun, or first a brush to loosen the
powder.

Y Q. You spoke of having the necessary facilities for cleaning it —A.
es, sir.

Q. Do you mean by that a cleaning rod#—A. Cleaning rag and
thong and rags.

Q. Now, have you yourself had much experience in cleaning these
modern rifles, or do you leave that to the men?—A. No, sir; I leave
that to the men. I have cleanced them at the academy lots of times.

Q. In reading this testimony beforg the court-martial, I see that
First Sergeant Gebhard, of your regiment, was examined on that
point. Do you know Iirst Sergeant Gebhard, Twenty-sixth Infan-
try#—A. What company does he belong to? .

Q. T do not recall now.—A. The regiment is changing a good deal,’
men going out and coming in. I possibly know him by sight, but I
don’t know him personally.

Q. I see he estimates that it would take at least twenty minutes to
clean one of these guns after it had heen fired so it would pass inspec-
tion. Is that an unreasonable estimate according to your experi-
encef—-A. To pass & thorough, rigid inspection, no sir; it is not un-
reasonable,
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Q. If there had been a shooting up of & town, and somebody would
come in and charge that your men were guilty of that shooting up,
and you were to have an inspection with a view to finding out whether
or not they had been engaged in it, you would make a rigid inspec-
tion, would you not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Looking carefully for ﬁowder, not only in the bore but also for
indications of firing in the chamber?—A. Around the firing pin.

Q. To get ready for that kind of an inspection would take how
Lo'ng?—-A. 1 should say, just as I said, for a man thoroughly to clean

is gun—

Q. That is what I mean.—-A. There are three different phases
" which have been put to me; first of all just simply cleaning the barrel,
which I said would be ten minutes, and then cleaning the whole gun
for rigid inspection.

By Senator BuLkEeLeY:

Q. That was only cleaning the barrel you meant, when you said
ten minutes?—A. Yes, sir; and then cleaning the whole gun—I mean
getting in to the screw heads and butt plates, and all around there, to
make a really and absolutely clean gun—I should say it would take
three-quarters of an hour, if you want to clean the barrel and take
the firing pin apart, and take the jacket off, and the striker, the
plunger, and the spring out, because there might be some powder in
_ there. I should say twenty minutes was certainly not more than
ample time, not more than sufficient time,

By the CHamryaN:

Q. I want to put a practical question. Let us not go into details
so much. Suppose you were going to take this gun that is behind yon
there, and you found it in perfect condition, and you should go out
and fire it three or four times. What would you do then in cleaning
it to put it in condition so as to put it back there in the rack to leave
it Hnt}':l 'oin wanted to use it some other time?—A. Clean the barrel
and the boit.

By Senator ForARER:
Q. And the chamber also?—A. That is included in the barrel.
Q. Would you take the bolt out?—A. Yes, sir; and the clip. That
is all apt to be stained with powder.

. By the CHairMAN:
Q. What you mean is that in the one or two discharges the powder
would come back into the lock,.and so forthi—A. Itis apt to.

By Senator IFoRAKER:
Q. State whether or not you could do that in the dark.—A. Well,
' } wmtl(lld hate to stand inspection with it afterwards. I don’t think
could.

Q. You think it would he very difficult, don’t yout—A. Yes, sir;
I think it would be very difficult to do.

Q. You were examined about the practice on the target range with
respect to cartridges. I want to ask you, is it not a fact that when
men are taken out on the target range to engage in turget practice
the quartermaster’s sergeant takes out the cartridges which are to be
used, stays there in charge of them, either he or some representative
of him, and that each man who engages in the firing is allotted the

-y
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specific number of cartridges he is to fire, and that it is all under the
eye of an officer ?—.A. Yes, sir; it is usual to take the quartermaster’s
sergeant and the artificer, and the artificer carries a sack with him to
take the empty shells. A man takes his box of 20 cartridges, goes to
the stand and does his firing under the supervision of an ollicer, picks
up his shells, brings them to the artificer, and the artiticer has a
bucket with soda in it to clean them, and he decaps them and puts
them in the sack.

Q. Suppose a man to be given 10 rounds—ten cartridges to fire—
and for some reason, his gun getting out of order, or some other
reason, he should fire only 8 of them, what has he to do with the other
two?—A. He turns the rest of them in.

Q. Back to the quartermaster’s sergeant?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, if a man should undcrtnﬁe to filch cartridges—I suppose
that is the proper word—I mean misa?propriate then, stick them in
his pocket, as was stated a while ngo, while engaged in target practice,
he would have to do that under the eye of an oflicer, would he not?—
A. He takes his chances.

Q. Would that be in violation of rules or orders?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. If a man would be caught at it, what would be done?—-A. He
would be put before a summary court and punished as a summary
court might see fit,

Q. Ile would be court-martialed, in other words?—A. Yes, sir; by
a summary court,

Q. So that a man doing that would be just like any other man
violating the law #—A. He takes his risk to do it.

Q. If a man picks your pocket, he takes the risk?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the same general principle would apply here, I sup-
pose?—A. Yes, sir. _ .

Q. Now, you speak of bucking eartridges. That is polishing them
up?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you were asked if a man might have ten that were pol-
ished and ten that were not, ten for sunshiny days and ten for rainy
days. Could he have those without being charged with them?—A.
Not if it came absolutely fo the knowledge of the company com-
mander. As a mafter of fact, you know, Senator, there are a good
many small things like that that are done that if they do not come
officinlly to you you do not pay attention to them.

Q. But suppose a man to be issued twenty rounds of cartridges——
A. He could not be issued them.

Q. If a man should be issued twenty—it is not unusual for each
man to have twenty rounds of cartridges, is it, in the company #—
A. Well, ten,

Q. He could polish up ten of those, to use on guard duty if he
wanted to?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then he would have ten that were not polished?—A. DBut
he would be accountable for twenty.

Q. He would be charged with twenty ?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And if he gave away any of his cartridges he would have a
deficit, would he not?—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. Is it or is it not a fact that citizens can get cartridges, to a
greater or less extent, from the men about such a garrison as that at
Fort Brown?—A. Yes, sir; in fact, in anf garrison they come out
there and take them for souvenirs--things like that.

8. Doe. 402, G0-1, pt 6——9
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Q. Get them from the men?

Senator Lopge. Ilow can they get them from the men, if the men
have to account for them ¢

A. Well, that is only a 2 or 3 cent charge put on them. They take
their chances.

Q. Then the men do give away cartridges?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. You said a while ago that they gave them away, and they
would probably only be cEm‘ged with them unless it should be dis-
covered that tfley were making a habit of it or abusing the privi-
lege?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. It is contrary to the regulations of the Army, is it not, to give
away or sell any cartridges?—A. Yes, sir; absolutely.

bQ'I Orl to part with any other Government property #—A. Yes, sir;
absolutely.

Q. Ne\?;rtheless men do sometimes do what you suggest?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. That is not the common practice, however, is it?7—A. Well, it
depends. When we went from San Francisco to Port Tampa, about
the whole regiment was cleaned out of its cartridges, going throngh
on the trains,

Q. Going where?—A. From San Francisco to Tampa.

Q. On your way to the Spanish-American war?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. That was the war spirit?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. People wanted souvenirs?--A. Yes, sirj and bunttons, too.

Q. Well, those were extraordinary times, exceptional times. Now,
do you know of any place at Fort Brown where men who wanted
surplns ammunition could go and get it, abont the fort, from any
officer or anybody?—A. No, sir; I don’t know of anybody—I don't
think it would be very difficult to get the Government cartridge there
in Brownsville or Matamoros, though.

Q. Do you think you could get cartridges in Matamoras and in
Brownsville?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What makes you think that?—A. Well, I have been out hunt-
in ]wilh different people at different times, and they have had car-
tridges.

Q{g Who were these people?—A. Mr. Celaya was one.

Q. A citizen of Brownsville?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He had some Government cartridges?—A. They have Govern-
ment cartridges. I have had people come up and ask if you could
Luy a Government gun,

Q. A Government gun?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Why did they want a Government gun?—A. I suppose for deer
hunting around there. There arc a great many deer around there.

By Senator OVERMAN:
Q. They could not have gotten it from soldiers?—A. I do not
know ; they were left around down there.

By Senator FORAKER:
Q. Is it not true that if a soldier parts with some of his ammuni-
tion he has less than he had before?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. So that if a soldier with 20 rounds of ammunition parts with

»

b rounds of it he has only 15 rounds?—A. Yes, sir,
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By Senator Lobok:

Q. If a citizen can get ammunition, what is to prevent soldiers fromn
getting it7—A. I do not know, sir, except that I do not think that
they are going to buy things that they can go around and pick up for
themselves,

Q. They could pick it up, then, could they?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where would a soldier pick up cartridges?—A. Well, there is
always a certain amount around the target range, and they conld
get it there. A soldier takes his chances, just as a man does in
everything clse.

By Senator ForAKER:

Q. If a soldier picks up cartridges on the range, those would be
cartridges that somebody had lost. would they not?—A. Yes, sir.
Suppose that they make a skirmish line, and each man has 20 car-
tridges in his belt. When a man is running forward and dropping
down at a certain place and firing a certain number of shots. and then
jumping up and running forward again. and dropping down and
firing again, the natural jolting of the body is such that you are
very apt to drop some of your cartridges.

Q. Things of that sort are likely to happen?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Tt is your opinion that there were regular army cartridges in
the hands of the citizens of Brownsville and also in the hands of
citizens of Matamoros?—A. Yeg, sir: I have no doubt about it. I
have never actually seen them there, but T have no doubt that they
had them. .

Q. No matter how they got them, you are satisfied that they were
there?—A. I am satisfied that there were cartridges there; yes, sir,

By Senator Foster:

Q. That is, the Springfield cartridges?—A. The Springfield?
No. sir: the Krag. I left there, so that I do not know about the
Springfield.

By Senator IForAKER:

Q. Do you know whether there was an order issued by the War
Department on the 19th day of March, 1906—I have put it in evi-
dence here—directing that all surplus ammunition be taken up
throughout the entire Army?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You remember about that, do you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that order pronmlgnted at IFort Brown?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. ‘Was it executed?—A. Yes, sir; it was as far as my company
was concerned. I do not know about the others.

Q. You started in with the new gun and the new ammunition{—
A. Yes, sir; with the new gun and the new ammunition.

Ql_. N(? old ammunition on hand #—A. No, sir; no old ammunition
on hand.

Q. And you issued just so much ammunition?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And 1t was all counted ont to you—charged out to you, I mean—
and each company had its (%uota of ammunition issued to it by the post
ordnance officer, I suppose{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then each company issued its ammunition to its men?—
A. Yes, sir. '

Q. Is it not true that from and after the issuing of that order
ispecial pains were taken with the ammunition to see that it was all
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taken up, and the accounts were all kept straight?—A. Senator, at
the end of each quarter each troop, battery, and company commander
is required to put a certificate on his ordnance return saying “ I have
the honor to certify that I have taken up all surplus ordnance prop-
erty on this return.”

. He would not put an untruthful statement there, would he?—
A. He could not afford to do it and be an officer.

Q. If he puts a truthful statement on that return, that is a certifi-
cate that what it recites has been done?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Foraxer. I put in evidence statements of that kind from
all the company commanders in this battalion of the Twenty-fifth
Infantry, These statements run from page 268 to 279 of our records.
The certificate attached to the return of Company C is as follows:

I certify that the foregoing return exhibits a correct statement of the public
property In my charge during the half year ended June 30, 1900, and that the
muximum strength of the company during the half year was 63 enlisted wmen.

) EpcAr A. MACKLIN,
Captain, Twenty-fifth Infantry, Commanding Company.

Then follows a statement in which every item of company property
is specifically set forth, and the amount of it, and so forth. That
should be an absolutely correct return, then, should it not?—A. Yes,
sir; absolutely correct.

Q. It is an absolutely correct return, is it not ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. A company conimander or any ‘other officer would not make
such a statement as that until he had verified his property, would
he?—A. No, sir. .

Q. His ammunition and everything else?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that if we find in that report a statement showing how much
ammunition each man had, we have a right to rely upon it, accord-
ing to your experience?—A. Yeos, sir.

%2. Now, about the wearing down of the lands of a rifle. You
said that your Krag-Jorgensen rifles secemed to have become worn
down as to the lands, after yon had had them about three years, to -
such an extent that you made a requisition for 50 new rifles?—A.
Yes, sir; it was about two years and a half.

Q. You were in the Philippines during that time?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had no target practice then, at all, had you?—A. No, sir.

Q. And how much firing was done, perhaps, on an average, for
each rifle?—A. That is {n'ctty diflicult to say. We were in three
campnigns over there, and it is pretty difficult to say how much tirving
there was, or even approximately, .

Q. Three hundred or 400 rounds to each man?{—A. Oh, I should
think 300 or 400 rounds each would cover it.

Q. Three hundred or 400 rounds each. Do you know how much
target firing was done with these Springfield rifles after they got
them, at Fort Niobrara, before they left there?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know how much was done by the other companies at
Fort Brown?—A, Yes, sir.

Q. How much?—A. Four companies fired their regular course
there and completed it.

Q. How much was the allowance?—A. Four hundred and twenty
cartridges to each man.

Q. Four hundred and twenty cartridges to each man?—A, Yes,
sir; I think so.
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Q. Can yon state whether they were all fired or not?—A. No, sir;
that is the maximum allowance. Of course a man does not fire ac-
tually that many shots.

Q. Yes; I understand. They are issued about 26,000 rounds, or
something of that kind, to each company, and perhaps they fire only
16,000 or 17,000 rounds or 20,000 rounds.—A. The 1dea is to give a
poor shot more chance. A man, that will fire his record there can
fire it in about 380 shots, I think.

Q. However that may be, you think that the lands become worn
to an appreciable degree after they have been fired two or three
hundred times?—A. I found that to be the case with the Krag.

Q. You have had no experience with the Springfield ?—A. No, sir.

Q. Now, you spoke abuat telling somebody in Brownsville that
they would find the colored troops, if they came there, to be troops
that would conduct themselves well, as I understand you, or words
to that effect. Have you served with colored troops, evert—A. No
sir; but I had two classmates who served with them, and have hear
a great deal of colored troops; and then I was brigaded with the
Twenty-fifth Infantry down in Cuba.

Q. You were brigaded with them in Cuba?—A. Yes, sir; with the
Twenty-fourth or the Twenty-fifth; with the Fourth, first; and I
think it was the Twenty-fifth or it may have been the Twenty-fourth
Infantry, in Cuba. They were colored, at any rate.

Q. Then at that time you had opportunity to observe what kind
of soldiers they were?—A. Yes, sir. .

Q. What kind of soldiers are they?—A. They make very good
soldiers in every way, provided, of course, they are led by a white
man and have confidence in their leaders, their officers.

Q. Ts it a fairly easy matter to subject them to good discipline—
A. Yes, sir; but 1t has to be very prompt discipline,

Q. What?—A. Very prompt discipline,

YQ. That is, they must know you are in earnest, you think?—A.
es, sir.

Q. But with officers who understand how to handle them, colored
soldiers make good soldiers, do they?—A. Yes, sir; I believe so. .
Q. And how do they compare in their conduct, as to docility or as
to liability to commit acts of violence, on pay day or on other occa-
sions, with the white soldiers?—A. I do not know about that. I have
just heard in general terms. I know there were two classmates of
mine who were rather averse to going to colored regiments, and I
afterwards saw them and they said they would not go to a white

regiment if they could help it.

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. I wanted to ask you about this ordnance house. How far is
that from the hospital out there?—A. I should thing it was a good
800 yards, It is a good 800 yards or 900 yards.

Q. And they keep rifles and ammunition there? Now, who kept
the key to that house?—A. The ordnance sergeant, Sergeant
Hopkins.

. How do you know who kept it?¥—A. He is the ordnance ser-
geant. They have an ordnance sergeant there.

Q. They have an ordnance sergeant there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. All the time?—A, Yes, sir. The way I happen to know about -
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that is that man, Sergeant Hopkins, used to be my own first sergeant,
and I found him at Brownsville.

Q. Is that kept locked up?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is a house away off by itselfI—A. Yes, sir.

Q. With no guard around it?—A. No, sir; they have a guard
around by the corral, and he walks around by that granary, so that he
can see the ordnance storehouse.

Q. But his beat does not extend up to that house?—A\. No. sir;
it did not in our time. I do not know what the Twenty-fifth did.

Q. The same officer is there now that was there when you were
there?—A. Yes, sir; the same noncommissioned officer.

Q. Yes.—A. Of course there is a lieutenant always made ordnance
oflicer as soon as you get to a post, and he has a key also. Sometimes
they have two keys, and the ordnance oflicer and the ordnance ser-

eant each have one. I do not know how it was at Brown. Some-
times the ordnance oflicer prefers for the ordnance sergeant to keep
tho keys entirely.

Q. As to the ordnance room in the barracks where the ordunance is
kept, how many keys are theve to that?—A. Two; one kept by the
first sergcant and one kept by the quartermaster-sergeant.

Q. One by the first sergeant and one by the quartermaster-ser-

eant 2—A. Yes; that is usunl in the company.,

Q. That is usual2—A. Yes, sir.

~ By Senator Foraken:

Q. What regiment did you succced at Brownsville?—A. The
Fomrth Infantey. There was only a detachment left behind.

Q. How long had they been there?—A. About two years, I think.

Q. You do not know anything about their experience?—2A. No, sir.

By Senator WarNrr:

Q. One other question.  You were pleased to designate, in answer
to former questions I asked you. in respect to surplus eartridges,
g-horc. the soldier would have 10 for sunshine and 10 for rain?—A.

cs, sir.

. Q. That was the case where 10 cartridges were issued to the sol-
dier—that is all thac iz supposed to be issued to him?—A. Yes, sirl
Q. So that those other 10 cartridges would be extra, over and ahove

what would be issued to him?{—.\, Senator, as I said at the time,

there are a good many things that happen that way in the company
that we do not know about ofticially. Sometimes those things aceur.

But if we know that a man has 10 extra cartridges we take those up

and charge him with 20,

Q. Now, you say in substance that there was no diflienlty in gettin
these Government cartridges in Brownsville!—A, I do not thin
there would be any difficulty about it.

Q. You were hunting—— A. Yes; I have been out hunting,

Q. With parties who had the Government cartridges?—A. No,
sir; those people did not have the Government cartridges. I think
that what I said was rather misleading when T answered that way.
I tried to correct it right afterwards. What T said was that there
were several people down there I knew who had been out hunting,
and I was sure that they had used Government cartridges, but 1 did
not say that I had personally seen them,
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Q. Very well. With that correction, Captain, how do you become
sure that they had used Government cartridgesi—A. Oh, just cur-
vent report there,

Q. You knew that Government cartridges, if used, had to be gotten
some way out of the ordnance stores, did you not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. The Government did not ~ell them?—-A. No, sir; but the Win-
cuester ﬁeople sold a cartridge very much like ours.

Q. I know; but we are talking about the Government cartridges
now, Captain.—A. Yes, sir,

Q. The Government did not issue them to anybody whatsoever?—
A. No, sir. ’

Q. And it was unlawful for anybody outside to have Government
property in his possession, was it not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Just as much to have cartridges as it was to have clothing?—A.
Yes, sir.

Q. When you found ont that these parties had Government ear-
{ridges, if you were sure of it, did you investigate it ?—.A\. No, sir;
that is the duty of the post commander.

Q. Did you report that to the post commander?—A. The post com-
mander was thoroughly cognizant of affairs. I do not think T made
that especial report. I made reports on several oceasions of different
articles of Government property that were in the hauds of civilians.

Q. But the fact is, 1f these parties had Government cartridges,
there was no extraordinary occasion, such as that when you went from
Californin across the country, for tuking your buttons or your car-
tridges or anything of the kind?—A. None whatsoever.

Q. They must have gotten those cartridges from some one con-
nected with the Army?—A. Yes, sir; cither the Fourth or the
Twenty-sixth Infantry,

Q. The ‘T'wenty-sixth Infantry averaged up a usually caveful lot
of men?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And well disciplined, as you have said before?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. There has been read to you a certificate on a return made of
ordnance—a return with a certificate attached to it. That certificate
would not contradicet what you have said, that these cartridges got
out away from the men, would it?—.\. No, sir; I do not think so;
because, you see, vou have an extra allowance there.

Q. What do you mean by an extra allowanee?2—A, Yon are allowed
420 cartridges to each man, to be expended in target practice, and I
am not exactly sure about these figures. but I think that it only takes
350 cartridges for a man to fire right throngh his course,

Q. There wonld be 40 cartridges surplus?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What were those supposed to be used for?—A. Ifor a poor shot
vou could use those extra 40 cartridges, or for a supplementary sea-
song and then if any were lost you could make them up vight there,

Q. So you would just keep those smrplus cartridges?—A. They
don’t keep them on hand., They simply drop them, up to the number
that you are supposed to have. Suppose you only have 25,000, and
vou find after the target practice you have actually 4.000 left; you
would make up your return and see whether you will use up your
25,000, If not, and it is more, you simply drop the 4,000, and you
have actually 4,000 on hand. go that each return shows actually
what you have got on hand.
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Q. It shows what you have, counting 420 rounds for each man. As
we used to do in the civil war, when sometimes we got a little short of
something of the kind, it was accounted for under the head of “ Lost
in action.”—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I want to understand this, Captain, and we all want to under-
stand it.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Just explain it in your own way again about these 420 car-
tridges—how extra cartridges would get out.—A. Well, supposing
your company consisted of 30 men; that is, taking it down to a small
number. Suppose ryo_u are allowed 420 cartridges per man for the
target practice. That would be 12,600 cartridges you would draw
from the ordnance officer. Supposing, when you came to count up,
you found you had 400 cartridges left.

Q. Yes—A. You would take up on your return 12,600 received
from the ordnance officer; expended in target practice, 12,2003 bal-
ance on hand, 400.

Q. Yes.—A. Although you could have expended the 12,600.

Q. But did that show that all the others had been expended 2—A.
No, sir; you did not expend the 420 rounds.

Q. I know; but all excepting the 400?2—A. No; you might have
lost some; some might have been defective. But as you are within
your allowance, you would simply take up what you had actually left.

Q. That is what I understood. So that it was not a malter of
care as long as you kept within your allowance$—A. Kept within
your allowance; and of course you are actually responsible for each
one, and each man 1s assumed to act in good faith toward the Govern-
ment in a case like that.

Q. And assuming that you exceed your allowance, would you
have to pay for it?—A. Yes, sir; of course, if you go outside of your
allowance you must pay for it. :

Q. Tt is charged up to you?—A. Yes, sir; to the officer.

By Senator BuLkELEY :

Q. In distributing the ammunition to the men, you do not give a
man his full 420 rounds?—A. Not at that time. Just at the times
thay shoot. If they shoot at one place, you give them 20 cartridges
to shoot there and & man may not shoot again until the next even-
ing. He goes out and you give him 20 cartridges to shoot at this
station, and so on.

Q. Is he required to shoot those cartridges?—A. Yes, sir; at that
time., He can not keep those in his possession.

Q. That is it. Each man must shoot the cartridges that he takes
or turn them in?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that he has not any suré)lus cartridges in his possession
when he gets through his shooting ¥—A. No, sir.

By Senator Lobge: ‘

Q. But a man does lose sometimes?—A. Well, I don’t know
about that, Senator.

Q. You said something about being a *“ chronic loser? "—A. Yes,
sir; there are chronic losers.

Q. That is, cartridges are lost in earrying them about, as I under-
stand?—A. Yes, sir; carrying them about in the wagon; and in
taking the boxes out of the wagon some of the small boxes are liable
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to be broken, you know, and we just try to do the best we can, of
course,

Q. But there is no trouble about a soldier having a few extra
cartridges in his possession, is there?—.\. I can only speak about
my own company. I do not know about other companies. I tried
to make it as difficult as I could for them.

Q. But do they do it occasionally?—A. Yes, sir; I catch up with
them occasionally.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. And these cartridges, again, if they got out, of which you are
morally certain, among the people of Brownsville, had to get out
s}(r)me way from the ordnance officer, or from the compunies?—A.

es, sir,

Q. First from the ordnance officer?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then from the members of the companies, if not direct
from the ordnance officer #—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Fos1Er:

Q. If that rifle there was shot four, five, or six times, and you
were inspecting your company, could you tell from looking down
the barrel of the vifle whether it had been shot or not?—A. Yes,
sir; T think you coald, and especially by smelling it. There is quite
a perceﬁtible odor to the nitro powder, and you could tell whether
a rifle had been recently fired, I mean within four or five hours.
The nitro powder has quite a pungent odor to it; and it will stick
in the grooves.

Q. In looking down the barrel or the bore of a rifle, and you
sce that it is foul, or think that it is foul, can you tell what the foul-
ness comes from, rusting or what?—A. Only by running a rag
through it and seeing what is deposited on the rag.

Q. But you can not tell what it is from?—A. No, sir; not always.
It might be just black dust.

By Senator BuLkeLey:

Q. Supposing your company was ordered out on the usual call
for drill?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And instead of drill, as commander of the company you con-
cluded to have an inspection?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Would you ordinarily expect to find the arms and equipments
and ammunition of the men in perfect order?—A. T would expect to
find them clean and clear from all rust and in serviceable condition.
1 would not expect them to have serew heads all cleaned out like at
Saturday morning inspection, but I would expect them to have them
in such a condition as to show that proper care had been taken of
the riffes.

Q. Would it be anything strange, if you had your command as-
sembled, to find two or three men whose muskets were not in such
condition on a call that was unexpected #—A. I never found any men
that way more than once, Senator. T mean if I ever found a man
that way I would punish him severely. .

Q. Were you in the habit of having the men called out for drill
and instead of drill inspeeting the rifles?—A. Tnspecting the viflesy
and the noncommissioned oflicer irf charge of quarters had orders to
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sce that when the rifles were put in the racks thoy were properly
cleaned, and I held him responsible for it.

By Senator OverMaN:

Q. Suppose there was an inspection on Saturday, and on Tuesday
three men after inspection were ordered out for reinspection, would
that be unusual¥—A. Oh, no. You might do it.

By Senator ForAkER:

Q. Suppose you had been out on a practice march in the mean-
while, or had been out on guard, and the guns standing around in
the barracks, would there not be evidences of use and dust collected in
them?—A. Yes, sir; a gun at Fort Brown, even standing out in
front of the company waiting for inspection, especially out by Bar-
racks DD, would become soiled. The road coming in front there, the
men’s guns while standing there would become full of dust just in
five }(1)1' ten minutes from wagons passing there and the dust blowing
on them,

Senator WarNER. I will say here that there is no evidence that the
guns were standing around. '

By Senator Burkerey:

Q. Supposing your men had been on duty practica'ly all night?- .-
A. A man has got to clean his gun before it is put in the rack,

Q. Suppose when a soldier is on duty you hold him until the usual
drill time in the morning, and then instead of drill you have inspec-
tion?2—A. A man would be exempt from that duty at that time under
those circumstances.

Q. T am not asking about guard duty; but suppoesing, as in this
case, the companies were all ordered out in the morning or night, and
were deployed in skirmish line behind this brick wall and held there
an hour or two, and then returned their ]pieces in the night, and the
next morning were ordered out for drill, and instead of drill they
had inspection, would you expect to find those pieces all in good
order?—A. No, sir.

Q. Now, there has been a little disagreement. In the course of
your inspection, supposing you came across a man whose gun was not
in proper condition, what would you do with him?—A. I would have
him report to me in the orderly room immediately after inspection.

Q. You would leave him in the ranks?—A. Yes, sir; I would leave
him in _the ranks and then I would have him in there. He could not
leave the barracks until his gun was properly cleaned and inspected.

Q. It has been testified here that some men were stepped to the
front and some to the rear. What have you to say about that?—A.
Different customs obtain in different companies.

Q. I only wanted to find out about that.—A. Yes, sir.

(Witness excused.)
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TESTIMONY OF SECOND LIEUT. EDWIN POTTER THOMPSON.

(The witness was sworn by the chairman.)

By Senator Foraker:
Q. What regiment do you belong to?—A. The Twenty-sixth In-

fantry.
Q. What company?—A. Battalion quartermaster, not assigned to

any company.
). How long have you belonged to the Twenty-sixth Infantry{—
A. Ever since about March, 1902,

Q. 19027—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was the regiment at that time?—A. In the Philippine
Islands, sir.

Q. Did you join it there?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And you have served with it ever since?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you with it at Brownsville?—A. Yes, sir.

Senator Ioraker. I want to put in evidence in connection with
this witness’s testimony an aflidavit that he made, found at page 163
of Senate Document 135, which I will read, and which I ask to be
inserted in the record in full.

The affidavit referred to is as follows:

SAN ANTONIO, COUNTY OF BEXAR, The State of Te.ras, 88!

Personally appeared hefore me, the undersigned authovity, one Fdwin P,
Thompson, who, being sworn, deposes and says:

“That he is a second leutenant in the Army of the United States: that In
sitieh capacity he served at 1Fort Brown, Brownsville, Cameren County, State of
Texas, from Neptenber 4, 1003, until August 13, 1900 that when it was kuown
that a battalion of the Twenty-fifth United States Infantry was to garrison the
post many derogatory remarks were mide before its arrival by some citizens in
reference to the coloved soldiers in words as follows, or words to the like effect:
fWe don’t want the damn niggers here! ¢ Niggers will always cause trouble.’
‘7o liell with the colored xoldiers; we want white men.’ And that he s unable
to fix any one of such remavks upon any one citizen owing to the freauency
with which ltke remarks were made and the period of time covered: that varl-
ous minor claushes occurred between the individual eitizens of the town and
the soldlers; that one Teofilo Crixell, a saloon keeper of Brownsville, Tex., told
him that a row had occurred in the * White Elephaut’ salcon, owned by one
Vincente Crixell, in words to this effect, to wit: That one Bates, a Federal
ofticer, was at the bar drinking when a colored soldier entered and asked for a
drink; that the said Bates thien turned to the soldier and sald no nigger could
drink at the snme bav with him, and that upon the soldlier renarking that he
was as good as any white man sald Bates drew his revolver and hit the soldier
over the head; sald Bates then golng to the polica headquarters and offering
to pay his own fine,

¢ Further deponent saith not,

“*B. P. THOMPSON,
“*Second Lieutenant, Tiwcenty-sixth Infantry.?

Sworn to and subscribied before me this 27th day of September, 1906,
L. M. PuRcFLL,
Second Licutenant, Twenty-sixth Infantry, Judge-Advocate.

(The affidavit was read aloud by Senator Foraker.)

By Senator Foraker:
Q. Now Lieutenant, state whether or not that affidavit is correct.—
A, It is correct, sir.
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Q. How did you happen to make an aflidavit of that kind?2—A. I
was called upon to do se by the military secretary of the Department
of Texas.

Q. What opportunity did you have for finding out how the pcople
of Brownsville felt about this proposition to bring colored soldicrs
there to relieve your command?—A. Because I was there continu-
ously until the arrival of the Twenty-fifth Infantry, and I heard con-
versations abont it.

Q. What time did the battalion leave Brownsville—your bat-
talion?—A, The $th of July, sir.

Q. Did not a detachment of your battalion remain behind to await
the coming of the troops of the Twenty-fifth Infantry #—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you mean that you were left with that detachment?—A. I
was, sir,

Q. Were you in command of it?—A., I was.

Q. So that you were there from the 5th of July until the arrival
of the colored troops, which I believe was the 28th of July ?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. In command of this detachment?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. Was any other commissioned officer there with you during that
time?—A. No, sir.

Q. How long was it before the 5th of July, when your battalion
left, when the word was first received that you were to be relicved
by this colored battalion?—A. I do not remember how long before
the first word came, sir.

Q. Was it not some weeks before?—A. I believe it was, sir.

Q. Tell us, now, when and where, and if you can, give us instances,
where you heard derogatory remarks made, such as you have men-
tioned in your affidavit.—A. It is impossible for me to say exactly
where, or who made them; but after about three years at Fort Brown
I knew nearly everybody in Brownsville, and as quartermaster there
I had a good deal of business with various citizens of the town, and
I was brought in pretty close contact with them, and outside of any
business relations, I had quite a number of personal friends, and the
remarks of such kind as I have mentioned in my affidavit were given
while not holding any conversation about the question of the arrival
of the Twenty-fifth, or the future arrival of it, but were simply things
that I overheard, and remarks made to me, trying to get information
from me as to the character of the colored man as a soldier, in general.

Q. State whether or not you heard remarks of this character fre-
%uently enovgh to indicate what the general public sentiment in

rownsville was in respect to colored troops.—A. Yes, sir; I did.

Q. What was it 2—A. The sentiment of Brownsville, in my opinion
was against having the post at Fort Brown garrisoned by colorec
troops.

Q.p You were there nearly three years altogether?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is what I understood you to say. First, what is the pop-
ulation, in the aggregate, of Brownsville? How many people live
there?—A. I believe it is considered to be about 8,000.

Q. Eight thousand, {ou think. What kind of people, as te nation-
ality, live there?—A. I do not think there are any actual ficures on
it, I think the common figures that are usunlly given are about 7,000
Mexicans and half-breeds, and the rest are Americans or whites,
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Q. That is, out of 8,000 perhaps only'1,000 are full Americans and
7,000 would be full Mexicans and half-breed Mexicans$-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I am requested to ask you whether there is any negro popula-
tion there?—A. Well, not to amount to much.

Q. Very few negroes?—A. Very fow,

Q. During the time you were there tell us whether or not your
own troops, of the Twenty-sixth Infantry, had any troubles with
the citizens of Brownsville.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. First, let me ask you, are you familiar with the police force of
Brownsville, during the stay that you made there?—A. Yes, sir;
pretty well,

Q. Of what did that force consist, and who constituted it—I mean
as to its personnel—Mexicans or Americans or what?—A. As I re-
member it, the majority consisted of Mexicans,

Q. Of the police force?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know how many there were of them?—A, I think they
had in the neighborhood of a dozen policemen, sir—that is, actual
policemen, not counting the chief of police,

Q. Did I understand you to say that the great majority of them
were Mexicans?—A. Yes, «ir.

Q. Were they Mexicans who could speak English or men who had
to have an interpreter when they wanted to talk to Amerieans?—A,
They might be able to speak Knglish well enough to find out a
direction from them or something like that. but they could not speak
English well enough to properly convey uny connected or lengthy
conversation,

Q. What was the attitude, so far as you could observe, of that
police force toward the men of your command—friendly or other-
wise?—A. They scemed to be always more or less enger to do their
police duties; and it secmed to me, as far as my personal opinion goes,
that they were rather against the average soldier,

Q. They were zealous, were they A. Yes, siry very zealous,

Q. In policing the soldiers, State whether or not your men had
any difficulties with them—any trouble gettinf; along with them or
with other citizens of the town.—A, T do not think that the T'wenty-
sixth had any trouble with any citizens of the town that I can re-
meniber, other than with the police; und all the clashes that happened
between the Twenty-sixth and the police were individual disturbances
between one or two men and one or two policemen, as well as I can
remember.

. Q. Can you recall how many there were of those clashes?—A. No,
sir,

Q. Such as you have described ?—A. No, sir.

Q. How many, probably, were there? I mean did the clashes you
have described occur frequently or only in rare instances?—A. Well,
usuazlly one or two every pay day. They would average one each

ay day.
P é Ayveraged about one a month, theni—A, That was at first,
when we first got there.

Q. For how lonIg a period did that continue to happen, about one
a pay day?—A. I don’t remember exactly; hut I was Lieutenant-
Co’l)onel (?;ok’s adjutant, and one of these dislurbances occurred in
which it was plainly admitted at the time that the policeman had
been too hasty in his action, and at the commanding officer’s divection
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I wrote a letter to the mayor of the town complaining of such treat-
ment, and it was stopped a great deal after that.

Q. Stopped a great deal after that?—A, Yes, sir,

Q. Do you remember the name of the soldier involved in that case
where you wrote the letter?—A. No, sir.

Q.. State whether or not it was an unusual thing to hear the dis-
charge of firearms in the nighttime, round about your reservation,
or outside of it, but in town or in that vicinity.—A. Well, the
frequency with which the shots were heard would be considered very
unusual in any large-sized and probably in any interior town, but
I would not consider that it was unusual to hear shots fired in the
vicinity of Fort Brown, around Brownsville,

Q. That is to say, you heard them frequently in the nighttime?—
A. Yes, sir; frequently, Sometimes there would be weeks pass
without it, and then another night there might be a regular fusillnde
turned leose somewhere,

Q. So that it was not an astonishing thing to hear of a shooting
affray in Brownsville?—A. No, sir.

At 4 o'clock p. m. the committee udjourned until Wednesday,
March 13, 1907, at 11 o'clock a. m.

CoMMITTEE ON MILITARY AFFAIRS,
UNITED STATES SENATE,
Wednesday, March 13, 1907.

The committee met at 11 o'clock a. m.
Present: Senators Warren (chairman), Foraker, Lodge, Bulkeley,
Hemenway, Warner, Pettus, Foster, and Overman.

TESTIMONY OF SECOND LIEUT. EDWIN POTTER THOMPSON,
U. 8. ARMY--Continued.

By Senator ForRAKER:

Q. When we adjourned yesterday you were being interrogated
about hearing firing in the vicinity of Brownsville,

(Senator Foraker here read aloud the last two questions and an-
swers preceding the.adjournment of vesterday afternoon.)

That is correct?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, Licutenant, can you tell us whether or not there was any
firing in the vicinity of the officers’ quarters in the year 1906, either
gallery practice or target practice, or any other kind of practice—I
mean firing of the Springfield vifles—after you got there?—A. I
think the competitors for the department or division competition
practiced their skirmish runs in the range right back of what they
called B quarters. °

Q. The target range had been established at that time down at
Point Isabel, as I understand?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator WaRNER:
Q. That was in the rear of B quartersf{—A. Yes, sir,
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By Scnator Foraxer:

Q. That is officers’ quarters, and not B barracks?—A. No, sir; B
uarters.
iQ. When you refer to quarters, you mean officers’ quartersi—A.
‘s, sir,

Q. There is a map, and you will see that the quarters are indicated
%\'er where that arrow points. Do you understand the location?—A.

es, sir.

Q. Where are B quarters on that map?—A. That is called B quar-
ters on the quartermaster’s records [indicating].

Q. What is that? We have never had our altention called to that
before is the reason that I am asking you.—A. That is a very,
very small set of quarters that, ever since I had been at FFort Brown
or had heard about it, had been used by the quartermaster’s clerk.

Q. The quartermaster’s clerk?7—A. Yes, sir.

Senator WarNER. Suppose you say that that is between the river
and oflicers’ quarters 11 and 12 on the map?

The WrrNess. Yes, sir.

Senator Wanrxker. That will locate it,

By Senator IForaker:

Q. It was in rear, then, of that building that you have just peinted
to that this firing occurred I—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Was there a range there of some kind?—A\., Yes, sir; a tem-
porary range.

Q. ITow much of that firing went on there, if you can tell? Give
us some idea.—A, I think there were three of four competitors who
n'n]ctice(l skirmish there, but I do not know how much practice they

md. . :

Q. Did they or not indulge in a good deal of practice when they
were getting ready for competitive drill? ‘T'hat 1s, each man did a
good deal of firing. Do you remember?—A. I do not 1remember how
much the men fired, because I was not attached to any company and
was not watching it.

Q. And you had nothing to do with that firing?—A. No, sir.

Q. You only remember the occurrence in a general way?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. But, as a matter of fact, when men are getting ready for a com-
petitive drill they do a great deal of that fiving, as a rule, do they
not, to get ready for it?—A. Yes, sir; if they think they need it.

Q. They never get too perfect, in their own estimation, I suppose,
beforchand, do they?—A\. I think some have; yes, sir,

Q. Well, T will pass that, if you do not know about it.

Senator Warner. It isa human frailty.

Senator Foraker. Yes.

By Senator IForaxrr:

Q. When your battalion left you remained behind in charge of this
detachment 7—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you please tell us again—I do not know if I asked you, but
will you please state agnin—how many men remnined behind, consti-
tuting that detachment?—A\. The detachment proper consisted of
about 15 men from each of three companies; about 45 men,
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Q. Forty-five men out of the three companies?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you not have four companies there at the time that you
left ¢ Ha& not I Company also joined, from Fort McIntosh?—A.,
Yes, sir; it had. e had 10 men from each of the four companies—
about 40 men.

Q. About 40 men?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were these men quartered when they remained there?—
A. They were quartered first in their barracks. As I remember, the
detachment of cach company remained in its barracks until the prop-
erty could be properly taken up and the buildings locked up, and
then they were all moved into barracks No. 36, in order that the three
companies of the Twenty-fifth might go into 33, 34, and 35.

Q. Which is 36 on that map?—.A\. The one nearest the guardhouse.

Q. The one you referred to as unoccupied ?—A. Yes, sir; it was in
poorer condition.

Q. Your men all moved into that before the men of the Twenty-
fifth came?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Vacating the other barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell us whether or not when your battalion moved out
of those barracks they left behind an?' odds and ends in the way of
clothing and accouterment and shells or cartridges, or any snch
things as soldiers have?—A. No, sir; I could not tell if they left
anything in particular, but they left the usual amount of things
that they did ot wish to take with them, and worthless objects, and
things that they did not care for.

Q. Do you remember observing whether they left any cast-off
uniforms or any parts of uniforms, trousers, or anything of that
sort ?—A. No, sir; I do not remember seeing any.

Q. Did you go thmu%h the barracks on an inspection tour after
they left?—A. I went through first the morning they left; I just
went through them to see that everything was all right.

Q. Did yon observe anything of this kind left behind in the
barracks; or in what condition were they left. That is what I
want.—A. Yes, sir; left in what I call the proper condition to be
left. They are supposed to be cleaned up. That is, not necessarily
all cleaned out, but all truck and undesired srticles gotten together
and easy of removal.

Q. That is, all kinds of truck and undesired articles that the
did not want to take with them were gathered together in each
place, in each barracks?—A. Yes, sir; or in a pile in each room,
or something like that.

Q. There were such piles of left-behind articles, were there not?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were they, in the barracks or out on the porches be-
hind?—A. Some in tho barracks, I think. They were on the porches,
and some in the rooms, just swept up in a corner.

Q. They have porches both in the front, toward the parade
irm&gd, and also in the rear, toward the wall, as I understand it?—

. Yes, sir,

b Qk On which porches were they, the back or the front?—A. The
ack, sir.

Q. On the back porches?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell us what those piles of cust-off articles—I will
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use that term for the reason that I do not know of a better one—
consisted of 2—A. No, sir.

_Q. You did not make an examination of them to see?—A. No,
sir,

Q. State whether or not you gave any instructions to anybody to
further go through the barracks and look after them.—A. I gave
instructions to Post Quartermaster-Sergeant Osborne.

Q. He was the quartermaster-sergeant of that post?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. He did not belong to the Twenty-sixth Infantry?—A. No, sir,

Q. He is a white man?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He had been there how long, if you can tell us?—A. He had
been there quite a while. -

\in Had he been there practically all the time you were there?—
4% 0, SII,

Q. He came there after you did?—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. What were your instructions to him?—A. Just to see that the
quartermaster property for which I was accountable, that had been
left in those barracks, was properly collected together, and that the
buildings were locked up as much as possible.

Q. Ilow long a time did these several detachments from the several
companies—10 from each company. as I believe we have it now—re-
main in their respective barracks, if you can tell us?—A. Not more
than three or four days, I believe, sir.

Q. Until they moved into the other barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What company had been occupying the barracks No. 36, into
which they moved?—A. I Company.

Q. I Company. Was that building unoccupied during the absence
from Fort Brown of I Company?—A. Yes, sir; it was unoccupied
by (roops. It was used as a storchouse,

Q. It was used as a storchouse. What was kept in there?—A.
Quartermaster’s supplies, and things we hardly had room for in the
other storehouses.

Q. Were they quartermaster’s supplies that belonged to the post
generally, or quartermaster'’s supplies that belonged to the respective
companies?—\. Post quartermaster’s supplies,

Q. Unissued supplies, T suppose. What did they consist of 2—A.,
They consisted of a little of everything. There was some grain in
the building.

Q. Any uniforms?—A. No, sir; no clothing,

Q. You did not keep any clothing: just accouterments of other
kinds besides clothing?—.\. Quartermaster’s supplies; a plow, and
old harness, and some things for condemmation,

By Senator \WWaARNER:
Q. You had nothing to do with the accouterments?—A. I had to

do with the clothing. _
Q. But not with the arms?—A. No, sir.
Senator FForakir. That is all that T want to ask him.

By Senator WaRrNER:
Q. Licutenant, in leaving a barracks, it is a duty to see that it is
properly cleaned 2—A. Yes, sir.
Q. 'That was done in this case?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. When you say you left an amount of useless things, what do

S. Doc, 402, t0-1, pt d——iU .
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you mean by that?—A. I mean the natural dirt and rubbish that is
around a house after anybody moves out of it. ’

Q. Would not that dirt and rubbish be removed if you policed it
properly?—A. If you policed it absolutely properly; but the Twenty-
sixth Infantry left there in a very short time, and all the companies
could possibly do was to get ready, from the time they were ordered
to leave until the time they left, and they got things ready so they
could be removed by my detachment.

Q. And you saw the condition of the barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You saw these piles of rubbish that you speak of 2—A. Yes, sir;
not very large piles; some.

Q. That is what T want to get at. 'We ao not know. We are try-
ing to get at it.—A. Yes, sir,

. Q. That rubbish consisted of the sweepings of the floor, did it{—A.
"es, sir,

Q’. No uniform?—A. Not that I saw.

Q. You would have seen it, would you not?—A. I might have
noticed a blue uniform, but I might not have noticed a khaki coat, or
something like that.

Q. Would you think it was properly policed with a uniform left
in the quarters when you left?—A. It was not exactly properly

oliced, but it was policed the best they could do it in the time they

ad.

Q. They did not have time to remove cast-off clothing? Do you
want to be understood, as saying that, Lieutenant?¥—A. They could
have removed it all properly, but it seemed to be that all the company
commanders evidently just had this rubbish collected where it could
be easily removed.

Q. Was there any ammunition among that rubbish?—A., Not that
I know of. I did not inspect the piles, sir,

Q. You saw no clothing?—A\. I saw no clothing; no, sir.

Q. It was simply the dirt that had accumulated?—A. Dirt was all
T noticed; yes, sir.

Q. This barracks 36, which was used as a storeroom before the
detachments-—the 40 men—moved in there——A. Yes, sir.

Q. In that you kept grain and such things as that?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. No clothing?—A. No, sir.

Q. And, of course, You had nolhinito do with the guns or ammuni-
tion, or anything of that kind #—A., No, sir.

Q. And now, about this range—the firing range. As I under-
stand, there were three or four men that fired there?—A. That is
what I believe, sir. T am quite sure of it, sir.

Q. Do you know when that was?—A. I do not know exactly when
it was, but it was a short time before these men went up to the
competition.

Q. When did they go to the competition?—A. I do not remember
the date of the competition, but I believe that the competition was
held practically at the time that the Twenty-fifth came to Browns-
ville, if I remember right. And I think that the competitors of the
Twenty-fifth Infantry on their return were held up at Fort Sam
Houston. That is the only way T can locate the time.

Q. Were you out when those men were having practice shooting
there in this range?—A. No, sir,
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Q. Do you know who the men were?—A. I can only remember
one. That is Corporal Zimmerman, of Company L.

Q. You saw no cartridges lying around the quarters there—loose
cartridges?¥—A. No, sir. :

Q. If there had been any you would have seen them in policing the
quarters?—A, I might not have seen them if they had been swept
up in these little dirt pilesj but I mean in the artificer’s storeroom I
did not see any.

Q. But cartridges could have been swept up in these little dirt
piles?—A. They mi%ht, have been.

Q. And that would be no extraordinary thing?—A. It would be
extraordinary in this, that a man is supposed to keep his ammunition.

Q. I am asking now as to the conditions.—A Yes, sir; there might
have been same in there, and I would not have been surprised if I
had gone through those piles and found some shells.

Q. Suppose that you had gone through those piles and found there
from 10 to 25 shells; that would not have surprised youi—A. It
would have surprised me if I had found that in any one quarters.

Q. How much would yon have found not to have surprised you,
Captain?—A. It would not have surprised me if I had found two or
three in a barracks.

Q. Any time?—A. Yes, sir; in the storeroom where the ammuni-
tion was kept.

Q. But we are talking now of where this rubbish was swept up.—
A. Oh, I would not expect to find hardly any there. The only place
you would find it would be where a pile of rubbish was swept out of
a storeroom.

Q. O, in the rubbish that was swept out of a storeroom you might
find some?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That would not surprise you{—A. No, sir.

Q. You have been in the Army how long?—A. For nearly five
years,

" Q. And connected with the Twenty-sixth Infantry that time?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you 'Fo down to this range where these three or four men
were shooting?—A. At various times, yes, sirj not when the men
were shooting. i '

Q. They were using the Springfield rifle?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I asked you if you went down there when they were doing the
shooting?—A. Not when they were doing the shooting; no, sir.

Q. No time?—A. No, sir.

Q. So that you know nothing about how many cartridges they used
or did not use?—A. No, sir. .

Q. Do you know whether they were using ball cartridge or reduced
range cartridge?—A. They must have been using the regular ball
cartridge, because they were shooting 600 yards.

Q. Shooting 600 yards; across the river¥—A. No, sir; down nearly
parallel with the river. . )

Q. Those men shooting there might drop cartridges around?—
A. Yes, sir; they might.

Q. And if you had gone down where these three or four men
wero doing the range shooting you would not have been surprised
if .zim; had found several cartridges around —A. No, sir; you might
find them, _
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A Qi’ Where there were only thres or four men doing the shooting ?—
. Yes, sir.

Q. That would not surprise you because it would be nothing un-
usual?—A. It would be rather unusual, because a man would usually
start out at the 600-yard mark with just the proper number of shells
to do his practice with, and he probably would not lose any on the
way down if he could help it. He might accidentally lose one or two
out of a clip, but not likely.

Q. A cartridge might drop out of a clip?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Would be liable to drop out of a clip, and he would lose it in
that way?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that you would not have been surprised if you had found
cartridges on the range?—A. No, sir.

Q. Or you would not have been surprised if you found cartridges
in a pile of dirt swept out of a storeroom?—A. Small quantities.

Q. Small quantities in each barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you speak of small quantities, what number do you
mean?—A. Not more than two or three out of a barracks.

Q. About how often did you sweep up the barracks?—A. I was
never in command of a company, and I could not tell you that.

Q. You have been in the Arny, and you know something about
the policing of barracks and quarters?—A. Yes, sir; they are sup-
posed to give the barracks a thorough cleaning cevery week.

Q. That is what I supposed.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. All parts of it?—A., Yes, sir; all parts of it, for the regular
Saturday inspection.

Q. So that when the inspector %oes there, if he finds anything
wrong, some one has got to answer for it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. If he finds any useless rubbish lying around the quarters, or
any extra ammunition scattered around on the floor? That is, every-
thing has to be absolutely tidy and in order?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And clean?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that inspection is at least once a week?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What day of the week is that inspection?—A. Saturday.

Q. And what day was it that these 10 men that had been left ir
each one of these quarters moved from barracks B, D, and C into
barracks No. 36%—A. I do not remember what day it was.

Q. Do you remember what day of the week?—A. No, sir,

Q. The Twenty-sixth Infantry was well oflicered, was it not?—A.
I considered it so, sir.

Q. And the police regulations of the camp were strict and well
observed?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. That would be your observation of it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you had been in Brownsville how long?—A. I had been
there since about September 4, 1903,

Q. You say there was some objection to the colored troops coming
there?—A. That is what I heard, sir.

Q. Do you know anything about objections to the colored troops
going to other posts, by people living in the surroundings?—A. Do
you mean any other posts in the United States?

Q. Yes—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What post?2—.\. Salt Lake City, siv: Fort Douglas.

Q. What objection was there in Salt Lake City to the colored
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troops going there?—A. I do not know what the objection was, ex-
rept that the objection was made at one time.

Q. Pretty strenuous objection?—A., I believe it was, sir. I don’t
know much about it, sir.

Q. Were you there?—A. No, sir. )

Q. What other posts did you hear of ¢—A. That is the oniy in-
stance I can think of at present, sir.

Q. Well, Lieutenant, from your experience and knowledge, do
vou not know the fact that it was generally objected to—having
colored men come to a post where white men had been?—A. That is
what I have always heard. I'or myself, I only know of this one
instance.

Q. I know; but that is your understanding as an officer ?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. You heard some remarks made down at the White Elephant,
or some place in Brownsville?—A. No, sir; I did not hear it at the
White Elephant.

Q. Where was it you heard the remarks?—A. T heard the remarks
in front of—well, T heard it at various places. The only remark
that my aflidavit specifies as to who told me—1I heard that in front of
Mr. Bolack’s store.

c Q. l]ch. Who made that remark?—A. A man named Teofilo
,riXeil.,

Q. What was-his business?—.\. He was the manager of a saloon,

Q. A Mexican?—A. T don’t know exactly what his nationality is,
sir, T think he is IFrench, though: French and American,

Q. To whom was he talking?—A. Talking to me.

Q. What did you say in reply to it?—A. T did not say much of
anything that T remember, except that I probably made some remark
about it being too bad, or something like that, that any trouble had
occurred ; some such remark.

Q. He was expressing his regret, was he not, in that conversa-
tion, that vou and your command were going to leave there?—A. No,
sir: not that conversation, at all,

Q. Well, was he expressing the hope that yon were going away #—
A. No, sir: he was speaking only about this incident that occurred.

Q. How did that incident come up?—A. In the conversation be-
tween us, or the incident itself?

Q. In the conversation.—A. I was walking down the street, and I
had heard something about this trouble before T met him out in front
of Mr. Bolack’s store. and it was his brother who owned this saloon
where the trouble had occurred.

Q. That is. the White Elephant?¥—A. Yes, sir; it was owned by
Vineinte Crixell, who is his brother; and I thought he would probably
know about it, and I asked him what had been the trouble, and he
replied to me as stated in the affidavit.

Q. That is, the trouble with the colored soldier?—A. A colored
soldier and a man named Bates.

Q. Were any colored soldiers then stationed at Brownsville?—
A. At that time; yes, sir.

Q. That was after the Twenty-fifth came there, then?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Yes. That is what I wanted to get. It has not appeared
before.—A. Yes, sir, ,
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Q. And what was the name of this colored soldier? We have not
had that yet.—A. I don’t know his name, sir.

Q. You did not see that difficulty, or whatever it was?—A., I did
not see it ; no, sir.

Q. You simply knew that that had occurred in the saloon called
the White I‘Ile?llnnt?-——A. Yes, sir.

Q. A difficulty between this man Bates and a colored soldier?—
A. Yes, sir; that is what I was told. _
Q. Which grew out of some controversy about the colored soldier
not being allowed to drink at the same bar with the whites?—A. I

do not know, except I got that from Teofilo Crixell. :

Q. You got that in that way?—2A\. Yes, sir; I got that in that way,
and the complete information, the only information, was from Teo-
filo Crixell, as given there, as to the details of the business.

Q. And from this party who saw this difficulty you got it that the
soldier came in and wanted to get a drink at the same bar?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. And this man Bates objected to that?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then there was a controversy?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then the colored man said that he was as good as any
white man, and Bates it him over the head with a revolver$—A.
Yes, sir; words to that eflect.

Q. That is, in substance?—A. And then he hit him; yes, sir.

Q. Who was Bates?—J\. Bates, as well as I can remember, was a
U]n'itfd States deputy collector, or deputy marshal, I am not sure
which.

Q. A United States oflicer?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever meet him?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you meet him in a business way?—A. No, sir; I never
had any business with him.

Q. G’(Imilemnnly, was he, when you met him?-—A. He always acted
gentlemanly when he was with me, sir.

Q. Did you ever meet him in a saloon?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you take a drink with him?—A. I do not think so.

Q. Did you ever meet him in the White Elephant?—A. No, sir.

Q. But you have met him there, socially, around#—A. No, sir; I
never met him socially—that is, socially in distinction from a busi-
ness way; yes, sir.

(]Ql. How were you treated in Brownsville?—A. I was treated very
well, sir.

Q. And your command was treated the same way?—aA. The officers
were; yes, sir, Some of the men were not.

Q. Were you ever present at any time when one of your men was
ill treated?—A. No, sir; I never saw any ill treatment at all.

Q. And it is a fact, is it not, Lieutenunt, from your experience of
five years in the Army, even, you know, that soldiers are apt to get
into some more or less difliculty with the citizens?—A. Yes, sir;
they are apt to get into difficulty, but not more apt than any other
personal brawl, or anything.

Q. And I think in your direct examination—if I am wrong you
will correct me—you said these difliculties occurred abont pay day,
that you heard of ?—A. I said that they usually occurred, one or so,
about pay day.
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Q. And that is the difficulty 3'ou refer to?—A. Idon’t know exactly

when those difficulties occurred.

\ Q. Yes; but you stated one or two usually every pay day?—A.
"es, sir,

Q. And the unfortunate fact is that on pay day, more or less, the
men would drink a little too much, would they not?—A. Not more
of it; no, sir. The trouble was—-

Q. I did not say more. I said more or less—A. Oh, they would
drink more or less; yes, sir.

Q. Some of them would drink to excess?—A. Yes, sir; very prob-

ably.

(3'. And a soldier intoxicated is as apt to get into difliculty as a
citizen is?—A. A little more apt to, on sccount of his uniform.

Q. A little more apt to on nccount of his uniform?—A. Yes, sir;
not from his fault, though.

X Q. You say the police force there seemed to be very zealousi—A.

06, sir.

Q. Were you acquainted with the policemen?—A. No, sir.

Q. You knew Mayor Combe, did you not?—A. Very well, sir.

Q. A very strict man, was he not?—A. Yes, sir; lhe was a very
good man,

Q. Ile had been mayor how long before you left Brownsvillef—A.
I don't know for how long, but it was for quite a while. He had been
in oflice for some time.

Q. A year or two?—A., I think it was over a year.

X Q. And the fact is that he was very intimate with the officersi—A.
'es, sir,

Q. And was very kind toward the soldiers, was he not?—A., Yes,
fir(i he was. You might call him the best friend that the soldiers
1ad.

Q. As you understood, he had been a soldier himself?—A. Yes,
sir; he was a surgeon.

Q. You knew Mr. Kelly there, did you not ?—A. Captain Kelly?

Q. Yes.—A. Yeos, sir.

Q. What was his business?—A. Banking business.

Q. One of the leading citizens there, was he not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You understood that he was a civil-war veteran?—A. Yes, sir;
X think he was. I am not sure, sir.

Q. He was very considerate of the soldicrs, was he not, and of the
officers?—A. He was very nice to all {0 officers. I do not know any-
thing about his dealings with any of the men.

Q. You do not know anything about that¥—A. No, sir.

Q. There were very few colored people in Brownsvillei—A. A
very small colored population.

Q. And you say the population of Brownsville is about 8,0009—A.
T think it is somewhere around there, yes, sir; I am not sure.

Q. Mexicans and half-breeds, you say #—A. The greater majority.

Q. By “half-breeds ” you mean Mexicans intermarried with Amer-
icans?—A. Yes, sir; or I'rench.

Q. German or French?—A. Yes, sir.

. Q. You do not mean intermarried with colored peoplef—A. N,
sir.

Q. There were a great many Mexicans there in business, were there
not?—A. Yes, sir; a good many Mexicans there in business,
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Q. The fact is that most of the leading business men there were
Mexicans, were they not?—A. Mexicans and Spaniards. There were
a good many good Spaniards there in business. )

Q. People whom you would call first-class citizens—A. Yes, sir;
that is, good citizens of the town, as far as good citizenship went.

Q. They averaged the same way thut way as any other western
town, did they not?—A. As any other western border town, yes sir.
I do not think there were as good citizens there, or as many of them,
as you would find in a western interior town,

é. ‘That is, in a farming community #-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You visited with families there?—A. A few of them; ycs, sir.

Were you married 9 —A. Yes, «ir.

Q. And your wife visited and received visits?—A\., Yes, sir.

Q. About how many did you visit there?—A. Well, we visited and
received nt our house not more than a dozen at most,

Q. Did that comprise the number of families there were in Browns-
ville whom you thought fit to visit with?—A. No, sir; it did not
comprise the number of families in Brownsville that T thought fit to
visit with, but they were the ones T picked out to be our associates.

Q. That is, your intimates, rather?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, you say that the policemen could speak English, so as
to give or receive directions?—A. Yes, sir; about streets, or some-
thing like that,

Q. That is. if you would go to a policeman and ask him to direct
you to Elizabeth street, he would direct yon?—A. Yes. sir; princi-
pally by signs, if you could not understand Spanish.

Q. Or if you wanted him to direct yon to any part of the city,
he could. so far as you know?—A, It isa pretty small town. I think
he could; yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever ask a policeman to direct you to any part of
Brownsville?—A. No, sir.

YQ. Did you ever hear anyone ask a policeman to direct him?—A.
es, sir.

q Q. What direction did he give?—A. The policeman could not
o it.

Q. Could not direct him?—A. In this case; no, sir.

Q. Because he could not speak English ?—A. Because in this case
he did not understand the word “ depot; ” he did not know what the
man was talking about.

Q. Possibly he did not pronounce it the way he pronounced it?-—
A. Probably not.

Q. How were the policemen dressed?—A. At what time, sir; when
we first went there?

Q. Yes.—A. They were dressed in most any old kind of citizen’s
~ guit; no badge or distinctive mark.

Q. Which frequently occurs in interior towns, does it not; the
policemen not uniformed?—A. Not uniformed; no, sir; but they
usually have some sign of authority.

Q. And after Mayor Combe came in they were dressed in a blue
uniform?—A. Some time after he came in.

Q. They were then uniformed, you say?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. As far as you were concerned personally, aud as far as you

-y
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know personally, {ou were treated courteously by the people of
Brownsville?—A. Yes, sir.
Scnator WaRrNER. I think that is all that I want to ask.

By Senator FoRAKER:

Q. You speak of them having a blue uniform after Mayor Combe
went into office?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not at any time before you left there they had
a different kind of uniform.—A. Yes, sir; they had.

Q. What kind of a uniform did they have in the summer of
1906?—A. They had a khaki uniform with a broad brimmed cam-
paign hat.

Q. State how it compared in color with the khaki uniform of the
soldiers.—A. I think it compared exactly, sir. I think it was just
American khaki cloth.

Q. State whether or not, secing a policeman at night in that kind
of a uniform, you could tell him, so far as the uniform was concerned,
from a soldier dressed in his khaki uniform, speaking simply of the
uniform.—A. Looking at a policeman from the rear you might no
but in a bright light, a front view, you could Px’olmbly notice, if
rom]omber the uniform correctly, the anbsence of the breast and hip

ockets.

P Q. But I am speaking of the nighttime, when you did not have a
bright light?—A. No, «ir.

. Just seeing a man pascing, not under a bright light; much
more. not under any light except that of the stars. In other words,
there was a close similurity, was there not, in general appearance,
Letween the khaki uniform of the policemen and the khaki uniform
of the soldiers?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. One or two other questions. You said a while ago that yvou
thought a soldier, speaking of towns generally, might be more quickly
arrested—I am not sure that that is the exact expression—on account
of his uniform.

Senator Warxer. That he might more frequently get into difficul-
ties.

By Senator IForRAKER:

Q. Yecs; that he might more frequently get into difficulty on ac-
count. of his uniform?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had reference to Brownsville in that connection, or to any
town #-—A. I had reference to any town.

Q. You think there is such a prejudice against a soldier because he
is a soldier that he would more quickly get into difliculty?—A. Not
at all, sir.

Q. "Was there or not among the people of Brownsville a prejudice,
an antagonism and hostility of feeling toward the soldiers that was
not common to the communities in other towns?—A, Yes, sir; I think
there was.

Q. There was?—A. I think so.

Q. That is, a soldier would be more likely to get into difficulty
on account of his uniform at Brownsville than in other cities?—A\.
meant by that, sir. that a man with a uniform on is practically a
marked man. He has not any leeway, provided he has a Government

uniform on.
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Q. You do not wish to modify your statement read from the
affidavit at the beginning of your examination in any way, do yonf—
A. No, sir; that is correct.

Q. Now, as to this Teofilo Crixell, or * Chishell,” as we have been
calling it, he is ilic man thet I am referring to, what business was
he engaged in?—A. Teofilo Crixell was the manager of a saloon,

Q. And what was the name of his saloon?—A. Crixell’s saloon.

Q. How many saloons are there in that town, I mean in the promi-
nent part of town, along Elizabeth street and other principal streets,
if you can give us some idea?—A. On Elizabeth street, in the same
block with this Crixell’s saloon, there was at one time Crixell’s saloon
and the International saloon and Odom’s saloon and Jagon’s saloon;
there were about four right on that block, on the average. Some of
them went out of business and others sprung up. There was on an
averags about four.

Q. State whether or not the saloon business in Brownsville is a
thriving business, according to your observation?—A, I think it is
a payving business; yes, sir.

Q. That is what T mean.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Patronized pretty liberally?—A. Yes, sir,

By Senator OveryMan:

Q. You do not mean to say that there are only four saloons in a
town of 8.000 inhabitants?—A. No, sir that is just on that Dlock.

Senator Foraxker. That is just on that one block.

Q. How many are there in the town?—A. I do not know, sir. I do
not believe there are more than eight or ten saloons where they have
both a whisky and beer license. But there are quite a number of
little beer saloons.

By Senator FoRAKER:

Q. T will ask vou if they have places there where they sell what
thev call mexcal, not held out as saloons?—A. I have never been able
to know, to find ont, anything about that, because it is prohibited;
but mescal can be purchased in Brownsville,

By Senator IFoster:
Q. Does the (rosonce of a soldier contribute anything to the profits
of a saloonf—A. A good per cent of the pay-day money goes to the
saloons, I think; yes, sir.

By Senator Overyan:

Q. Are there any saloons on Adams street, away out in the sub-
urbs?—A. No large ones that I know of, ut all.

Q. Anr small ones?—A. There may be some of those little beer
saloons that I speak of.

f(;2._ Are there any gambling houses out there?—A. Not that I know
of, sir.
By Senator ForAKER:

Q. I will ask you if there are gambling houses connected with these
10 or 12 principal saloons you speak about in the principal part of
the city? Are they a common adjunct?—A. When the Twenty-sixth
first went there they had a little gambling attachment to the honse—
roulette and a good many of the different gambling games; but that
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has since been stopped, except that T think most all of these saloons
have a poker gume going on all the time,
Q. Most all of them?-—A. Yes, sir,

By Senator Foster:

Q. 1s it not a fact that the laws of Texas make it a erime and ab-
solutely prohibit gambling in any public place?—A\. T am not sure
about the Inw, but I think it is correct. know that is the reason
they stopped this roulette playing, because they satd it was against
the'law, I don’t know what the law is, exactly. Mayor Combe (ried
to stop it, and sticceeded, in all public places.

J. The law of Texas is that gambling in any public place with
cards, dice, or anything else is made a crime.—A. I do not know, sir,
my=~elf.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. Mayor Combe worked a number of reforms, did he not?—A.,
Yes, sir,

Q. Afier he became mayor?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, you said the T'wenty-sixth left quickly. Ts it not a fact
that you had notice for some time hefore you left that you were to
leave? Wlhen you say you left quickly, do yon mean that when the or-
der finally did come you were required to move quickly 2—A\. Yes, sir;
if I remember correctly it was decided that we should leave on the
5th of July, end it was decided just a day or two before, and one
of the intervening days was naturally the 4th of July, and one of the
other days was n Sunday.

Q. So that by saying yon were required to move quickly you
do not mean that you did not know that you were to leave some time
{n l!ho future2—A. No, sir; we knew that we were to leave some time

wfore,

Q. But the time between the time of your receiving notice to move
and the date fixed for your moving was short 2—A. Yes, sir, :

Q. As to the target range, when men arve on the target range is it
not true that they ave constantly under the eye and supervision of an
oflicer and also of noncommissioned oflicers?—A. Ou the regular tar-
got range.

Q. Is it not true that when a man goes out for target firing or
skirmish firing on the target range he is given a certain number of
artridges, and if he should not for any reason five all of them he
is required to take them back to the sergeant and turn them over;
is not that the rule or the regulation?—A\. The rule nsually followe
is that the artificer shall (nke the ammunition out to the range.
He usually has the work of decapping the shells and washing them
and putting them in a condition where they can be turned in to the
ordnance department.

Q. Those are the shells that have been exploded?—A. Yes, sir;
the shells that have been exploded.  And as 2 man comes up an
gets his ammunition the artificer is supposed to give him what he
wants at that range, possibly ten shots.

Q. Stopping right there for a moment, is not all that done under
the eye o} an officer in charge of the firing?—A. An officer is on the
range; yes, sir. .

Q. What is he -on there for—to supervise all these things, or
what?—A. They are mostly there to supervise the shooting, sir.
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Q. Suppose a man should be handed ten cartridges; is that the
usual thing toire?—aA. Yes,sir; ten rounds is the usual number.
YQ. He 1s supposed to fire ten if he is hunded that number?—A.

es, sir.

Q. Suppose for any reason, his gun getting out of order or any-
thing of the kind, he should fire only six of those cartridges, what
wouﬁl he do with the other four?—A. He is supposed to hand them
back to the artificer.

Q. Suppose he put them in his pocket; could he do it except
under the eye of an officer, and with a liability, and a great liability
at that, of being detected by the officer?—A. He might not be de-
tected putting them in his pocket, and it might not be detected that
he had not turned them back to the artificer.

Q. That is, he might not 2—A\. Yes, si'; he might not,

Q. But he would be liable to be?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. And if he should be found appropriating them in that way,
what would be done with him?—A, It would depend on the man.
Probably if it was the first time it was noticed the man would be
warned and told to turn in his unused ammunition to the artificer.

Q. He would be warned?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Whether anythin{; more would be done with him would de-
pend on whether he had a good excuse?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Suppose it was discovered that he was simply trying to ac-
cumulate surplus anmunition, would he not be punished for that ?—
A. He would be court-martinled if the oflicer was convineed that the
man was trying to get enough ammunition to ~ell,

Q. ITe would be disciplined for that, would he not?—A. Yes, sir;
for upl)ropriuting Government (Fropert y.

Q. The men are not allowed to approprinte ammunition in that
way?{—A. The men are not; no, sir.

Q. You are speaking, of course, only of your own regiment, You
have had no experience with other regiments?—A. No, sir.

Q. Yeu are speaking of the custon in your own regiment?—A.
Y5, siry I have had very little experience with company duties in
my own regiment.

YQ. Yes; you have been acting as quartermaster all the time?—A.,
es, sir.

Q. I wanted to ask whether the citizens of the town, while these
articles you speak of as being piled u}) in the barracks which were
vacated were there, had access to them?

Senator Warxer. I submit that he did not say articles were piled
up.
pSelmior FForaker. He spoke of it as dirt being piled up.

By Senator Forakkr:

Q. You did not investigate these piles to see what was in them ?—
A. No,sir.

Q. But you knew there was something in them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. We will not assume anything except that they were articles of
some kind or other.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, T will just eliminate the piles altogether. After your
troops left there to go to San Antonio, were those barracks open so
that citizens could go through them, or come to the porches of the
barracks—boys, children?—A. Yes, sir; they were open, with the
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men of exch company living in each barracks, up to the time they
moved to barracks No. 36,

Q. And after that was there any guard over these barracks until
tie Twenty-fifth came?—A. The buildings were locked up, and the
windows are barred, and there was no personal guard over them other
than the regular patrol that was on the post.

Q. Were the porches locked up or barred ?—A. No, sir; the porches
are open.

Q. They were open, and I understood you to say that these piles
were some of them on the porches—on the back porches?

Senator WarNEer. I submit that there is no evidence of the kind.

Senator Foraker. I submit that there is evidence of the kind; he
said they were on the porches.

Senator WarNer. The record will show.

Senator Foraker. Yes; turn to the record,

Senator Warxer. No; we will not turn to the record now, but the
record will show,

Senator Foraxker. Why won’t we turn to the record?

Senator Wanxker. I simply called attention to it.  We can have the
record read.  But I say the record will show.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. Very well. I simply say that I asked von, when you said this
dirt was on the porches, whether you meant the front porches toward
the parade ground or the back porches toward the wall, and you said
the ank porches toward the wall. Is that correct?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. That is what you stated?—A. Yes, sir.

Scnator FForaker. T will ask to have the record turned to in a
minute. I am not in the habit of misstating the record.

Senator Warxer. It is simply a difference of recollection; not
serious at all.

By Scnator Foraer:
_Q. You meant that you left trash on these back porches?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Do you remember the condition yvour guns were in when you
got them first—I mean the Springficld rifles? Do you remember
whether they were oiled. and in what way 2—A\. Yes, sir; I remem-
ber about that.

Q. Will you tell us the experience you had with your guns when
vou first undertook to use them. in this particular. as to whether
or not they would always fire the cartridge the first pull of the
trigger or the first stroke of the firing pin, or whether there was
some snapping of caps, I will say 2—A. During the last target scason
I was range officer at the Point Isabel range, and M Company, of
the Twenty-sixth. marched down there without their guns, hecause
they knew that the new Springfield was to be shipped and that was
the gun they were to use, and when they went on the range the first
day there were quite a number of misfires, and it was fifially found
out by a man who had shot all his shots and was cleaninp;" his gun
that the mechanism of the gun was thoroughly protected from any
moisture or rust by the Government cosmoline, and that the firing
pin—the hollow_tube throngh which the firing pin works—had been
completely filled with that in order to protect the spring, and that
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when first being used the cosmoline in there acted as a buffer against
the spring and deadened the force of the blow. After that was
cleaned out and the thin lubricating oil put on they worked all right.

Q. ITow long was it, perhaps, until you got your rifles to working
all right, so that they did not snap in that way?—.A\. Just as long as
it took a man to take the breech mechanism apart and clean it.

Q. I mean how many days was it after you commenced target prac-
tice, perhaps, until you got them in perfect working condition so
that they would not smup caps, if they ever FOt to that place?—
A. They never get to the place where they will not snap a cap, not
so much from the fault of the gun as of the cap. But as they were
going on the range immediately, thoy %ot their guns, and I am sure
they were all in good firing condition for the next morning’s firing.

Q. On the first day they had this snapping of caps?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And then there was some snapping of caps afterwards; but was
it not a rare thing for the firing pin of a Springfield rifle to have to
strike a cartridge twice in order to explode it?2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. After these guns were put in working condition, whether it was
one day or longer, and properly oiled and kept in condition, they
were a pretty sure gun, were they not, in the matter of firing?—
A. Yes, sir.,

Scnator Iforaker. That is all.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. Yon speak of the number of saloons in Brownsville, a town of
8,010 inhabitants, and you say there were eight saloons, about that
in which beer and whisky were sold. You have some knowledge of
the towns throughout the country?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that an unusual number of saloons for a city of 8,0007—
A. No, sir; I do not think it was,

Q. And as you say, the fact of it was that the soldiers spent a large
portion of their money in the saloons?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that they contributed very largely to the support of the
saloons that were there?—A. Yes, sir; I think they did.

Q. You were asked if gambling was permitted, and I think you
said poker was a game that was being played.—A. T know that poker
games are going all the time in most of those saloons, becanse they
are right in open sight; but roulette and faro and all such games have
been stopped. '

Q. They have been stopped?—A. They have been stopped so far as
I know; so far as any public plnyin{: gocs,

Q. You said about moving from there in a hurry, in your reexam-
ination by Scnator Foraker, that the order was to leave the 5th of
July, 1006. That did not apply to the detachments of 10 men from
each company ¥—A. No. sir.

Q. It was the main body of the four companies that were there
which were to move on the 5th?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then these detachments of 10 men from each company
were left in each of the quarters B, C, and D?—A. Yes, sir. Noj in
all of them, 33, 34, 35, and 86.

Q. Until the Twenty-fifth came, and then they were all moved into
36?7—A. Yes,sir.

Q. So that the policing of these barracks was left to the 10 men and
the officers in charge when 4he main body left?—A. No, sir. The




AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS. 1079

final policing. All this dirt and débris had been piled together in
these piles that I spoke of. That was simply left to be shoveled up
and put in cans by the men left in each company.

Q. Was that shoveled up and put in cans?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then when they left there this débris was all removed?—A.
Removed and put in the regular Government ash can that is placed
out right between the wall and the barracks.

Q. Now, to get back to these piles that were left there—the sweep-
ings. The question came up where you said cartridges might have
been swept out of the storerooms. ‘They were inside of the bar-
racks?—A. Yes, sir; they were inside of the barracks.

Q. And there were no piles left on the porches; these piles of
rubbish were not left on the porches when you left there?—A. Yes,
sir; some were left on the porches; swept out of the halls, the back
doors, I don’t remember where, but there were piles of sweepings left
on the back porches.

Q. They were left there in the hurry?—A. Ves, sir. They were
left there from sweepings there the morning before they left, clean-
}plg ltIP ;tlots of it also in packing the property on wagons, and things

ike that.

Q. That was left when the Twenty-sixth left?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were left with 10 men in each company in your detach-
ment?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And they remained in these quarters possibly two weeks?—A.
I'rom the 5th to the 28th of July.

Q. That would be twenty-three days?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that they were there policing?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you say it was the order and the practice in your regirwnt
that the policing had to be done of the camp—of the barracks?—A.
No, sirj that is the regular Saturday morning inspection. It was
supposed to have been done; yes, sir; with the—-

Q. It was supposed to have been done? Is it not necessary to be
done, and if it was not done, as you say, somebody would be called to
account for not having it done?—A. When the regular garrison is
there; ves, sir.

Q. Do you want it to be understood that when only 10 men ave left
with an officer in charge they can leave things around as they please,
~ withont any policing?—A. No, sir,

Q. Was not the barracks policed every Saturday?—A. Yes, sir;
I had it policed every Saturday.

Q. I'or inspection?—A. Yes, sir; for inspection; but not with
the formality that there would have been if the whole company had
been there.

Q. But you would have it policed so as not to leave these piles of
dirt around the corners of the barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you would have them removed ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that each Saturday those piles were removed ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Aund whatever piles of dirt were there must have accumulated
between the time of t'he inspection and the time you removed it?—A.,
Yes, sir; moving all the things out of the storerooms, and so forth.

By Senator OverMan:
Q. As quartermaster did you have charge of the magazine beyond

post No. 67—A. No. sir. .
Senator Warxer. He had nothing to do with that,
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By Senator Warxzr:

Q. Now, as to the policing; T understand that after you moved
out of those quarters the doors were locked and the windows
barred?—A. Yes, sir.,

Q. And you moved out on the 28th of July?—A. No, sir; some
time before that, That was when the Twenty-fifth came, sir.

Q. But the detachments of the ten men from each company moved
out, so that we will not get confused A. T moved them out and
put them all together some time bofore the Twenty-fifth got there,
and then tried to get the barracks—by using fatigue details of these
men—into condition for the Twenty-fifih to get them arranged.

Q. That is, to get them cleaned up and in order so that they would
pass inspection?—A. Yes, sir; so that the Twenty-fifth conld go
rig]it in there and have their bunks ready and their kitchen utensils
ready.

0.) And that was done in this case?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Some question was asked about those barracks being left open.
Citizens were not permitted to go into those barracks after you moved
out of them?—A, No, sir.

Q. They could not have gotten in unless they had broken through
a wimllow or u door?—A. They would have had to Lreak a lock or
a cateh.

Q. Were they permitted to take any rubbish away out of the bar-
racks or out of the camp?—A. They were not permitted to. That
was the duty of the scavenger.,

Q. And it was the duty of your man on post around the barracks
to keep any intruders away, or from taking anything of the kind{—
A. Yces,siry away from the barracks.

Q. Now, about the snapping of the new Springficld rifle when vou
first got it, you say that was the first duy out on the range{—.\. Yes,
sir.

YQ. And by the next morning they were all right as to that?2—A,

8, sir

Q. But it was no uncommon thing for a Springfield at any time to
“snap,” as you eall it?—A. No, «ir; not uncommon,

Q. In shooting a whole season through you would have quite a
number of shells that would refuse to explode?—A. No, «ir; not un-
common. In shooting a whole scason through yon would have quite
a number of shells that would refuse to explode; but it was probably
due to the eap rather than to the gun.

Senator Warxer. That is all that I want to ask him,

By Senator Foraxer:

Q. There is one thing I thought I misunderstood the witness abont.
I understood you to say, in answer to Senator Warner, that these de-
tachnients of ten men from cach company remained about three weeks
in these barracks; and I understood you to say to me that after your
battalion had been gone three or four days you moved with them out
of the barracks into the unoccupied barracks.—A. I moved them out
some tine before the Twenty-fifth got there, in order that I could
have come minor repairs made in there and get the bunks fixed up
and the kitchen ntensils, T do not remember when T made the change.

Q. And I understood you to say that o1l this débris--whatever it
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might be, dust or what not—was taken out and put into a case behind
the barracks—a box or somethingf—A. Yes, sir; an ash can.

Q. And who got it there?—A. The scavenger was supposed to pick
up these things.

Q. And when was it you ordered the post quartermeaster-sergeuant,
Osborne, to go through the barracks and look after them?—A. It
was just the morning they left. Just as soon as the Twenty-sixth
marched out and had left the station T told the sergeant to go throngh
the barracks and see if all the property had been properly turned in,
and if we had missed checking anything, and to sce that the memo-
randum receipts were properly returned for the goods of the various
company commanders.

Q. You spoke of a man on post, and did not tell us what post yvou
had reference to. Did you keep a man on post around the barracks
all the time?—A. No, sir; I had a mounted patrol. -

Q. All around tho post?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. All over the fort, you mean?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. 1le was not confined to any particular spot?—A. No, sir.

Q. 'They have been testifying about post No. 2 being the post that
went around the barracks?—A. Yes, sir.
lQ. Did you have that post there?—.\. No, sir; I did not have
that post.

Q.l\'on never had it?—A. T never had but the one post, I had
three mounted men, taking turns, riding around the post.

Q. Were they on in the daytime?—A. No, sir.

Q. So that when you were there there was not any sentinel or guard
on duty in the day around the post?—A\. No, sir; except the men
themselves. The acting first sergeant slept right in No. 36, and
stuyed there, and he lm(Llz orders, and the detachment had orders, that
mn_\'{;m:_v coming in the post should be ordered out, any Mexican or
anybaody.

Q. But you had no regular guard on duty ?—A. No, sir.

Q. I wanted to get an understanding of what you meant by the
man on post. What time did those men go on duty?—A. At 6
o’clock in the evening.

Q. And remained on how long?—A. Until 6 o’clock in the morning,

Q. Were those men of your detachment 7—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did you get horses to mount them?—A. From the quar-
termaster’s department.

Senator IForaker. That is all,

By Senator Foster:

Q. T wish you would explain how the cartridges are distributed at
the target shooting, how muuy cartridges are taken out at each target
shooting, and the manner of distribution among the soldiers who nre
engaged in the target practice.—.\. There is no way to tell before
you go out how much shooting is going to be done, so usually the
company artificer takes the ammunition, maybe the complete full
box, in the handeart, and goes out to the range with it, and usually
takes up a position about 20 yards in rear of the firing point. The
men sit down anywhere they can be comfortable until their turn
comes to fire, about the same distance behind the [)oint where the men
are firing. When a man’s turn comes to fire, he goes up and the

8. Doc. {02, GU-1, pt H——11
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artificer hands him his shells, whatever the number may be. He
ny give him an extra one in case of misfire, or something like that,
and the man goes to the firing point and fires his score.

Q. Does the artificer invariably give a man his shells, or is a man
permitted to go and take the shells for himself?—A. Very often a
man is permitted to ;o and take the shells, because the artificer is
decapping shells, those that have been fired, and they come in these
clips, and a man will usually just take two clips. Sometimes, in the

resent way of shooting t"2m, they do not know how much a man
18 going to fire, they can not tell exactly whether he will fire at one
range or two or three, and very often when they start out they will
give each man a bandolier.

Q. How many cartridges in a bandolier?—A. I believe, sir, there
afe 00 or 70. There are ten in a pocket, and I think there are 60 or
70 in one of those bandoliers.

Senator Foraker, It is testified here, I will state, if there is no
objection, that there are 60 in a bandolier.

By Senator Foster:

Q. That is, the artificer will give each man a bandolier?—A. Yes,
sir; he will give them a bandolier, so that they will not have to take
all the ammunition, or any great heavy quantity of it, down to the
firing point; and he fires ns much of that as he may have, or they
may fire more; they may have to send a man back to get more am-
munition for the day’s work.

Q. How much is a man supposed to fire at the targets?—A. About
360 actual shots. The allowance is 460. That is a record course.

Q. How long docs it take them to make those shots?—A. It de-
pends entirely on the weather and entirely on the—

Q. Are the shots all made during one target shooting?—A. A
man’s shooting may extend over a month, sir, before he gets through.
First he has his preliminary sliooting.

Q. Do T understand that if a man gets a bandolier, he keeps that
bandolier with the cartridges in it until he finishes his target prac-
tice?—A. No, sir; he keeps it that day, until he has shot as much
as he is going to, and then he is supposed to return it to the artifi-
cer, or return it to the company storeroom.

By Senator Lonce: .
Q. Who is the artificer?—A. He is really company carpenter, and
he holds that [)osmon and gels the pay of the grade.
A QI;I Does he keep an accurate record of all these shells returned §—
. No, sir.

By Senator Foster:

Q. Does he know how many cartridges he issues to each manf{—
A. No, sir.

Q. And he has no record of that?—A. Not in any company that
1 have ever seen, sirj no exact record.

Q. In speaking of the hostility of the citizens of Brownsville to
the soldiers, you were there, I believe you stated, some year or two f—
A. I was there very nearly three years.

Q. You were there very nearly three years, and you have stated
to Senator Warner that during that stay you were courteously and
well treated by the citizens of that town{—A, Yes, sir.
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Q. And thatevery officer in your command was similarly treated —
A. As far as I know, yes, sir. '

Q Did you ever hear of any complaint on the part of any officer
of ill treatment by any citizen of that town because he was an
officer!—A. No, sir,

Q. Did you ever hear of any complaint of a private soldier of ill
treatment on the part of any citizen of that town because he was
a United States soldier?—A. Not simply because he was a United
States soldier, no, sir.

Q. At how many posts have you been stationed since you have
been in active service, Lieutenant?—A. Six, sir,

Q. Please name them.—A., Plattsburg Barracks, Columbus Bar-
racks, the Presidio, San Francisco, Cal.; Boulan, P. I.; Sorsigan,
P. I.; and Fort Sam Houston.

Q. In cach and every one of these posts was there not always or
occasionally more or less friction between the private soldiers and the
officers of the towns or cities in which yon were located?—A. At the
first two stations—I was there such a short time, and as a casual, that
I}could not say. In the first three—my stay at the Presidio was very
short.

By Senator FoRrAKER:

Q. Plattsburg and the Presidio, and what was the othert—A. Co-
lumbus Barracks; and at both my stations in the islands I do not
remember any current bad feeling between the natives or the people
of the town and the one company that was at each of these posts,
a small garrison,

By Senator IFosTer:

Q. Licutenant, how was this bad fceling or prejudice evidenced
on the part of the citizens of that town? You said they treated the
oflicers well, and you know of no instance in which they treated any
individual soldier badly on uccount of being a soldier. In what re-
spect was this fecling evidenced?—A. The feeling was evidenced
princiimlly by the police. '

Q. The fee ing, then, was evidenced on the part of the officials of
the town?—A. Not the officinls—

Q. 'The police force of the town?—A. The police force of the town;
)’§§,_silr; not by the oflicials who were really in charge, not the city
officials,

Q. In what respect was that ill feeling manifested ?—A. Because
there had been several cases, which 1 can not recell exactly, or the
names, but there have been several cases where policemen have,
without any cause or any reason, arrested a soldier and put him in
jail, where a citizen doing the same thing would not hava been
touched,

Q. Liecutenant, will you give any case of your own knowledge
where a soldier was arrested by an officer of Brownsville without any
cause?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. A case of your own knowledge?—A. Yes, sir. K Company of
the Twenty-sixth Infantry was on target practice, and a man was
sent in for medicine, The distance was about 9 miles, and the com-
pany commander gave this sergeant or corporal a mule, and told him
to strap on his revolver and go into town after this medicine. When
that man, in his uniform, came into town, riding a Government mule,

N
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with a Government saddle and a Government pistol strapped in
sight, not concealed, a policeman went out in the street and held him
up and took him and put him in jail.

Q. Charging him with whati—A. I don’t know what he was
charged with,  He was put in jail.

YQ. Was that the case Captain Kilburn instanced yesterday?—A.
es, sir.

Q. In which, I think, he said the mule and all were put in jail.
Do you know of your own knowledge the cause leading up to that
arrest{—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know whether that soldier who went on this mission
committed any act violative of the law or the ordinances of the
town?—A. No, sir; I do not; but I know the soldier very well.

Q. I am speaking of your own knowledge.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know any of the circumstuiices attending his arrest{—
A. No, sir; nothing at all about it, except that I knew he was ar-
rested and put in jail.

Q. Is that the only instance you can recall in your three years’ stay
down there where, in your judgment, a soldier was arrested without
any cause?—A. No, sir; there are several other cases; but they are
v];ary hard for me to remember them clearly enough to remark on
them.

Q. Did you give that special case as an illustration of the preju-
dices of the people of the town of Brownsville against United gtates
soldiers?—A. I gave that case, sir, to show the overzealousness of
the police force In trying to make arrests, to make arrests whenever
they could, and, as I understand it, get their fee or their pro-
portion of the costs.

Q. Licutenant, you stated, as I understand, that you knew nothing
about the facts of this arrest?--A. No, sir.

Q. Do not know whether the man was violating any laws or
ordinances of the town?-—A. No, sir; I do not.

Q. How can you say, then, that this officer was arresting this man
to get a fee?—A. The case was tried down there and Mayor Combe
was seen, and it was investigated and the man was turned loose, and
the policeman was given a severe reprimand for doing it.

Q. Is that the only instance within your knowledge of the over-
zealous service or overzealous acts on the part of the police of the
town in arresting soldiersi—A. Well, of the police itself, I think
that is as far as the absolute overzealousness goes; yes, sir; but I
can give an illustration where their lack of power in excitement or
anything, or understanding or speaking the English language prop-
erly, caused one or two soldiers to be improperly imprisoned.

&. I should gudge, then, from what you stated, that this prejudice
against the soldiers was confined rather to the police than to the citi-
zens of the town?—A. And the lower class.

Q. The Mexican class or the American class?—A, I think mostly
of the Mexican class, sir. As an illustration I can give you, if you
do not mind, a case where a Mexican came up to & soldier and asked
him if he wanted to fight, and the soldier told him no, and the man
Eicked 8 fight with the soldier, and this soldier thereupon knocked

im down. Then this man claimed to be a policeman, and rather
than have any further trouble and have two or three policemen prob-
ably get after him the man went to jail.
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Q. That is another case instanced by Captain Kilburn?—A. Yes,
sir; so I understand.

d. Well, this prejudice, as I understand, then, was largely con-
fined to the lower class of Mexicans?—A. Yes, sir; I think 1t was,
sir. I think the prejudice got less as l?K'ou got up among the leadin
citizens of the town, although I think that the prejudice was sti
there when you got there, but not in such rowdyish or anywhere near
stich a violent form.

Senaton Foster. That is all I want to ask.

By Senator Perrus:

Q. When you had your command moved out of the barracks,
were there any considerable number of hats or uniforms or pieces
of uniforms scattered around?—A. I did not see any, sir.

Q. In the discharge of your duties, if there had been any con-
siderable number around t?xe barracks would you not have seen or
noticed them #—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not see any such thing?—A. No, sir; I did not see
any great number of hats or clothing or any truly Government
propertfy left lying around loose.

Q. If there had been any considerable nmumber, would you not
have seen it?—A. Yes, sir; unything large, like clothing.

Q. Tats or clothing?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, T understand you to mean that there was no consid-
erable number at the time you left the barracks?—A. I did not see
any. as I said, sir. I don’t remember secing any clothing.

Q. And you say if there had been any considerable number you
would have scen some of them?—A. Alost surely, sir.

By the Cnamyan:

Q. You were speaking of the uniforms of the police. I think
you said they were formerly uniformed in blue?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind of a hat 'did they wear with their uniform?—A,
They wore with that a hat very much like a campaign hat, only of
blue material or black.

Q. With blue clothes they wore a blue hat?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When they changed to the khaki uniform what kind of hat
did they wear then?—A. Very much like our present army cam-
paign hat, only I don’t know whether their hats were furnished
them or whether they bought them, but I think they were a little
broader brim—more like the frontier Stetson hat.

Q. They were not the same hat, then?—A. Noj they were not
identically the same hat. but they looked very much alike.

Q. You spoke of the prejudice there against the soldiers, Have
you ever served with a colored regiment?—A. No, sir; I never
served with them.

Q. Yon spoke of that prejudice as felt for the soldiers that you
were in command of. or in partinl command of. the whites?—A. Tt
“]'as there to a certain extent against themj yes, sir; among the lower
classes,

Q. That is because they were soldiers, regardless of color?—A. It
seemed to he so. They scemed to take more pains in keeping peace
among the soldiers than they did among men of the town who would
be on the street, making the same sort of disturbance.

Q. Was that more or less so at that point than at other points
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near posts throughout the United States?—A. I think it was & little
more so there, sir, because I think it was due to the Mexican element
there that was practically in control of the streets in the evening.

The Cramryan. That is all.

By Senator BUuLKELEY:

Q. The method of distribution of cartrid%)es at the rifle range that
you have described, did that apply to this battalion or regiment?—
A. I can only say how it applied to that one company that I was
with on the target range at that time. .

Q. It need not necessarily apply to the method of distribution in
any other regiment?—A. No, sir.

é. That would be regulated by the officers of the command on the
range?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And not by anything that might have happened under your
immediate observation i—A. No, sir.

Senator Forager, That is all with this witness,

TESTIMONY OF SERGT. ROWLAND OSBORN--Recalled.

Sergt. RowrLanDp Osporx, U. S. Army, & witness previously sworn,
being recalled, testified as follows:

By Senatcer FoRAKER:

Q. You have been sworn and have testified before?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. As I remember, you testified that you were the post quarter-
master-sergeant at Fort Brown{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were there when the Twenty-sixth Infantry left and when
the Twenty-fifth Infantry camef—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And remained there until affer the Twenty-fifth Infantry
left9—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. I want to ask you whether or not you were given any duty to
Eerform by Lieutenant Thompson, of the Twenty-sixth Infantry, who

as just testified, and who was left behind in command of a detach-
ment after his battalion went, after it left for San Antonio; whether
or not you were given any duty to perform with respect to the polic-
ing of the quarters that had been vacated—A. Not as to the policing
of the quarters, but as to the checking of the quartermaster’s prop-
erty remaining in those quarters.

5. Did you or not have occasion to go into the burracks that the
men had occupied?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not you did so, and whether or not you had
anybody in company with you, and if so, what you found there.—A.
Well, sir, I found most of my qrartermaster’s property there, and
saw lots——

Q. X will ask you what had they left behind in the way of property
that had to be checked up?—A. Dishes, knives, forks, spoons, bed-
steads, mattresses, pillows, chairs, desks, inkstands— *

Q. Did all that belong to these respectiwe barracks in the post?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is what you were sent in there to check up?—A. Yes, sir.

Any other property that belonged to the post?—A. Yes, sir;
there were fire axes, fire buckets, hose——
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Q. Did any of those buckets have water in them?—A. No, sir; not
at the time 1 checked them ug. They were supFosed to have water
in them, but they did not. Spittoons was another article; all bar-
rack furniture used by a company while in garrison that is not car-
ried with them when they change stations.

Q. I suppose all these barracks are furnished, so to speak?—A.
Well, as an organization comes in the quartermaster’s department
turns over to them their equipment and takes a memorandum receipt
from the commander of the organization, and he will have such
articles as are not taken with the command checked up again by the
quartermaster’s department and taken in.

Q. In what condition were those barracks when you went in—when
was it when you went in to do this work?—A. I checked up the bar-
racks on the night before the command left as to the property, and re-
checked it on the following morning again—that is, there were dishes
and tableware and things of that description locked up in the store-
rooms, fastened up, and a noncommissioned ofticer was placed in
charge of each set of barracks temporarily, until the whole barracks
could be closed up and the detachment go into another building. The
quarters were littered with castoff clothing, principally khaki cloth-
ing, and shells, ammunition, bandoliers, ete., strewn around.

Q. You found shells and cartridges and bandoliers lying around
in these barracks2—.\. Yes, sir,

Q. That was the morning after the command left I—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, now, tell us about the ammunition first—the ammunition
that you found there—and what did you do, if anything, with any
of it that you found there?—A. Well, I left it there, with the excep-
tion of two packages which T took myself.

Q. How much did you take yourself 7—A. I took 40 rounds.

Q. What kind of ammunition was it?—A, Krag-Jorgensen ammu-
nition,

Q. Did you find any Springfield ammunition?—A. I did not ex-
amine it, sir,

Q. Where is that ammunition that. you found there that morning
when vou went through checking up?—A. I have it at my quarters
at I'ort Sam Houston at the present vime.

Q. Can you, when you return to FFore Sam IHoviston, identify that
alpd send 1t here to this committee, so that we can inspect it?—A.

es, Sir.

Q. And see what kind of ammunition it is?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Was that the regular army cartridge?-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind of gun, if you know, was that command equipped
wi;h at that time?—A. They were equipped with the new Springiield
rifle, sir.

Q. Where did vou find this Krag-Jorgensen ammunition?—A. I
found it in the storerooms, sir; in the company storercoms.

Q. What company storerooms?—A. Well, I could not say as to
which one I took these from. There was more or less scattered in
all of them.

I Q. And did you find shells?—A. Yes, sir; there were shells in
hoxes.

Q. Now, what did you say ahout bandoliers?—A. Bandoliers were
strewn all around the storerooms.
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Q. Now, at that time state whether or not the barracks had or had
not been locked up.—A. They had not at that time; did not have
the time to do it. There was just a noncommissioned officer placed
in charge of each set of barracks until we could clean out one set.

Q. What did you do in the.wgy of cleaning up these barracks?—
A. I did nothing, sir.

Q. And removing those things?—A. I did nothing whatever.

Q. Did anybody do anythirg?—A. Well, I had barracks No. 36
which had formerly been occupied by I Company, cleaned out of
occupancy by the detachment that I sent. I sent the provost-ser-
geant there with a detail to do that,

Q. e did that?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. Superintended it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did they at that time you saw those barracks occupy those
barracks or not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long was it after the bottalion left that this detachment
that were left hehind in the various company barracks were all con-
solidated in I Company’s harracks?—A. That was probably a week,
sir, :

Q. During that period what, to your knowledge, was done in the
way of sweeping up and gathering up and getting rid of all this
stuff?—A. Nothing whatever.

Q. Nothing that you know of?—A. No, sir.

Q. Were you back and forth in these barracks or not during that
week1—A. No, sir: not at that time, but when the Twenty-fifth In-
fantry came in there T was there to turn over that property which I
had locked up there, which I had left in the barracks. They were in
the same condition then as when I checked them up before.

Q. They were in the same condition?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, I want you to reeall carefully that condition, because that
has been testified to here in a way that might raise some question
about it. That is your rccollection?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you are positive about that?¥—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can not be mistaken sbout it?—A. No, sir.

Scnator Foraker. Well, T believe that is all. T examined this wit-
ness at length before, and I do not care to go over that,

By Scnator WARNER:

Q. Sergeant, the Twenty-sixth had been there two or three years,
had it not?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator IFoRAKER:

Q. There was one question I meant to ask you. Was anybody with
you while you were doing this work?—A. Lieutenant Thompson was
with me on the evening that I checked up before the Twenty-sixth
went out. but he was not with me afterwards.

Q. He was there with you that evening—the evening before they
went out?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But he was not with you again?—A. No, sir.

By Senator WaRNER:

Q. Licutenant Thompson was with yon and had the same opportu-
nity of seeing the tondition of these barracks that you had?--\. No,
sir; I don't think he did, because the troops that were going out were
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still occupying the barracks at the time he was there with me, but he
was not with me the next day.

Q. Oh, I know, the troops were leaving thenf—A. They were get-
ting rea&y to leave. We check up property before they leave, to
ascertain any shortages.

Q. How long before they left?—A. This was the evening before
they left, sir.

Q. And then there was clothing and bandoliers and ammunition
scattered all around—A. Well, I did not take notice of those at that
time. I took notice of them the next morning after they left. I
would notice those things at the time, because I would naturally
suppose they would take them with them.

Q. The Twenty-sixth was a pretty good regiment, was it not{—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well ofticered 2—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, how many dozen bandoliers did yon find¥—A. Well, sir,
I did not stop to count them. 1 suppose there were twelve or fifteen
dozen of them altogether.

Q. Bandoliers?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator Overyan:

Q. Ammunition in them?—A\, No anmmmition in them; no, sir;

I don’t suppose. They were lying around the place,
By Senator \WWARNER:

Q. Those were such bandoliers as were used
ammunition.

Q. To carry the ammunition?-—-A. Yes. sir.

Q. The ammunition comes from the factory in those bandoliers?—
A. Yes, sir,

Q. ITow long have you been in the Army?—A, T'wenty-cight years
and five months, sir.

Q. Are not those bandoliers to be taken care of by the soldiers at
all?—A. I really don’t know, sir. They do not belong to my depart-
ment.  They belong to the ordnance, .

Q. Had you ever scen them strewn around in cther quarters at
other places?—A. I don’t think they were ever issued before this
new Springficld rifle came out, sir.

Q. You never saw them lying around any other place?—A. I don’t
think they were ever issued before.

Q. How many dozen was it you saw?—A. I suppose twelve or
fifteen dozen. They were strewn all over the quarters. I concluded
from that that they were thrown away.

Q. And the ammunition that you picked up——A. Was in open
boxes lying on the floor in the storeroom.

Q. Ammunition boxes?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Just lying open?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind of ammunition was that?—A. Krag-Jorgensen, sir.

Q. About how many hundred?—A. T could not say as to that.
There was probably four or five hundred around the different
quarters.

Q. Distributed around in the storerooms of each of the quartersf—
A. Yes,sir,

A. For carrying
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Q. About how many would you suppose were left there in the
storeroom of Company D?—A. I could not ftell, sir, as to that.
They were just broken boxes. They had used a portion, and I sup-
pose they had shipped the full boxes and left tho broken boxes.

Q. I understand, Sergeant; but just approximately?—A. Oh,
well, there might have been, I suppose, two or three hundred.

Q. In Company D?—A., ’Yes, sir,

Q. How many in Company C quarters?—A. Well, there might
have been the same.

Q. And in Company Bi—A. Probably about the same,

l(ll. 'There might have been. Now, Sergeant——A. I could not
tell.

Q. I am getting your best judgment.—A. I just looked at those
boxes as I went along, without any idea of ever having to think
about them. I took them to be abandoned; just simply saw them
there; that isall.  They did not belong to my department.

Q. I understand, but I am getting at your judgment as to how
many cartridges were there—just your estimate.—A. There might
have been an average of 200 to each set of barracks, each of the three
sets of barracks. I don’t remember seeing any in I Company’s bar-
racks, 36, or any bandoliers,

Q. That was afterward what we have been calling the vacant bar-
racks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Not occupied by the Twenty-fifth?—A. No, sir.

Q. You did not see any at all in them?—A. I don’t remember
seeing any there. I don’t think there was, from the fact that I Com-
pany had only been there a short time, and I know, in fact, they
did not participate in target practice while they were there.

Q. Would you undertake to say, Sergeant, that there were not some
Springfield cartridges mixed up with those Krag-Jérgensen car-
tridges?—A. No, sirj I would not undertake to say that. I say I did
not examine them at all.

Q. But you would think there was an average of about 200
cartridges?—A, I suppose 200 cartridges in each of these three
barracks.

Q. And they were there when the Twenty-fifth came, were they §—
A. Yeos, sir.

Q. In broken boxes? You have been asked if you can be mistaken
about something clse. You could not be mistaken about that very
well, could you¥—A. No, sir.

Q. And those bandoliers remained there?—A. Yes, sir.

- Q. You did not take any bandoliers?—A. No, sir; I did not.

Q. From your service in the Army you knew that this was Govern-
ment property, did you not?—A\. I did; yes, sir.

Q. And that it should be accounted for?—A. No, sir; I did not
know that,

Q. You did not know that ordnance stores should be accounted
for?—A. Oh, yes; ordnance stores should be accounted for, and they
« may have been accounted for for aught I know,

Q. Just wait a minute. You knew they were Government prop-
erty?—A, Yes, sir.

. And as Government property should be accounted for?—A.
Yes, sir,
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Q. To whom did you report the fact of finding this Government
property there?—A. I did not report it to anybody, sir.
Q. Did you report it to Lieutenant Thompson?—A. No, sir; I did
not. He had a sergeant to look after that himself.
Q. And you took 40 rounds of Government propertyf—A. Yes,
sir.
Q. Government ammunitionf—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you report that to anybody i—A. I did not.
Q. That happened to be Krag ammunition?—A. Krag-Jirgensen
ammunition; yes, sir.
. Q. Now, there was this clothing scattered all around theref?—A.
s, S, '
Q. These barracks are in a pretty filthy, nasty condition?—A. Yes,
sir: they were in a very nasty condition.
Q. About how many dozen trousers were there?—A. I suppose
there were about ten suits of clothing to each set of barracks,
Q. Just scattered aroundf—A. Scattered around, discarded.

By Senator OverMaNn:
Q. Was this Krag-Jiorgensen ammunition ever delivered in bando-
liers?—A. Not that T am aware of, sir.
Q. Those bandoliers yon found there must have had Springfield
rifle ammunition in them?—A. T presume, according to my under-
standing, they are only used for the Springfield ammunition.

By Senator Wagrxer:

Q. How many suits did you find—you said about ten to each set
of harracks?—A. About ten to each set of barracks, I should judge.

Q. What kind of uniform was that; was it blue?—A, Principaﬁy
khaki. There was a little blue there, too. There was some blue there
in addition to that—very little.

Q. But about ten suits of that?—A, About ten suits of khaki, I
should judge, to each set of barracks.

Q. Upstairs or downstairs?—A. Upstairs principally.

Q. In the quarters which the men occupied ?—A. Yes, sir; where
the men occupied.

Q. You never saw barracks left in such condition as that bLefore,
did you?—A. Yes, sir; I have, many times.

Q. That is customary for troops moving out?—A. Yes, sir. They
do l]m:. move old clothing that they have no use for and have dis-
carded.

Q. You said you have scen that many a time?—A. Certainly.

Q. Where?—A. Ditferent places.

Q. Where?—A. T have scen it at IYort Clark, at Fort Bliss, I have
seen it at Ifort McP’herson, and T have seen it at St. I'rancis Bar-
racks.

Q. Now, going back in these places you have mentioned, did you
see ammunition scattered around those other places?—A. Yes, sir;
I have seen that.

Q. That is customary, too?—A. It is a customary thing.

Q. To find loose ammunition lying around?—A. Loose ammuni-
tion. As a rule it is accounted for as expended. When the boxes
are broken it is expended,
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Q. Just explain how it could be that the soldiers could have such
an excess of ammunition.—A, It is very simple.

Q. Just explain it, please.—A. They go to target practice, and each
man is issued a certain amount of ammunition to fire, and it fre-
quently occurs that they do not fire them all, and they retain the
ammunition. Again, men go on hunting expeditions, and they aro
given so much for hunting purposes, and they do not use it all, and
they retain it.

(5. But could they have any that they did not ex{)end when they
were out on the range firing?—A. Well, it is expended when it goes
out, so much for target practice. That is the usual practice. The
allowance is expended, #tnd what is left over is thrown into the store-
room, g)roviding they get hold of it and the men turn it in.

Q. Provided they get hold of it?—A. Yes, sir. :

Q. What do you mean by that? We are not in the Army, and we
do not understand.—A. For instance, 63 men are going out to par-
ticipate in target practice and are issued a certain mlmﬁcr of rounds
of ammunition. It is turned over to them and expended in target
practice. Maybe they are out on target practice for n month, and
maybe only half of that is actunlly used.  The rest comes back. It
is not thrown away.

Q. So anan could keep it or return it?—A. Conld keep it. Maybe
ha does not want to keep it and turns it in to the storeroom.

Q. If he wants to keep it he can keep it?—A. Yes, sir.  Other-
wise it is there for hunting purposes,

Q. So that if a man wants to go out on a hunting trip, he can get
surplus cartridges without any trouble?—A. Without any difliculty.

Q. These barracks were not locked up, you say #—A. Not entirely;
no, sir; only the storerooms where I stored the small property that
I did not dare leave without locking up.

Q. Let me sce, Sergeant, you had quartermaster’s stores?-—A.
Yes, sir.

Q. In barracks D, B, and C?—A. I had them in all of them,

Q. But the other one you moved into?—A, There was quartermas-
ter’s property in them when that battalion left there.

Q. Consisting of knives, forks, chairs, and bedding?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. Fire axes and fire buckets?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And the general paraphernalia of camp?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had that in there, but when the troops moved out, of
course the quartermaster was responsible for that?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you take any precaution that parties should not come in to
take any of that away?—A. Yes, sir; I took all the small stuff and
put it in the storcrooms and fastened them up, and put a noncom-
missioned oflicer in charge of each set of burracks. Bedsteads and
large articles, refrigerators, and chairs, and things of that kind I
could not lock up.

Q. But you put an oflicer in there to see that nothing was dis-
turbed 2—A. Because I had to protect that 4)1'0po|‘ty; yes, sir,

Q. That was the case with each barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You finally moved it all out of barracks D, B, and C?—A. No,
sir; I never did move it out. I turned it over to the incoming com-
mand. As soon as I could get to it, I fastered the barracks up and
moved all these men into No. 36,
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Q. Sergeant, is it not a fact that a detachment of ten men were
left in each of these barracks when the Twenty-sixth went out?—A.
Yes, sir; that is what I am talking about exactly, until we could put
them into 36 altogether, and fasten up the barracks.

Q. And those ten men were there during all this filthy condition
of the barracks¥—A. Yes, sir; they were.

Q. No policing done at all{—A> No policing done at all for vari-
ous reasons, One was that the detachment was small and the whole
Egst had to be guarded, and there was a certain amount of work to

done around the post which took up the entire time. Of course
they cleaned up that portion that they slept in, which was a very
small portion,

Q. Now, ten men picking up ten suits of clothing that were scat-
tered about the barracks, that would not be much of a job, would
it?—A. Noj; it would not be much of a job, eertainly not.

Q. And sweeping ont the barracks, that would not be much of a
job?—A. No, sir.

Q. And taking care of that amniumition that was scattered around,
that would not be much of a job?-—A. No, sir,

Q. Ten men could do all that in a very short time, could they
not ?—A. Yes, sir; I should judge so.

Q. And yet you say they did not have time?—A. Well, they were
engaged in other work the entive day.

Q. What kind of work?—A. Well, they had to do the policing of
the post, they had to drive teams, they hnd to haul freight, and
things of that description, They had to do guard duty.

Q. Had to do guard duty 2—A., Yes. sir,

Q. What else?—A, IIad to do cooking.

Q. Had a cook to each detsichment, 1 sup{)osc?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now go on. They had to do guard duty. What was that?—
A. Then there were several men that had to be taken off for the dif-
ferent departments.  The commissary, for instance, had a man; the
quartermaster’s department had two of them, besides all the team-
sters. There were five of them as teamsters, two of them in the quar-
termaster’s oflice, and ona in the commissary’s oflice.

Q. So that accounts for the filthy condition that the barracks were
left in?—A. There were two more men in the bake shop and one in
the adjutant’s oflice.

Q. But the adjutant had gone.—A. It did not make any differ-
ence,  The oflice was there and had to be taken care of.

Q. And the men had gone, and the same men remained in the
bakery #—\. Yes, sir.

Q. Two men for each company?—A. No, sir; two men for the
entire bakery. Another man was mail orderly and another man
looked after the library and post exchange. Another was provost-
sergeant.  That reduced the number of men quite materially.

Y. What was there upon the porches of those barracks?—A. There
was very little on the porches, sir, except some buckats and benches.

Q. Were there not some cartridges scattered around on the
porches?—A. No, sir; not that T saw.,

Q. Was there not some clothing scattered around on the porches{—
A. No, sir; not that T saw.

Q. You were there looking after Government property, and of
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course you would make a pretty close observationf—A. T had to look
after that Government property over which I had control cnly.

Q. If there had been Government property there that was not on
your return, you would have taken it up, wouldn’t you?—A. No, sir;
not if it did not belong to my department.

Q. But if you had found clothing there, that would have belonged
to your department?—A. No, sir; the clothing that belongs to my
department is always under Jock and kev. After I have issued 1t
to the men it is the men's property. I have nothing to do with it.

Q. If you had found an extra bed there, you wonld have taken it
up on your return?—A. Yes, sir; that is quite a different proposi-
tion. That is equipment; that remains in the quartermaster’s pos-
session. The clothing that has been issued is not.

Q. We do not understand about these things. We have got to try
to find them out. How long did those detachments remain in those
barracks?—A. I think about four or five days, sir.

Q. Sergeant, we have a map here—A. Yes. «ir.

Q. You have been there at Ifort Brown about how long?—A. I was
there about a year and four months, sir,

Q. So you are quito familiar with the location2—A. Familiar with
the ground; ves, sir.

Q. If you will look at this map which hangs here, you notice the
barracks marked there. do yvou?—A. Yes. sir,

Q. And the officers’ quarters?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what we call the garrison road, back of the barracksf—
A. Yeos, sir.

_Q And also the guardhouse up there. Do you see it?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. And the commissary’s store. Do you see that?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now skip to the hospital and the quartermaster’s stables.—
A. Yes, sir,

Q. The quartermaster’s storchouse?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. 'The reason I ask you these questions is to find out if that is
4 substantially correct map.—A. No, sir; it is not. There is a road
marked there running across this side of the gnardhouse that does
not lol:xist at all. It is not there. That road there does not exist
at all,

A Q. You mean what seems to be a road at the end of barracks 36—

. Yes, sir.

Q. Whether that is inteuded for a road or a sidewalk I can not
tell.—A. There is neither a road there nor a sidewalk,

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. Is that a plank walk there?—A. No, sir. The plank walk
runs in front of the guardhouse and comes right along here [indi-
- cating].

Q. That walk would be nearer?—A. If it was intended for a
walk, it should not be that width. It is only a 4-foot walk,

By Senator WARNER:
Q. What I was asking about was generally the location of the
buildings, whether that 1s substantially correct?—A. Yes, sir; they
are substantially correct. There is another road here that does not
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exist at all. That road comes right through here [indicating].
Those numbers are reversed. This should be 12 and that should be
11. And that “A,” indicating single quarters, is double.

Q. Now, you see what seems to be marked a road runningbacross
the reservation, running between the cavalry stable and the bakery,
and also between the next cavalry stable and the granary. There
is a road there, is there, through the reservation?—A. Well, there
is a road behind the bakery there, as indicated, but it does not go
out of the garrison. It comes down in rear of the barracks. This
road indicated here comes right down here to this gate. There is no
outlet there and no outlet here.

By Senator ForAKER:

Q. There is no outlet here and no outlet here. You mean there
is no outlet as indicated near the east end of barracks 367—A. No,
sir; there is none here, or up near the noncommissioned officers.

Q. It is a wire fence along theve, is it not?—A. Yes, sir; it is a
wire fence commencing vight here [indicating].

By the CnairyaN:
Q. Is there any road inside?—A. Yes, sir,

By Senator WAaRNER:
Q. It runs along in the rear of the barracks?—A. It runs alon
in the rear of the barracks and comes right through here [indicating].

By Secnator FForaker:
Q. Does it go to the rear of the guardhouse?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator WaRNER:

Q. You know where the country road is outside?—A. There is a
country road right outside of the fence; yes, sir.

Q. Abont how far is that, say, frem what is marked the bakery §—
A. Probably about 800 yards, I should judge.

Q. Three hundred yards from that?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is a dirt road ?—A. Yes, sir. That granary is not in the
position shown there. It is right here [indicating].

Q. Going back down Elizabeth street, Sergeant, that is correct,
is it not 2—A. Yes, sir; it runs right down from the gate.

Q. As far as you can judge., Washington street and those streets
are substantially correct. are they—A. T could not say as to those.
I don’t know much about the lay of the town.

Q. Elizabeth street is the one that opens from the gate?—A. That
runs right from the gate.

Q. And what is marked the Levee there, to your left—Levee
street 7—AL I don’t know anything about. that ~treet. 1 never was
down there at all.

Q. Were you ever down there where they eross to go over to Mata-
moros—A. 1 have been pretty close to it} yes, sir.
| Q. But never have been over there?—A. No. ~ir; never was over
there,

Senator Wanner. I think that is all.

I]'l'lw Wieness. There is another road that does not exist there at
all,
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By Senator BULRELEY:

Q. Were you in the habit of going with the troops to target
practicei—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know anything about the manner of distribution of
cartridges on target practicei—A. Not for the last nearly twent}y-
two years, sir, 1 have been a post quartermaster’s sergeant nearly
twenty-two years,

Q. So what you stated——A. I know what we used to do when I
was in the line of the Army.

Q. Have not things changed in twenty-two years?—A. Well, in
some respects; yes, sir. .

. Q. All that they did forty years ago is vastly different now, is
it not?—A. Yes, sir; but in that particular respect I do not think
you will find any change.

Q. But you know nothing about the actual distribution of the
cartridges on the target range?—A. Not at the present time. It
has been out of my line.

Q. What you have said is largely your imagination of something
fou knew about twenty dvears agot—A. Well, in the time I was in
ine of the Army I was distributing those things myself and I know
exactly how it used to be done. .

. Q. That is how it used to be done twenty-two years ngo?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. But you know nothing about the actual practice at the range
at the present time?—A. No, sir.

By Scnator WarNER:
Q. In your judgment, yon have said you think there has been no
change?—A. Not as far as I know.

By Senator OverMan:
Q. You do know that they have surplus ammunition around some-
times?—A. Yes, sir; I know that from ocular proof.

By Senator BuLKELEY :

Q. Asa matter of fact, you don’t know whether there has been any
change or not, do you?—A. No, sir; I do not; not from my personal
knowledge. i

At 1 o'clock and 5 minutes p. m. the committes took a recess until
2 p. m.

AFTERNOON SESSION,

The recess having expired, the committee, at 2 p. m,, resumed its
sitting.

Present: Senators Warren, Foraker, Lodge, Hemenway, Bulkeley,
Warner, Pettus, Foster, and Overman.

The committee went 1nto executive session.

At 3 o’clock p. m. the committee resumed the hearing,
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TESTIMONY OF SECOND LIgUTilEg)WIN POTTER THOMPSON--
ecalled.

Second Lieut. Epwin Porrer Tuomrson, U. S. Army, a witness
previously sworn, being recalled, testified as follows:

By Senatcr IFoRAKER:

Q. Lieutenant, you just now made a remark to me at the door, on
account of which I recalled you instead of discharging you. You
said that you would malre a correction about something, What was
it?—A. I understood that my recall was due to some remark that
another witness had mande that did not seem to agree with my testi-
mony, and I thought that it would clear it up. It was, as I under-
stood, & point about the cleanliness of the barracks. The troops were
busy all one day and all one night getting ready to leave at 6 o’clock
the next morning. That was when I ias checking the property ; and
the barrack - at that time were in a pretty torn-up condition. They
were turning in this property, and such of it as could easily be moved
was stored in the little storerooms, because they were the safest rooms
in which to store it, and they were better locked. The next day I
was at the station until the troops left, from early that morning, and
I was not at the post when they left the barracks, while the sergeant
was at the post when they left the barracks; and at the time I sup-

oce ihat they marched out the barracks were not in good condition.

ut when I first inspected them after my work incident to the moving
was completed the barracks, in my opinion, were in as proper police
as they could have been in the time they had that morning before they
{o;t, and the place was further straightened up by the men who were
eft.

Senator IForaxer. That is all,

Senator Warxker. That is all.

By Senator Perrus:

Q. Who was in charge when yon left?—A. Major Penrose.

Q. No, no; but I mean immediately in charge of the<e barracks
and what you left there?—A. Oh, the men that were in them, sir,
until they moved, and then all the property that was heavy was left
like the iron bunks. They were left right in the squad rooms, and
all movable property was placed in these storerooms and locked up
ready for the incoming company,

Q. What T want to know is, whom did you leave in charge?—aA, T
was in charge myself.  If that is not the answer, I do not understand
what you mean. I was the only officer there, and I stayed until the
Twenty-fifth came,

TESTINONY OF CAPT. BENJAMIN J. EDGER, JR, U. 8. ARMY,

Capt. Bexsamin J. Epceg, Jr., U, S. Army, being first duly sworn,
testified as follows:

By Senator FForakkr:
Q. Please state your full name.—A. Capt. Benjamin J. Edger, jr.
Q. Are you in the service of the United States!—A\. Yes, sir,
Q). In what capacity#—A. I am a captain in the Medical Depart-
ment of the Army,

S. Doc, 402, 604, pt & 12
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Q. Captain and assistant surgeon?—A. Captain and assistant sur-
geon, United States Army. 'That is my ofticial title.

Q. How long have you been in the service in that capacity —A. I
was commissioned June 14, 1809, but I was in the service before that.
I was awaiting a connission. I took the examination in the latter
part of October, 1898, and I entered as a contract surgeon, and waited
until June 14, 1899, for my commission.

Q. And then you were finally appointed to the position you now

Q. You have the rank of captaint—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Where were you stationed in August, 1906?—A. Tn August,
1006, the greater part of that month I was at the mancuver camp
down at Austin, ''ex.

Q. Perheps I have not got very accurate information about you.
I will ask you whether or not yon were at any time stationed at Iort
Brown?—A. Yes,sir; I was stationed there.

). When did you go to Fort Brown?—A. T was ordered there in
July, 1904, and I arrived there on October 9, 1904, and I remained
continuously on duty there until Qctohor 23, 1905, and then I went
on four months’ leave until Iebrunry, 1906, and then I rejoined my
station on Iebruary 22, 1906; and I was there until July 5, 1906,
when I went to the maneuvers,

Q. July 5, 1906, was the time that the battalion left?—A. The
Twenty-sixth Infantry left there then.

Q. Were you assigned to duty with the Twenty-sixth Infantry?—
A. We are not assigned to duty that way. We are assigned to a
station, and we are supposed to be kept there a certain length of time
at each station. The Surgeon-General’s Office regulates that,

Q. Then you were there from 1904 until 1906%—A. Until 1906;

es, sir.
y Q. About two years, in round numbers?—A. About two years, in
round numbers; yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not you became acquainted during that
&)zeriml with the citizens of Brownsville.—A. I knew the citizens of

rownsville very well.

Q. Iow did you come to knew them very wellt—A. I practiced
my professior. in the city of Brownsville.

Q. Are you allowed to practice when you are assigned to u post—
A. If it does not interfere with our official duties we can attend
anyone who wants our services.

Q. Did you practice to any considerable extent in Paownsville?—
A. I practiced among the Anerican and Mexican population quite
extensively there.

Q. And beeame pretty well acquainted?—A. I knew almost cvery-
body in the town.

Q. What time was it you left there?-—A. I left the 5th of July
for the mancuver camp, but I returned again when they wanted to
displace Doctor Combe, Ife was the attending surgeon there, and
when they wanted to bring him back. they ordered me to go from
Austin to rejoin my station, after this lieutenant of pohce was
wounded. Tle was the attending surgeon there, and they wantéed an
army surgeon there to relieve him,
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By the CiairMaN:

Q. He was serving us n contract surgeon?—A. No; we call them
attending surgeons. Ife did not have a contract at all. Ile got so
much for so many patients. If he attended sick call he got so much.,
He just had very light dutics there. .

By Senator IForakkR:

Q. Was that the Doctor Combe who was the mayor of Browns-
ville?—A, e is the mayor of Brownsville; yes, sir.

Q. When you left on July 5 to attend at Camp Maybury, that is
where the National Guard of Texas was eneamped #—A. Yes, sir;
about 4 or 5 miles from the city of Austin, Tex.

Q. He acted during your absence?—A. He was the attending
surgeon,

Q. What time was it you returned there to relieve himf?—A. I
got there nbout seven or cight days after the shooting affnir oc-
curred. That was August 20 or 215 I am not positive which.

Q. Prior to July 5, how long had you been, without interruption,
gl'cscnt. in Brownsville t—A. I got back there on Washington's Bivth-

ay.

Q. That is, you were there during the Iatter part of February
and during March, April, May, June, and to July H2—A\. Yes, sir;
but I had been on duty there for a year previously, up until the time
I went on leave of absence, for over a year.

Q. Do you remember about the first notice that came of the faet
that the Twenty-sixth Infantry was to leave there und to be suceeeded
by the Twenty-fifth?—A. I remember it very well; ves, sir,

Q. Can you tell about when that was?—A. I think the oflicers
there on the post and the people of the town got the information
from the San Antonio Express of May 26 or May 27. It was the
gil_\' following the prommulgation of the order, und I think that wax

ay 2o,

Q. Were you in a situation to know, and if o, did yvou know what
the feeling of the people of Brownsville was with vespeet to the pro-
posed coming of colored troops?—A. Yes, sivy 1 was familiar with it.

Q. Tell us now what you can recolleet of such manifestations of
feeling, of friendship, or hostility, or anything else of that kind.—A.
I had patients in town, and 1 would have to go up the main street to
see themn  The main street leads vight out from the post gate, and 1
generally took that,

Q. That is Elizabeth street 2—A. That is Elizalweth street.

Q. Thero is & map right there—A. Yes, sir. I used to go down
Elizabeth street and turn out the side street, wherever my patients
happened to be. and walking up and down that street. T would meet
the various men of the town whom I had gotten to know, and they
would speak to me and say that the colored troops were coming to
Brownsville, and T wonld say ves. and then they would ask me if 1
was going to leave with them. and T said no I eonld not tell about
that, that T was not assigned to any regiment, and my tour of duty
at FFort Brown was not stated: that 1 did not know just when it
wonld be up. and the chances were that T wonld probably complete
my two years, including the time that I was on leave of absence, and
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that would take me certainly up until January, 1907. Then they
would say, * Well, we don’t want those colored troops. We had those
colored troops here before and we don’t want them again.” Then 1
would say, * Well, why don’t yon want them?” ¢ Well, the people
of this town ”—this is the snm and substance of what they s:\i({)—-—
“ the people of this town, they don’t like colored troops, and we just
won't have them here.” I heard that from a good many of the
prominent men in the town that I knew.

Q. Can you give us the names of any of the people who thus spoke
to you about that?—A. One night in the lodge I belonged to down
there I was speaking to Captain Kelly, the president of the IFirst
National Bank, and our conversation turned on the subject of the
Brownsville troops, and he said, “ The people of this town don’t like
colored troops; they don’t want them here. We have had them
here before. and they do not give satisfaction, and we do not want
them.” Then, again, besides Captain Kelly, I spoke to both the Mr.
Kowalskis. They are merchants in the town-—respected men there.

Q. What kind of busiuess are they in?—.\. I think they are com-
mission merchants. They deal in potaioes, onions, and such things.

Q. Where is their place of busines<?—N\. One Mr. Kowalski’s

lace is on Llizabeth street, right outside of the post, right beyond

frs. Leahy’s hotel. and the other one is right between the Merchants’
National Bank and the First National Bank. That is in the square
beyond Tillman’s saloon on Elizabeth street.

Q. Can you tell anybody else who spoke in that general wav?—
A. Doctor Combe and T were firm personal and professional friends.

Q. That is the mayor?—.A. The mayor of the town. T spoke to
him on numerous occasions about the coming of the colored troops,
and he satd to me that he had come home on the transport with the
Twenty-fifth Infantry and had found them very satisfactory troops,
and I agreed with him. I said that I had served on two previous oc-
easions with colored troops, and I had always found the scrvice very
fine; that I liked them.

Q. Where had you served with colored troops?—.A. I served with
the Ninth Cavalry in the Philippine Islands, and I served also with
a battalion of the Ninth Cavalry at the Presidio, San IFrancisco. I
told him they were very fine troops. certainly as good as white troops;
that they were more amenable to discipline, and always very respeet-
ful, and as I had served with all branches of the service I consid-
ered my service with the colored troops as pleasant as any that I had
ever had.

Q. Did or not Doctor Combe agree with you?—A\. He said: “ These
people will not stand for colored troops; they do not like them;
these Mexican people do not want them here.”

Q. The Mexican people?-—.\. Yes. sir.

Q. That reminds me to ask you about the population of Browns-
ville. What is the population of Brownsville, in numbers?—A.
Personally I don’t know, but from what I used to hear then they gave
it as about 8,000; and of those 8,000, 7,000 wer2 reported to be Mexi-
cans and the other thousand Americans. I do not think there were
a thousand Americans down there.

Q. You did not think there were?—\. T did not think there were.

Q. A thousand Americans.—A. I do not think so.
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Q. The great majority of the population is Mexican, is it?—A,
Yes, sir; they all satd they had a thousand Americans, but it did not
seem so to me.

Q. Tell us about the police force, for instance. What was it com-
posed of 7—A. I only knew one American, and I do not think he is
un American; that is the lieutenant of police.

Q. What is his nume?—A. I think flis name is Connor, or Con-
nors.

Q. Is that George Connor?—A, I think so. I don’t know his first
name. Ie looked to me as though he had some Mexican blood in him.

Q. Is he the chief of police?—A. I never got the chief of police
and the lieutenant of police separated. but T knew there were two men
in anthority. One was Mr. Domingnez, whom T knew very well, and
My, Connor.

Q. George Connor testifies, at page 153, part 2, of Senate Document
}\\"o. 155, that he is the chief of police of the city of Brownsville.—A.

es, Sir.

Q. You set him down as that?—A. I never got them separated, I
knew he was in authovity.

Q. Te spoke English?—A. Yes, sir: he was the only one T knew
that spoke good English.  Mr. Dominguez spoke it quite well, but——

Q. State before we leave that subjeet if vou know when George Con-
nor was appointed chief of police—whether it was after Mayor
Combe took oflice.—A. T think it was after Mavor Combe took oflice.
.\l;;\vm‘ Combe in fuct introduced me to Mr. Connor as his chief of

oliee.
! Q. He was not chief of police hefore Mayor Combe came in?—A.
[ don’t think he was, T am not sure of that.

Q. Can you tell me how many other policemen they had?—A. I
don’'t know how many.

Q. You spoke of Dominguez. Ie was the man who was
wounded ?—A. Yes, «ir; T knew him very well.

Q. Tle spoke Spanish. did he?—A\. Tle spoke English, but if vou
~poke with him for any length of time he used to get mixed up in his
Iinglish.  You could tell that he would rather speak Spanish or
Mexican,

Q. But he could speak English?—A. He could speak English;
ves, sir,

Q. If you were slow and patient with him?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, as to the others, how many others were there?—A. T don’t
know how many there were.  Indeed. you could not tell a policeman
from anybody else there at one time. T know that they were all
dressed in native garb down there, and they did not know just who
were the policemen.

Q. 'Flat is, they dressed in citizen's clothes?—A\., Yes, «ir,

Q. Did thev or not wear any badge to indieate their oflicial posi-
tion—that they were policemen?—\. I don’t think they did. sir.

Q. Yon don't remember seeing them?—A. 1 don’t remember secing
any badge. T know you could not tell them.

Q. ‘That was prior te the incumbeney of Mayor Combe?—A. Yes
sir.  They were uniformed in Mayor Combe’s time.  He uniforme
them.

Q. lle was the first to do that, was he?f—A. Yes, sir.,
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Q. What kind of a uniform did he require them to wear?—A.,
They had a blue uniform in the winter time and a khaki uniform in
the summer.,

Q. llow did that khaki uniform that the police in Brownsville
wore compare in general appearance with the khaki uniform worn
by the soldiers?—A. Pretty much the same.

Q. About the same color?—A\. About the smine color.  After it was
washed it was not the same color.,

Q. State whether or not khaki clothing was worn more or less by
the citizens in Brownsville.—A. Quite a number of citizens wore
khaki clothing.

Q. Were there or not several places where khaki wniforms were
manufactured ; where anybody who wanted one conld go and get it {—.
A. You could buy khuki down there. T have Imngﬁt some myself
in one of the stores and had it made up into tronsers.,

Q. You had a suit made downtown in a tailor shop?--A. I had it
made up by the tailor on the post. Fvery company generally has a
tailor, and sometimes the oflicers

Q. You would buy the materinl downtown and give it to a tailor
who was stationed in the post{—A. Yes, siry down there they hap-
pen to be Mexicans.. 1 know one man was, Guitteras T think his
name is,

Q. He was a tailor, was he?—A, Te was a tailor, and, I think,
Corapany L called him theiv tailor,

Q. e was the tatlor for Cempany L2—A. Company 1, ‘I'wenty-
sixth Infantry.

Q. Did cach company have o tailor?—XN, They had n tailor; yes,
sir.

Q. And they had u place in the barvacks where they conld worle 71—
A. Generally they Im(‘ a little room in the barrachs where they used
to work.

Q. Now, state as to the general eharacter of this population, as to
the Mexican part of it fiest,. Was it or was it not a gomd, lnw-abiding

opulation in your judgment, or was it a population where there was
requently trouble bresking ont 7--- A, There was lots of trouble down
there, 1t was not a law-abiding population.

Q. T suppose they had some good people there as well as anywhereo
clse? -\, There were some good people therve; yes, siv,

Q. But they had some other kinds?--A, Yes,sir,

Q. Now. tell us upon what you base that statement-—your ex-
perience there in that l'v.\'luwl.«—;\. Welly just my estimation of the
people. Fhey were people I wounld not waunt to go with,  There
were not very many people down there T wounld want to go with, or
that 1 would want anybody that Lelonged to me to go with,

Q. State whether or not the white soldiers of the ‘I'wenty-sixth
Infuntry—there were no coloved soldiers in that regiment, I be-
lieve.—A. No, sir there was only one coloved man, and he was in the
hospital corps.

Q. State whether or not the soldiers of the ‘I'wenty-<ixth Infantry,
the white soldiers, had trouble there at Brownsville and plenty of it
or noi.- ~A. They had frequent trouble down there while l was tiere,
I used to be sent for quite often to go to the jail to attend some of
those soldicrs who were beaten up by the Mexican policemen,
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Q. Tell us what happened frequently there in that respect, if you
ean.—A. Well, take a soldier going down the street, probably just
slightly under the influence ofkliqum'. I heard that the policemen
got so much out of the fines, or got so much credit for taking in
prisoners,

Q. That is, the policemen did?—A, Yes, sir; the policemen did,
and if a soldier were walking down the street slightly under the
influence of liquor, and probably not saying a word—just what they
used to tetl mes T would go into the history of it with them after
they came to the hospital, or T would go up to the city jnil to sce
them.  Major Cooke used to send me up to see them-—

Q. You have no personal knowledge of these affrays?—A. No, sir}
just what T would -k the men,

Q. Your knowledge was derived from being sent to attend them #—
A. To atiend them when they would coma into the hospital with cuts
on their heads or bodies,

Q. State whether or not it frequently happens that yon wero
called upon to attend professionally on men who had been cut up
in athrays in Brownsville, men belonging to vour regiment, men of
the ‘Iwenty-sixth.—-\. This was a frequent ocenrrence there; T was
called on quite frequently.

Q. Sometimes you would he sent to the city jail?- -\, Sometimes
b would be sent to the eiiy jail.

Q. And sometimes they would come to the hospital2—A, Some-
times they would come to the hospital; and in the Army we aro
vequired (o know just iow a man receives his wound, on account of
his pension status, and T would ask them,

Q. Were you rvequived (o make veports on all of them?—A. Yes,
sir: 1 would ask them. Lots of times T would just sew them up
and send them to daty. I a nan can do duty we just mark him
“duty " and he will go round with a plaster on his head, or somo
little injury (o his hady, and no attention will be given to it in the
books of the medieal departinent or on the company hooks,

Q. What was the way in which (hese men were generally heaten
up; was there any instrument 2—A. They used to tell me that it
was with tha pistols of these policemen, A these policemen earrvied
pistols,

Q. In what way did they use the pistols en them?—--A, They used
the butt of the revolver and split open their heads.

Q. Straek them with the batt?2- -\, Yes, siry <phit ovoen their
sealps. One man was shot there while T was theve by a polteeman,

Q. Who was thatZ—N\. That was aoman in Captain Roach’s come
pany, Company M, @ man by the nawe of Bevan,  He was shot right
throngh the thigh.,

Q. Did you attend him?- -\, Yescsiee Some of my hospital-corps
men went up into the town and got him and cavried him down on
a litter, and there is n record of him in the War Departinent.  1le
must have beenin the hospital for about four or five weeks, and then
as xoon as he was able (o get up and be around the city oflicials
wessed Major Roberts, who was then in command, to deliver him
into their hads, So he left the hospital and went up into the ety
wison, and he was in the city prison, but his wounds had just
’mulml, and he was just able to walk around when he was delivered
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over to the city authorities. I know he was acquitted finally of the
charge they had made against him.

Q. He was finally tried and acquitted 2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who defended him, do you‘lmow ?—A. I think Captain Roach
was interested in it. He was his company commander.

Q. And he was looking after him?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I am only asking for information.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, can you specify any other cases where men of the Twenty-
sixth got into aflrays and were wounded by being shot in that way?—
A. There were none otheis that were shot, Lots of them were in-
jured, but as to them no record was made, on account of their being
able to go on duty right away after they were fixed up.

Q. Were you in a sitnation to observe, and did you o serve, whether
or not people generally in Brownsville went armed with some
kind of fircarms{—A. They did before Muayor Combe’s time, and
Mayor Combe had an ordinance pussed. Ile scemed to rule the city
council there, and he got what he wanted. Ile was ruling the town.
He had quite extensive experiences in the Philippines in organizing
munici )ﬂitics, and he adopted the same plan down here at Browns-
ville when he got in charge of the place, and after his incumbency
things ran along pretty well, better, certainly, than they had before.

Q. T ask you whether or not during yonr stay in Brownsville it
was a frequent or an infrequent occurrence to hear firearms being
discharged in the city and in the vicinity?—A. T have often heard
them at night.

Q. So that a shooting affray there is not unusual?—A. It is noth-
ing unusual; no, sir.

» Q. A great many people have testified in this case. T have hefore
me a list of witnesses examined by Mr, Purdy. T want to ask you
as to some of them, whether you know them.—-\. Yes, sir.

: Q. Do you know Nicholas S. Alanis?—A. No, siv; I do not know
1in.

Q. Do you know A. Y. Baker or David J. Buaker or Ifrank
Baker?—A. I know one of the Bakers. Tle is a sort of assistant
customs-honse inspector. T don’t know what his first name is; but
I know one of them. and his reputation there is very bad.

By Senator Wanxer:

Q. Doctor, have you heen asked anything about hiz reputation
down there?—A. This is hearsay. Senator. 1 never have been asked
what his reputation was before, if that is what you mean.

By Senator Overyan:

Q. You just volunteered that testimony—that his reputation was
bad.—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator IForaken:

Q. T am going to ask you about their reputation in that com-
munity, if you know. Do you know Ielix Valdez Calderon?—A\.
No, sir; I do not. T would not know many of those Mexicans by
name at all. but I would know them if I should see them.

Q. T do not know anything about these people, but T simply want
to find out. Do you know Charles Stafford Canada?—A. No, sir;
I would hardly recognize any of those Mexican names.

Q. Do you know Joseph K. Combe, a brother of the mayor?—A.
Ol yes; very well,
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Q. What is his standing in that community?—A. He is a very
fine man.

Q. You have already told us about George Connor, the chicf of
police.—A. Yes, sir.

Scnator Foster. He did not say what kind of a man he was.

Senator IForaker. I understood him to say he was a very good
man,

A. Dr. IFred Combe, the mayor of the town, told me he was a
first-class man and did his duty.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. Doctor Combe appointed him?—A. Dr. IFred Combe appointed
him and introduced me to him one day on the street car.

Q. Do you know IHerbert Elkins?—A. I know him; yes, sir; ho
is a customs inspector. I don’t think he is originaliy from Browps-
ville; he came in there from some other place.

Q. I think he is put down as a clerk in the drug store for a time
and then clerk in the boarding house kept by Mrs. Leahy.-—A. If it
is the Elkins that is around M=, Leahy’s he had something to do
with the customs service there.  That is the Elkins that T know.

Q. Now, what do vou know about him, anything special?—A\. 1
don’t know anything about him,

Q. T will ask you about Mrs. Leahy. Do you know her?—A. I
know her very well; yes, sir.

Q. Did you know her while you lived there?—A. Yes, sir; I
boarded at her hotel for four or five months after T got my leave.
I got a conditional leave, that 1 could go on my leave when the
department commaader could spare my services.  So we broke up
our mess in the post and we went up to her hotel to live,

Q. Did you become pretty well aequainted with her?—A. Yes,
sir: very well.  She was a patient of mine at one time.

Q. She has testified in this case.  What is your estimate of her as
a reliable witness?—A. Well, T would not take her testimony very
far. She exagaerates very nearly everything she talks about and
adds to it. T used to speak with her nearly every morning, and she
wonld come to the breakfast table and sit down there and speak
about things that T knew about myself, and she would add just
double what the original story amounted to.  She was very garrulous,

Q. ‘That is. matters grew in size?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. From small things to great ones?—.N\. Ve, sir

Q. Is she quite excitable?—A. Very excitable. very nervous.

Q. Do von know Mrs, Odin?—A. T do not know her; no, sir.

Q. Or her hushand, Hale Odin?2—A\. T don’t vemember him, 1
know the name very well. T thiuk there was an Odin down there
Kept a beer saloon one time, but he just eame in and talked with me
once, T don’t know him very well.

Q. Do yvou know Genaro Padron, who wa- a policeman—A., No,
siry T don’t know the naumes of the policemen.

By Senator Wanxen:

Q. A< I under-tand. Doctor. when Mayor Comhe—yon eall him
Major Combe—-\. Tle was a major and surgeon of volunteers dur-
ing the Philippine war, L

Q). He had had considerable experience there in the Philippines{—
A Yoy, sin,

pA ]
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Q. In straightening out matters?—A. Yes, sir. We used to have
a great deal to do with the municipalities over there,

Q. And so when ho became mayor of Brownsville he worked great
reforms there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Abolished the carrying of firearms?—A. Well, he said he did;
but there were several crimmes commiited after that.

Q. I have not asked you about oti:er crimes, I have asked you
}v:'hfth(!n' he abolished the earrying of firearms?—A. le told me that

e had.

Q. Ishe a truthful man?—A, He is a truthful man; yes, sir.

Q. Did you see people carrying firearms after that?—A. T used
to sce a lot of people, I don’t know whether they had authority to
carry them or not, but quite a number of people had them; I did
not know whether they were ofiicials or not.

Q. You do not know about that?2—A. Noj; I could not tell.

Q. But he did work reforms there?—A. Ile worked reforins there;

es, Sir.
y Q. Now you had a talk with Doctor Combe?—A. I talked a lot
with him.

Q. Ile was friendly to the soldiers, was he not2—\. Yes, sir; but
he llmulo statements about colored soldiers when they were coming
in there,

Q. I did not ask you about that. Ie was friendly to the colored
soldiers?—A. e was friendly to the colored soldiers; yes, sir.

Q. What was the statement he made about colored soldiers?—
A. e =aid that the people of Brownsville would not stand for
colored soldiers. Tle said personally he liked them; that he had
come home from the Philippines with the Twenty-fifth Infantry.

Q. So that he was friendly even to colored soldiers?—A. Yes, sir;
personally he was friendly himself. T meant to state that.

Q. And so expressed himself 2—N\. Yex, sir.

Q. And he was mayor of the city?—.A. Ile was mayor of the city;

es, sir.
y Q. Now, von heard Mr. Kellv?—A. Yes, sir.
President of the bank?—A. Yes, sir.
Ie did not say anything against the colored soldiers, did he?—
A. No. sir.

Q. Simply said that the people there—that they had colored sol-
diers there before?—\. Yes, sir.

Q. And that they did not like them?—A, Did not like them;
s, sir,

Q. And they were asking yon if vou were going away ?—N\. This
was a private conversation with him in the lodge room. That is tho
only time I spoke to him about. it.

Q. This private conversation yon had told, though, before you
went on the stand here?—A\. Yes, sir,

Q. Ile said nothing against the soldiers?—A, Well, T don’t think
he would say anything against them, beeause his son is captain in a
colored regiment.

Q. Who is this?—A, Capt. William Kelly, Ile would not be
likely to say anything against them.

Q. And you had heard him say in substanco the same as Doctor
Cembe, that the people there did not like to have the colored sol-
diers?—A. Yes, sir; that is the substance of it.

Q.
Q.
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Q. He was a veteran of the civil war, was he not?—A. Yes, sir; a
very fine man.

Q. And one of the leading men of Brownsville?—A. Probably
the leading man of Brownsville.

Q. Probably the leading man?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. ‘Jhey were regretting the fact that the Twenty-sixth were going
away, and that the colored troops were coming in their place. Your
patients would talk to you about that?—A. I don’t know whether
they regretted that the ‘I'wenty-sixth were going away. What they
wanted was white soldiers there.  ‘That was what I gleaned from the
conver=ation.

(. Do you know of that condition existing in other places?—A.
I never served with colored treops in the United States, except at
the Presidio, and there is no friction out there at all that I know of,

Q. I did not ask you about friction. I asked you whether you
ever knew of any other place where they would rather have white
sloltlio?rs than colored soldiers?—A\. Where they would rather have
them?

Q. Yes.—-A. Since T have been at IFort Reno the people down there
have heen kicking about the colored soldiers. At least, when they
ame there the town newspapers were full of the War Department
sending the troops to their post after they were disgraced down in
Texas, and T believe some of the officers went down there and talked
with the editors and told them that they did not like to see anything
like that. So that the inference is that they would rather have the
white soldiers stationed there.

Q. Do you know any post where the people have said they wonld
rather have colored soldiers than white soldiers/—\. T have heard of
sone,

Q. Which posts?—A. The oflicers of the T'wenty-fifth told me that
the people of Valentine, Nebr., said they were sorry to see the Twenty-
fiftk Infantry go away from there,

Q. Sorry why-—becanse white troaps were wgoing {o take their
places-—A, Well. they abandoned that post afier the Twenty-fifth
left there.

Q. That was th ir reason. Tt would be very natural for the people
ina town 2ar. iles from the post AL Four or five.

Q. From VWort Niobrara?—A\. Yes, sir, )

Q. It would be very natural that they would he very sorry to sce
any regiment go away if the post was going (o be abandoned ?—A.
Financially; yes, sirv. - 1t is a finaneial thing all the way through, I
think.

Q. You have spoken about xoldiers getting into trouble?—A. Yes,
sir,

Q. That lessened a good deal after Mayor Combe took hold
there?- -\, Very much: but «till T had some cases,

Q. You would have some cases?—-A. Yes, sir,

Q. You had some eases at the Presidio, didn’t you?—A. Thoze men
were not interfered with muceh in town.

Q. T asked you a simple question—if yon had some cases where
men oot into trouble?—A\. Yes, sir; there were some.

Q. What regiment was that?—A. They had both artillery and
eavaley—it was mixed-—and two regiments of infantry while I was
there,
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Q. Have you been stationed at other posts?—A. I have been pretty
much over the United States, over the eastern coast.

Q. At different posts?—A., Yes, sir.

Q. And about pay day soldiers go out, unfortunately, do they
not?—A. They manage to get rid of their pay, and the oflicers like
to «co that.

Q. The officers like to «ce that?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What do you menn by that?—A. Well, the quicker they get rid
of their money the better it is for all concerned.

Q. Why?—A, Well, if a man has any tendency to drink at all, he
will spend his money in drinking, and keep it up, and he will not do
his fuh duty while he is in that condition.

Q. So the ofticers like to see them get rid of their money as soon as
possible?—A. They cither like to see them deposit it or get rid of it
1n £ome way.

Q. So as to quit drinking?--\. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, these parties who were arrested, men who were injured,
whom you were called to put a stitch or two in their sealps, or to
attend for some injuries, they would come and tell you they wero
walking down the siveet and were not mwuch intoxicated #—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. And that a policeman hit them over the head?7—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever sce & man who was drunk who would admit
it?—A. Not a soldier.

Q. Or a citizen?—A. T never heard a soldier admit he was drunk.
They all say that they ave under the influence

Q. Just slightly under the influence —J\. Yeos, siry I agree with
you on that.

Q. And you do not know anything about any of these ozcurvences
yourself, do you?-—\. Sometimes T used to hear in a ronndabont way
that they were right in their statements, and other times I had to
take their word for it.

Q. You do not know personaily yourself, only from their state-
ment and frem what yveou heard in a romnedabout way?—-A. Yes, sir,

Q. You were ticated very nicely there/—N. Yes, sirj T was treated
fine.

Q. All of your ofticers were treated very nicely?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Were vou marvried theve XN, When 1T went on leave T was
married. T was down there over a vear without being mavried.,

Q. And vou had been there over a year, and went away and got
married -\, Yes, sir,

Q. You took vour wife down to Brown-ville?-—A. Yex, «ir,

Q. You lived theve then? -\. T lived there until five months after
that, but ~he did not ascocate with the people there,

Q. Oh, I a~ume not: of course not.---\. 1 thought you were lead.
ing up to that.

Q. You anticipated me. T would net think that; but yen teok
your wife there £-—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And of cour=e she wonld not ascociate with the people. and did
not 1—A. Not very man; , there were a few there that ~he would,

Q). Where did yonu marev? -\ In San Franei-eo, Cal,

Q. Now. thi~ man Kalowski. what id he do? A0 Katowki i
a sort of comnnssion merehant, and he s also disteict elevk of Judze
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Weleh's court—the judge that was killed down there at Rio Grande
City. I don’t know whether it is the cirenit court. or whatever it is,

Q. Tt is a court of record, as we call it?—A, Yes, sir; I don’t just
know the name of it.

Q. He was a commission merchant and deputy cierk in that
court?—A. He is the district clerk or county clerk, or something
like that.

Q. A respectable citizen?—A. Very respectable.

Q. Very respectable?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He said also they wonld prefer to have white {roops, that they
had had colored troops before?—.N\. Yes, sir; well, he condemned
the colored troops, Mr. Kowalski did, especially when T went back
to rejoin the regiment after they had done the shooting up.

Q. After they had done the shooting up, yes; but I am speaking
of before that.  He condemned the eolored troops because he thought
they had been guilty of the shooting up?—A. Yes, sir; and ho
referred to the conversation we had had before. T don’t just remem-
hlvr the exact words, but he said, “ Just as I told vou before, I knew
that.”

IQ. That they would have trouble?-——\. Yes, sir; something like
that.

Q. Referred to that and in conneetion with his belief that they shot
up the town?--\. Yes, «ir

Q. And he is a very reliable, respectable man?—-\, Yes, sir,

Q. Now, just as a matter of opimion—I think you have given an
opinton-—that as between colored troops and white troops you prefer
to be with the colored troops?—N\. T said T always delighted to
serve with them. and I do like to sevve with ecolored troops.

Q. As a comparison. I think you said that yvou preferred them to
the white troops?—.\. T do not want to <erve with them all the time,
but I like to cerve with them. T enjoved my serviee. 1 think T havo
made the statement that I alwavs enjoved my serviee with eolored
traop<.  They are more amenable to dixeipline, and they are casily
di~ciplined and very respeetful.

Q. T may be mistaken, but as T eanght your words, T think voun
<aid they were better than white troops?-—-X. Woll. I ean state that,
too.

Q. T do not want you to say so unless it is <o; but (hat is your
judgment, is it ?2--\. Yes, sir.

Q. What colored troops had they at Brownsville hefore the colored
troops went there?—N\U | heard that they had the Twenty-fourth
Infasstey a good many vears ago. smne comspanies of them. and also
the Ninth Cavaley and the Tenth Cavalry. There was a troop of
the Tenth Cavaley <tationed theve during the Spanish- Ameriean war
in 1SOS. with Captain Avres, b think his name i<. T have seen his
name on the b oks a number of times. “That was during that time.

Q. A\ great nmany of the people there were Spaniards or Mexicans,
were they 2--\. Lots of Mexicans, yes. <ir: not pure Mexicans, but
all Kinds of mintuwres. Lot~ of them do not know their lineawe,

Q. That is to ~ay, so near Ameriean~ that they do not know they
are Mexieans? A0 Yeo, cir: they do not want von to recognize them
a~ Mexicins; they want you to recognize them as Mmerieans,  And
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then there are a lot of black ones, and then intermediate shades. You
can get all colors.

Q. A lot of black ones—that is, you mean mixed——A. You conld
pot tell them from negroes.

Q. Mixed between Spanish and negrot—A. Yes, sir; some of them
you could not tell from a negro.

Q. A great many of those were there?—A. Not many of those; the
shade is generally brown, sort of light.

Q. I am speaking now cf the dark ones.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What proportion of the inhabitants are composed of that
class?—A. Oh, 1 could not state that.

Q. Don’t you know that there are not a dozen colored men in
Brownsville?—A. Yes; I guess there are that many, although I don't
know them, T just conld recall—well, at the present time I just re-
call three colored men that T know. One is in the custom-house and
another man that used to be a cook for Captain Kilburn, and another
one is a discharged chief trumpeter of the Ninth Cavalry, and his
daughter used to cook for me. ‘There are quite a number of colored
wonien there. but there were only three colored men—welly there is
another one that I know, a tracker. works for Mr. Jagou,

Q. Going back to the Mexicans. they conduct the business there—
a great deal of it—do they not, the stores?—A, Yes, sir; they have

uite a nunber of stores.  “I'hen there are Americans, Jews, who con-
duct stores. You will find them in all frontier towns, The Jews
have stores there.

Q. Goud, satisfactory citizens?—N\. Yex, sir,

Q. Law-abiding?—A\. Yes, sir.  You do not see them getting into
any trouble,

Q. You would hear some shooting oceasionally2—A. Yes, «ir.

Q. And that diminished after Mavor Combe took hold there?—
A. Yes, sirg still you could hear it after his administration,

Q. Occasionally a shot 2——A. Well. at night you might hear four
or five shois in xome portion of the town.  When Major Cooke was
in command he would be concerned about it. thinking it was shooting
on the post.

Q. When was that: about what vear?--\. Well, that was during
my first vear. my first term there,

Q. Your fir=t term there was from when to when?—A, From
October 9, 1901, until October 23, 1505—during that time,

Q. That was a year before Major Combe was mayor?—N\. T forget
just when Mayor Combe took the office,

Q. But the fact of it is, after Mayvor Combe taok office reforms
were worked in all those matters?—A., Things were better than they
were previously,

Q. That was a frontier town?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And hie hronght a good deai of orde ont of disorder there?---
A. Well, T think he did it by his stricc methods. ‘They knew he
meant what he said. and they Jooked up to him. knowing he did not
have any axes to grind with anybody,

By Senator Overyan:

Q. Do vou know Jos¢ Martinez. a druggist? —-A. No, siv; T do

pot know him. I knew those droggists, but I would not hnow them

o
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by name. I used to go in and out of those drug stores quite fre-
quently, especially Doctor Combe’s drug store. If it is his druggist
I know him very well, but I do not know his name,

By Senator ForakER:

Q. You told us that Mayor Combe worked reforms theret—
A. Yeos, sir.

Q. Things were better after he came into office?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. None of the people went away, however, did they, on account
of his becoming mayor?—A. Not that I know of, sir,

Q. That is, if there were any bad people there before, they re-
mained theve, didn't they?—A. T think <o} ves, sir; I never heard of
anyone moving away from there.

Senator Foraker, I think that is all T want (o ask.

Scnator WarNer. 1 think 1 will not ask any further questions.

By Senator Fostrr:
Q. IFrom what State are you?—A. I am from Philadelphia, Pa.

(At 3 o'clock and 55 minutes p. m. the committee adjourned until
Thursday, March 14, 1907, at 11 o'clock 2. m.)

ComMirree oN Minitary AFrrans,
- UNrren STATES SENATE,
Thuesday, March 14, 1907,
The committee met at 11 o'clock a. m.
Present : Semators Warren (chairman), IForaker, Hemenway, Bulke-
lev. Warner, Pettus, Foster, and Overnun.

TESTIMONY OF FIRST SERG1. NELSON HURON, U. 8. ARMY,

Iirst Sergt. Nersox Herox, Us S0 Armiy, being fivst duly sworn,
testified us follows:

By Senstor Forager:

Q. Please give vour pame in full-—\. Nelson Thivon.

Q. Ave you in the Avmy—N\. Yes, sir,

Q. To what command do you helong? —A. Company M, Twenty-
sixth Infantey. sir

Q. Where is your company stationed now -\, At Fort Sam
Haouston, Tex.

Q. Have yvou any oflicial position in that company ?2——A. 1 am first
sergeant of Company M, ir.

Q. Were you with your company when it was stationed at Fort
Brown. in Brownsville, in 190642\, Yoo sir,

Q. Did you go there with your company ?--A. No. sir: T did not.

Q. How long have you been in the service £\, Something over
six vear< and three months, ~ir,

Q. Do vou remember when vour company went there?-—AL T was
ont of the serviee at that time for a <short time. 1 joined them shortly
after they arrived theve

Q. Tow long were you out of the service/—-A. 1 was out a year
at that time,



o
-

1112 AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS,

Q. Where did you serve before you joined Company M at Fort
Brown, with what command?—A. I served three years in the same
company before-they went to Fort Brown, and something more than
a year in a volunteer regiment in 1898.

Q. And then you were out for a time, but reenlisted and joined
your company at IFort Brow..?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been a first sergeant?.—A. Not quite four
months this time, and five months once before, about four months
ago.

Q. Where in all have you served with your command?—A, I
served in various parts of the United States.

Q. Can you give us the different posts where you have been sta-
tioned?—A. Yes, sir. I was stationed at the Presidio, San Fran-
cisco; I was in the Philippine Islands two years and a half, and
before this time I was with the volunteers in Cuba in 1898,

Q. To what regiment did you belong in Cuba?—A. The IFourth
Illinois Volunteer Infantry, sir.

Q. Where is your home when you are at home?—A. It is now
in Alabama, sir; Mentone, Ala.

Q. Were you in any of the battles down in Cuba?—.\. No, sir; I
was not,

Q. Your regiment did not hecome engaged there?—A. No, sir.
YQ. You were in an Illinois volunteer regiment at that time?—A.

es, sir.

Q’. Now, at what time did you join your company at IFort Brown,
as nearly as you can recollect?—A. December 26, 1904,

Q. Then did you continue with it there; and if 0. how long?2—
A. T continued with it there, sir, until the company left there the
5th of July, 1906.

Q. Were you present with your company all the while it was
in garrison at tort Brown?—A., No, sir; I was absent three months
on furlongh in that time. ,

Q. What time did vou leave and what time did vou return?—A\.
I was absent from about the Tth of March, 1906, until the st of
June, 1906,

Q. You returned about the ist of June, 1906?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not you were present at Fort Brown with
your company when news came that you were to go away from there,
or that your places were to be taken by colored troops.—aA. Yes, sir;
I was present with the company. -

Q. State whether or not during the time you were there stationed
at I'ort Brown you becmine acquainted, in the city of Brownsville,
with various people.- -A. Yes, sir; I became very well acquainted
in that time.

Q. Do you or not speak Spanish?—A\. Yes, sir; I speak tolerably
good Spanish,

Q. Can you tell vs about the police force at Brownsville, how it
was constituted as to personnel—that is, the nationality of the dif-
ferent }mliccmen ?2—A. Yes, sivy I was pretty well acquainted with
most of the police foree.

Q. About how large a force was it while you were there?— A, I
think it was about 9 or 10 men, something near that. I am not posi-
tive as to the exact number,

1- 1 .
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Q. And then have they some officers?—\. Fhere is a chief of
police and a lieutenant of police that I know of. I do not know of

any more.

é. What is the name of the chief of police?—A. Iis name is
George Connors, I think.

Q. And what is the name of the lientenant of police?—A. I am
not positive. One of his nanws, the name he was generally called
there, was Dominguez.

Q. Ilas he more than one name?—A. Well, T don't know whether
that was his first or Iast name.

Q. e was generally called Lieuwtenant of Police Dominguez?—A.
Yes, sir.

Q. You knew him by that name?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, we will call him Dominguez, just to have an understand-
ing about him. T understand that is his surname. Now, can you tell
us as to the nationality of the men on the police force. aside from
those two oflicers?—N\, They are mostly full-blooded Mexicans, I
think. and there are one or two who T think are part \merican—part
white, ot least.

Q. Cun you give us the names of those policemen. at least in part,
ro far as you know? Tell us the names of the policemen whom you
knew.— A\, T Enew one named Marcello Dorrity.

Q. Whe is he?—A. He is supposed to be part American and part

Mexican. .
Q. Is his named spelled D-a-w-g-h-e-r-t-y2—\. T think it was
spelled D-o-r-r-i-t-y.

Q. 'That is a different kind of Dorrity. What is his naticnality —
A. e was part Mexican and part white.

Q. What otler policemen did vou know?—A\. Another, his last
name is Fernandez.  We called him Vie. T think it was Victorio
FFernandez.

Q. What was his nationality 2——A. Mexian. sir,

Q. Can you name any other=?-—-\. Genero Padron,

Q. What was his nationality 2—A\. Mexican, ~ir.

Q. Can you name any others?—N\, That is all that I know by name,
all the privates of the police,

Q. Did yon kuow the others when von saw them?—\, Ye-, sirg I
was familiar with their faces anl slightly acquainted with some’ of
them,

Q. Thave you or not talked with other< with whom vou say vou are
shightly acquainted 2 -\ Yesosiv: T have talked with some of them.

Q. Now. can yvou tell s how many of these policemen speak the
Fuelish Iavgnage and how many speak the Spani<h langnage?—
A The ehief of police, Mreo Connors, speaks the Fnglish Tograage
pretty fluentlyand his lientensnt, Dominguez, folks Fnglish, bat not
fliuently.,

Q. Ttow as (o Doretty £\, Dorrity talks wrood Fnglich,

Q. Tlow =it as to Fermandez?—N\, Tle talks pretty good Fnglish
al-o.

Q. Tow ix 1t a~ to Genero Padron?- -\, Jus<t a little bit; not very
mneh,

Q. Can you tell ns as< to the others who-e names von have not given
us, what language they speak. in ~o far as you have any knowledge

N, Do D2 60 1ty - =173
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from coming in contact with them?—A. I do not remember ever
hearing any of the others speak any English at all, and it was my
opinion that they could speak very little or none at all.

Q. So that it is safe to say that the majority of them speak only
the Spanish language?—A. Yes, sir; I think it is as to the majority
of them.

Q. Now. did you have an opportunity to hear expressions of the
citizens of Brownsville after this order was pmmn{guted or notice
was given that colored troops were to come there, with rvespeet to the
same?—A\, Yes, sir,

Q. What expressions, if any, did you hear—I mean were the
friendly or were they unfriendly to their coming?—A. About all
that I heard were unfriendly, sir.

Q. To what extent did you hear people speak on the subject ¢—A.
1 heard quite a lot of talk, sir. It was about the only subject of talk
there for several days, seemed to be, after we received the news that
they were going to relieve us.

. Whom did you hear talk among the citizens? First, if yon can
tell us, did you hear any citizens, us contradistinguished from police-
men?—A, Yes, sir; I heard a few of them that T remember.

Q. Cun you tell us the names of some of them?—A. One of them
js Mr. Weller and another Mr. McDonald.

Q. Is his name McDonnel or McDonald ¢—A. I think it is McDon-
ald; I am not positive. He is a contractor and carpenter.

k'Q(i A carpenter and contractor?—A. Yes, sir; something of that

ln .

- Q. Lives near the garrison ?—A. I think he lives within about two
biocks of the garrison; yes, sir.

Q. Somewhere in that locality 2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You heard McDonald and you heard Weller. Who is Mr.
Weller?—A. He is a saloon keeper at Brownsville.

Q. Did you hear anybody else whom you can now recall among
the citizens?—A. No, sir; I do not recall any other citizens that I
heard speak of the matter.

Q. State whether or not youn in fact heard more than these among
the citizens speak on the subject.—A. Yes, sir; I did, but I can not
reeall who they were now.

Q. State whether it was a common subject of conversation wher-
ever you went in Brownsville at that time.—A. Yes, sir; it was.

Q. State whether or not you heard any expressions that were
friendly to the coming of the negro troops from anybody in Browns-
ville.—A. No, sir; I did not.

Q. Next, did yon hear any of the policemen speak about their
coming?—A. Yes, sirj I talked myself with several of the policemen
about their coming.

Q. With whom did you talk among the policemen?—A. T taiked
with Marcello Dorrity, and with Policeman Fernandez, and with
Policeman Padron,

Q. Three of them?—A. Three of them; yes, sir.

Q. Now tell us first what you heard Mr. Weller say. What busi-
ness is Mr. Weller engaged in?—A. The saloon business, sir.

Q. Where is his saloon located #—A. It is on Llizabeth street right
near the business district. I don’t know the name of the next street
running across,

-
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Q. How far is it out from the gate, as nearly as you can recall?—
A. It is not quite 2 blocks, sir.

Q. And as you go uptown from the barracks, up Elizaheth street,
on which side is it?-—A. On the right-hand side, sir.

Q. On the right-hand side as you go up, and yout think about 2
blocks from the gate?—.\. A little bit less, sir.

Q. A little bit less than 2 blocks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did you hear him speak on this subject?--A. In his
place of business—in his =aloon.

Q. What was the time and the oceasion of that speaking by him on
that subjeet, and what was it he said?—A. The time was just some-
thing like a couple of days after the order was published, that the
Twenty-fifth Infantry would relieve us there, and he was talking
with some other soldiers in the saloon, and I overheard the conversa-
tion the first time I heard him speak, and then he spoke to me abont it
personally.

Q. Who were these soldiers?—-A. I am not positive. sir, I do not
believe I could recall thie name of one of them.

Q. What command did they belong to?—A. They b:longed to the
Twenty-sixth Infantry.

Q. They were white men, were they#—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What did you hear Weller say?—A. He said that he did not
want these colorcd soldiers to come there, and that no one in Browns-
ville wanted them to come there, and that he did not think they would
stay there very long when they did come. -

Q. Did he give any reason why he thought they would not stay
there very long?—A. Yes, sir; he said: “ People here will not stand
for them being here. They will not have them here;” something
like that, That was the meaning of the words, but I am not posi-
tive as to the exace words he used,

N Q. You are trying to give the substance of the conversation?—A,
‘es, sir, _

Q. Was that remark addressed to you or addressed to others?—A.,
He made that remark to me afterwards, after I had heard him speak
of it in a general way.

Q. You are speaking now of the first time you heard him, when
others were present. Did he sPeak to you a sccond time?—A, He
spoke to me, in fact, him and I had a talk about it onrsclves later on.

Q. TIow long afterwards was it yon and he had a talk about it?—A,
I think it was the next day or something near that, after I had heard
him speak the first time.

Q. What was this second conversation and how did it come up?—
A. He asked me himself at first if it was true that they were coming
there. I told him it was, that the order was issued at least, and I
supposed they would, and he expressed himself then as unsatisfied
with them coming, said all the people would be unsatisfied to have
them come there, and that he did not think they would stay there ver
lons_r, because the people would not stand for them being there. Ie
said they would get rid of them some way before very ﬁmg—he did
not think they weuid be there lon%].

Q. Did he say anything about how they would get rid of them—
what measures they would resort to to get rid of them?—A. No, sir;
he did not. :

Q. Who was that other citizen—MecDonald—when did you hear
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him speak about it and where?—A. It was on Elizabeth street in
Brownsville. I was talking to him on the corner. He addressed
himself to me first, asked me ubout the colored troops coming there,
and I told him they were coming.

Q. About what corner was that, as nearly as you car. recallf—A,
That was a corner right below Mr. Weller's saloon on Elizabeth
street.

Q. Down about Thirteenth or Fowrteenth?—A. That would be
perhaps Thirteenth street.

By Senator BuLkeLey:
Q. Towurd the barracks?—A. Away from the barracks,

By Senator ForRAKER:

Q. ITow far was it from the Miller TTotel2—A. That is just one
block from the Miller Hotel, sir.

Q. Ife addressed you and asked you whether or not they were com-
ing, and you told him the order had been issued, as you understood,
and you supposed they would come. Then what else occurred —A.
I told him that it was a settled fact that they were coming; that the
order was issued. "~He spoke in disfavor of them coming there, and
in fact he used some pretty strong language.

Q. Tell us just what lmlgungeﬁle did use. He is a witness in this
case. We should like to know what he said.—\. He said: “The
people in Brownsville don’t want those damned niggers here, and
they won't have them here. We will gt them out of here, if they do
come, hefore they are here very long.” Ile said: “ We will not have
them here at all.” :

Q. Did he say anything about how they would get them out ¢—A.
No, sir; he did not.

Q. Well, now, did vou have any other conversation with McDonald
ot any time? T will say here that this man must be the same one
who was called as a witness, hecause he described himself as a con-
tractor and carpenter, but the printed record furnished us by the -
War Department spells his name MceDonnel in the testimony taken
by Mr. Purdy.—A, T always heard him called McDonald.  T'am not
positive the way his name is spelled. «ir,

Q. All right: I am only asking that for the benefit of the record
~und the committee, so they can identify the man.  You did not hear
l{i;}\ speak about it at any other time?-—\. No, «ir; T don’t believe I
wid,

Q. Now, you say you talked with three diiferent policemen, and
Dorrity was one whose name you gave, I believe.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did you talk with him, and how often?—\. Tt was about
the «ame time. within a very few days after the order was published
that the Twenty-filth Infantry was to relieve ns, 1 think T spoke to
* him on two diflerent occasions about it,

Q. This was shortly. then. after the 1st of June, just after yon
retureed, T suppose?—A. T am not positive of the date. T don't
remember the (Llle of the order.

Q. Well, the order was promulgated some time before you in fact
left, was it not2—A. Yes, sirs it wax,

Q. You left on the 5th of July2—.\. Yes. sir,

Q. Now. where did you talk with Dovrity 72—\, T talked to him
on the streets, on Elizabeth street, both times, along in the business
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diftrict not far from the same corner, the corner near Mr. Weller's
saloon.

Q. What did he say? Who introduced the conversation?—A. If
I am not mistaken, he did. T am pretty sure that he did.

Q. Give us the conversation as nearly as you can. We want you
to tell us the substance or effect of it.—A. He told me that he was
sorry that they were coming theve, because he was sure there was
going to be trouble if they did.

Q. Did he tell you why he thought there would be trouble?—A.
Yes, sir; he said because the lpeolﬁe in DBrownsville did not want
them to come there; they would not be satisfied with having them
come there, and that he was positive it would cause trouble.

Q.b IHe said what?—A. He said he was positive there would be
trouble,

Q. Well, did he say anything about what kind of trouile they
would have?—A. No, sir; he did not, that I remember.

Q. Ts that the only talk you had with him that you recall?—A, I
think I had two talks with him. but they were both about the same.
He just expressed himself as anticipating trouble if they came there.

Q. Then you said you had a talk with a policeman by the name
of Fernandez, as I understood.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was your talk with him, and when?—A. I had something
like two or three talks with him.

Q. e spoke S})anish, did he?—A, ITim and I earried on our con-
versation in English. Ile speaks both Spanish and Iinglish, but we
generally spoke in English. e talks very good English,

Q. This talk was in Inglish, was it?—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did it take place?—A. The first time I remember speak-
ing to him was in Weller's saloon, in the doorway of the saloon.

Q. About what time was that?—.J\. Within a very few days after
this order was published.

Q. Well, how did he come to speak about it and what did he say #—
A. Ie said to me, “1I see, Sergeant, they are going to send those
nigger soldiers down here,” and I told him that they were, and
he said to me—he tapped his pistol that he carried on his side, and
he said, “ I want to kill a couple of them when they get here.”

Q. He had his pistol on at that time?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Strapped on?—.\. Yes, sir.

Q. And he touched it with his hand?—A. Yes, sir.

YQ. And remarked that he wanted to kill a couple of them’—A.
es, sir.

Q,. Well, what did you say. and what further did he say, if any-
thing at all?—A. He went ahead and, after saying that, he said
there was going to be trouble, and there would be some of them killed
before very long. I told him then that if there was any trouble I
did not think the soldiers would start it, because I had been in posts
where they had been, at the same time with them, and that T found
their behavior was generally good, and that I did not think they
would cause any trouble. i

Q. What did he say about that?—A. Well, he said, “ We don’t
want them here; we haven’t got any use for them,” and he repeated
lal,n,rair,n’—he said, &Y want to kill a couple of them as soon as they get

ere,
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Q. ITe spoke that right out, did he, so anybody within hearing
could have heard it?—N\. Yes, sir; he did.

Q. In an ordinary tone of conversation, I mean.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you hear him speak on that subject again; and if so, when,
and what did he say #—.\. IHe told me a day or two after that just
about. the same thing—made the same remark to me again,  Ile said:
“T want to kill a couple of those niggers when they come down here.”

Q. Well, what did yvou answer him at that time?—A. I told him
again, I said: “ I think that you have the wrong idea. I don't think
they are going to cause any trouble, and if there is any tronble I
think it will be the fault ot somebody else here in Brownsville,”

Q. What did he say about “that?—A\. Ile said: * Well, we are not
oing to have them here; we are going to run them away from here.
Ve will not have them here,”

Q. Did he say in that connection what he would do to run them
away 2—A\. No, sir; nothing furthermore. Ile expressed himself
that he would like to kill a couple of them.

Q. Ave those the only conversations you had with him that you
now recall?—A\. I think I had another conversation with him later
on, but I don’t remember anything particularly that he said; but he
always expressed himself as unfavorable to the colored soldiers com-
ing there.

Q. Now, about this other policeman you mentioned, (ienero Pad-
ron—they pronounce the * G as thongh it was an “ IL” in Spanish,
do they?—A. Yey, sir. .

Q. Genero PPadron is a policeman, is he?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And you had a talk with him?—A. Yes, sir; T had, T thinl,
two or three talks with him also,

Q. Well, now, when did you have your first one? And tell us
about them in their order, locating each conversation as nearly as you
can—the place where it was held and the time.—A\. The first talk
I vemember having with him was on Llizabeth street. It was in
front of Mr. Crixcll's =aloon.

Q. Tn front of Crixell’s saloon, where is that?2—\. That is on
Ellizal)eth street, on the opposite side of the street from Weller’s
saloon.

Q. That would be on the left-hand side as you would go out of the
gate and go up Elizabeth street 2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Aund in what =quare is that, counting down from the gate?—A.
It is in the xecond square.

Q. Then that would be between Twelfth and Thirteenth strects,
would it not, or wounld it be between Fourteenth and IFifteenth 7—A.
I think it would be between T'welfth and ‘Thirteenth.

Q. Wherever it is, you met Padron there, did you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. In front of that saloon?7——A\. Yes, sir,

Q. What was the conver=ation between you and him on that sub-
jeet t—A. IHe started the conversation by asking me about the colored
soldiers coming there.

Q. Was this conver=ation in Inglish or in Spanish?—A. It was in
Spanish,

Q. Ile does not speak English?—A. He speaks a little bit, but not
very much,
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Q. Tt was in Spanish—what was the converzation?—A\, e asked
me if it was true that the colored soldiers were going to he sent there.
1 told him it was; that there was an order issued to that effect, and he
said that was very bad: that he did not want them to come there;
that he was afraid there was going to be trouble if they did, and I
asked him why. what he was afraid of, and he said that he had heard
the people in Brownsville say that they would not allow the colored
coldiers to stay there. Ile said if they came there was bound to be
trouble, and ho was in hopes that they could not come; that they
would change the order and send them some place clse or keep us
there.  That was the general trend of the conversation.  We had two
or three cousversations in about the same way.

Q. Ile always talked abont to the same effect 2—A. Yes, siry he did.

Q. Did he say anything about getting rid of them or about killing
any of them?—.\. No, sir; he did not say anything like that.

Q. Did vou hear anyhody else speak on that subjeet that you can
recall 2—\. No, sir; I don't remember the names of any other
persons,

Q. But you have already stated that it was general conversation
wherever you went 2—.\. Yes, sir,

Q. During that period?—A. Yes, sir; for several days.

Q. Was-the conversation generally one of protest against their
coming or not 2—A. Yes, siry it was.

Q. What is the population of Brownsville—how many people live
there, T mean?—N\, Al T know is what I heard while I was there,
that they claim a populatien ¢ £ about 8.000.

Q. Do you know of what that population consists as to nation-
ality 27—\, T would say that the greater part of it was Mexican.
I would estimate that something like three-fourths—fully three-
fourths—of it is Mexican, and probably more.

Q. Do you mean full-blooded Mexicans or half-breed Mexicans, as
they are ealled ?7—N\. They would be mostly full-blooded Mexicans,

Q. Now. tell us whether or not. while yon were there as a member
of the Twenty-sixth Infantey, it was a frequent or an infrequent
orcurrence to hear firearms discharged in the nighttime in Browns-
ville and avound in the vicinity of Ifort Brown?—A\, It was a pretty
Frequent oveurvrence,

Q. About how often. if you can tell, did you hear shooting going
on there at night—just vour best recollection?—.\. T expeet that 1
have heard shooting in the nighttime there two or three dozen times
that T remember of.

Q. Well. state whether or not the men of the Twenty-cixth In-
fantry—those white soldiers—had any trouble, any difliculties, with
the police or the citizens of Brownsville while you were stationed
there that were out of the ordinary. according (o your experience
clsewhere?—A. Yes, sirg I believe they did.  They did not seem to
got along ax well there as they did in most places. It scemed like
the police were more anxious to arrest them if they were doing any-
thing at all. . L.

Q. What was the customary way, if T may use that expression, if
it is not too strong., of making an arrest? Was it accompanied with
violence or not on the part ot the policemen?—A. It generally was,
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sir, In several cases that I know of, that happened in my own com-
pany, at least three that I recall.

Q. Did you yourself ever have any trouble?—A. No, sir.

I Q. You were always treated well enough, were you?—A\. Yes, sir;

Was‘ *

Q. You have no complaints to make and no grievances that bring
you here?—A. No. sir. .

Q. Who were these men in your own company who had trouble,
to whom you refer?—A. One of them is a man named Cyzyack,
Private Cyzyack, now in the IFourth Infantry, I believe. He is not
in my company now.:

Q. Served out his time of enlistment in yonr company?—A. Yes,
sir, Another was George Schupolsky.

Q. Is he a Mexican?-—A. He is Polish, I believe, sir.

Q. Any others besides Cyzyack and Schupolsky ?—A. One other
that I remember was Lewis A. Parker.

Q. Any other?—A. That is all that I recall, sir.

Q. Do you know about a soldier by the name of Bryan getting into
trouble there and getting shot in the hip?—A. Yes, sir, 1 had for-
gotten him. He was in my company.

Q. He was in your company also?--A. Yes, sir.

Q. That would make four men in your company who had tvouble.—
A. Yes, sir.,

Q. What kind of soldiers were these?—A. T would say they are
about the average soldiers in behavior and conduet.

. Were they people who are desirous to make trouble or other-
wise?—A. I could not say they were. This man Cyzyack was a man
:lhat iironk quite a little, and when he got into trouble I think he was

runk.

Q. You think Cyzyack was drunk?—A\. I think he was; yes, sir.

Q. Have you personal knowledge of these cases?—A. I have of one
of them. I saw a policeman strike this man Parker over the head
with a six-shooter.

Q. You saw him strike Parker over the head with a six-shooter.
YWhere did that trouble occur?—.J\. In Crixell Brothers’ saloon,

Q. What was the oceasion for that?—A., The man Parker said
something, without addressing the policeman at all. I don’t know
what it was he said, and the policeman was pretty well under the
influence of liquor. He pulied out his six-shooter and hit the man
over the head, without ever saying a word to him.

Q. Did not say a word to him?—A. No, sir.

Q. You saw that, did you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What happened? Did he arrest him?—A. O, yes, sir; he ar-
rested him, and then released him. I spoke to the policeman about
it after he had arrested him and started to jail with him. I told him
that I did not think the man had done anything, and that I thought
he should be released. He told me if I would take the man to the
post that he would release him. He released him and I took the man
out to the post myself.

Q. Was the man misbehaving himself in any way?—A. No, sir;
he was not,

Q. Was he drunk?—A. He was drinking, bi.c I would not say that
he was drunk. He was drinking at the bar with another soldier.

doaans, .

-
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Q. What do you know about Bryan’s case?—A. T don’t know any-
thing personally. That is, I was there when it occurred, but 1 did
not see it.

Q. What about Schupolsky? Let us find out about him.—A. I
don’t know anything only what T heard about that case.

Q. What did you hear; that he was beaten up or simply ar-
rested ?—A. Well, T heard that he was beaten up and arrested both.
In fact, I saw him the next day and saw his head. Tt wus pretty
badly cut up.

_ Q. Badly- cut up—that is, he had wounds in ths head?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. How had they been administered’—A. He told me that a
Texas ranger hit him with a six-shooter from behind.

Q. Hit him from behind with a six-shooter?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was he doing when he got hit from behind? A ranger
would not hit a man from behind, would he?—A. I could not say
from my own knowledge, sir.

Q. Well, that is all you know—what he told you? Was the man
arrested, or anything ke that?7—A. Yes, sir; he spent that night in
jail, I believe, and caine ont to the post the next morning.

Q. Was he dismissed, or what happened to him?—A. I am not
positive about that. I don’t remember.

Q. Cyzyack was hit over the head with the butt of a revolver, I
understand yon?—A. I did not see it. That was what he said, and
I also saw his head, and he was badly cut up.

Q. He was badly cut up?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. 11it more than once?—A. Several wounds on his head; yes, sir.

Q. And Schupolsky—he told you he was hit with a revolver. Was
he hit more than once?—A. I don’t remember whether he was or not.

Q. Bryan was shot, was he not. in the hip, or something of that
kind?—A. Yes, sir; I believe he was.

Q. He was in hospital for a long time, was he not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You saw Parker hit over the head with a revolver. Were there
any other troubles of that kind that your men had?—-A. That is all
I remember, sir.

Q. Now, Scrgeant, you say vou have been in the Army six years,,
or something like that?-—A. Yes. sir: a little more than six years,

Q. Have you carried a gun all the while you have been in the
Army ?—A, Most of the time; yes, sir.

Q. What did you carry at other times?—A. T was issued a rifle;
had a rifle in my possession.

Q. T mean you have been an enlisted man all the while?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. You have not been an oflicer?2—A. No, sir.

Q. The rank of first sergeant is the highest rank youn have held {—
A. Yeos, sir.

Q. During all the time you have served as an enlisted man you
have had a gun in your custady, a gun to take care of and to use?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind of arms did you have in Cuba?—A. We had the
Krag-Jirgensen rifle.

Q. What did you have in the Philippines?—A. We had the same
kind of a rifle.
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Q. What did you have when you first went to Fort Brown?—A,
The Krag-Jorgensen rifle.

Q. Did you change that rifle for another one Inter?—A, Yes, sir;
some time last year we changed.

Q. Now state about when that was.—A. I think it was either in
April or May.

Q. What rifle did you get in licn of the Krag-Jirgensen?—A.,
We got the new pattern of the Winchester rifle.

Q. You do not mean Winchester?—.\, No, sir; the Springfield,
the new model Springficld.

Q. Right behind you in that gun rack is a gun.  Look at that and
see if that is the kind of gun that you were supplied with.  Yon can
take the gun out of the rack. I wish yon would do so; T want to ask
you some questions about it,

('The witness wilacked the rack and took the rifle out.)

By Senator Foraxker:

Q. Did you have that kind of gun when you were at Fort
Brown?—A. Yes, =ir; that is the kind of gun we have now,

Q. That is the kind you had then; you had the Springfield 2—A.
No, sir.

Q. You had a different kind then; you had the Krag-Jorgensen 2—
A. We did not have any at all at that time in my company.

Q. How did you keep yur Krag-Jirgensen rifles when you were
not on duty, when you were not using them; did you justset them
up in the quarters or put them under lock and key 2--A. In my com-

any at that time there was no way to place them under lock and

ey for quite a while shortly after T came to Brownsville, as there
were no gun racks issued to my company. My captain ordered, I
helieve—I know it was an order in the company—that each evening
after retreat, which would be about 6 o'clock, all the rifles should
bhe turned in to the company storeroom and locked up and kept there
overnight, as there were no arm racks to keep them in.

Q. The company storeroom was under whose control2—A\. Under
the captain’s coutroly but he generally left that to the quartermaster
or first sergeant to carry one set of keys,

Q. Who curried the kev? ‘That is what T wanted to know.—A,
Generally the quartermaster-sergeant,

Q. Who was your captain?—A. Captain Roche,

Q. What is his first. name?—A. Capt. Edward A. Roche,

Q. That is the way yvou did until the Springfield rifle was issued;
then vou got gun racks, the same kind of gun rack as that?—AaA, 1
helieve we got the new gun racks before we got the new rvitles; T am
not positive,

Q. Could you pnt a Krag-Jirgensen rifle in that rack? Was not
the Krag-Jiorgensen a longer gun than this?—A\. Yes, sirg it was.
1 believe, now, that we got this gun rack before we exchanged guns,
and the racks could not be nsed until w» got this rifle; that is my
recollection now.,

Q. At any rate, you did get n gun rack like that?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. As nearly as you can say it was like that?—A, It scems to me
exactly like it, sir.
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Q. And then in due time, along in April. I think, or not later
than the 1st of May, I think you said, you got the Springfield
rifle?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Now, can you tell us how you clean these guns? Take the
Krag-Jirgensen first.  What is necessary in the cleaning of one of
these guns;- I mean what parts do you have to give attention to
after they have been fired; I mean to clean them so they will be
clean enongh to pass a rigid inspection?—A. The principal parts,
the parts that requive the most cleaning, ave the bore, as we call it,
the inside of the barvrely and the chamber, down in through here
[throwing back breech bolt], these small parts, and this bolt; xome-
times it is necessary to dismount and take the bolt apart.

Q. Now. we will assume that we ave not going to dismount the
bolt and take it apart; but to clean the bore and to clean the chwumber
and all that sort of thing, Is it necessary to take out the floor o
the chamber also to get it thoroughly clean? What do vou call
the {loor of the chamber; that is the piece, us I understand it, right
under the chamber?—:A\, The picce right here. I believe, sir [indi-
cating]. ‘

Q. Now, turn the gun around, ¢lear around so that T can see. You
mean that [indicating]?—A. Yes, sir.,

Q. That is what T mean. What do you call that?—A\. T am not
sure of the nate of thix. There are over 200 picees in this gun, I
am not sure of the name.  Inmost cases it is not necessary {o take out
this [indicating].

Q. You had experience in cleaning the Krag-Jdérgensen and also
in cleaning this gun when you got it 2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. T will pass from the Krag-Jirgensen for the present. and con-
fine my questions to thig gun.  Assuming that that gun has been fired
a hia 0 a dozen times, or two or three times, with smokeless powder,
that i< with regulation .30 caliber eartridges, how long would it take
to clean that gun so that it would pass inspection, and how would
vou go about cleaning it?—\. T would say to clean the gun thor-
oughly o that it would stay clean and pass inspection something
about half an hour would be the average time to ¢lean it,
~Q. Some men would elean it more quickly than others?-—\. Yes,
sir.

Q. Tell us whether or not you have to have certain facilities in
order to clean that gun.—A. To clean it in that time?

Q. T mean wonld you have to have a eleaning rod?2— A, You would
have to have that or some kind of a rad to take the place of it; yes, s,

Q. You have what is ealled the thong brush, do you not 27—\, Yes,
sir: that shonld be right in here, in the butt plate.

Q. Could yvou clean that gun with the thong brus<h so that it would
pass inspeetion2-—A, No, sir.

Q. That is aceording to your experience, is it?—\, Yex, sir.,

Q. What ix the eflect of passing the thong brash back and forth
through the hore of that gun?-—A. That will loosen any dvy or hard
substance, dried powder—become dried—that has not been cleaned
for a half an hour or an hour or so. It will loosen that to a certain
extent so that it can be wiped out with rags later on,
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Q. But you must use rags in order to thoroughly clean a gun?—A.
Rags or something of that kind.

. State whether or not those rags should be saturated with any
preparation, such as sal soda, or with water, in order to do their wor
effectively.—A. They should be, with some kind of cleaning material.
We use various kinds of cleaning material. Sometimes we use metal
polish, if the gun is pretty dirty, to help cut the dirt out.

Q. How often have you got to (imss a rag back and forth through
that gun in order to clean it and get the powder out of it?—A. I
could not begin to say, sir, because so many times I couldn’t connt.
We can pass a rag through there unril we can look through the
barrel and it looks tolerably clean and bright, and then set that rifle

aside for half an hour and then look again and it wili look black.
© Q. If it looks that way it is not clean?—A. That means that it
was not thoroughly cleancd; ves, sir.

Q. Ts that the effect of this high-explosive powder—what do you
call it—the nitro powder?—A:A. I couldn’t say the name of it.

Q. You only know the experience you have had ¢-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You not only have to swab it out in that way, but you have to
dry it out?—A. It must be dried when you are through cleaning, or
it will not stay clean,

Q. When you are through cleaning the barrel, what do you have
to do with the chamber and the bolt?—A. It must be cleaned at the
same time. That part of it down here, these small corners next to
the chamber, always accumulate more or less powder, and sometimes
it is very difficult to clean those out; it is hard to get to them.

Q. IHow do you get to them?—A. In varions ways. Some take a
nail, and others a plain stick. and put a picce of rag on it and get
down in the corners there [indicating]. .

Q. Is that or not a tedious kind of a job?—A. Yes, sir; it is very
tedious.

Q. Tell nus whether or not you could clean that gun in the dark so
that it wonld pass an inspection, cleaning the bore and the chamber;
always, I mean, after it has been fired a half a dozen times or so?—
A. I think it would be impossible, sir. There is some of this dirt
that I don’t believe it would be possible for a man to get at in the
dark. He couldn’t see it and I don’t belicve he could ever find it.

Q. Did you cver see any commissioned officers cleaning these
guns?—A. T never remember of secing one.

Q. You have seen the men doing it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How often do you have inspection?—A. Usually once a week.
each Saturday morning. '

Q. Except when you are doing target practice, yon do not have
inspections during the firing, as a rule?—A. Not as a rule.

. But when yon do not have target practice you do have this
inspection, and you arve talking about the inspection after your gun
has been fired?—A. Yes. sir.

Q. Now, tell me about what the rules and regulations in the
Twenty-sixth Infuntry were in your company—Company M, I be-
lieve?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you come to the target firing, the target range, as to
cartridges, how were the men supplied with cartridges and ﬁ?f whom
and to what extent were they supplied2—A, There 15 a certain allow-
ance of cartridges for each manj; I believe now it is 400 for each

T 2PN
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man on the target range. That is all that can be used, and when a
man -is ready to fire at any range his cartridges ave issued to him as
a rule immediately before he steps up to the fiving point, That is to
say, he is handed the number that it is required of him to fire at
that point.

Q. Suppose he is to shoot ten cartridges, we will say for illustra-
tion, upon the theory that he is going to five ten, and in fact he only
fires six of them, what becomes of the other four; what does he do
with them?—A. As a rule he has got to turn those back in. There is
a box, usually, of cartridges right there, and a man in charge of it,
generally the quartermaster-sergeant, and if a man does not use his
cnrtridges he turns them right back to him immediately.

Q. Now, state whether or not this issuing to him of his allotted
number of cartridges, and this firing by the =oldier of these car-
tridges, and this accounting for all surplus cartridges is all under the
cve of an officer.—A. Yes, sir; it is as a rule. It might be sometimes
for a minute or two that the oflicer is not there, but there is supposed
to be an officer right there to sce it all,

Q. Aud if a commissioned officer is not there, noncommissioned
officers are there, are they not?—J\. Yes, sir; they have to be.

Q. State whether or not men are allowed or permitted to filch car-
tridges—I mean appropriate them to themselves—on the target
range.—A. No, sirj they are not allowed to do so.

Q. 1f a man should do that, would he not be violating the regula-
tions and rules to which he is subject?—A. Yes, sir: he would be
violating them.

Q. And what wonld be the result?—A. He would be very likely
tried by court-martial and punished.

Q. Is it not true that men are very often punished for such otfenses
as that, or do they often offend in that way?—.\. T do not remember
of anyone offending in that way.

Q. But if he should offend he would have to do it at the risk of
being deteeted by his oflicer, would he not?—A\. Yes. xivy he wonld.

Q. Where does the ofticer stand when he is firing?—A\. He gen-
erally stands something like 20 feet in the vear of the man—10 to 20
feet 1 rear of him.

Q. It is the oflicer’s business to watceh the man, is it7—\. Yes, sir.

Q. And the noncommissioned ofticers’ also, is it?—.N\. Yes, sir.

Q. So that men wounld not have very much opportunity. as [ un-
derstand you, according to yvour experience in the T'wenty-sixth In-
fantry, to accumulate surplus eavtridges from the target range#—A.
I do not see how they cuu'ld. sir.

Q. Yes. Now, you were not at Iort Brown when your battalion
left there, were you? Oh, yes: vou left with your battalion, did
vou. when it left TFort Brown?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Can you give us the day—the month and the day—when you
left?2—A. Yos, sivg it was the 5th of July. 1406,

Q. Do you remember when you got orders to leave there on the
morning of the ith how long before you left2—N\, It was not a great
while: T can not say how long. It scems to me like it was ten days
or two weeks—szomething like that.,

Q. You do not vemember as to that 2—A. No. sir.

Q. You remember that vou did pack up and leave; you did not
remain behind?—A. No, «ir,
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Q. You went away with yvour company #—A, Yes, «ir,

Q. And since then vou have been at Iort Sam Tlouston?—A. A
%renter part of the time. We went from there to [fort Sam IHouston,

Vo only stayed there a short time, and then went to Austin, Tex., for
manenvers, .

Q. Oh, yes. You were at Camp Mabry?—A., Yes, sir.

Q. Ilave you ever been connected in any way with the Twenty-
fifth Infantry #—.\. No, sir; I have never been located near them.

Q. ITave you any interest in them that would lead you to come here
- and testify about them in the way you have?—.\. No, sir.

Q. Are you acquainted with them—the men of that battalion?
Have you any acquaintance with them at all2—A\, No, sir; I can not
say I am acquainted with them, only T have just seen a few of them
since they came to Brownsville. Some of them were sent to Fort
Sam THouston and placed in confinement there.

Q. You saw some of those men?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. There were 12 of them, T believe?—.N\. I believe there were.

Q. You were at I'ort Sam Ilouston when they were brought
there?—A. No, sir; they were brought there while we were at Camp
Mabry, and they were there in the guardhouse when we returned to
Fort Sam Houston.

Q. Did you scrape up any acquaintance with them or did you sim-
ply know they were there?—A. I cannot say that T had any acquaint-
ance with them. I was on guard shortly after I came back two or
three different times, and some of them would ask me to mail a letter
for them: that is about all the talk T had with them.

Q. Yon have no interest in this controversy whatever?—A. No, sir.,

Senator Foraker., That is all that I think of now. I may have
something else to ask him later on,

By Senator BUrLKELEY

Q. Is the record of these men on the target range kept, the record
of cach individual ?—2A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that if a man only fires six shots, that record is a matter
of record, is it?—A. Yes, sir; that is a matter of record.

Q. Suppose a man is required to fire ten shots and he only fires
six, that is made a record? What I want to get at is that what the
man does on the target range is a matter of record in your com-
pany 2—A. Yes. sir; it is.

Q. By some officinl who has charge of that?—A. We keep a com-
plete record of the target practice in the oftice.

Q. So that if a man only fires six rounds, you have a record, if it
was his duty to fire ten and he only fired six? You have the record
that he only fired six, have you?—A. Yes, sir; but in a case of that
kind, if he only fired six and had to stop, he wonld have to com-
mence over agam and fire those ten rounds.

Q. Ile wouLid have to fire the ten anyway ?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. How long, when your company is on target practice, are they
on the range?—A. There is no fixed time, sir.

Q. I know, but about how long does it take for that tour of duty 2—
A. It takes a company now something like three weeks, on the aver-
age, to complete the target practice ench year.

Q. To fire that 400 rounds that they are supposed to fire on the
range?—A. Yes, sir.
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Q. To consume that ammunition?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And there is a record in your company rccords, made by some
official whose duty it is to keep the record of each man, of each
individual, of the actual performance at the range on the tonr of
duty?—A. It is kept in several places; at our compan?' oftice and
several other places. We have to make a report of that—of the
record that a man makes. There are different grades of marks-
manship.,

Q. Suppose you issuc him 10 rounds of cartridges to fire at some
specific distance, say 600 yards, or whatever it may be, and he comes
back and his gun, perhaps, has missed fire, or <omething, and he
has only fired 8; is he sent back to complete that?—A., Yes, sir; he
must complete that.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. T want to ask you one question that I forgot in the first place.
Have you any particular record as a marksman, or in handling a
rifle?—A. Yes, sir; I qualified as a sharpshooter.

Q. You are a qualified sharpshooter. What does that signify 9—
A. Well, it is to make a certain number of points out of the possible
at all ranges. It would take quite a while to explain it thoroughly.

Q. At target practice?—A. At target practice.

Q. That is all that I wanted. Does it indicate excellence in target
firing?—A. Yes, sir.

By the Curarrvan:
Q. It cntitles you to extra pay, does it not?—A. Yes, sir.
Senator Foraxer. That is all.

By Scnator WARNER:

Q. As to target practice, the same rule prevailed when you had the
Krag rifle as when you had the Springfield, with reference to
cartridgos?—;\. With reference to the use of cartridges?

Q. Yes.—A. Yes, sir; I think so.

Q. Do you not know it is so?—A. That is, you mean——

Q. About firing the cartridges, and the men firing the required
number, and so forth?—A. Yes, sirj that is the same,

Senator Foraxer. I forgot one very important subject, and I will
{ake it up now, if you want me to. I am sure you will want to cross-
examine on it.

Scnator WarNER. Please let me finish this now,

Senator Foraxer. Very well.

By Senator Warxer:

Q. You had had the Krag rifle some yvears?—A\. Yes, sir,

Q. And the Springfield only some months?—A. Since last Aprut
or May; I believe about that time.

Q. April or May, 1906/—A. Yes, sir.

Q. T meant to say it was before leaving Brownsville; that is the
way I intendegl to put it.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Men had extra cartridges, did they not, at certain times?—A.
dAs a rule they were issued a certain number of cartridges for guard

uty.

Q. Yes; I understand. They had extra cartridges at times?—A.
Do you mean above what they were issued ¢
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Q. No; but that were not used. It was not an infrequent occasion,
was it, to see men have extra cartridges!—A. I think it was; yes, sir.
A man was issued a certain number of cartridges for garrison duty
and guard duty, and so forth, and he was supposed to have that num-
bflar a:]ld no more; and if he lost any they were supposed to be re-

aced.

P Q. Four hundred cartridges were issued to the man for the target
firing?—A. Yes, sir. ’

Q. And some would not fire all of those 400, would they?—A.
No, sir; some would not.

Q. You being out on the range, you being a sharpshooter, (ou
would not use all of your 400 cartridges?—A. I would use more than
a man who was a poor marksman.

Q. You would use more?—A. Yes, sir; because he would not com-
plete the whole course.

Q. In what cases would he not use the 4007—A. A man first is
required to qualify as a marksman and he is entitled to have addi-
tional pay. If he does not ?unlify as a marksman he can not take
the sharpshooters’ course. If he qualifies as a murksman, then he has
an opportunity to take another course, back as far as 1,000 yards, for
the sharpshooters’ course; but when he does not qualify as'a marks-
man he does not have that opportunity and does not use as many car-
tridges as a man who tries for a sharpshooter.

Q. What company was you:s?—A, M Company.

Q. What barracks did you occupy at Brownsville?—A. We occu-
pied the set of barracks next to the gate going in, the second from the
river bunk.

Q. Look at that map. ‘ou will see one set of barracks marked
“D ” and one marked * B.”

Senator OverMaN. There is D and there is B and there is C, or
perhaps you will understand it better by the numbers. They are
numbered 33, 34, 85, and 36 [indicating on map].

The Wirxess. Yes. This is the set of barracks we occupied [in-
dicating].

By Senator Warxen:

Q. That is the barracks marked “ B?”—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had inspection in your vegiment; the quarters were in-
spected how often?—A. They were inspected at least once a week,
and sometimes oftencr.

Q. But every Saturday was inspection day?—A. That was regu-
Iar weekly inspection day.

Q. They were inspected by a commissioned officer?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. What was the purpose of that inspeetion?—A. The main pur-
posc is to sce that the men have their arms and equipments and cloth-
mg in good order, neat and clean, and also that the quarters. the
sleeping rooms, and other parts of the quarters. the storerooms,
rooms containing company property. are in good condition and that
evervthing is there supposed to be there.

Q. And free from dirt or filth of any kind?—.J\. Yes, sir.

Q. That is required; that is what was required in your regi-
ment?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. What day of the week was it that vou left Brownsville—the
5th of July, do you rememberi—A\. No, sir; 1 do not.

P
4
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Q. Do you remember the condition of the quarters when you left
there?—A. Yes, sir; I remember the condition of my quarters.

Q. Yes; the quarters which we have now designated as the bar-
racks B?—A. Yes, sir. -

Q. That was properly policed, was it?—A. It was tolerably well
cleaned up, yes, sir, at that time. I could not say it was thoroughly

oliced at the time when we left, because we left very soon after day-
Eght—about half an hour afterwards.
A Q‘.( But you left a detachment behind, of your company, did youf—

. Yes, sir,

Q. How muny men?—A. I think it was ten out of each company—
something near that.

Q. Then it would be their duty to see to the policing afterwards,
the same way #—A. That was the order they had—to clean up as soon
as we got out of there that morning; to clean the quarters up thor-

oughly. .

Q. %’on know those orders so far as your quarters were concerned
because you heard them given, did you? You were first sergeant {—
A. T was not first sergeant at that time. I was sergeant, but not
first sergeant.

Q. You were-a sergeant? What sergeant?—A. I can’t say. It
does not make any difference. All the rest of them ranked the same—
first, second, third, etc., duty sergeant ; but the rank is the same,

Q. Yes; but this fact you know. of. Now, did you see any old
clothing scattered around there on the floors?—A. It appears to me
that there was when we were leaving; that there was some clothing
that seemed to be useless or almost useless, that the men did not carry
with them, that was left behind.

Q. Where was that left?—A. Some of it—what I noticed—was
left on the porches downstairs.

Q. Did you see it anywhere else?—A. I do not remember seeing it,

Q. Did you sce any cartridges scattered around the floor?—A. No,
sir; I don’t remember seeing any cartridges at all.

. Were there any loose cartridges left back there?—A. I conldn’t
say, but if there had been X think it very likely that I would have
seen them. I did not see any at all, If there had been any left
there, in fact, they should have been gathered up by anyone, any
noncommissioned officer in the company, if anyone had seen them
lying around, because they would have been of some value and would
give the men extra practice that wanted to use them on the target
range, if nothing else; and it secems to me that anyone who noticed
the:n lying around would have spoken about it to the sergeant, so
that he would have taken cave of them.

Q. It was not any infrequent thing to see a soldier have extra
cartridges, was it?—A. Yes, sir; it was.

Q. How infrequent?—A. T can’t say that I remember but very few
cases of ever sceing a soldier have more cartridges than were issued
to him for the regular garrison dutK.

Q. What were those few cases?—A. One of them, I remember, was
two or three years ago when some men had some cartridges issued to
them to go out deer hunting, and they did not use all they had for
that purpose—for hunting—and they had some of them, and then
they went out agein to shoot some jack rabbits,

8. Doc, 402, 60-1, pt 6——14
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Q. Those cartridges would be counted in the 400?—J\. No, sir;
they are separate, )

(5'. How would they get cartridges for going deer hunting?--A,
That is provided for in general orders from the War Departiment.

Q. They got cartridges in that way?—A. Yes, sir. )

Q. Men give cartridges away somctimes to people?—A. T think
that is a very rare case, sir.

Q. I ask you if they do?—A. I never remember of my own knowl-
edge secinF anyone do it. I never did it myself.

. Neither on the march nor in camp?—A. No, sir.
Q. Nothing of that kind, to your knowledge?—A. No, sir,

By Senator OVErRMAN:

Q. Was there anything to prevent a man taking a few of these
cartridges if he wanted them; if he had them going out hunting,
could he not save a few and put them in his pocket 2—\, Thoxe hunt-
* ing parties here lately, the last year or two, have been almost entirvely
done away with,

Q. I did not ask you that. I say when a man did go hunting?—.A\.
Yes, sir.

Q. Then he had an opportunity of not firing all his cartridges and
having surplus cartridges?—A. Yes; and bringing a few back.

Senator OverMaN. Go nhead; I did not want to intcrrapt.

By Senator Warxer:

Q. In cleaning the gun, with the kind of powder you had after yvon
began using this new Springficld rifle in April or May, 1906, does
it make any difference what amount. of time you let the gun remain
after the shooting before cleaning it?—.\. Yes, sir; it makes a great
difference.

Q. For instance, a gun that is cleaned within two or three or four
hours after the shooting is much more easily cleaned than one that
has remained over several hours, twenty or thirty hours, is it not ?—
A. Yes, sir; it is.

Q. That 1s especially the case with this smokeless powder. is it
not?—A. I couldn’t say that it was, to notice the difference in that
respect between the smokeless and the old black powder. With
either one it makes quite a difference whether the gun is cleaned
right after being fired or remains several hours or a day or two.

Q. 1 take it you do not want it to be understood that 1t would take
thirty minutes to clean a gun if it had been fired three or four times
rud then was immedinteﬁ' cleaned ?—A. To be cleaned thoroughly
tv stand a rigid inspection.

Q. Yes; I know; but two or three hours afterwards, that it would
he necessary to clean the screws of the gun, the serew heads, and the
outside, the stock, and all, to determine whether or not it had been
fired; that would not Le necessary, would it?—.\. No, sirjy it would
not,

Q. But that is what you call cleaning a gun for a rigid in<pec-
tion; the screw heads and all that has to be cleaned 2—A, Yes, sir;
if they are dirty, they must be eleaned.

Q. Or eclse they do not pass muster?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But for in«rection, so as to remove the evidences of the fact
that the gun had been shot, how many minutes would you say it
would take just for that purpose alone?—A. Ordinarily, if a rifle

o R ass
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had been fired a few times, I would say a half an hour would be
something like the usual time to clean the bore and the chamber.

Q. Then if you passed to cleaning the screws and all that part of
it, how long would it take you?—A. That would vary greatly in
different circumstances, according to their condition—how dirty they
were,

Q. Tt would take you much longer, then?—A. Yes, sir; it wonld.

Q. But thirty minutes you gave as vour opinion of the time it
would take to clean a gun so as to remove the powder stains, or evi-
(}lonvvs of powder, when it has been discharged five or six times?—A.,

'es, Sir,

Q. It is necessary to use the rod, you say?-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many rods are furnished encfl company?—A. I am not
positive about that; something like half a dozen.

Q. Then they make rods, do they not?2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Out of wire?—A. Yes, sir; they do that also.

Q. So that they have quite 8 mumber of rods in a_company #—A,
In my company 1t is cnstomary to have something like six or cight
rods.” Some of the rods that are issued sometimes become broken,
and as they are to be turned in only twice a year, every six months,
if they ave short of rods they ecan make them—the artificer can make
some out of wire, or something like that. that will answer the purpose,

Q. That will do just as well as the other?—\. Yes, sir.

Q. Substantially the same?—\. Yes, sir,

Q. But the floor of the chamber it would not be necessary, as you
say, to remove in order to simply determine the question whether the
gun had been fired?—.N\, No. sir; T do not think it would,

Q. Now, you heard these conversations there. ITave you been at
agl_v other post where coloved troops have relieved white {roops?—A.

es, sir,

Q. What place?—A. Fort Ringgold, Tex.. for one. I believe that
is the only one that T remember of at the present.

Q. You had been stationed there,-had you?—A. Yes, sir; I was
stationed there between three and four years ago. immediately on
coming back from the Philippine Islands.

Q. TFor how long, Sergeant?—A. T was there from the latter part
of August, 1903, until Junuary, 1904,

_Q. Say substautinlly «ix months—five or six month=?—A, Yes,
sir.

Q. You got pretty well acquainted there?—A. Yes, sir; pretty
well acquainted; it is a small place.

Q. Were those people satisfied with the colored troops coming
there?—A. It had Loon at that time quite a_while since colored troops
Eag been there. They had relieved the white troops once before, and

ad gone.

Q.gI know, but the colored troops relieved-you there?—A. No, sir;
they did not.

Q. That is what I intended to ask.—A. I misunderstood your ques-
tion. No, sir; they did not.

Q. Now, you have given the names of four parties that you heard
speak with reference to these colored troops, have you not?—A.

bout five, I believe, sir; three policemen, Mr. Weller, and Mr. Me-
Donald. :

Q. Five, then?—A. Yes, sir,
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Q. And you were stationed at Brownsville how many years?—A.,
It amounted to about nineteen months; from the 26th day of Decem-
ber, 1904, to the 5th day of July, 1906.

Q. And this order stating that the Twenty-fifth was to relieve the
Twenty-sixth had been promulgated how many weeks before the 5th
of J ulg, when you actually left there?—A. I do not remember, sir.

Q. Some weeks, was it? T suppose the record will show that.—A.
Yes, sir; probably three wecks, or something like that.

Q. These conversations,you heard weve either in tiae saloons or the
doors of saloons, most of them?-—A. Not all of them; no, sir.

Q. Which of them was not in a saloon or in the door of a saloon?—
%. dThe one I had with Policeman Dorrity, and also with Policeman

adron.

Q. But the other three were?—A. I believe the other three all
were—with Fernandez and Mr. Weller.

Q. Now, Dorrity was a policeman?-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Not an officer of the police?—A. No, sir.

Q. How did that conversation come up, Sergeant?—A. As well
as I can remember, he spoke to me first. e asked me something
about the truth of the colored soldiers coming to relieve us.

Q. Yes.—A. As near as I can remember that is the way the con-
versation started.

Q. Then what was said?2—A. I told him that it was true; I sup-
posed that they were coming; there was an order to that effect.

Q. Yes. Did he express himself as dissatisfied? What did he
eny ?—A. He said that he was afraid there was going to be trouble
if they came; that people’there did not want them there. and he was
afraid it would cause trouble if they came, That was about the
substance of it.

Q. Anything further?—A. That was the most, I believe, That
was about the substance of the talk, We talked quite a good deal.

Q. His regret, then, was that it might cause trouble, because the
people did not want the colored troops there?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And also, in that connection, he expressed regret that the
Twenty-sixth was going to leave, did he not?—A., I think he did,
sir; I am not positive about that. I think he did.

Q. Yes. And I suppose you, by way of compliment. expressed
regret that you were going to leave?—A. I do not think I did. I
think I told him that I was glad to get away from there.

Q. That you were glad to get away from there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You expressed a feeling of joy rather than of sorrow that you
were ;i:‘oing to leave there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was to Dorrity #—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And then you had a talk with Weller?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did Weller say?—A. He told me that he was very sorry
that they were coming there. and that he did not think they would
be there very long, because the people would get rid of them some
way; that they wouldn’t allow them to remain there very long.

~ Did he saything moref—A. Nothing particular, more than
that.

Q. That was all he said?—A. Yes, sir; that was about all. 1
talked quite a while with him, but that was the most of his remarks,
that they wouldn’t remain there very long, because the people
wouldn’t have them there; something like that—didn’t like them,




Vi e e

AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS. 1138

Q. Fernandez, I believe, was the policeman you had a talk with—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. He spoke English, you say, very well?—.\., Yes, sir; he spoke
tolerably good English.

Q. Where was that conversation?—A. The first conversation I had
with him was in Mr. Weller’s saloon, I believe; the first one I re-
member of.

Q. Were vou taking a drink there?—A. No, sir; I was not taking
a drink at the time:

Q. What was your business in there?—A. Nothing particular; I
just walked in. There was quite a number of soldiers in there, the
way I remember it. I might have been looking for some one; I
don’t remember now.

Q. I do not care about that. Now, as to IFernandez, what was his
language?—A. He asked me about the colored soldiers coming down
there, and I told him that I understood they were coming, and he
says: “ We don’t want them down here; ™ he says, * We nin’t going
to have them down here;” and he tapped his gun with his ﬁxmd,
;md !10 says, “ I want to kill a couple of them as soon as they get

1ere.”’

Q. ITe limited the number to two?—A. Yes, sir.

’ (l). That was there publicly?—A. Yes, sir; it was tolerably pub-
icly.

(,{ Was Fernandez a man that talked a great deal?—A, I can’t
say that he was a very great talker; no, sir.

Q. Did you report that talk to anyone?—A\. No, sir,

Q. IIave you ever told it to anyone at all?—A, T talked it over
\\l-ilh some soldiers in Camp Mabry, after this trouble occurred down
thoere,

Q. Anyone else?—A. Yes, sir; I have talked it over since then,
I believe. _

Q. You came here from what place?—A, From Fort Sam ITous-
ton, 'fex.

Q. That is where you are stationed now?—A. Yes, sir; that is
my proper station,

Q. Did you pay much attention to the remark of Iernandez?—A.
Not at the time; no, siry Idid not pay much attention to it.

Q. Why did you not?—A. I theught it was more of u brag nt the
time.

Q. That is what T assumed—that you regavded it more as idle
talk—brag.—A. That was my idea «t the time,

Q. It would naturally occur to you that if a man was going to
kill two men he wouldn't go around boasting of it?—A. No, sir.

By Scnator Overvan:

Q. In these conversations, did any of them tell yon that they
were going to appeal to their Congressmen and to Senators Bailey
and Culberson to get those troops away from there?—\. I heard
Weller say something about that—the citizens were going to get up
an appeal that they be not sent there.

By Senator WaRNER:
Q. T was coming to that. Was not that given, in connection with
the other statement, as 2 reason why they would not stay there long,
because they would get their Senators and Congressmen to have them
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removed to some other post? Is not that the fact, Sergeant?—A.
No, sir; it was not spoken in that way. It was not given in connec-
tion with that,

Q. What was it given in connection with?—A., I can not remem-
ber that at present. I remember hearing him make that remark.

Q. Who?—A\. Mr. Weller, the saloon keeper.

Q. In what conmection did he make that remark?--\. I can not
say, sir. I don't remember,

Q. Was it in one of these conversations you have spoken of with
Mr. Weller?—A. No, sir; I wasn't talking with him myself. He
was talking to some one else when I heard him make this vemark.

Q. What remuark?—A\. That the people of Brownsville were think-
ing about petitioning, or something to that eflect, that the colored
troops be not sent there, I heard lim tell this to some one else; he
didn’t tell it to me.

Q. 30 as to get right on that, was that on the same day that yon
had the talk with him in his saloon?—A\. No, sir; it was a different
time. It was about the same time, but it was not the same occasion,
I do not think it was the same day. T will not be positive about it
not being the same day.

Q. Were you frequently in that saloon?—A. Tolerably frequently.

Q. Every day?—A. No, sir; not every day,

Q. Now, McDonald vou had a talk with?—A, Yes, sir,

Q. And where was that talk? ‘That was in a saloon, was it?7—A,
Once in a saloon and once, I remember, on the street—on Klizabeth
street,

Q. In what saloon was this?—A. That was in Weller's saloon also.

Q. And he expressed regret also that the F'wenty-sixth were go-
ing?—A. Yes, sir: he did.

Q. And now. what was it he said?—A\. As near as I can remem-
ber, he sayvs * We will run those damned niggers away from here;
we won't have them here.” He says  They won’t be here long; we
will run them away.”

Q. 'T'o whom was that said?2—A. That was said to me, direetly.

Q. What brought out that remark?2—A. It came from the talk of
them coming there.

Q. Several soldiers were around there at that time?—A. Noj there
was no one but him and I talking at that time.

By Senator Overyax:
Q. Was he an associate of yours?—A. I can’t say he was. I spoke
to him.
By Scnator WaRNER:
Q. You were quite intimate with him?—A. No, sir; T can’t say 1

was.

Q. You were in his saloon often?—A. Ile didn’t have any saloon,
This was MeDeonald.

Q. Oh, this was McDonald. But it was in Weller's saloon?2—A\.
This occasion, I think, was on the street. I talked with him two or
three times, and the time he told me this I think it wes on the
street and not far from Weller’s saloori—on the same street. T
talked with him once, I remember. in a saloon and once on the out-
side—probably more than once on tle outside. .

f
/
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Q. Did you go on in the saloon after the talk?—A. No, sir; I did
not.

Q. That talk, I assume, you regarded as you did the other?—A, I
didn’t pay any particular attention to it at the time, only it impressed
it on my mind that he was pretty hostile to negro soldiers, and didn’t
want them there,

Q. You know the mayor of Brownsville?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ile was very rigid there, was he not, in the enforcement of the
laws?—A. I can’t say about that, sir. T don’t think I am competent
to judge. ]

. Why? You were living there—.\. Yes, sir; it didn't n{) ear
to me, sir, that he was very rigid in enforcing the laws when Mexi-
cans were concerned, not as much as when soldiers were concerned.
That appeared to me several times.

Q. He appeared to favor the Mexicans as against the soldiers?—A.,
It appeared that way to me: yes, sir.

Q. That was Mayor Combe?2—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Mayor Combe had been a soldier himself, had he not?2—A. I
understand he was: yes, sir.

Q. "Fhen Mayor Combe, in your judgment, was not friendly to the
soldiers?2—A. T ean't say that he was unfriendly to the soldiers.

Q. Well, he treated the soldiers worse than he treated the Mexi-
cans?—A, ‘That was my impression and my belief, sir,

Q. You knew of the cases that 'you have mentioned in all that
time you were at Brownsville, where soldiers had been arrested 2—A.
How is that, sir?

Q. You have given all the instances you can remember in the years
vou were at Brownsville of where soldiers were arrested 2—A. No,
sirs 1 have not.,

Q. Well, now, proceed. What other instances do you remember —
A, A v named Rappe, in my company. was arrested.

Q. When was that?—A. T car’t say. I think it was some time in
the vear 1905,

Q. Was Mayor Combe mayor then?—A., T am not positive whether
he wa~ or not. T can not say that. either,

Q. What was this man arrested for?—A, T think he was charged
with dicorderly conduet; T am not positive; that is what T heard.

Q. That ix, he was charged with Loing drunk and disorderly 2—A,
I couldn’t say the exact charge. I heard that he was charged with
something like being dizorderly downtown,

Q. And he was arvested. Do yon think a Mexican would not have
been arrested under the same circumstances he was arrested under 4—
A. T don't know what the eircumstances of his arrest were: I could
not judge.

Q. You don’t know. Well, what was the next case of arrest other
than the few you have giver me heretofore?—A. T am tryving to
think of the name of one man. I have forgotten his name. Ile wasa
man out of I, Company. TIe is discharged now.

Q. Without giving the name, when was that arrest?—A. It ap-
pears to me like that was the latter part of 1905.

Q. What was he arkested for?—A. T could not say, sir. I heard
that he was arrested and spent a day or two in jail. I never remem-
ber of hearing what for. } might have heard,
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Q. Any other now#—A. Yes, sir; a soldier of my company named
Eplen—Jesse Eplen.

Q. What was he arrested for?—A. He told me he was arrested—
that is all I know—because he was with another soldier—this man
Shupolsky—when he was arrested.

Q. Any other? I want all of them. Sergeant.—A. I believe
that is a]l that I can remember, sir, at present. It appears to me
there were a number more.

Q. How many years were you at Brownsville? You have already
stated that.—A. About eighteen or nineteen months.

Q. And these are all the instances that you can give?—A. That
is all that I can remember at the present time. :

Q. It is a fact, is it not, that about pay day soldiers visit the
saloons, quite a number of them?—A. Yes, sir; 1t is,

Q. And it is, unfortunately, a fact that some of them drink too
much?—A. Yes, sir; in some cases. :

Q. And, like other people, when they are drunk they are apt
to be disorderly?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is your observation, is it not?—A. In some cases; yes, sir.

Q. And during that same time, now, how many soldiers of your
company did you arrest; how many were arrested and placed in the
guardhouse in the camp for being drunk and disorderly, wounld you
say ?—A. I don’t remember of but one case, sir; that is all I can re-
member.

Q. Would you arrest them if they were drunk?—A., If they were
disorderly, drunk and disorderly around the quarters in the post,
around my quarters, it wonld be my duty to arrest them and place
them in the guardhouse; yes, sir.

Q. Supﬁose they would come in drunk?—A. Tt would depend on
how drunk, or what a man's conduct was. If he was disorderly, it
was the rule to place him in the guardhouse. If a man is under the
influence of liquor and is not loud or disorderly, but is willing to gc
and lie down and go to sleep. he is not arrested, as a rule.

Q. So that if he comes into camp drunk. and does not make any
disturbance, he is not arrested?—A. That is the rule; he is not; yes.
sir.

Q. But if he is drunk, stnggerin{g along the streets of a town—
have you been in any place where they did not arrest parties found
in that condition on the strect?7—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where?—A. T noticed that in Brownsville they paid but very
Ptlle attention to Mexicans in that condition. That was my observa-

ion.

Q. Mexicans were allowed to reel around o1 the streets at will?—
A. Yes, sir; T have seen them drunk and very disorderly——

Q. What year was that?

Senator Foraker. Let him finish his answer,

Senator Warxen. That was all. T think he finished his answer.

By Senator WaRNER:

Q. Did you not finish? Were you about to say anything else?—
A. Yes, sir; I was going to recalrone case that happened last year.
1906—it .H)pears to me like it was in June—where a man was very
drunk and disorderly, and a Mexican policeman called a hack and
took him home. He said that he was going to take him to jail. There
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were several soldiers standing around—I was there myself—and this
Fernandez, he said that he was going to take him to jail, but instead
of doing that he put him in a hack and only took him home.

Q. Where did that man live?—A. I don't know, sirj some place in
Brownsville.

Q. Did you follow the hack?—A. No, sir; I did not.

Q. You do not know where he lived?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you know his name?—A. No, sir.

Q. How did you know that he took him home?—A. Because I saw
the man again in about twenty minutes, He came back up there. He
said the policeman had taken him home, but that he wasn’t going to
stay there, and he came back up town,

. He came back again?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Drunk and disorderly ¢—A. Yes, sir.

ﬁ‘Q. Then what was done with him?—A. The policeman took him
off again,

Q.gIIc took him home again?—A. I don’t know where he took him
the second time.

Q. Is there any other case you have in mind? Let us have them
all.—A. T have seen a number of cases where Mexicans—I don’t
know who they were, very low class of Mexicans—were reeling along
the street drunk and disorderly, and the policeman would pay no
attention to them; and at other times they would caution them and
tell them to keep still or to go out into the suburbs somewhere where
they wonld not be noticed so much.

Q. But cvery time a soldier got drunk he was arrested?—A., I
would not say every time,

Q. Would you say that these few soldiers who were arrested were
all the soldiers found drunk on the streets of Brownsville during the
whole time you were there?—A. No, sir.

Q. Would it not be a very small percentage of the men, to your
knowledge, who were actually drunk in saloons and on the streets?—
A. T would not say about that. T expect it would be a tolerably
small pereentage, beeaunse as a matter of fact I know there have heen
dozens of soldiers arrested there that I have not named, that T don’t
remember the names of, and I don’t remember the cases, I have not
named nearly all of them; I am certain of that.

Q. T have'tried to get all of them from you.—A. T have named all
of them that T can remember the names of the men. I can remember
the occasions.

Q. The people of Brownsville always have treated you nicely —
A. Yos, sir; I believe I can say that they have.

Q. Yon have been into the saloons and vou have been at the
hotels?—A. Yes. sir. _

Q. And at different places in Brownsville?—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. And never had any trouble?—A\. No. sir.

Q. Was it not your observation that as long as a person behaved
himself, citizen or soldier. he did not have any trouble?—A\. As a
rule; ves, sirj that was the role.

Q. That was the rule. And is it not a fact. Sergeant, from your
observation in any town, that any policeman may sometimes overstep
his bounds in arresting somebody?—A. It is my opinion that it
happens in a number of places; yes, sir,
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Q. And that occurred at Brownsville?—A. It was more noticeable
there than any place ever I was.

Q. That is, their arresting soldiers or citizens generally—which do
you mean?—A. It seemed to me that especially it was soldiers, or
more often than citizens, for the same offenses. It appeared that way
to me,

Q. The fact that these men arrested were of your command and
company has nothing to do with forming your opinion, of conrse—
A. No, sir; not at all,

Senator WarNer Not a particle. I think that is all.

By Senator Foraxer:

Q. The eases you have given were all of men in your own company,
as I understand?—A., I believe they were all in my company. Shu-
polsky was in my company; Bryan was in my company. and Parker
was in my company. Shupolsky and Parker are not members of my
company now. I think they are both discharged and not in the
Service now.

Dy Senator BuLkELEY:

Q. T think you mentioned a man of Company L, also?—A. Yes,
sir; but I can not remember the man’s name.

By Senator Foraker:
Q. Do you remember the case of Baker?—A. That happened before
I went to Brownsville. T remember that yes, sir.
Senator Foraker. 1 do not care to go into that. Do you object to
my asking him some questions that I forgot before?
Senator Warner. Certainly not. I only wanted to finish up my
line of questions when I started.

By Senator I'oraker:

Q. The Senator in one of his questions assumed, as T understood,
that the 400 cartridges that are allowed to each man for target prac-
tice—fer practice during the target season—were issued to a man all
at once. Is that true or not2—A. No, sir.

Senator WarxEer. I will say this, there was no such assumption.

Senator Foraker. Your question was so framed. I did not think
you intended that, but I was afraid there might be a misunder-
standing.

By Senator Foraken:

Q. As a matter of fact, there is issued to each company so much
ammunition, and the amount of it is generally based upon a calcula-
tion which allows 400 cartridges to cach man.

Senator Burkerey. For the year?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is issued to him from time to time as he engages in
target practice?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. 1t is issued only on the target range, under the eye of an offi-
cer?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And is issued to him to ba used right then and there?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Now, speaking about cartridges, have you any knowledge of
any of the citizens of Brownsville having any cartridges of the
regulation Army kind—the Springfield rifle cartridges? Have you
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any knowledge on that subject at all2—J\. Not of my own knowledge;
no, sir; only hearsay.

Q. What have you heard about it?-—A. T heard some talk between
soldiers some time before we left there that the citizens of Brownsville
wanted to bay some cartridges.

Q. What was the talk that you heard?—A. I heard one soldier
telling some other one, asking him if he knew where he conld get
some cartridges. ITe said “ no,” and he «aid that he wished he could
find some, that he knew where he conld sell eartridges in the city at
the rate of 90 cents for each 20 cartridges.

Q. That was these Springfield cartridges; for the new model gun,
I mean?—A. I am not positive of that, sir.

N Q. Was there anything said as to what kind of cartridges?—A.
N0, SIT.

Q. Who was the soldier who made that remark?—A. That was
Private Henry Watson. of Company M.

Q. Private ITenry Watson?—A. Yes. sir.

Q. Is he the man who wanted to get the cartridges?—A. I think
he is. I think he is the man who asked some other soldier if he
knew where it would be possible to get some.

Q. That he knew where he could get 90 cents for 207—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was from somebody outside of the fort2—A, Ie said it
was a man down at Weller’s saloon,

By Senator Overmax:

Q. TTow long was that before you left there?—A. I can’t say how
long it was.

Q. Was it 1905 or 19062—A. In the year 1906, T think.

Q. Was it in the spring?—A. T can’t say very well about that
time, what time; but it scems to me it was some time before we loft
there.

Q. Some time before you got your Springfield rifles?8~A. I can’t
say about that. I don’t remember that part of it,

By Senator IForaker:

Q. You speak about the condition in which you left your quarters.
You say your recollection is indistinet, but your impression is that
you did sec some cast-off clothes on the back porches?—A. Yes; it
seems to me I saw some: it didn’t s<cem to me like it was verv much.

Q. I will ask you if you saw any bandoliers there?—A. I don't
remember seeing any.

Q. What was the practice of your company, as to bandoliers when
they were emptied of their eartridges?—A. The practice in my com-
pany was to throw them away ; they were of no further use when they
were empty.

Q. You did not save them and turn them in to the quartermaster-
sergeant?—A. No, sir,

Q. Your company was commanded by Captain Roche?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. That was his way of doing. in your company?—A. Yes, sir;
that was his orders.

Q. They were just cast aside anywhere?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And no care taken to preserve them?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know how it was in other companies of the Twenty-
sixth?{—A. No, sir; T am not in position to say.
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Q. That being the case, was it an unusual thing for the bandoliers
that your company had cast aside to be scattered around anywhere?—
A. It was not; no, sir. We left them on the target range by the
dozen at Fort Sam Houston some time ago, when we were on that
range. As soon as they were empty we would throw them away, and
we would leave them out on the range. L

Q. And that was the practice also at Fort Brown?—A, I think it
was at Fort Brown the same.

Q. Were you present at target practice at Fort Brown, or did that
happen when you were on furlough?—A. My company went on the
range when I was on furlough, but I came back later on and went on
the range with another company, Company K.

Q. What was the practice in that company as to the bandoliers{—
A. I have been trying to thjnk of it, but I can not remember.

Q. That was Company K1—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You do not remember it, but you do remember distinctly as to
the practice in your own company, Company M?—A, Yes, sir.

Q. That was the captain’s orders?—.\. Yes, sir; that was the cap-
tain’s orders.

By Senator Fosren: _

Q. Where were these left, at Fort Sam Ionston?—A. Yes, sir; out
on the target range at IFort Sam Houston. We had midwinter tar-
get practice—something new—about two months ago. I asked the
captain what disposition to make of the bandoliers after they were
empty, and he told me just to leave them on the target range.

By Senator Foraken:

Q. That was Captain Roche?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was his first name?—A. Edward.

Q. Has he any middle name?—A. I don’t know his middle name.
His middle initial is “A.”

The Crramyan. You asked him ebont that.

Senator Foraker. Yes; I had forgotten that T did. Something
else was testitied about the cartridges, about “bucking them for
orderly.” Do you know what is meant by that expression, © bucking
cartridges for orderly 2"

Senator Warner, It i« “bucking for orderly.”

Senator Overyax, Trying to get promotion,

Senator Foraxkr. T mean polishing cartridges as a part of this
bucking arrangement,

By Senator Foraken:

Q. Do you know what that is?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not men were allowed any extra cartridges on
that acconnt, or whether. if they saw fit to polish their cartridges,
they were included in the number with which they were charged.—A.
Those cartridges were included in the number with which they were
charged. They never were issued any extva covtridges for that
purpose.

Q. They never were issued any extra cartridges for that pur-
pose?—A. No, sir,

Q. State whether or not. if a man was found with extra cartridges,
whether they were polished or otherwise, they would be either taken
up, or he would be charged with them.— A, The rale would be to take
them up immediately, and turn them in to the company storeroom.

- '

w
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By Senator Overyan:

Q. Were you very particular about that thing? Would you not
let soldiers have some extra cartridges sometimes—not pay any atten-
tion to it?—A. Yes, sir; it is a pretty striet rule. .\ man is not sup-
posed to have extra cartridges.

Q. I know it is supposed to be strict, but do they not have some
extra cartridges now and then?—A. It is a pretty rare thing, sir, in
my own experience, in iy own company.

Q. Is there any trouble about a soldier filching a few?—A. He
would probably get into trouble if he got caught at it.

Q. He could do it, could he not?—A. It might be possible, under
certain circumstances.

Q. If they found him with them they would just charge him with
them?—A. That would depend upon circumstances,

Q. They would not court-martial him if they found him with a few
extra cartridges in his possession?--A. No, sir; not ordinarily.

Q. Ii they i\usb found a few cartridges they would not court-martial
a man?—A. No, sir; if they found him with a few extra ones they
would just order him to turn them in to the storeroom.

Q. Is it not a rule to make a man pay for any cartridges that he is
short in the ammunition issued to him?—.J\. If he loses them.

. Q. Losing means to come up with them missing?—A. Well, yes,
sir.
A QY If they were missing, would they not make him pay for them#—

. Yes, sir.

Q. What is the rule about that?—A. They are to be paid for; they
are to be charged to the man on the pay roll.

Q. Ifa solgier comes up with a few cartridges missing, they just
charge them up to him?—-A. They could either do that or punish him.
They could either charge them up to him or else they could give him a
court-martial,

Q. There was not anything to prevent a soldier from losing a few
cartridges and keeping them in his pocket?—A. It could be done.

By Senator ForaKER:
Q. Suppose a man should be found short three or four cartridges,

would that or not be investigated immediately by the officer?—A. It .

would not in ordinary circumstances, unless there was something sus-
icious attached to it; if he lost too many or was in the habit of
osing them.
Q. Would he not be ealled upon to make an explanation us to what
became of his eartridges?—A. The rule as to that. T do not think, ig
the same in all companies. Some captains are very strict in that way

and will be very strict about a man’s accounting for nne cartrid%e,; .

while another officer might simply ask a man, ¢ Did you lose them
“Yes, sir.” Then he would say. *“ Well, you will have to pay for
them,” while another officer, T know. would investigate that very
closely to see if he conld prove he lost them carelessly, and would not
only make him pay for them, but would court-martial him.

By the CHAIRMAN:
Q. About paying for them, is there a regular price?—A. Yes, sir,
Q. What is that price?—A. T am not sure about that. It isin a
book issued from the Ordnance Department.
Q. Approximately, what is it?—A\, Something like 3 or 4 cents.
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By Senator FORAKER:

Q. That is for each cartridge?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. That is the ball cartridge?—A. Yes, sir.

By the CxArMAN:

Q. I want to get one point clear. You may have given this testi-
mony already, but I want to get it. How many pelicemen were emn-
ployed, altogether, when you were at Brownsville?—A. I think the
number was nine or ten,

Q. Were they on night and day?—A. Yes, sir; they were sup-
posed to be.

Q. Were they placed upon beats or posts, as they are in some other
cities, or were they about the different parts of town, in n loose way #—
A, T]'ney had their beats or posts, as I understood it, as some of them
told me, but their system was very lax. I know I would hear them
talkin%; and a man would disappear off from his post for two or
three hours, and nothing much would be thought of it. The rule
was not very strict.

Q. Out of those nine or ten policemen, without naming them, how
many could speak English pretty well?—A. I should say about two
or three. Two of them could speak it tolerably well.

Q. I think {ou testified that one of them could speak it very
fluently —-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Could they converse on other things in addition to the ordinary
line of their duties?—A. There wasn't more than one that counld
carry on a general conversation, I don’t belicve.

Q. You speak of the saloons there; were the saloons of Browns-
ville generarly all-night saloons—open all night?—.A\. No. sir; they
were not.

Q. Were they open all night?—A. I have known of occasions
where they were open all night, but as a rule they were not.

Q._Was there any ordinance about that?—A. No, sir; I don’t think
so. If there was, 1t wasn’t enforced.

Q. How about gambling; was there gambling, generally, at the
saloons?—A. It was gencrally on the floor above.

Q. Was there any ordinance prohibiting it, or was it done by
license?—A. I don’t know anything about the ordinance or the law,
but it scemed that they paid very little attention to it; the gambling
was very open. i

Q. Tt did not appear to be done surreptitiously or privately —
A. No, sir; T have seen 1police officers standing around watching
time and time again, and I have seen them- gmnfﬁing. themselves, in
uniform.

- Q. The larger part of the police force, then. would be about the
saloons, probably, would they. taking it night and day (ogether?—
A. Yes, sir; I expect they would.

Q. You speak of the frequent arrests made of the men of your
company, and you say that the Mexicans were more leniently dealt
with, and that they conld reel about the streets drunk. How do yon
account for that—that the Mexicans were not so strictly disciplined
as the soldiers?—A. I think there was a prejudice among a certnin
class of those people, the policemen also, against the uniform.

Q. That is, whether the soldier was white or black?—A. Against
the United States uniform; yes, sir.

' e e oy s
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Q. But you consider there was more prejudice against the black
than the white, do you?—A. Yes, sir; I do.

Q. But you fesl sure that the prejudice in Brownsville was against
the uniform and the soldiers ns such?—A. Among a whole lot of the
people of Brownsville; yes, sir.

By Senator OVERMAN:

Q. Did this prejudice prevail in other camps, in other townst—
A. T have never noticed it in the places T have been,

By the Cnamyan:

Q. On the other hand, were there any very close friendships be-
tween the xoldiers and the people of the town, and association back
and forth?—A. Not as a rule. That would be an exception,

Q. You would eall it an excejtion rather than a rule that there
was very much sacizl intercourse between the soldiers and the towns-
people?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That would be true of the whito as well as the black, would
it?—A. Yes, sir.

By Senator IFosTER:

Q. When did you first enlist{—A. April 26, 1898,

Q. From what State?-~A. Illinois,

Q. You then remained in the service how long?—A. A few days
over a year, svout a year and eight days, I believe; until May 2, 1899,

Q. Were you discharged ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. For what canse?—J\. The regiment was mustered out at that
tinre, It was a volunteer regiment, and the entire regiment was mus-
tered out on that day. ‘

Q. Then you remained out of the service for how long?—A. I
remained out for about a year and a half,

Q. Where did you live during that time?—-A. I spent a part of
that time in Indianapolis, Ind., a part of it in Chicago, and a part
of it in Towa.

Q. In what capacity 7—A. The greater part of the time, I believe—-
a part of that time I was railroac m;fv, working for the Indianapolis,
Bloomington and Western Railroad, in Indianapolis, and for the
Chicago and St. Paul out in Iowa.

Q. Then when did you reenlist?—.\. I reenlisted the second time
the 1st day of December, 1900.

Q. In what regiment?—A, In the Twenty-sixth Infantry, the same
regiment and company that I am in at present.

Q. Have you heen in that regiment and company ever since?—A.,
No, sir; I was out of the service a year and about two weeks.

Q. Did yon voluntarily retire from the service?—.J\. Yes, sir.

Q. And’then you reenlisted7—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What day was vour last reenlistment? WWhat was the date
of your last reenlistment?—N\. It was the 6th day of this month,
March, this present month. I just reenlisted the Gth day of this
present month, March, _

Q. When did you last enlist prior to your last enlistment2—A. It
was the 4th day of December, 1904

Q. From 1904 up to vour going to Iort Brown where were you
stationed 2---A. 1 joined my company at Fort Brown,

Q. In 19047—.\. I spent the greater part of that year, 1904, at
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the world’s fair, working for the exposition company; the world’s
fair in St. Louis,

Q. Not after your enlistment?—A. Before my enlistment, sir, in
1904,

Q. You reenlisted this March, and then what were you doing;
were you in the Army or just discharged from the Army when you
reenlisted in March?—A. I was discharged from the Army on a spe-
cial order. 1 had not served my full enlistment, but on account of
my regiment going to the Philippine Islands. ‘I'here was an order
issued by the War Department that men would have at least two
years and three months to serve who were going, with the exception
of noncommissioned officers. If they did not have that much, if a
man had less time than that to serve, he could be discharged and reen-
list, so that upon going to the islands he would have nearly three
years to serve. So I took my discharge after servin% a little over two

ears and two months and reenlisted, so that I would go to the Phil-
1ppine Islands in June with nearly three years to serve.

Q. You went to the Philippine Islands?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then were you discharged after your service in the islands?—
A. Yes, sir; after coming back to the United States.

Q. What day was that?-—A. The 30th day of November, 1903.

Q. Then how long did you remain out of the Army?—A., 1
remained out one year and about two weeks. _

Q. Bringing your enlistment, then, up to 19042—A. Yes, sir.

Q. After that reenlistment where were you stationed ?—A. Most
of the time at Fort Brown, Tex. I reenlisted in Chicago to be sent to
Fort Sam Houston; San Antonio.

Q. That was in 1904?—A. Yes, sir; in December.

Q. In what regiment and in what company was your reenlist-
ment?—A. In Company M, Twenty-sixth Infantry; my present
company, *

Q. So that you have been in Company M of the Twenty-sixth Reg-
i{nent since 1904?—A. Yes, sir; and three years previous to that

ime.

Q. Yes. Now, how much of your time after this reenlistment in
1904 have you spent at Fort Brown?—A. I would say all of it, with
tJhel exception of between three and four months, up to the 5th of last

uly. :

Q. During what year were you absent from there between three
and four months?—A. I was absent about one month in the year
1905. I was going to the target range at Fort Ringgold, Tex.; some-
thing like a hundred miles up there; going there attending the target
practice and marching back; sometf)ing like & month, I think it was;
a little over a month. Last year I was on furlough for three months.
I did not take quite three months. I was on furlough from the 7th
of March until about the 1st of June,

Q. You were then absent from Fort Brown up to about the 1st
of June; three months preceding the ist of June vou were absent
fxl;om tFort Brown?—A., Yes, sir; a greater part of that time I was
absent.

Q. When was this order issued for the colored troops to replace you
at Fort Browni—A. I can’t say positively, sir, about the date, but it
urpears to me that it was in the month of June, 1906; that is my rec-
ollection, that it was about that time. The exact date I can not say.
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Q. Did you discuss this order generally with the citizens of the
town?—A. With several of them; yes, sir.

Q. Did you solicit these interviews or conferences or did the parties
cgmet !;: you?—A. Always it was the parties speaking to me first
about it.

Q. These parties you had met before and were on terms of intimate
social relation with them?—A. I can’t say I was. They were all ac-
quaintances. I can’t say that I was intimate with any of them. -

Q. These conversations that you had with the police and with Mr.
Crixell and Mr. Weller—A. T didn’t have any conversation with
Mc. Crixell. T was speaking to a policeman in front of his saloon.

Q. These conversations were had, then, within a short time of each
other, were they not?—A. Yes, sir; I think all within a period of two
‘or three days, .

Q. And each one of these parties came up ‘o you voluntarily and
told gou of their feeling toward the negro troops, and one of them
stated that he was going to kill two of them$—A. That he wanted to
or would like to kill two of them.

Senator Foster. That he wanted to; yes.

By Senator OvERMAN: ’
Q. You spoke of these soldiers being arrested. Were you ever
arrested ‘i—x{). No, sir.
Senator Foster. I was going to come to that.
Senator OvermMaN. Go ahead.

By Senator FosTer:

Q. Then you had frequent conversations with these officers and
lheselcgti(zlens before this, conversations on other subjectst—A. Yes,
sir; I had,

é. You were frequently in town?—A. Yes, sir; quite frequently.

Q. Frequently at the saloons?—A. Just tolerably. I dropped in
pretty often. It was a small place. )

Q. You went downtown wherever you saw fiti—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You met these officers and officials, and met the citizens gener-
ally. During your visits downtown at any of thess saloons were
you ever interfered with by any of these officials?—A. Yes, sir; I
was, very shortly after I came to Brownsville. I came down there
in awvilian clothes.

Q. In civilian_clothes?—A. Yes, sir; before I had a uniform.
There was a policeman who was drunk one night, and he told me
he wanted to arrest me, or something like that.” In fact, I was not
sEeaking to him at all. That was just before—the same policeman
that struck this man Parker. _

Q. Did you know the policeman?—A. I knew him when I saw
him. That was about the secoind time I had ever seen him. ,

Q. Was he arresting you because you were a United States sol-
gier?l-A. I don’t think he said anything about that. He was very

runk.

Q. Did he know that you were a United States soldierf—A. I
don’t think he did; sir. .

Q. You had on civilian clothes?—A. Yu, sir.

S. Doc, 402, G0-1, pt §——15 .
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By Senator OveryaN:

Q. Where was that?—A. That was :n Crixell’s saloon.

Q. What were you doing in there?—A. I was talking to the bar-
tender at the time. .

Q. Were you drinking at the time?—A. I don’t remember whether
I was or not.

Q. You do drink?—A. What, sir?

Q. You do take a drink occasionallyi—A. Yes, sir.

By the CraryaN:
YQ. Do I understand that you were dressed in civilian clothes?—A.
es, sir.
Q’. You were out on pass, I suppose?—A. I had not been issued
any uniform. I had been there only a few days, and I had not been
issued any uniform.

By Senator OverMAN:
((12. Do you get intoxicated at times?—A. No, sir; I can’t say that
o.

By Senator IFosyeR:

Q. How do you account for the fact that you went into that town
wherever and whenever you saw fit to go, and you were never dis-
turbed by the officials, and you were not arrested, and other members
of your company were arrested 2—A. Well, one thing, I always made
it a rule to attend strictly to my own business, and 1 never associnted
with the lower class of Mexicans around there, and I never gave them
any reason in the world to say anything to me or to arrest me.

Q. I know, but you had frequent conversations with these officials,
and why was it they never disturbed you? Was it Lecause you
were attending to your duties and conducting yourself properly?—
A. I suppose that was it; yes, sir.

Q. pr other soldiers had nacted as you acted, would they not have
been treated just as you were treated by the officials? Is not that
your judgment?—A. T think they would, ordinarily; yes, sir.

Q. I understood you to say in your examination in chief that you
had never had any conversation with anybody about your evidence,
or about this case. Am I correct in that?—A. No, sir; I didn’t say

that.

Q. Well, what did you say about that?—A. I said that T had
talked it over with several parties.

Q. Since your arrival here or before you came here?—A. Before
I came here, sir.

Q. Did you not talk with——A, (Continuing.) And I have talked
with some since I came here, I believe.

Q. Did you not talk this matter over at Fort Reno, or wherever
these 12 men were confined ?

Senator Foriker. At Fort Sam Houston.

Q. (Continuing,) At IFort Houston?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you never have any conversation with them on the subject
of Brownsville?—A. No, sir; not a word. I never spoke to them
about Brownsville at all. The conversation T had was mostly with
other white soldiers in my own command.

Q. You know nothing about that shooting?—A. No, sir; I was not
in the town at the time.

s e s e
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By Senator Overyan:

Q. Were these conversations you had with soldicrs or officers?—A.,
With both; generally with the soldiers, the enlisted men.

Q. What oflicers did you talk to?—A. I talked with Captain Roche,
my captain, and with Lieutenant Archer, and some, I believe, with
Licutenant Thompson.

Q. Did they ask you about it, or did you volunteer the testimony #—
A, Jt just came up in a gonemi way. We were just remarking about
it in & general way. I do not mean to say that I told those officers
what I am telling f;ore——ull.

Q. You say you did not tell them what you tell here?-—A. Not all
of it; no, sir,

Q. Did you tell those officers the conversations you had with these
policemen?—A. I don’t believe I did, that part. I don’t believe I
toll anyoue. .

By Senator Foster:

Q. Did you tell anyone before you came here practically what you
have stated here to-day?—A. I told it in San Antonio after this
occurlio.(l and at Fort Sam Houston; yes, sir; after this trouble oc-
curred.

Q. What bearing has your testimony here to-day upon the trouble
and difliculty in Brownsville on the 13th of August last?-—A, X don’t
think I am in a position to say, sir, myself.

Q. You have discussed, however, this evidence in Fort Sam Houston
before you came here?—A. Yes, siry I think that I told part of what
T knew, part of what I had heard, and expressed my opinion about a
part of the population of Brownsville, and so forth, to several differ-
ent parties, mostly soldiers. .

Q. Did you communicate these facts to anyone outside of Browns-
ville, or communicate your opinion and views on this subject to anyone
outside of Brownsville?—A. At any time—

Q. At any time since this oceurrence.—A. Yes, sir; I have.

Q. To whom?—s\. T conld not name all the parties, sir. I have
talked, though, with a great many people—a great many people in
different places. You see, I was in Camp Mabry, Tex., near Austin,
at the time that the trouble occurred, and I remember talking it over

-with a number of ]l)eople there. They found out that I came from

Fort Brown and they naturally asked a great many questions, as
people naturally would, just looking for information. I talked it
over with people there and with other people since.

Q. Did you tell anybody here, by communication or otherwise, be-
fore you came here?—A. Here in the city of Washington?

Q. Yes—A. No, sir.

Q. You did not write to anybody here about it?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you have any communication while at Fort Sam Houston
with any representative—any lawyer?—A. Not that I know of,
S1r.

Q. Did not one come to you and solicit any information on this
subjeet while at Fort Sam Houston?—A. There was & man came
to me one day and asked me a number of questions, and I asked him
why he wanted to know—they were so pointed-—and he said he
couldn’t tell me exactly,
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Q. Who was the mani—A. His name, I believe, was Ferguson.
I think that is the way he introduced himself.
hian. Who was he, a lawyer?—A. I don’t know, sir. I didn’t ask

Q. Did he tell you that he was ttinﬁ up evidence in this case?—
A. Yes; he finally told me that. I told him that I didn’t care to talk
and answer the questions he asked me, and then he told me that
he was getting up evidence in this case.

Q. Then did you tell him?—A. He gave me his name,

Q. Then did you tell him?—A. I told him some of the things I
have told here; yes, sir.

Q. Did he make a written statement of them?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did he not write it down?—A. No, sir; he did not.

Q. Did he make a note of what you told him#—A, I think he did,
partly; yes, sir.

Q. Have you met him since you have been here?—A. Yes, sir; I
met him one day; I think the day I arrived in Washington,

Q. How long have you been heref—A. I arrived here, I believe,
Monday of this week. o .

Q. And did you go over with him practically what you went over
at Fort Sam Houston?—A. After coming here?

Q. YQS.—-A. NO, Sil'.

Q. Did you discuss the conversation that you had with him at
Fort Sam Houston?—A. No, sir; he made some remark about it, I
forget what it was, but we didn’t discuss it further. He asked me
no questions about it at all.

By Senator OVERMAN:
. Q. This Ferguson is a white man or a black man?—A. He seemed
to be a white man, sir.

Q. You know?—A. Sir?

Q. You can tell a black man from a white man?—A. He secemed
t,g be white; yes, sir. I have seen them that you couldn’t tell what
they were.

Q. How is that?—A. I have seen a good many of them that you
couldn’t tell what they were. You find a lot of them like that in
Brownsville,

Q. Couldn’t you tell whether this man was a white man or a black
man {—A., -He appeared to me to be a white man.

Q. Was he o dark manf—A, He appeared to be a dark-com-
plexioned man.

Q. You would not say that he was a white man?—A. I wouldn't
say.

Q. You have doubts of his being a white man?—A. I have never
given the matter any consideration,

Q. Well, giving it consideration now, have you any doubts whether
h}s is a white man or a colored man?—A. I don’t know how to answor
that, sir.

Q. Very well, if you can not answer it——A. He might be a
colored man, I couldn’t say. He appeared to be a white man to me.

By Senator FosTer:
Q. Did you discuss with him the general line of your testimony §—
A. Not as fully as I have here,.

~
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By Senator BonkeLey:

Q. You said in reply to some question that in talking with your
friends in Brownsville {ou intimated that you were not sorry to go
away from there?—A. Yes, sir: I did.

Q. Why? Was it not o pleasant post?—A. The post was; I liked
the post well. I did not like the community—the town—as a rule,
the people in the town. That was one reason why I wanted to get
away from there.

(A;, 1.30 o’clock p. m. the committee took a recess until 2.30 o'clock
p. m.

AFTERNOON SESSION,

The recess having expired, the committee (at 2 o’clock and 30
minutes p. m,) resumed Its session, .

Present: Senators Warren (chairman), Foraker. Hemenway,
Bulkeley, YWarner, Pettus, Foster, and Overman,

TESTIMONY OF OTIS C. WEST.

Omis C. West, being duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Senator Foraker:

Q. Please give us your name in full?—A. Otis C. West, Company
B, Twenty-sixth Infantry, FFort Sam Houston, San Antonio, Tex.

Q. You belong to Company B, you say?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Twenty-sixth Infantry ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What rank have you?—A. I am a private, sir.

Q. You are a private in that companyt—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been in the service?!—A. Almost seven
years straight, nine years double time.

Q. Have you served in Company B all the while?—A. No, sir.

Q. What other company have yon served in?—A. I served six

ears in Company I, Twenty-sixth Infautry, from its organization
in 1901 until the 5th day of January, 1907,

Q. From its organization?—A. Yes, sir; at San Francisco.

Q. Was Conuimny I organized only six years agof—A. Yes, sir;
the Twenty-sixth Infantry was organized in 1901.

Q. And you have served in that regiment all this while?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. And in Company I until your last enlistment?-—A. Yes, sir,

Q. How did you come to enlist in Company B?—A. I was well
z_lclqutéinted with Capt. George Houle, had been with him in the
islands,

Q. He is the captain of Company B¥—A. Yes, sir; and he wished
me to join his company if I reenlisted, and I did so.

Q. Vhere all have you served during this period? You speak of
being in the islands.—A. Two and a half years in the islands.

Q. You mean in the Philippines?—A. In the Philippines, and the
balance along the border, except the last six months in San Antonio,
since the Zustin maneuvers. . .

Q. Were you at Fort Brown with the Twenty-sixth Infantryf—
A. With the Third Battalion part of the time,
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Q. That battalion consisted of what companies?—A. The last four
companies, I, K, L, and M. _

Q. Was I Company there all the while?—A.. No, sir. :

Q. Where was it a part of the time?—A. At Fort Ringgold. We
exchanged with Company M.

Q. Fort Ringgold is farther up on the Rio Grande River?—
A. About 120 miles,

Q. Were you up there with your company?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What time did you go to Fort Brown?—A. I went there twice.
The first time we landed from the Philippines, along about the 1st
oflgeptomber, 1903, and the following summer we removed to Ring-

old.
€ Q. That would be in the summer of 190+.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is, you were at Ifort Brown from what time in 1903 ?—
A. About the 1st or 5th of September.

Q. Until the middle of the summer of 190+2—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then you went back to Fort Ringgold and remained there till
when?—.\. T think it was the last of May Iast year we removed back
{o Fort Brown,

Q. And remained there until what time?—A. The battalion moved
away, I think it was the fore part of July, to San Antonio.

Q. State whether or not you have been detailed on any special du-
ties during the time of your rervice, and particularly as to the year
1906.—.\. On extra duty. ‘There is a little difference between special
and extra duty.

Q. What is the difference?—.\. Tt is the sane, only you draw extra
pay for one and for the other you do not.

Q. What is the extra duty you have been on?—.\, Most of the time
in the quartermaster’s department as teamster.

Q. State whether or not you left IFort Brown on the 5th of July
with the battalion; and if not. why not.—\, I did not. T was left
behind with a detail of about 10 men to a company to help clean up
snd help the quartermaster,

Q. That ix, you were of that detail?7—A\. Yes, sir.

Q. In that detail?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who was in command of that?—A\, Lieutenant Thompson.
ITe was the quartermaster.

Q. Ile testified here yesterday. e was the quartermaster of the
battalion?—.\. Yeos, sir.

Q. Were you serving under him?—.\. Yey, sir,

Q. Tell us whether or not yon were about the barracks after the
troops left; and if <o, in what condition you found them—first in a
general way and then I will ask you specifically.—.\. Well, I was not
very much abont the barracks—driving back of the barracks. The
road runs close. .

Q. There is a map at your left, Mr. West. Let me call your atten-
tion to it.

(Senator Overman pointed out the locations on the map.)

A. That is about correct, that map; the whole of it, nearly, except
right. here [indicating].

By Senator FForAKER:

Q. Which one of the barracks did your company occupy ?—A. The
last time we occupied barracks 36, It is the old commissary,
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Q. Did you sleep there at the barracks?—A. No, sir; I slept at
the corral.

Q. Which is away out here [indicating]?—A. Away out here;

es, sir, :
y Q. What day was it that the Twenty-sixth left—the battalion that
was there?—A. I could not give you the date at all. I helped to
move them.

Q. Do you remember the date?—A, I don’t remember the date.

Q. You helped to move them anyway?—A. I was teamster, and
(I] was there at 6 o’clock in the morning; ordered to help haul to the

epot.

Q. ILet me refresh your recollection. It has been testified here, and
there is no dispute about it, tiat the battalion left on the morning
of the 5th of July?—A. Possibly they did. I know it was shortly
after the 1st. I would not say.

Q. Assuming that that was the 5th of July, what time did they
g}ot oft ;—A. They got off as quick in the morning as we could get
them off,

Q. By helping to move them you mean vou helped to move their
baggage down to the depot2—A. Yes, sir; that was my business.

Q. How far is the depot from the fort?—A. It is nearly a mile
from the fort to the depot.

Q. Yon mean you hauled it down there?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. There were other wagons, I suppose, hauling?—A. Yes, sir;
supposed to be a wagon to each company. .

Q. You spoke abonut a road there somewhere, Where is that
road ?—A. The road is right in the rear of these barracks. -

Q. There is a road along there, is there?2—N\. Yes, sir,

Q. Inside the wall, between the wall and the barracks?—A. Yes,
sir,  That is the road that the corral men always take. We were
not permitted to go around this other way.

Q. Where does that road lead to?—A\. It leads to the corral. It
is not marked down here. It winds off.

Q. Daes it go around in the rear or in front of the guardhouse?—
A. In the rear.

Q. It extends on out to the corral2—A\. Yes, sir,

Q. ow far is that road from the wall. where it passes between
the wall and tha barracks?—A. Well, it is not very far. There is
a litte row of buildings. a wood shed. and the rears,

Q. Some sinks?—N\. Between the rears and the wall there may be
perhaps 4 or 5 feet.

Q. s you were driving along there, how far would you be from
the rear porches of the harracks?—A. Oh, it might be 10 or 15 yards.

Q. They would be in your immediate view if you happened to
look in that dirvection, would they?—.N\. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not. after this battalion left, you had occa-
sion to go up and down that road.—.\. I did. T was going up and
down there several times a day, driving.

Q. T will ask you whether or not you noticed the condition in
which the back porches were left, us to whether or not there was any-
thing piled on them of any kind, any articles that had been left
behind by the men who had vacated the barracks?—A. There was.
Now, it was this way. when any troops are ordered to move, espe-
cially on a short order like that, they are always throwing away stuff
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that they do not want to carry with them—trash. Some of it is
fairly good and some of it is not worth anything. T3are is always a
certain amount of hangers-on always ready to take those things.
I thoulght nothing of it at the time, just about there, children——

Q. Did you observe any articles of clothing on the back porches?—
A. Oh, yes; there was khaki uniforms, hats, and leggings.

Q. Those were cast-off garments, were they#—A. Well, they were
supgosed to be, but I did not examine them. I could not say how
good they were or how bad.

Q. I will ask you if you went into the barracks?—A. I did mot.
I think I was in Company K’s one time. I was looking for some-
thing. That is the old Company K barracks that was down here.

Q. Below the gate, toward the river?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. That is now barracks D?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will ask {ou whether you observed any ordnance or any
cartridges or bandoliers or anything of that kind?—A. Not at that
time; I only noticed those the morning of the day they left.

Q. The morning of the day they left, what did you observe?—A.
Well, there was bandoliers. I did not know what they were then
by that name. I knew what they were for.

Q. How did it come you did not know what they were?—A. Be-
cause we never had had them issued to us. Our company had never

had m;’y.

Q. You had none with the Krag-Jiorgensen?—A. No, sir.

Q. These_ bandolicrs were issued to you for the first time with
the Springfield rifle?—A. So I understand.

Q. And your company, Company I, did not have them at that
timet—A. No, sir. :

Q. How did it happen you did not get rifles and ammunition when
the other companies did #—A. That I can not answer. I know Com-
pany B and Company I at Fort Ringgold had orders to have early
target practice, and we finished with the Krag-Jorgensen.

. At Fort Ringgold?—A. Yes, sir. And J‘ust the day before we
left we had the Springfield issued to us, and the ammunition was
issued to us, but by some oversight we did not take it with us. The

uartermaster-sergeant spoke to the captain about it, and he said,
“ Never mind; we will save the trouble of hauling it down,” and it
was shipped to us afterwards,

Q. Did you go by wagon down to Fort Brown from Fort Ring-
gold?—A., Yes, sir; I was teamster,

AQi?Leaying your ammunition belind to be shipped afterwards?-—

. Yes, sir.

Q. And that reached you at Fort Brown some time later{—A. I
think it did, sir,

Q. And was it issued to you, or not, at Fort Brown?—A. I never
had none issued to me.

Q. You were then on this extra duty?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Not doing duty in that line with your gun?—-A. No, sir.

Q. Well, you saw what you now know were bandoliers, as J under-
stand, but yon did not know what they were then?—A. I did not
know them by name, but I knew what they were for.

Q. Can you describe what it is you refer to?—A. Well, it is a sort
of a belt, with pockets that hold two clips.

M
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Q. State whether or not you saw any of those at any place after
this battalion left, Is this what you refer to {showing witness &
bandolier]?—A. Yes, sir; they come in boxes, filled with cartridges,

Q. Do you know how many cartridges they hold?2—A. I believe
there is two clips in cach pocket. I never counted the pockets.

Q.. How many pockets?—A. I would not be certain abont that.

Q. E- 1 pocket holds 10 cartridges. Is that right{—A. Well, I
would not be certain, but I presume it is. As to that, I never exam-
ined that,

Q. Now tell us what you saw on these back porches or any other
place as to bandoliers?—A, That is all T saw on the back porches—
wgs the cast-off clothing and the young Mexican children taking it
ofl.

Q. These bandoliers—you saw those lying there?—A. I saw a
few of them; T would not say how many. '

Q. Tell us whether you saw anly cartridges on the porch?—A. I
saw a few. You will always see them more or less scattered. They
get careless. ) )

Q. Did you see any in the possession of anybody?—A. Only one.
I was coming in from taking a load down town, and I met a Mexican
boy with a few in his hat.

Q. Where did you meet him?—A. At the gate going out, at Eliza-
beth street. L

Q. As you were driving in, in your wagon, and he was going out{t—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, what did he have?—A. He had a few cartridges.

Q. When was this?—A. It was the same day.

Q. The day that they left?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He had some cartridges in his hat?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Carrying his hat in his hand?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have any conversation with him?—A. Nothing more
than I J’ust said, “ Kid, what are you going to do with those?” And
he kind of looked up at me and grinned and said, “ I am_going to
take them down town and sell them to kill niggers with.” I thought
nothing of it then. i

Q. You thought nothing of it then. He said he was g{ﬁng to take
them down town and sell them to kill niggers with?—A. That was
what the little fellow remarked.

Q. Do you know who that boy was?—A. I do not. I paid no at-
tention to that.

Q. How old a boy was it?—A. It is hard to estimate the age of a
Mexican. They may be older than they look or not quite as old.
They are deceiving, . .

Q. How old would you judge he was?—A. I should judge he was
10 or 12 years old, perhaps. .

Q. Was he alone when you saw him#—A. No; there were two or
three other little fellows with him, with their arms filled with truck
of one kind and another. _ )
be}?‘ (?f one kind and another{—A. Yes, sir; something that was left

ind.

Q. Was there any guard there on duty on the porches taking care
of the stuff that had been piled up on the back porches at that time?—
A. Well, sir, I could not say, any more than I know there was a detail,
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and each detail was supposed to leave a corporal and a certain number
of men in charge of the quarters to clean them ur. That was the
order é;iven by Lieutenant Thompson. Whether they did it or not
I could not say.

Q. Have you had any experience down to this time with this new
model Springfield rifle?—A. Nothing more than we had a prelimi-
nary practice here at Fort Sam Ilouston just a few weeks ago—the
winter practice, as we call it.

Q. You have never been carrying and taking care of the gun, then,
regularly #—A. I always took care of a gun, Krag-Jorgensen; always
kept it for inspection when I was in post. I always stood inspection
on Saturdays.

Q. How abont that as to the Springfield 2—A. I could sce no differ-
ence in cleaning. .

Q. No; T mean how ahout the Springfield in comparison with the
Krng-.liirgonsen ns to the requivenients that you were under to take
care of it?—A. About the same.

Q. Well, did yon have occasion to care for this gun and clean it as
you had the Krag-Jirgensen before?—A. Ohj since T have had it.

Q. What has been your ox)lwrioncc as to the time required to clean
one of the=e new Springfield rifles, bore and chammber and bolt2—
A, Well. T can only answer for myself, with my gun; I can not
answer for others.

Q. Yes.—A. Of course T clean different than most of them. T use
kerosene oil myself. T ean do it quicker and take it out more rapidly.

Q. What is it that most of them nge?2—A. Well, some use, where it
is convenient, if they can get soda, why, that is fine to clean it.

Q. That is preseribed by the army authorities, is it not?—A, T
believe it is, sir,

Q. Is it not true that the troops are furnished with what they eall
“gal soda * for so cleaning guns?—A\, I never saw any furnished.

Q. You usced kerosene oil. How did you use that?—A. Well, I
have a brush and ramrod, and just dip the brush in the oil and run it
up and down, and it cuts the dirt. 1 nsed to use it in eivil life when
1 was working in mechanics, cleaning, because it ents the rust and
takes out evervthing in the way of dirt.

Q. You spoke of using a brush., Did you refer to the thong brush
that is found in tI. butt of the musket #—\. It is similar to that, I
hought mine in the commissary. It is a better brush than that.
'That is a poor brush. This is better.

Q. That which is in the butt of the rifle, you say, is not effective ?—
A. No, sir; it is no good at all,

Q. Is it or not used much by soldiers in cleaning their guns?—A.
No, sir; it is not.

Q. Now, cleaning it in the way you suggest, using that kind of a
brush you have described, and using kerosene oil or whatever else
you may use, what is your experience as to the time required to clean
one of these Springficld rifles after it has been fired, we will say, a
half a dozen times, so that it will pass a rigid inspection?—A., In
shooting that many times a gun will get pretty hot, and I can clean
it perhaps in ten or fiftcen minutes so that it will pass inspection;
but you let that gun stand an hour or so, und it gets black or blue,
dark, and you can not clean it permanently, You have to clean it
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several times hefore it will stay permanently cleaned. It can not be
done by one cleaning.

Q. Well, if it has had time to cool off. Do you think that an hour
or two would be long enough for it to cool offI—A., Well, it might.

Q. How long would it take, if it had cooled off?—A. It would
take a couple of hours for a gun to cool off.

Q. How long would it take vou to clean that gun, according to
your experience, after it had had time to cool off?—A. It takes longer
after it gets cool than if it is hot.

Q. Well, T understand ; but how long?2—A. Well, fifteen or twenty
minutes. I might do it in ten, and it might take n little longer.
Sometimes it takes a litfle longer than it does others,

Q. T um speaking now abont your eleaning out the bove and clean-
ing out the chpgmber and putting the gun in such condition that it
would paxs inspeetion by one of your oflficers—such inspections as
vou were subjected to. 1 believe, once a week, every Saturday.—A.
Well, that will 1ake guite n while.  Some oflicers are very particnlar—
exceedingly particular-—-and xome are not. Some will only require
vou to have the barrel cleaned,

Q. T am assuming that yvou arve going to be examined by an oflicer
who is particular.—.A\. Well, that will take at least a half an hour
in such a ease as that, »

Q. At least a halt an hour?—-\, Yes, <ir; to do that, -

Q. If you spent only ten or fifteen minutes on it, do you think it
would be safe to go out on inspertion?—J\. Well, so far as looking
at the barrel, it would. I have only reference to the brightness of
the barvel. I was not referring to taking the dirt and dust and oil
ot of the other parts,

YQ. You spoke more particularly of cleaning just the barrel?—A.

03, s,

Q. Well. now, T am asking yvou to {ake into consideration alvo the
cleaning of the chamber. s that or not a diflicult thing to do—to
clean the chamber?—\. If you want to get the dirt and oil out, you
have to have clean rags,

Q. Aro there not erevices and small places?—A, We generelly have
a pine stick—sharpen a pine stick and put a rag on the end of i,

Q. If you were going to clean out the hore of a gun <o that it would
pass inspeetion, and clean the chamber of the gun after it had been
fired. sav. a half a dozen times, so it would pas< inspection, how long
would that take vou. perhaps?—A. Oh. T think it conld be done
probably in a half an hour. T think that wonld be a reasonable time,

Q. You think it would probably take you that long, do you?—
A. T think it wonld, '

Q. Now, could you clean one of these guns that had been fired half
a dozen times, so that it would pass inspection, clean it in the dark
without any light at all?Z—\, T would not want to be required to do
that. I have never tried it. Tt wonld be all guesswork,

Q. Guesswork?—A. 1t wonld with me. T counld not say.

Q. Do you think you would be safe in going on inspection with a
gun that you had cleaned only in the dark?—A. No, sir; T would
not dare risk it.

Q. Would not risk it ?2—A, No, sir.

Q. Did you have opportinity to know what the feeling of the
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citizens of Brownsville was with respect to the cominF there of this
battalion of colored troops that succeeded you?—A. I think I did.

. Q. Did you or not go about the city considerably #—.\. No, sir;
only occasionally, evenings I would take a walk after my work. I
associated very little with the people or with the soldiers.

Q. Generally with the soldiers?—A. No, sir; not even with the
soldiers.

Q. Very little?—A. Very little. ,

Q. Did you hear people talking about it or not?—A. Why, yes;
after that order came out that we were to be removed and our place
taken by the Twenty-fifth you could hear it quite frequently.

Q. You yourself heard it frequently?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the nature of the comments with respect to the com-
ing there of the colored tronps—friendly or hostile?—A. Well, they
did not seem to like it very well,

Q. What did the people say, if you can tell us?—A. As nearly as
I can recollect——

Q. Give us, of course, the substance.—A. Oh, I have heard re-
marks, but I could not say who said them, for I thought very little
of it at the time; supposed it was just mere talk.

Q. Did you hear considerable talk or not?—A. Yes, sir; I did.

Q. Could you hear it almost any place you would go in Browns-
ville?—A. Yes, sir; commenting on it one way or another.

Q. Can you recall any of the comments you heard{—A. Well,
there was one or two places—gambling places—I walked into there,
and T heard them talking about it; and I heard two or three expres-
sions that they would find some means to get rid of them, or get rid
of the black sons of bitches is the way they spoke about it.

Q. What place was that?—A. I think that was over Weller’s place.

Q. He keeps a saloonf—A. I believe he does, down below.

Q. And a gambling place above?—A. I don’t know as he runs the
gambling place. I think it is rented to some other person.

Q. Who was it you heard make this remark?—A. I could not say
as to that.

Q. You did hear remarks of that character?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What were you doing in there? Were you in there to gamble
or drink, or what{—A. No, sir; I never touch the stuff.

Q. dYou do not drink at allf—A., No, sir; I was just looking
around.

Q. Do fyou gamble?—A. No, sir; I have played with the boys at
the post for amusement; that is all.

Q. You do not play in gambling places for money #—A. No, sir.

Q. Well, you heard such remarks in there, I understand. Did you
hear any other remarks of that kind in any other place?—A. Well,
derogatory to colored troops is all I can say.

Q. From all you heard, was it your opinion that there was a hos-
tile sentiment in that community toward colored troopsi—A. I
should judge there was.

Q. How had your own troops been getting along in Brownsville?—
A. Well, they were not treated the best.

Q. Do you know the policemen there, any of themi—A. Not by
name. I had very little to do with them. I know them when I see
them; that is all,

Al
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Q. Can you tell us what kind of uniforms they wore¥—A. While I
was there they wore mostly khaki.

Q. The khaki uniform-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you mean this past year, 19069—A. Well, when we were
there before, and this last time, )

Q. We have been told that they had blue uniforms that they
wore also at some time after Mayor Combe came in. Do you re-
member when Mayor Combe was elected to office?—A. I do not.

Q. Can {ou tell us whether or not he instituted any reforms?—A,
Well, sir, I could not say.

Q. What was your observation as to whether the citizens carried
arms generally of some kind in Brownsville in that vicinity —A.
Why, it seemed to be the custom for evervbody to carry arms.

Q. It seemed to be the custom?—A. All the way up to Laredo. I
have teamed there for about 400 miles,

Q. Up to Lavedo?—A. Yes, sir; and I have never met anyone yet
that was not armed.

Q. What have we at Laredo?—A. Fort McIntosh.

Q. Have you been all the way up that Rio Grande Valley to that
point?—A. I have, and beyond that.

Q. That is how far, from Brownsville up to Laredo?—A. It is-
about 240 or 250 miles, )

Q. Have you ever been along the Rio Grande on the Mexican
side?—A. No, sir; only just been across the river. .

Q. What kind of a population inhabits the valley of the Rio
Grande between Brownsville and Laredo, up along there?—A. Now,
I might answer that so that the committee will understand. There
is a strip about a hundred miles wide along the Rio Grande—you
must not judge Texas by that strip of country, not by any means,
for outside of that strip I never found a more hospitable or nicsr
people in my life—but that strip seems to be a dumping ground of
all God’s creation on both sides of the river, and dvou go over on the
other side you will find American deserters, and on this side it is

. Mexican deserters, and all sorts of criminals collect there. They

keep jumping the river. )

Q. State whether or not there is a good. deal of smuggling along
that part of the river to which you have referred.—A. There 1s. The
Texas rangers are busy all the time.

Q. Who are busy?—A. The Texas rangers. Neurly tho whole
force of Texas rangers are employed along that river.

Q. Are there any United States officials?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mounted customs officers along there?—A., There is.

Q. Do all those people go armed generally?—A. They do.

Q. Do the rangers go armed #—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How are they armed #—A. With a revolver, some kind of heavy

un.
g Q. Do they have any guns—any rifles?—A. I have never seen
them have carbines or rifles. ,

Q. Do they wear a uniform, the Texas rangers?—A. I believe
they do. I will not be certain. )

3. Can you tell us what it is, if you can recall it now ¥—A. T think
I have scen some of them in khaki and some in blue.

Q. Well, if you do not recollect——A. I would not be certain as

to that.
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Q. State whether or not during vour stay at Fort Brown you heard
of any shooting scrapes of any kind in the nighttime in the city or
round about the fort there anywhere.—J\. Yes, sir,

Q. Well, how ofien was there a shooting serape of some kind or
other around in that loeality #—A. Well, I could not say as to that,
Senator; I do not know. I have only heard what the soldiers say.

Q. ‘el us nbout the population of Brownsville, First, how farge
is it?—A. T believe it has a population of three or four thousand;
that is my understanding.

Q. It has been stated that it had a claimed population of 8,000.—
A. It may be, Senntor, I would not be certain as to that,

Q. What class of people predominate there as to nationality —A.
Mexicans,

Q. About what proportion of that population is Mexican?—A.
About three-fourths, perhaps more, and part of them there are
Spaniards,

Q. Lots of Spaniards?—A. Lots of Spaniards.

Q. What is the color of those Mexicans?—Are they, some of them
pretty dark or not?—A. Yes, sir; some of them are very dark. O:1
course there is a difference, according to the amount of Spanish blood
there is in them, Some are quite light and some are very dark.

Senator Foraker. I believe that is all I want to ask the witness.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. You were at Brownsville how long in all?—A. Well, I went
there first about the 1st of September, 1903. I stayed there the next
summer. I think it was in June or July we moved to Fort Ringgold.

Q. That is, June or July of 1904?—A. Yes, sir; following,

Q. How were the police uniformed then?—A. They wore khaki,
and some different. There was no particular uniform. Some wore
khaki and some—

Q. Blue uniform?—A. I think there was some blue.

Q. Did it depend upon the season of the year?—A.. Well, now, I
could not say as to that. It seemed pretty near the same the year
around in that country. There is very little difference.

Q. The same uniform the year round. That was your first stay,
up to 1904%—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then when did you come back?—A. Went back last year,
in June sometime—n0; the last of Muy.

Q. 1906?—A. Ye., sir, i

Q. Did you find the policemen uniformed the same then as you
found them it 1903 or 19048—A. Well, I did not see any difference.

Q. You say you found them the same?—A. I think so} yes, sir.

Q. When you were at Brownsville you were treated respectfully,
were you?—aA. I was. I never had any trouble with anybody in my
life, myself.

Q. You found no trouble in going around?—J\. I did not,

Q. Night or day?—A. Night or day. my=elf.

Q. Never was molested by a policeman or anyone else?—A. No, sir.

Q. Never insulted?—A. No, sir.

Q. Never an unkind word said to you?--A. Never to me.

Q. And you were in the town a great deal, were you not, doing
your hauling, necessarily ?#—A. Oh, yes.

Q. All parts of the town?—A. I was, sir.
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Q. And all times of the day and night, nearly?—A. Well, I was
not very much out at night. I was some at night.

Q. And you received uniformly courteous treatment at the hands
of the people of Brownsville?—A. As far as I am concerned, toward
me they did.

Q. Did you ever sce any soldier mistreated?—.\., Well, T don’t
know whether he was mistreated. T have scen some that were ar-
rested, and they claimed they were mistreated. 1 don’t know whether
they were or not.

. Did you sco the arrest made?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know whether the parly was drunk or disorderly ?—A.
Well, T have reason to believe that some of them were drunk. ¥ o
not know: it.

Q. Mr. West, you say you do not drink yourself¢—A. No, sir,

Q. But it is an unfortunate fact, is it not, Mr. West, that soldiers
on pay day, a good many of them, do drink?—A. Well, that is a very
mild statement. You may say nine-tenths of them drink,

Q. I want to get it mild.—A. Nine-tenths of them drink.

Q. Do gou think that many?—A. Yes, sir; all of that many.

Q. And a grent many drink to excess, of course?—A. Yes, sir;
three-fourths of them drink to excess. That is one fault of the Army.

Q. And.that was not peculinr to the Twenty-sixth alone, any more
than it was to other regiments that you have seen?—A\. No, sir; I
might say nine-tenths of the convictions in the guardhouse are cansed
by liquor.

Q. I want you to be conservative in your statement.—A. ‘That is
conservative, I am positive of that.

Q. When you speak of nine-tenths of the convictions in the guard-
house being caused by whisky, how are those convictions, quite fre-
quent?—A. Yes, sir; that is, summary courts for missing retreat or
missing a call or something like that.

Q. That is caused by drink, you say?—A. Yes, sir; invariably it
i caused by drinking.

Q. Take it when pay day comes, and then following for a time
until the money is gotten rid of, how are the arrests, more or less in
posts?—A. T never saw an officer yet but what dreaded pay day.

Q. The guardhouse gets pretty full, does it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is your observation, you say?—A. Yes, sir; that is my
observation that it is a_fact.

Q. Now, this dumping ground in Texas, from Fort Brown to
Lz}]redo, I think you said 400 miles—A. It is about 240 or 250
miles,

Q. T understood you to say 400.—A\. If I did

Senator Foraker. I think you will find that he said 240 mutes,

By Senator WARNER:

Q. Y do not mean to suggest that yon stated anything that is not
corvect.—A. T can only answer what I know myself. I can not an-
swer for anybody else.

Q. Were you much on the Mexican side of the river?—A. No, sir.

Q. Were you ever over on the Mexican side?—A, T was,

Q. How long were you over on the Mexican side?—A. Never very
long; once or twice at Ringgold T took an officer over.  We ferried
across—took him over to a little station ubout 10 or 12 miles.
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Q. How long were you there then #—A. Oh, about half a day.

Q. At that one place. Were you ever over on that side of the river
any moref—A. No; not on that side of the river.

. That was the only time that you were on the Mexican side in
that stretch of 240 miles, or whatever it was?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is all you know about that personally?—A. That is.
all I know of the Mexican side. .

Q. And that is all you know about it being the dumping ground —
A. Well, no more than I know that our boys—we had 18 from our
company deserted and went over there the first year. They went to
Monterey. We heard of their heing there.

Q. That would be very natural, if they were up on the Canadian
line, to go across the line?—A. Well, yes, sir.

Q. Just the same?—A. It certainly is so in any border country.

Q. The people of Brownsville, you say, in your opinion, were about
three or four thousand in number—you say that was the population
of Brownsville?—A. I estimated it at that. I don’t say it is correct.

Q. Iam %etting your judgment.—A. I would suppose that.

Q. And the remarks you heard made about thése troops were up
in this gambling house over Weller’s saloonf—A. Yes, sir. I have
beard it on the streets.

Q. But what you have heard on the streets was simply regret that
the colored troops were coming there?—A. Yes, sir.

YQ. And regretting that the Twenty-sixth were going awayi—A.
es, sir.

Q’. You heard no hostile remarks made at all{—A. No more than
what I have mentioned, sir.

Q. This little boy of 10 or 12¢—A. He made nothing more than
he just made that expression, and kind of grinned at me. Whether
he meant it or not, I don’t know.

Q. He did not look very vicious when he made the remark{—A.

No.

Q. He just laughed and said he was going to sell them to kill
niggers?—A. That is all. I thought notl_nnﬁ of it.

Q. And he had how many cartridges in his hat?—A. Well, now,
Senator, I could not answer that.

Q. Well, I know, but approximately—a dozen or two dozen?—A.
Oh, there might heve been 25 or 30, might have been 40, I would not
say ; might not have been that many.

Q. A pretty good hatfull{—A. Noj the hat was not near full; just
a little hat. .

Q. You know I did not see it. I want to get at it, as to what you
saw, Would you say a dozen or two dozen, or whatever it was—

our own estimate?—A. There might have been two or three dozen.
would not say there was any more or any less.

Q. Did it strike you as very singular that this little boy should
have so many cartridges?—A. Not at all. That is a common thing
to see them have them. :

Q. To see them take cartridges out of there?—A. They often come
:ndhask the soldiers for a cartridge for a keepsake, and they give it

0 them.
Senator IFoster. No trouble to get cartridges, then?
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By Senator WarNER:

Q. No trouble to get cartridges in that way?#—A. Well, they could
get a few; but if we lived up to the regulations, they are very strict.

Q. Oh, I know. If we lLived ur to the golden rule, it would be
pretty strict, but we do not do it always. But I am talking of what
the actual practice was, Mr. West.—A. Well, the practice is always
they keep tab on our cartridges. I know I never disposed of any. I
always returned exnctly what I got.

Q. I am not assuming that you did, but I am asking; you say
among the command it was an easy matter to get cartridges?—A. To
get a few; could always get a few,

Q. This boy seemed to have had a good many. I just want to get
at it.—A. Well, let me explain that any troops leaving that way,
most of the soldiers will perhaps have a pasteboard box or a box with
cleaning things for their guns—rags and brush and oil and stuff—and
maybe two or thres loose cartridges, and when they leave they just
leave the box and everything.

Q. Leave tlie box that way, and the cartridges?—A. Yes, sir;
never think anything about it.

Q. So each soldier leaving that way, where there are thirty or forty
soldiers, there mi%ht be a hundred or more cartridges loft?—A.
There might possibly be and there might not. Where there were a
lot of soldiers just even a few would mount up to quite a lot some-
times,

Q. And driving along there you saw some khaki clothing that had
been left?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And did you notice cartridges there, toot—A. I would not say
whether there were cartridges there,

Q. As I understand, you did not go into the barracks at all{—A.
No, sir; I did not investigate there. I was busy teaming and getting
the regiment off.

Q. You have been with the Twenty-sixth for a considerable time?—
A. Yes, sir; six renrs.

Q. You regard that regiment as a pretty well organized and gov-
erned regiment, don't you, as far as discipline and rules are con-
cerned ¢—2A. I think it is as good as any regiment.

Q. As good as any regiment?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were on extra duty as a teamster?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And were not much about the barracks?¥—A. No, sir; I was not.

Q. Now, these bandoliers, that you did not know what- they were
called ut the time, they were not issued to you until they were issued
with the Springﬁeld rifle, as I understand—Springficld ammuni-
tion?—A. No,sir; they were not.

‘ﬁ%nntor Foster. He said they were not issued with the Springfield
rifle.

Q. Were the bandoliers issued with the Springfield riflef—A. I
never saw them issued to the soldiers. I know they were issued
cartridges. They only had gencrnllg 10 or 20, to do guard duty,
and they were ripped open and handed out in clips to the soldiers,
and they threw the bandoliers away.

Q. That was by the ordnance officer of the company?—A. Yes, sir;
by the quartermaster,

8. Doc. 402, G0-1, pt 6——16
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Q. The quartermaster-sergeant?—A. Yes, sir.

YQ. Because each company now has & quartermaster-sergeant?—A.
es, sir,
Q. And he is the ordnance officer of the company?—A. Yes, sir;

he looks after the rations and the company property.

Q. Then you have an ordnance officer of the regiment or the bat-
talion?—A. Yes, sir; of the regiment.

Q. So in the issues of those bandoliers, then, so far as your obser-
vation went, the quartermaster-sergeant took no care of them—just
threw them away ¥—A. I understand they did.

Q. Iam ﬁctting at what you saw.—A. Yes, sir; I saw them scat-
tered around—thrown away.

Q. You did not return those bandoliers at all?—A. No, sir.

Q. And you saw quite a number of them on the back porches of
those different barracks?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. During your time?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you say it did not create any surprise at the reply you got
from the boy; no surprise at the fact that he had this number of car-
tridges, taking them out?—A. It did not to me; not at all, sir.

Q. You just said to him gleasantly, “ Well, my boy, what are you
going to do with those? ”—A. That 1s all—* kid.”

Q. And the kid laughed?—A. The boys knew me, and they always
called me “ Dad.” That was the name I went by.

By Senator IFosTER:
Q. The Spanish boys called you “Dad? "—A. Yes, sir; they knew
me. I had teamed around there and had never abused them.
Q. They were about as serious when they called you “ Dad * as he
was when he said he was going to sell those to kill niggers?—A., Sol-
diers always have names to call one another by.

By Senator ForAKER:

Q. Did you let the boys ride in your wagon?—A. They have rid-
den in my wagon., To carry regular passengers is forbidden.

By Senator WARNER:

Q. But when a boy got on the back of your wagon you didn’t
whip them off with a whip?—A. No, sir; they always treated me
right personally myself; I never had any trouble.

Q. gust one other question or two, Sergeant, about cleaning your

un, Kerosene, you say, is the best and most expeditious thing?—.\.

hat has been my experience; but I am speaking for nobody else.
I do it because it is easily gotten and can be carried in a bottle when
I go out on the target range.

. Tt is easily done, so far as your experience goes, and with better
effect, and more quickly done?—A. It is so, from my idea. I got it
when T was working in machinery, in cutting rust and dirt. I used
it tgere, and I thought I would try it here, and it worked fine, and I
used it.

Q. You s?]oke of having a brush. That is a thong brush?—A. It
is just like the thong brush, only it is heavier and longer.

Q. You buy that at the commissary?—A. At the canteen.

Q. You said the commissary.—A. The canteen.

Q. And they were kept there for sale; any of the soldiers could
bny them?—A. Well, they could at any post I have been in.




AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS, 1168

Q. T am speaking of Brownsville; just your own post. Those cost
how much?—A. I think 25 cents.

Q. They did the work pretty thoroughly?—A. Yes, sir; by run-
ning them up and down quite vigorously and with that oil.

Q. And as far as cleaning the barrel of the gun, where it had been
shot four or five times, and within a few hours, before the powder
had got set, as I think they call it——A. That is it.

Q. T do not know as I use the right expression. Now, running that
up and down the barrel, as far as the barrel was concerned, you could
clean it in a very few minutes, could you not?—A. In a short time,
so that if you looked through it it would look bright, but if you let it
stand it will turn blue, turn dark.

Q. That is, if it is not thoroughly cleaned?—A. No matter how
thoroughly you clean it, you have to clean it several times in twenty-
four or thirty-six hours before it will stay bright. That blue color
comes back on the barrel.

Q. But the powder is all gone?—A. The powder may be all gone;

es, sir,
v Q. But it is that blue color, instead of having a bright polished
surface?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do many of the soldiers, to your knowledge, buy this brush be-
cause it is an expeditious way of doin%' it?—A. They most all of them
do in my company, and what do not have them used to borrow mine.

Q. Use the brush and the kerosene?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had no bandoliers with the Krags?—A. No, sir.

Q. How long before leaving Brownsville was it that the Spring-
field rifles had been issued to that battalion?—A. I could not say.

Q. Approximate}ly?—A. I can only answer for my Com{mn_v 3 B
We had them issued to us just before we left Ringaold. We had fin-
ished our target practice.

Q. Pardon me; when was it you left Ringgold?—A. It was the
last of May; I can not give you the date.

Q. In 19067—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So when you went back to Brownsville, 1906, you had the
Springfield rifles?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you had them from that time on until you left—the 5th of
July?—A. Yes, sir; we did. .

Senator Warner. I think that is all I want to ask,

By Senator OvERMAN:

Q. Did you load your regiment’s property and unload the propert
of the T\\'gnty-ﬁftll¥—A. cs, sir; Ii had charge of that. property

Q. Did you take property out of the magazine house of the
Twenty-sixth and put it on board the car?—A. No, sir; we had no
such property to load. It was only just company property. That
belonged to the Quartermaster’s Department., That was shipped
afterwards.

Q. You did not load that?—A. No, sir; we were ordered to the
mancuvers, I think we left the 28th day of August—the detachment,
you understand.

By Senator ForaRER!
Q. The 28th day of what?—A, August,I think we left there—that
is, the detachment,
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By Senator Fosrer:
Q. You left where?—.\. FFort Brown—.J\ugust or July.

By Senator FForaker:

Q. The evidence shows that the black battalion arrived there on
the 28th of July.—A. The 28th of July; that is right, I know we
mustered the last day of the month at Austin.

By Scenator Foster:

Q. Mr. West, did T understand you to say that there is a strip of
territory 100 miles broad and 250 miles long that is used as a dunp-
ing ground for lawless characters?—A. Udon't say that it is used for
}(lmt, but they scem to congregate there; . from what cause 1 don't

now,

Q. Will you state what towns and cities are within that strip of
territory 7—A. Well, there is Brownsville: that is the largest there
is, unless it is Laredo and Ringgold. ‘Then, outside of that there is
nothing but small, little villages, barrios, or ranches,

Q. Nonceast/—A\. On the east when you get out, as you go out about
50 or 75 miles, then the towns begin to get a little lurger, toward the
center of Texas,

Q. Will you name the towns 100 miles east of the border?—A. No;
I could not.

Q. The towns which you have mentioned are border towns en-
tirely ?—A. Mostly border towns; yes, sir.
toQ‘? Will you name any towns 50 miles east of this strip of terri-

ry

Senator WarNner. That is, from the Rio Grande.

By Senator Foster:

Q. From the Rio Grande.—A. From the Rio Grande, I under-
stand you. Cor‘pus Christi—that is a large town, that is quite a city.
. Q. TIs that a dumping ground for lawless characters?—A. Corpus
. Christi is quite a nice eity.

Q. Just answer ycs or no, and then you can explain it.—A. No,
sir; it is not.

é. Now, name another town.—A. Well, I could not name the
towns up that far back.

lQ. Name a village.—A. They go by ranches more than anything
else.

Q. Name some of the ranches.—A. I could not mention those;
they are all Mexican names, mostly. I was out two months with
Lieutenant Palmer, all over that country, but I could not remember
the ranches or little towns of 100 or 200 or 300 population.

Q. Then the only towns that you can now recall in this stretch of
territory, 100 miles broad and 250 miles long, are Corpus Christi,
Fort Brown, Laredo, and what is the name of the other one?—A.
Ringgold. :

Q. Those are the only ones that you can at present recall, either
villages, towns, ranches, or cities?—A. Well, that is by name.

Q. By name?—A. By name. There is Hidalgo; that is the county
seat of Hidnlgo County.

Q. What kind of a town is that?—A. It is quite a nice thriving
little town.




AFFRAY AT BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS, 1165

Q. What is the difference in the character of the population in
Brownsville and Laredo and Ringgold—the same class o} people{—
A, As far as T observed they were,

Q. What is the population of Laredo?—A. I could not say, but I
believe it is larger than Brownsville, considerably.

Q. And Ringgold?2—A, Ringgold; I believe they claim 2,000,

Q. A mixed population?—A. Yes, sir; a_mixed population.

Q. What proportion of whites and what proportion of Mexi-
cans?—A\. There are three-fourths Mexicans; very few white people,
especially white Americans,

Q. Do you know a single fugitive from justice in the town of
Brownsville, cither from the United States or from Mexico{—A.
I have had them pointed out to me, several of them, but I don’t know
them by name,

Q. Can you name one of them?—A\. No, sir; I could not.

Q. Who pointed them out to you?—A. Why, some of the soldiers
pointed thein out to me; and let me see, T believe there was one of the
policemen. I know they used to come into camp there, into the post,
from the other side of the river.

Q. Fugitives from justice?—A. Yes, sir; I did not know them
myself, personally.

: Q. What crime had they committed —A. Now, I could not answer
that, six

Q. Ilow did you know they were fugitives from justice?—A.
“tothing more than only what 1 heard.

Q. Whom did you hear it from?—A. Well, T could not mention
names,  To vemember all you hear and who said it would take con-
siderable time. 1 could not mention ro names,

Q. Did you ever know of any American who had refugeed to that
town of Brownsville, flecing from justice!—A. No more than hear-
sy, sir,

Q. How many did you hear oft—A. T conld not tell yon how
nany. I conld not tell yon that at all.

Q. Or who told you that they were?—A. Well, it just scemed to
bs common talk; that is all I can say as far as regards that, I
know quite a number that deserted, that went to the other side.

Q. T am speaking of this side.—A. I know. '

Q. T am speaking of Brownsville, You found the people of that
town law-nbiding, did you not?—A. Well, T never had any trouble
personally myself—never.

Q. The laws were enforeed, were they not, so far as you know #—
A. As far as I know they were.

Q. Enforced both against the Americans and the Mexicans so far
as vou know?—A. As far as T know, sir.

Q. Did you ever hear any complaint of lack of proper administra-
tion of the laws?—A. Yes, sir; I have heard—TI don’t know whether
it is correct or not,

Q. What particular instance can_you give of a lack of n proper
administration of the lnws by thoe officers of the law?—A\. Well, now,
I don't know; only what I'have heard them speak of in the post—
that they were prejudiced. that they did not enforce the lnw equally
with the eitizens and with the soldiers. ) .

Q. I am speaking of the law being enforced agninst the citizens
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first.—A. Well, as far as the citizens were concerned, I don’t know
that there was any difference.

Q. You don't krow of any instance of the lack of administration
oftthe law so far as the citizens were concerned?—A. No, sir; I do
not.

Q. Now, did you know of any lack of administration of the law
so far as the soldiers were concerned, of your own knowledge?—A.
No, sir; not of my own knowledge.

(:2. You said you were there for a number of years and went around
all through the town?—A, No, sir; not a number of years. I have
beenﬂa: little over three years up and down Ringgold and that place
together.

. You had no difficulty at any place or with anyone?—A. Never
in my life.

Q. Being a good, quiet, sober soldier, you went where you chose
and had no difficulty or trouble with officers or citizens?—A. I never
did. I have been out all times of night.

Q. Did you ever know of a soldier who conducted himself in _an
orderly manner and in a lawful way having any difficulty 2—A. No,
sir,

Q. With anyone in Brownsville?—A. No, sir.

Q. The people had no prejudice, had they, ngainst yon wherever
you went$—A. If they did, I did not know of it.

Q. No evidence of prejudice was ever shown to you by reason of
your being a soldier?—A. Well, personally I can not say that there
was.

Q. The Americans in that town were men of good business stand-
ing, were they not?—A. Well, what few Americans were there, I
always thought they were.

Q. Good men?—A, Why, I always supposed they were. They
were bankers and two or three_merchants, a doctor or two.

Q. Bankers?—A. Yes, sir; I think there were two banks there,

Q. Doctors and lawyers?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And judges?—A. There were two or three judges.

Q. Merchants{—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then you know nothing, of your own knowledge, of the preju-
dice, as you call it, or the ill feeling, as you term it, of the citizens
against the soldiersi—A. Well, no more than just what remarks 1
have heard.

Q. In this conversation which you have stated, and in which you
heard some remarks made about the coming of the soldiers and the
getting of them away from there, did they say how they expected to
get the soldiers away from there?—A. No, sir.

Q. Will you name some of the people who made that statement ?—
A. I could not.

Q. Can not name a single one¥—A. No, sir.

Q. Where was this statement made?—A. Oh, T heard it several
times nlon{;'I the street and in those two particular gambling houses
over Crixell’s and Weller’s.

Q. If you heard a statement of that kind in a gambling house
and did not know the character of the men that made the statement,
would you permit that statement to be made the basis of a charge
against the people of that town?—A. I certainly would not; not
on that statement alone; no sir.
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Q. When you met that little boy that morning, with these car-
tridges, you were going out of the barracks, I understood.—A. I was
coming 1n,

Q. You were coming in and he was going out of the barracksf—
A. Yes, sir.

Senator Foraker. Going out of the reservation,

By Senator FosTer:

Q. Going out of the reservation. You addressed him in some such
terms as “ Kid, where did you get those?”—A. No; I said “ Kid, what
are you going to do with thoset”

Q. And he answered back, “ Dad, I am going to take them to town
and sell them.” Is that what he said #—A. Yes, sir.

l?fnntor?Fomm:n. Are you trying to quote the answer he made a
while ago

Q. Substantially. State what he did say.—A. “ Going to take
them down town and sell them to kill niggers with.” And he kind
of laughed at me.

Q. Was that the time he called you * Dad #”—A. Yes, sir,

Q. That is what I understood.—A. Yes, sir.

BQ. Agnd you had only been there nbout a year or two?—A. At
rown

Q. Yes.—A, That last time I had only been there about a month;
this last time,

Q. I understand that was a-common term that the young boys used
down there, the children used in that place toward yout—A. Yes,
sir soldiers have all nicknames of some form or another,

Q. This was a Mexican boy #—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do the Mexican children down there, as a rule, speak Eng-
lish?—A. Some; some st)eak very good Engilsh.

Q. As a rule, do the Mexicans themselves speak English?—A. No;
not if the, can avoid it. They gencrally speak Mex. Some of them,
thongh, can talk very good Engﬁnsh. )

) ('2] You knew these policemen down there, did yout—A. Oaly by
sight,

Q. Never had spoken to them?—A. I never had occasion to meet
them, and never had much to do with them at all.

Q. Isn’t it one of the regulations of the Army that a soldier is
held to a strict accountability for the number of cartridges he re-
ceives, and that he must account for them?—A. Yes, sir; that is the
regulation as to everythinF we have, even to our clothing.

Q. Is it not also a regulation of the Army that none of the prop-
erty of the United States Government shall be used or taken posses-
sion of by any of the citizens?—A. Yes, sir._ .

Q. You saw, then, about 35 or 40 cartridges in the hat of this
boy #—A. I should judge there were about that.

Q. Where could that boy, in your judgment, have gotten those car-
tridges from?—A. I thought at the time he just §impl}' picked them
up, or some of the soldiers had given them to him. It was so cus-
tomary that I never t-hOl.llght any more about it. It secemed as
though there are always children and a certain number of hangers-on
around the post.

You say you thought the boy had picked them up, or some of
the soldiers had given them to himi—A. Yes, sir; that it what I
thought.
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Q. Have you ever seen that done before?—A. Yes, sirg it is done
at every post when they move. Whatever they do not need is
cast off.

Q. Cartridges, too?—A. Whatever is left in these boxes; they do
not bother to carry them with them, .

Q. Do I understand that this boy could have gotten these car-
tridges—could have gone into these barracks and gotten these car-
tridges?—A. I didn't think he went into the barracks; I thought he
got them off the back porches, whee they were dumping company
property that was left. :

Q. Were there not guards there detailed?—A. No, sir; no guards.

Q. Ten from each company detailed to take care of those bar-
rackst—A. No, sir; nothing only the quartermaster of each com-

any—-—

P Q? And 10 men?—A. Yes, sir; I was one of the 10, helping the
quartermaster as teamster.

Q. Would any one of these men on duty there permit a boy or any-
one else to go into the barracks and ¥ick up cast-off clothing and
pick up shells or bandoliers or things of that kind?—A. No; perhaps
they would just pick up stuff they did not think was of any account
and give it to them,

Q. Give it to them?—A. To get rid of it. They generally threw
it into the ash barrel, and they would save that trouble by giving it to
the Mexicans to take away.

Q. You said, I believe, that you heard quite a number of shots
t{wre during the night on different occasions?—A. I have heard
shots.

Q. Were they straggling shots or volleys?—A. Oh, no; just now
and then a shot once in a while.

Q. Are you not liable to hear that in almost any town?—A. I have
hlo.nrd it when I was in Fort Sam Houston; not a week ago I heard
shots,

Q. Mr. West, if a party should take your rifle and discharge it,
say, three or four or five or six times, how long would it take you,
with your thonég brush, to clean the barrel of that rifle with kerosene
so that it would pass inspection?—A. I think I could do it in fifteen
minutes.

. Q. Would it take fifteen minutes just to clean the barrel out?—A.
’cs, sir,

Q’. Now, is it not a fact that you and the rest of the soldiers had
their own cleaning material with them in their quarters?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Everﬁ man had his little box{—A. Squoscd to; yes, sir.

Q. In which he was supposed to have his cleaning materials?—A.
Keg@lit separate, to keep it from mixing up, so that they could find it
readily. . o

Q. And he could clean his gun any time he felt like it, when he
had his gun, could he not?—A. Yes, sir; certainly.

Q. That is the usual practice of soldiers, is it not?—A. Yes, sir;
keep it ready. We don’t know when we may be called out for inspec-
tion, at any time, or for guard duty.

YQ. And you have those materials all at hand in your quartersi—A.
bs, sir,
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Q. When you say they have the materials necessary for cleaning a
ﬁ““ on hand in the quarlers, what do T understand 7—A. Well, tﬁnt

rush, oil, and rags and brushes, and whatever other things are
deemed necessary to use,

Q. What would you have for cleaning the barrel?—A. For clean-
ing the barrel and cleaning the outside, cleaning rags.

Q. And for the inside?—A\. Clean it out with n brush, and then
they have what we call a pull-through—put a cloth or something on
the end and wipe the barrel out clean.

Q. They are the materials you would use in cleaning out your gun
for inspection?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are those same materinls used for cleaning out a gun for in-
spection after the gun has been fired 2—A. T always used the sante.

Q. Then, having those materials on hand in lius quarters, it is not
necessary for a soldier to go and get one of those rods or rags from
anybody else to clean his gun?—A. Each one is supposed to have his
own. There are lots of them that do not. There are lots of careless
men in the Army that hardly have anything, but borrow.

Q. Well, good soldiers generally have them?—A. Good, careful
soldiers; yes, sir.

Q. Did you yourself see any cartridges lying around ufter the
Twenty-sixth left?-—A. Yes, sir.

Q. After the Twenty-sixth left you saw cartridges lying around
the barracks?—A. Yes, sir. Yon are pretty apt to ses them in any
post—a few scattered around. They are liable to; it is carelessness,
;lmugh. There are always a few men get careless and leave things
00s¢,

By Senator \WWARNER:

Q. One ather question, Mr. West. You said something about using
this brush, and then, as I understood, a rag and a pull‘ﬁlrough?-—-A.
No; we have a pull-through besides that—a pull-through with a clean
rag that fits tight, to wipe the oil all off.

Q. What is that pull-through?—A. Why, it is a strong cord with
a metallic point to it with a slot in it like a needle.

Q. Like the eye of a needle; and you put the rag in?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that fits in the barrel, and you pull it through?—A. To
wipe the barrel out.

. And that is supposed to do it thoroughly—A., It is, after you
have rubbed it thoroughly with the brush; loosened it up. That is
what it is supposed to do.

By Senator Foraker:

Q. With the Krag-Jirgensen you had a rod in the butt of the
gun, didun’t you?—A. The Krag; yes. sir. )

Q. That rod was in sections?—:A\. That vod was in sections.

Q. How many?—A. There were three sections to each gun, but I
always had five.

Q. You had to take it out and screw it togetherf—A. Screwed it
together in sections, about 8 or 10 inches long.

Q. And with this new Springfield rifle you are furnished with a
dig’eront] Ikind of cleaning rod, are you not?—A. We have no cleaning
rod at all.

Q. Nothing that goes with the rifle?—A. No, sir.
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Q. Each company, however, is furnished with a number of brass
cleaning rods?—A. Waell, they may be; yes; I have seen many of
those, I belie